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In the District Court of the United States, Southern

District of California, Central Division

Civil No. 714-J Civil

HELEN M. SUTHERLAND, CHARLES W.
SUTHERLAND, M. I. HIGGENS, MAY-
BELLE HIGGENS and HELEN MAUDE
LORENZ,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

FRANK A. GARBUTT, CHANDIS SECURI-
TIES COMPANY, a corporation, ALICE
CLARK RYAN, LOG CABIN MINES COM-
PANY, a corporation, and MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION, a corporation,

Defendants.

BILL OF COMPLAINT

(Stockholders' suit to cancel certain instruments,

and for other relief.)

The ])lanitiff:'s above named present this, their

hill of complaint against ihe defendants above

named, and alleae:

I.

Helen M. Sutherland and Charles W. Sutherland,

Plaintiffs herein, are each citizens of the Domhiion

of Canada; M. I. Higgens and Maybelle Higoens,

plaintiffs herein, are each citizens of the State of

Idaho; Helen Maude Lorenz, plaintiff herein, is a

citizen of the State of Oregon.
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II.

Frank A. Garbutt and Alice Clark Ryan are each

citizens [2] of the State of California. Chandis

Securities Company is a corporation organized un-

der the laws of the State of California.

Mutual Gold Corporation was organized as a cor-

poration Tuider the laws of the State of Washing-

ton May 11, 1932, and still so is. November 18,

1933, Mutual Gold Corporation duly qualified under

the laws of* the State of California to engage in

l)usiness therein, and ever since has been so quali-

fied.

About October 18, 1938, Log Cabin Mines Com-

pany was organized as a corporation under the laws

of the State of California. Its capital stock was

divided into ten thousand (10,000) shares, each

share One Dollar ($1) par.

III.

The matter iu contr-oversy exceeds, exclusive of

interest and costs, the sum of Three Thousand

($3,000) Dollars.

lY.

At and during all the times in this complaint

mentioned the plaintiffs, and each of them were,

and are, stockholders owning shares of the ca])ital

stock of Mutual Gold Corporation, to-wit: Helen

M. Sutherland 333 shares, Charles W. Sutherland

333 shares, M. I. Higgens 333% shares, Maybelle

Higgens 333% shares and Helen Maude Lorenz 500

shares, and each were such stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation at the time of each of the trans-
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actions lierein complained of; that this action is

not a collusive one to confer on a court of the

United States jurisdiction of any action of wliicli

it would not otherwise have jurisdiction. Plaintiffs

maintain this action as stockholders of and for and

on behalf of Mutual Gold Corporation, and for and

on behalf of all of tlie stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation [3] similarly situate, for that the

controlling majority of the directors, trustees, and

the majority of the stockholders thereof are not in

sympathy with, but opposed to, the institution of

this or any suit for the relief from or concerning-

the matters herein com])lained of, for which relief

is sought in and by this action; that any request

for any relief would be idle and without avail, as

will hereinafter more fully ap])ear, for which reason

no demand has been made by plaintiffs to the board

of directors, trustees, or stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation, for the institution of this suit, or

for the relief, or any similar relief, to that sought

herein.

V.

July 13, 1932, Russell F. Collins and Ben L. Col-

lins entered into a contract with Chandis Securities

Company, M. N. Clark and Alice Clark Ryan to

purchase certain mining claims situate in Mono
County, State of California, on the terms, condi-

tions, and for the considerations stated therein, a

copy of which is hereto attached, marked "Exhibit

1", and made a part hereof, and is herein desig-

nated as the "purchase contract". The mining
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claims therein agreed to be sold are herein desig-

nated as the '' contract mining claims". July 18,

1932, Russell F. Collins and Ben L. Collins assigned

the purchase contract unto Mutual Gold Cor])ora-

tion, and it became vendee, with approval of the

vendors. About 1935, M. N. Clark assigned her

interest in the purchase contract and in the con-

tract mining claims to Alice Clark Ryan. Alice

Cla]'k Ryan and Chandis Securities Company are

herein designated as the "owners". The parties

later agreed on certain modifications of the pur-

cliase contract, copies of which are hereto attached,

marked "Exhibit 2", "Exhibit 3" and "Exhibit

4", and [4] made a part hereof. Frank A. Garbutt

represented the owners as agent in negotiation of

the ]:)urchase contract, and in respect to all matters

of jjerformance thereof since then.

VI.

Mutual Gold Corporation, in })erformance of the

purcliase contract, expended in excess of the sum

of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000)

and in so doing erected a stamj) mill, did under-

ground excavation work in the development of, and

mining, the contract mining claims, and thereby

develo])ed ore bodies in excess of one lumdred

twenty-five thousand (125,000) tons, containing re-

coverable gold values of One Million Six Hundred

FiCtv ^rhonsand Dollars ($1,650,000).
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VII.

September 2, 1938, Mutual Gold Corporation

owned (a) the purchase contract and the vendees'

interest in the purchase mining claims, (b) the ad-

ditional mining- claims, (c) omitted additional

mining claims conveyed by a specific designation,

by deed, "Exhibit 15'' hereof, and (d) stamp mill,

mill and mining machinery, supplies and equipment.

x\ll of said assets ^ve^e then, and still are, of a rea-

sonable value in excess of Two Million Dollars

($2,000,000). The stamp mill, mill and mining ma-

chin^ery, su])plies and equipment, were of the rea-

sonable value of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000).

The claims designated as "additional mining

claims" were certain unpatented mining claims ad-

jacent to the contract mining claims and w^ere of

the reasonable value in excess of Thirty Thousand

Dollars ($30,000). The omitted additional mining

claims are specifically designated as Mutual Gold

Lode No. 2, Mutual Gold Lode No. 3, Mutual Gold

Lode No. 4, [5] Mutual Gold Lode No. 5 and Mu-

tual Gold Lode No. 6, and were of negligible value.

YIII.

September 2, 1938, and ever since, Mutual Gold

Corpoi'ation owed about Twenty-five Thousand Dol-

lars ($25,000) upon open, imsecured accounts then

due, and owed on production certificates Thirty

Thousand Dollars ($30,000), not due, payable out

of net ])roduction receipts accruing from the sale

of ores from its mining property or out of the ])ro-
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eeeds of a voluntary or involuntary sale thereof,

as set out in the production certificates, a form cop>'

of which is attached hereto, marked "Exhil)it 5",

and made a part hereof.

IX.

August 6, 1938, and thereafter, Frank A. Garbutt

fraudulently, wrongfull^v and unlawfully conspired

wit]] and prevailed upon the board of directors

and executive officers of Mutual Gold Corporation

to agree to tlie transfer of all its assets to a new

cor])oration to be organized for and on behalf of

Mutual Gold Corporation, for which Mutual Gold

Corporation was to receive fifty per cent, minus

one share, and Frank A. Garlnitt fifty ])er cent,

plus one share, of all the capital stock of the new

cor])oration, which new corporation was to have no

ca])ita1 or assets, other than the assets of Mutual

Gold Corporation, without authorization of the

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation, and with-

out provision to pay, or care for, the claims of

creditors of Mutual Gold Corporation, to evade,

circumvent and violate tlie laws of the State of

Washing-ton, to the injury of Mutual Gold Corpo-

ration, its stockholders and creditors. The [6] sev-

eral transactions lierein com])lained of were done

and executed to carry out said pur])oses and ol)-

jects, and were, and are, in violation of, and void

under the laws of the State of ^Yashington.
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X.

August 25, 1938, pursuant thereto, Frank A. Gar-

butt, without valid cause or justification, wrongfully

gave to Mutual Gold Corporation notice of for-

feiture of the ]3urchase contract and, while for-

feiture was insisted upon, wrongfully, fraudulently

and unlawfulh^ ])revailed upon the board of direc-

tors and executive oincers of Mutual Gold Corpo-

ration to Fiiake on September 2, 1938, an agreement

to sell and convey to Frank A. Garbutt, to be later

transferred to the proposed new corporation, all of

the assets of Mutual Gold Corporation; that a co])y

of said agreement is liereto attached, marked "Ex-

liibit 6", and riiade a part hereof. Concurrently

thorewitli, Frank A. Garbu.tt arranged to advance,

and later did advance, the personal expenses of two

of said directors, and agreed to, and did, em]:>loy

one of said directors to work for him in the nego-

tiation for, and execution of, the several contracts

an.d conveyances complained of herein, and in the

o])eration of said mining property, and for said

services ])aid said director compensation pursuant

to arrangement previously agreed to, and thereby

fraudulently influenced said board of directors to

execute the several contracts and conveyances here-

by complained of.

XL
September 21, 1938, Frank A. Garbutt prevailed

u]ion tlie board of directors and executive officers

of Mutual Gold Corjioration illegally, and without

consideration, to execute a [7] deed, bill of sale
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and assignment of the purchase contract to him,

co])ies of which instruments are hereto attached,

marked "Exhibit 7", "Exhibit 8" and "Exhibit

9". and made a part hereof.

XII.

September 22, 1938, Frank A. Garbutt prevailed

upon the board of directors and executive officers

of Mutual Gold Corporation to enter into an agree-

ment with him, containing identical provisions and

terjns as that of said agreemeiit of September 2,

193S, "Exhibit 6", with like purpose and intent.

XIIL
October 18, 1938, Frank A. Garbutt caused to be

filed in the Office of the Secretary of State of the

State of California, articles of incorporation of

Log Cabin Mines Company.

XIV.

September 26, 1938, stockholders of Mutual Gold

Corporation complained to its board of directors

and to Frank A. Garbutt, charging that the contract

of September 2, 1938, "Exhibit 6", and the deed,

bill of sale and assignment of the purchase con-

tract, "Exhibits 7, 8 and 9", were in violation of

the lavrs of Washington in respect to the transfer

of all of the assets of Mutual Gold Corporation in

consideration of stock in the proposed new corpo-

I'ation, and had been obtained by Frank A. Garbutt

from Mutual Gold C()ri)oration unconscionably by
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assertion of claim of forfeiture, by fraud, coercion,

and without provision to }my the creditors of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation; said directors, considering-

said comjDlaint, in conspirac}^ with Frank A. Gar-

butt, [8] refused to grant an}^ relief in the premises,

but thereafter, because of said objections, and to

avoid the force thereof, Frank A. Garbutt assumed

and pretended to withdraw from the agreements

of September 2, 1938 ^'Exhibit 6" hereof, and Se])-

tember 22, 1938, and gave notice of such withdrawal

to Mutual Gold Corporation. Concurrently there-

witli the said Frank A. Garbutt wrongfully and

unlawfully conspired with and prevailed upon a

majority of the board of directors and executive

officers of Mutual Gold Corporation to enter into an

agreement of date November 1, 1938, with Frank A.

Garbutt. The notice of witlidrawal and concurrent

agreements are hereto attached, marked "Exhibit

10", and made a ])art hereof. Said agreement lacked

a good faith affidavit, and was not filed nor recorded

as a mortgage. Frank A. Garbutt and said board

of directors intended the notice of withdrawal and

concurrent agreement to l^e of no force or effect

;

there was no change of possession, nor of the o])er-

ation of the property.

XY.
About December 17, 1938, Frank A. Garbutt

wrongfully and unlawfully conspired with, and pre-

vailed upon, a majority of the board of directors

and executive officers of Mutual Gold Corporation,
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illegally, without any consideration whatever there-

for to Mutnal Gold. Corporation, contrary to the

lav\*s and public policy of the State of Washington,

and in fraudulent disregard of the rights of Mutual

Gold Corporation, its stockholders and creditors, t(^

execute, in writing, a contract with, and between,

himself and the aforesaid Log Cabin Mines Com-

pany, a copy of which is hereto attached, marked

^'Exhibit 11", and made a part hereof, and was,

and is, unilateral in form and effect, and without,

by its terms, any contractual or binding force or

etfect [9] whatever upon the said Frank A. Gar-

butt, wherein a purported option was pretended to

be given to Log Cabin Mines Company on the terms

therein stated, to acquire the aforesaid purchase

contract, contract mining claims, additional mining

chiims, and the personal propert>^, constituting all

of tlie assets of Mutual Gold Corporation.

XYL
Aiu'il 10, 1939, Frank A. Garbutt wrongfully and

unlawfully consi)ired witli, and prevailed upon, tlie

board of directors and executive officers of Mutual

Gold Corporation to execute a deed and bill of sale

to Log Cabin Mines Company of all of its assets,

exce])t the omitted additional mining claims, copies

of which deed and bill of sale are hereto attached,

marked ''Exhibit 12" and ''Exhibit L3" and made

a ])art liereof, and assignment (^f the jnirchase con-

tract.
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XVII.

April 17, 1939, Frank A. Garbutt prevailed upon

the board of directors and executive officers of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, on behalf of Mutual Gold

Corporation, to subscribe for all of the capital stock

of Log Cabin Mines Company, and in form he

loaned Mutual Gold Corporation the sum of Ten

Thousand Dollars ($10,000) to pay said subscri])-

tion, and contemporaneously therewith he caused

Lob Cabin Mines Company to appoint him mana-

ger and treasurer of Log Cabin Mines Com])any

and, as such, gave him control of said Ten Thou-

sand Dollars ($10,000), Avhich amount Mutual Gold

Corporation and Log Cabin Mines Company agreed

to repay to him. Five thousand one (5,001) shares

of the stock of Log Cabin Mines Company were

thereupon issued to Frank A. Garbutt, as ownei',

and [10] and four thousand nine hundred ninety-

nine (4,999) shares thereof were issued to Mutual

Gold Corporation, but pledged to Frank A. Garbutt

to secure the purported loan of Ten Thousand Dol-

lars ($10,000).

XVIII.

July 21, 1939, in furtherance, and as a ste]) in

the consummation of the aforesaid fraudulent pur-

pose and plan, ^\ithout any consideration whatso-

ever therefor moving to Mutual Gold Corporation,

its stockholders or creditors, illegally and in fraud-

ulent disregard of the rights of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration, its stockholders and creditors, Frank A.
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Garbutt, with the knowledge and approval of the

owners, executed a deed purporting to convey to

Log Cabin Mines Company the property purported

to have ];een conveyed to him by Mutual Gold Cor-

poration by the deed, assiginnent and bill of sale

\vhich bear date September 21, 1938, ''Exhibits 7,

8 and 9" hereof, reserving therefrom the accunni-

lated tailings frou] milling and processing in past

3-ears, all with the knowledge and approval of the

owners, a copy of which deed is hereto attached,

marked "Exhibit 14'', and made a part hereof.

XIX.

August 9, 1939, Frank A. Garbutt prevailed upon

the board of directors and executive officers of Mu-

tual Gold C^orporation to execute a deed of said

omitted additional mining claims to Log Cabin

Mines Company, a cojjy of which is hereto attached,

marked ''Exhibit 15," and made a part hereof.

XX.
September 2, 1938, under the contract of that

date, [11] "Exhibit 6" hereof, Frank A. Garbutt,

with the approval of said board of directors, took

possession of the ])urcliase mining claims and aU

the other assets of Mutual Gold Corporation, and

ever since has been, and is now, in possession there-

of, and has operated all of said property as the

purported manager of the property of Mutual Gold

Corporation. During that period he has mined and

removed from the contract mining claims, and
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^Y^ollg•fllll3' recliicecl and converted to his own use,

large quantities of valuable mineral extracted from

the ores tlierefrom, the value of which is large and

substantial, but the amount is not known to plain-

tilfs; that Frank A. Garbutt, unless restrained by

order of this court, will, and he threatens to, con-

tinue the mining', removal, reduction and conversion

of the ores of said mine, and will continue to do so,

all to the great and irreparable loss of Mutual Gold

Corporation.

XXI,

Each of the contracts, deeds, bills of sale and as-

signments were executed, and the said acts of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, Frank A. Garbutt and Log

Cabin Klines Conix)any were done, with the knowl-

edge and approval of the owners, pursuant to, and

as a part of said uidawful conspiracy to transfer all

of the assets of Mutual Gold Corj^oration to Log

Cabin Mines Company, without consideration, for

a minority stock interest in Log Cabin Mines Com-

2)an}', without authorization by, or approval of, the

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation, and with

the disap])roval of nearly one-third of the stock-

holders of Mutual Gold Corporation, and were, and

are, severally ultra vires the corporate powers of

Mutual Gold Corporation, in excess of the powers

of the board of directors and executive officers of

Mutual [12] Gold Corporation, in that no meeting

of stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation was

ever called or lield, nor any action taken by miani-
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inous vote, or any vote of the stockholders, or any

number of stockholders of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, or otherwise, in authorization thereof, or to

organize Log Cabin Mines Conii)any, transfer the

assets of Mutual Gold Corporation to Log Cabin

Mines Company for a stock interest, or an}' interest,

minority or otherwise, in and of Log Cabin Mines

Company; that each and every of said contracts,

deeds, bills of sale and assignments were, and are,

in violation of the laws of the State of Washington

and of the State of California, and all thereof were

executed, and said acts were done, with the knowl-

edge and approval of the owners, in order to de-

prive Mutual Gold Corj^oration of all of its assets,

and receive in return a minority stock interest

in Log Cabin Mines Company, and with the intent

to deprive Mutual Gold Corporation of the exer-

cise of its corjjorate powers and rights under the

lavrs of the State of Washington, and vest in Frank

A. Garbutt as the agent of the owners, the exclu-

sive power and discretion of performance and non-

performance of the i^urchase contract, and cause

Mutual Gold Corporation to be remediless in the

premises except at the will and discretion of Frank

A. Garbutt.

XXIL
The instalhnent of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,-

000) due on the purchase contract November 1,

1939 has not been paid; that Frank A. Garbutt,

personally, and as manager and treasurer of Log

Cabin Mines Company, has withheld, failed to ac-
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coin it for, or apply, the royalties from operation

on tlie pnrchase contract, to pay, so far as may be,

said installment. The owners have at all times since

Se])tember 2, 1938, wrongfnlly refused to recognize

[13] Mutual Gold Corporation as the owner of the

purchase contract. Whereupon ])laintiffs, as such

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation, and in

its behalf, hereby offer to pay the amount of said

installment to kee}) the purchase contract in good

standing as the property of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, and, upon such payment, be subrogated to all

the rights of the owners in respect to said install-

ment.

XXIII.

The directors of Mutual Gold Corporation called

a special stockholders' meeting for September 24,

1938 to ratify or disapj)rove the contract of Sep-

tember 2, 1938 ''Exhibit 6'' hereof. The call was

rescinded about September 19, 1938 on account of

opposition of stockholdeals to said transactions.

Thereupon the board of directors caused the con-

ve^ances of September 21, 1938 above referred to, to

be executed. September 24:, 1938, stockholders in

opposition to the transactions here under attack

organized a stockholders' protective committee, re])-

resenting about five hundred thousand (500,000)

shares of stock, all opposed to said transactions;

plaintilt's sue herein on behalf of all stockholders

similarly situate, including the stockholders repre-

sented b\' said protective committee.
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XXIV.
The directors of Mutual Gold Corporation are

seveu in nimiber, two only of whom have o])i)Osed,

and still oppose, the several acts, agreements and

conveyances herein complained of. The president

of Mutual Gold Corporation is one of the five mem-

bers who caused to be done the several acts, and

executed the several agreements and conveyances

herein complained of. Said- [14] live directors con-

stitute the controlling majority of the board of di-

rectors of Mutual Gold Corporation and are desig-

nated herein as the board of directors.

Ever since August 6, 1938, not less than five out

of seve/ of the directors of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion have been firndy connnitted to do, and have

done, the several acts herein complained of, and

executed the several agreements and conveyances

aforesaid. At several meetings of the directors the

Ijlaintilfs and stockholders similarly situate have

protested against, and complained of, said several

acts, agreements and conveyances, but all of said

protests and complaints have been ignored and

denied, and the board of directors and executive

officers have, notwithstanding said protests and

complaints, ijroceeded to do and have done and

consummated the several acts, agreements and con-

veyances herein complained of.

At the annual meeting of the stockholders of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, held February 1, 1939, said

board of directors and executive officers, without
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previous notice or call to the stockholders, caused

to be presented a resolution which was adopted by

a majority vote of the stockholders of Mutual Gold

Cori)oration, ratifying the agreement of December

17, 1938 and authorizing the board of directors to

make any other contracts or conveyances to carry

out and jjerform said agreement of December 17,

1938. That at said meeting stockholders similarly

situate as plaintilfs applied for relief, and ob-

jected to each and every of said acts, agreements

a] id conveyances that had been made up to that

time; b\' a majority vote of the stockholders said

application for relief and protests were denied.

Plaintiffs and other stockholders similarly situ-

ate have applied to the president of Mutual Gold

Corporation to call a [15] stockholders" meeting to

specially consider said acts, agreements and con-

ve\ ances and to obtain relief therefrom, including

the maintenance of this action; the i)resident has

refused, and still refuses, to call a stockholders'

meeting; at the 2)resent time live of the directors

of Mutual Gold Corporation are opposed to the

maintenance of this action, antagonistic to, not in

sympathy with, and opposed to the institution of

this, or any, suit or proceeding for the relief sought

in this action, or an}' relief, from or concerning

the transactions, matters and things herein com-

plained of, and for which reason any request, for-

mal or otherwise, to the executive officers or to the

directors, would be, and is, witliout avail.
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XXV.
Tlie number of shares rei)resented by the plain-

tiffs herein is less than one-tliird of all the out-

standing stock of Mutual Gold Corporation, and

there is no way ])rovided for by the articles of in-

corporation of Mutual Grold Corporation, or its

by-laws, whereby x)laiii^ifis, or any other stock-

holders opposed to the transactions herein com-

plained of, may obtain relief or action l)y the cor-

X)oration, its directors, executive officers or stock-

holders. That the plaintiffs and the stockholders

in sympathy with them are not sufficient in number

to compel the calling of a special stockholders'

meeting at which relief may be sought.

XXVI.
At all times since April 17, 1939, the directors

and executive officers of Log Cabin Mines Company

have been residents of the State of California, and

absent from the State of Washing- [16] /?///ton.

Frank A. Garbutt, at all times mentioned in this

comijlaint, and Log Cabin Mines Company, at all

tiuies since its incorporation, have each been, and

are, residents of the State of California, and absent

from the State of Washington. Each of theui is

unwilling to, and refuses to submit to the jurisdic-

tion of the courts of the State of Washington.

XXVII.
By virtue of the aforesaid acts defendant Mutual

Gold Corjioration has not, nor have plaintiff's, any
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adequate or other reined}' at law whereby to ob-

tain redress for, and protection (^f tlie rights of,

^[utnal Gold Corporation, its interest and title

in and to the aforesaid mining claims and tJie ores

extracted therefrom, nor for and on account of

the aforesaid personal property of defendant Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, and for and on account of

which adequate relief can only be furnished by,

and obtained in, a court of equity
;
plaintiffs further

allege that they are willing, and hereby offer to do

equity in the premises as same may be adjudged,

declared and determined b}' this court, and they are

likewise willing, and hereby offer, to abide by and

2jerform any and all requirements and conditions

that may be imposed b\' the court as attendant on,

and precedent to the granting of the relief prayed,

or to which the court may conclude the plaintiffs

and other stockholders and creditors are entitled.

Wherefore, Plaintiff's, on behalf of Mutual Gold

Corporation, pray by decree:

First: That the agreements, deeds, bills of sale

and assignments of the purchase contract, "Ex-

hibits 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, [17] 11, 12, 13, 11 and 15" be

severally adjudged to have been wrongfully, fraud-

ulently and illegally executed, and adjudged void

and to be of no force and effect, and all claims of

right thereunder terminated.

Second: That the status of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration as vendee, owner, of the purchase con-

tract, be determined; that the accrued royalties
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from operation be accounted for and applied, so

far as may be, in discharge of the installment of

Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) due on the pur-

chase contract November 1, 1939, and that Chandis

Securities Company and Alice Clark Ryan be re-

quired to recognize Mutual Gold Corporation as

vendee, owning the purchase contract, and to ac-

cept from these plaintiffs, as stockholders of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, on its behalf, the unpaid

balance of said installment.

Third: That defendant Frank A. Garbutt and

Log Cabin Mines Company, a corporation, and each

of them, be ordered and required to execute and

deliver to defendant Mutual Gold Corijoration such

and all conveyances and acquittances of the afore-

said premises and personal ]jroperty as may be

found to be, or may at any time become necessary

fully to reinvest legal title to said jjroperties in

defendant Mutual Gold Corporation, and that said

l)roperties be surrendered up and delivered to -it.

That defendants Frank A. Garbutt and Log Cabin

Mines Company, and each of them, be likewise re-

quired to make a general accounting with respect to

all ores, and the proceeds mined or extracted by

them, or either of them, or under his or its au-

thority, from said mining jjroperties, likewise for

tihe proceeds of all ores extracted therefrom by

third persons and tliereu])on and there- [18] after

delivered to, and received and disjjosed of by, de-

fendants Frank A. Garbutt and Log Cabin Mines
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Company, or eitlier of them, and likewise that they

l)e reqnired to account for any and all ores ex-

tracted from said premises and still I'emaining

in the possession or under the control of defend-

ants.

Fourth: That defendants Frank A. Garbutt and

Log Cabin Mines Comi)any, and each of them, be

enjoined, restrained and ordered to desist, pendente

lite, from excavating, extracting or removing ores,

or other property of any kind or character, from

said lands, and that they be required, pendente lite,

to abstain and refrain from further, or any mining

operations of any character on said premises.

Fifth: ^Jliat i)laintiffs have and recover their

costs and dis])ursements incurred herein, includ-

ing a reasonable fee for the use and benefit of their

attorneys, together with such other further and

general relief as to the court may seem equitable,

just and approi)riate in the premises.

W. H. ABEL
O. C. MOORE
FREDERICK 1). ANUERSOX

650 Subway ^J'erminal Building

Los Angeles, California

Michigan 0804

Attorneys for Plaintiffs [19]

State of Idaho,

County of Kootenai—ss.

M. I. Higgens being tirst duly sworn, deposes

and says: that he is one of the plaintiffs named in
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the foregoing bill of complaint, and that he makes

this verilication on his own behalf and on behalf

of his co-plaintiffs; that he is familiar with the

contents of said bill of complaint and that the mat-

ters and things therein contained are true in snh-

stance and in fact.

MILTON I. HIGGENS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14 day

of December, 1939.

(Seal) J. WARD ARNEY
Notary Public in and for the State of Idaho, re-

siding at Couer d'Alene; My commission ex-

pires 11-1-43. [20]

Exhibit 1

This Agreement of Sale made this 13th day of

July, 1932, by and between the Chandis Securities

Company, M. N. Clark and Alice Clark Ryan, of

Los Angeles, California, hereinafter designated as

the Sellers, and Russell F. Collins, of Seattle,

Washington, and Ben L. Collins, of Spokane,

AVashington, hereinafter designated as the Buyers,

witnesseth

:

That for and in consideration of the payments

to be made by the Buyers to the Sellers at the times

and in the manner herein specitied, and in consid-

eration of the promises and agreements to be well

and truly performed by the said Buyers, the said
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Sellers hereby agree to sell to the said Buyers the

following described patented and unpatented lode

mining claims situate in Mono County, California,

and more particularly described as follows, to-wit:

Log Cabin Mill Site

Log Cabin No. 1 New Year No. 2

Log Cabin No. 2 Federal No. 1

Log Cabin No. 3 Federal No. 2

Log Cabin No. 4 Federal No. 3

Log Cabin No. 5 Log Cabin Annex

Log Cabin No. 6 Tamarack

Log Cabin No. 7 Oro

Log Cabin No. 8 Burke Fraction

All of the above described claims having been

recorded at one time or another at Bridgeport,

Mono County, California, in what has been known

at various times as the Mono Lake Mining District,

the Bridgeport Mining District and the Homer
Mining District.

And also such water rights as the said Sellers may
own in connection therewith.

The condition of the titles to said property is as

follows

:

Log Cabin claims, Log Cabin No. 2, Log Cabin

No. 6 and Log Cabin No. 7 are patented. [21]

Log Cabin Annex is a mining location filed re-

cently at Bridgeport by H. R. Bradley and deeded

by H. B. Jiradley and wife to the Sellers herein.

Claims Log Cabin, Log Cabin No. 1, Log Cabin

No. 3, Log Cabin No. 4, Log Cabin No. 4, and Log
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Cabin No. 6 are mining locations and in the option

of tlie Sellers can be patented at an\' time.

(page) -1-

It is stated by James Simpson that claims New
Year No. 2, Federal No. 1, Federal No. 2, Federal

No. 3, Tamarack, Oro and Burke Fraction have all

had the assessment work done on them and title

to them is in good condition.

'J'he Sellers or their immediate i^redecessors in

interest have located these claims and have held

title thereto for approximately twenty (20) years

and believe their titles to be good and they hereby

represent that there are no mortgages, indebtedness

or other encumbrance against said claims oi which

they have an}' knowledge, but they expressly dis-

claim any liability for these titles, and the Buyers,

having been afforded an ample opportimity to ex-

amine same, hereby accept said titles, it being dis-

tinctly understood that the only estate to be con-

veyed hereunder is all of the right, title and in-

terest which the said Sellers may have or may

hereafter acquire thereto.

This agreement of sale is to extend for a period

of five (5) years from the date hereof unless sooner

forfeited or terminated as hereinafter provided.

Under this agreement the said Buyers shall have

the right of Possession with the right to mine and

develop said properties or any of them, including

the right to follow and exj^lore by proper working

any vein or veins within said group of claims to



26 Helen M. Sutherland, et al,

the limit or exterior [22] boundary lines thereof, to

the same extent and no other as the Sellers, by vir-

tue of their title and interest in said group of

claims, have or may hereafter acquire, and to

follow any ore shoot or ore body found within the

limits of said property in any direction to the same

extent as said Sellers might lawfully do, and to

break down and remove and mill or sell all com-

mercial ores fomid therein except as hereinafter

expressly provided, to-wit:

It is understood and agreed that until said Sellers

have been paid in full for said mining claims, in

accordance with the terms hereof, that the ore

already exposed above the present drifts on the

vein at a depth of approximately 125 feet below

the collar of the shaft and within the present ex-

treme north and south faces shall remain intact and

miless expressly i)ermitted by permission in writing

from said Sellers none of this ore shall be mined

or removed from the mine and neither shall any

ore at present on the dump be removed or milled l)y

said Buyers.

(page) -2-

In consideration of the agreements herein con-

tained the said Buyers covenant and agree with

said Sellers as follows:

1. To enter upon said mmmg claims immed-

iately after the execution and delivery of this agree-

ment and after the posting of the notices herein-

after provided to be posted, and agree to work the
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same contiiiiiously and in good workmanlike and

minerlike manner so as to develop said property

with due regard for the continuance and preserva-

tion of the same as a workable mine in accordance

with the covenants herein set forth.

2. The Buyers agree to work at least sixty (60)

shifts of one man each of eight (8) hours ' duration per

month until August 10, 1932, after which date said

Buyers agree to work not [23] less than one hundred

fifty (150) similar shifts per month of eight (8)

hours each during the life of this agreement, it

being miderstood that each shift is to consist of

the day 's work of one competent miner or its equiva-

lent in value. It is agreed that the excess of 150

shifts per month for any given month is to be

credited on work to be performed during the suc-

ceeding month or months during each year, but that

work during one year is not to be credited to the

work to be done in any succeeding year, and that

the said Buyers agree that there at all times shall

be enough work performed by them to fulfill any

work necessary to be i3erformed for assessment pur-

poses.

4. The Buyers agree to install a compressor,

]3ump, machine drills and other necessary equip-

ment to sink the present shaft that is now down

one hundred twenty-five (125) feet from the sur-

face to a total depth of two hundred fifty (250)

feet or to the point of its intersection with the

vein and to drift upon the vein from the point of

intersection for a distance of not less than two
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hundred (200) feet, and to do any other develop-

ment work that said Buyers may deem advisable for

the development of additional ore.

5. The said Buyers agree to well and sufficiently

timber the tunnels, shafts and drifts used, opened or

extended by them when necessary in said mining at

all points and in accordance with good mining

methods and to repair all old timbering in such

(page) -3-

workings and in all existing openings which are now

open and which show any mill ore. This work of

timbering and retimbering is to be done whenever

and wherever it may become necessary for the safety

of workmen and ore and for the preservation of

said mine as a working mine, and said Buyers agree

[24] to fill all stopes with waste after the ores there-

from are removed so as to keep and leave said mine

in a safe and proper condition for further develop-

ment and exploration and in accordance with the

usual custom of good miners.

6. The said Buyers agree that the said Sellers

may at all times enter, in person or by their duly

authorized agents in writing, to inspect said ])rop-

erty and any and all parts thereof, and the said

Sellers shall have the right to keep one or more

representatives at all times upon said property to

represent them and to inspect same but always at

their own sole cost and expense except that the said

Sellers may furnish one representative who shall be

a practical miner or a practical mining man, able and

willing to work for the said Buyers, performing such
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work as may proi)erly be allotted to him, and this rep-

resentative the said Buyers agree to pay the same

wages as they pay to other employees in a similar

capacity, it being understood that should the repre-

sentative so nominated by said Sellers not perform

as much useful work as their other similar em-

ployees that the said Sellers will either accept re-

duced pay for him or furnish another representa-

tive to take his place.

7. The said Buyers agree to pay for all labor,

material and supplies employed or used by them

in the development and operation of said mining-

claims under this agreement, including the pay-

ment of all taxes and assessments from and after

the date of July 13, 1932, during the term of this

agreement, and said Buyers agree not to permit any

lienable claims, including such labor, material or

supplies, to be filed against said mining property,

and agree to save said Sellers harmless therefrom.

[25]

8. The said Buyers agree that before they allow

any material, machinery or supplies to be brought

upon said property that they will obtain and furnish

to the said Sellers a release or waiver from the

venders thereof releasing and waiving any right or

rights which said vendors may have to file a lien

or liens against the property of the Sellers, and in

like manner, before employing any labor therein,

will obtain from the employees who are to perform

this labor a like release to the end that all laborers,

material men or contractors will look solelv to the
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Buyers and their interest in tiie property for the

payment and will waiA^e any right or claim that

they may have against said Sellers or the property

herein described owned by them.

9. The said Sellers agree that they will forth-

with, upon the signing of this agreement, post or

cause to be posted proper notices in conspicuous

places upon said property, notifying all persons

employed thereon or who furnish material and sup-

lilies to the said Buyers therefor that neither said

property nor said Sellers will be liable for same or

will said property be liable for lien therefor.

10. The said Buyers agree that they will not com-

mence any work upon said property nor order any

material therefor mitil said notices have been posted

and that thereafter they will maintain said notices

or cause same to be maintained at all times that they

are in possession of or are operating said property,

and should the said Buyers commence work before

said notices are posted or perform any work upon

said property while said notices are not maintained

thereupon, this agreement shall immediately termi-

nate and cease at the option of the said Sellers.

[26]

11. The said Buyers agree to comply strictly

with the Workmen's Compensation or Industrial

Insurance Act of the State of California providing

casualty insurance for all workmen injured while

employed by them in the exploration and develoj:)-

ment of said mining claims or for any other work



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 31

performed by the said Buyers or at their instance

during the term of this agreement.

12. After said shaft has been sunk to the intei--

section of the vein and drifted on for a distance of

not less than two hundred (200) feet, if by that

time sufficient tonnage of commercial ore is in sight

to justify a mill, and, if not, as soon as sufficient

tonnage of commercial ore is in sight, the said

Buyers agree to build a suitable mill and mill build-

ings and to install proi:)er milling machinery for

the economical and proper milling of said ore and

to proceed without delay in a minerlike fashion

to mine, mill and market said ores which have
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developed on said property by the operation of said

Buyers but especially excepting therefrom all ores

hereinbefore referred to in the mine and on the

dump as hereinbefore described.

13. The said Buyers expressly agree to impound

all mill tailings which assay over One ($1.00) Dol-

lar per ton to the end that they will be preserved

for future treatment.

14. It is understood and agreed by the parties

hereto that after the said sinking, drifting and

building of a suitable mill are completed and the

mine is put on production that Five ($5.00) per ton

is to be allowed to the said Buyers to cover the

cost of all mining, milling and marketing and that

the Sellers shall receive the balance over Five

($5.00) Dollars per ton, which amount shall be
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ax)j)lied as received upon the [27] purchase price of

said property until it is paid for in full.

Should the Buyers mine and mill any ore which

returns less than Five ($5.00) Dollars per ton net,

they shall pay all of the costs thereof over and above

the net returns received and this shall not ])e a

charge against the Sellers or against any future re-

turns which they are entitled to receive.

In consideration of the foregoing conditions and

the expenditures to be made and the work to be

done heremider by the said Buyers, and in considera-

tion of their faithfully keeping of all of the coven-

ants herein contained, the said Sellers hereby give

to the said Buyers the right to purchase all of the

above described property for the sum of One Hun-

dred Fifty Thousand ($150,000.00) Dollars, payable

as follows: One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars on or

before August 1, 1932; One Thousand ($1,000.00)

Dollars on or before November 1, 1932 ; One Thou-

sand ($1,000.00) Dollars on or before January 1,

1933; One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars on or be-

fore March 1, 1933; One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dol-

lars on or before May 1, 1933; One Thousand

($1,000.00) Dollars on or before July 1, 1933; One

Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars on or before Septem-

ber 1, 1933; One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars on

or before November 1, 1933; One Thousand

($1,000.00) Dollars on or before January 1, 1934;

One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars on or before

March 1, 1934; and One Himdred Forty Thousand

($140,000.00) Dollars on or before five (5) years
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from date hereof, it being understood and agreed

that all amounts paid by the said Buyers under the

terms of this agreement shall be applied to and

credited upon the several installments of the pur-

chase price as they mature and as hereinbefore pro-

vided, and that in case said sums shall amount
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to the full purchase price of said claims to be paid,

as hereinbefore provided prior to the expiration of

the term of this agreement, or upon full payment

of said installments, to the said Sellers, according

to the terms of this agreement, then the said Sellers

shall execute a good and sufficient deed conveying^

to the [28] said Buyers all their right, title and

interest in and to the lode mining claims, to the

water and right of way for flume hereinabove par-

ticularly referred to, clear of all encumbrances

suffered or permitted by them.

The Buyers may proceed at their own expense to

patent at any time they deem advisable any of the

unpatented claims of said group in the name of

the Sellers. The Sellers agree to cooperate and assist

in obtaining such patents.

Time is the essence of this agreement, and it is

expressly agreed that in case of any violation by

the Buyers of any covenant herein contained, or

upon their failure or refusal to carry out or comply

with all of the terms and conditions of this agree-

ment (labor strikes, injimction proceedings, or other

outside interference, except weather, over which
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said Buyers have no control excepted), the Sellers,

at their election, may terminate this agreement.

In the event of a default by the said Buyers in

performing any of the conditions or covenants here-

in set forth or should said Buyers default in making

any of the payments herein provided for at the

times and in the mamier specified, the Sellers may,

at their option, give notice to said Buyers of the

termination of this agreement by depositing such

notice in the United States Mail, registered and

postage prepaid, addressed to the said Buyers at

the mine and at the last kno\\'n post office address

given to said Sellers by said Buyers, and the de-

positing of said notices and the affidavit by the

Sellers or any of them that same have been de-

posited shall be conclusive i)roof that the notices

were given, and this agreement shall be terminated

thereby at the option of the said Sellers.

In the event of a default by the Buyers in the per-

formance [29] of some covenant or condition in

itself immaterial and of which default they may
be imaware, the Sellers, before giving the notice as

above set forth, will notify the said Bu3^ers of the

(page) -7-

default complained of and shall allow them thirty

(30) days from the date of giving said notice in

which to cure same and remedy said default or de-

faults so complained of.

In the event of the termination of this agree-

ment by default the said Buyers shall have no claim

against the Sellers of any kind or nature or compen-
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sation for any labor performed, expenses incurred

or services rendered in connection herewith or here-

under, and all machinery, tools and apx^liances, fast

or loose, placed upon said property by them or

under this agreement shall remain upon said prop-

erty as a part thereof and become the property of

the said Sellers.

It is understood and agreed that the said Buyers

shall have the use of all buildings, machinery and

equipment now on said premises but in the event

of the termination of this agreement same are to be

left in as good repair as tjiey now are; necessary

and usual wear and tear excepted.

It is agreed that the said Buyers will not record

this agreement until they have paid at least Ten

Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars thereon, and should

said agreement be recorded by them or by any one

for or under them prior to the completion of the

payments to the amount of Ten Thousand

($10,000.00) Dollars, such recordation shall, at the

option of the said Sellers, immediately terminate

this agreement and this option shall be evidenced by

the recordation of the declaration of such intention

or desire by the said Sellers.

All payments to be made to the said Sellers by

the said [30] Buyers hereunder shall be made to

their order at the Citizens National Trust and Sav-

ings Bank of Los Angeles.

This instrument shall ])e binding upon the heirs,

assigns and successors of the respective parties
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hereto but before the said Buyers shall assign same

they will notify the said Sellers of such intention

and at the time of such assignment will obtain for

the Sellers in form satisfactory to them a written

agreement in which their assignees accept the same

responsibility as the Buyers have hereunder, and

said Bu^^ers shall not be relieved from their liability

hereunder even in event of an assignment unless

specific consent thereto is given in writing by the

said Sellers.
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In event of the insolvency of the Buyers or of

their successors and assigns, or in the event that

proceedings in involuntary bankruptcy are brought

against them, said Sellers may, at their option, ter-

minate this lease.

In Witness Whereof the parties hereto have here-

unto set their hands and seals the day and date

first above written.

CHANDIS SECURITIES COMPANY
By (Signed) HARRY CHANDLER,

President.

(Signed) M. N. CLARK
(Signed) ALICE CLARK RYAN

Sellers.

(Signed) RUSSELL F. COLLINS
(Signed) BEN L. COLLINS

Buyers. [31]



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 37

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

On this ISth day of July A.D., 1932, before me.

Rose B. Coidarrens, a notary public in and for tlie

said county and state, residing therein, duly com-

missioned and sworn, personally appeared Harry

Chandler, known to me to be the President of Chan-

dis Securities Company, the corporation described

in and which executed the above instrument, and

also known to me to be the person who executed it

on behalf of the corporation therein named, and lie

acknowledged to me that such corporation executed

the same.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal the day and year

in this certificate first above written.

(Signed) ROSE B. COIDARRE-NS

My commission expires February 8, 1935.

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 13 day of July, A.D., 1932, before me,

Rose B. Coidarrens, a notary public in and for the

said county and state, residing therein, duly com-

missioned and sworn, personally appeared M. N".

Clark, Alice Clark Ryan, Russell F. Collins and

Ben L. Collins, knowm to me to be the persons whose

names are subscribed to the above instrument, and

acknowledged that they executed the same.
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In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal the day and year

in this certificate first above written.

(Signed) ROSE B. COIDARRENS

M}' commission expires Feb. 8, 1935. [32]
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Exhibit ''2"

Supplemental Agreement

Referring to that certain agreement of sale made

July 13, 1932, by and between the Chandis Securities

Company, M. N. Clark and Alice Clark Ryan, of

Los Angeles, California, hereinafter described as

the Sellers and Russell F. Collins of Seattle, Wash-

ington and Ben L. Collins, of Spokane, Washington,

hereinafter designated as the Buyers, in which the

Sellers agree to sell to the Buyers that certain min-

ing property located in Mono County, knowai as the

Lob Cabin property, more particularly described in

said agreement which is hereby made a part hereof,

said parties agree to and with each other to modify

same as follows:

Whereas on page 4, paragraph 4 of said agree-

ment, the Buyers agreed, among other things, to

sink the existent vertical shaft from a depth of 125

feet to a total depth of 250 feet or to the point of

its intersection with the vein, and
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Whereas in the sinking of said shaft the Buyers

encountered sufficient water to make the pumping

thereof very expensive, and

Whereas they are desirous of substituting other

worth therefor, and propose, in lieu of the sinking

of said shaft to the said depth, that they run an

adit level, which they believe will be not less than

1200 feet in length, from the surface to said vein

at or near the point where it would be intersected by

said shaft and at a depth to where it will strike the

ledge not less than said 250 feet in depth from the

surface, and

Whereas the said Sellers are agreeable to this

substitution,

Now, Therefore, in consideration of tjie agree-

ment of said Buyers, and their successors in in-

terest, the Mutual Gold Corporation, that they will

run said adit level in accordance with [33] all of

the general terms as set forth in said original con-

tract, the Sellers hereby consent that said original

contract shall be amended so as to permit the run-

ning of said level instead of the sinking of said

shaft, and further agree that the Buyers may sink

what is known as the North winze on the vein as

far as they desi]'e to sink same.

The work upon said adit level shall be carried

on upon the same terms and conditions as to the

amount of work to be performed as applied to the

(page) -1-
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sinking of the said shaft.

The sellers agree also that in event tlie Buyers

run the completed adit level as agreed to the point

where it intersects said vein that they will extend

the time of said contract of July 13, 1932, for an

additional period of nine (9) months.

Whereas, further, the Buyers have erected a mill

upon said property in tjie anticipation of the com-

pletion of said shaft by or before this time, and

Whereas, further, they are desirous of operating

said mill for the purpose of testing same and for

the purpose of determining its adaptability to save

the values contained in the ore from said property,

and

Whereas, under the existing contract of July 13,

1932, they do not have the privilege of milling ore

except as therein provided.

Now Therefore, in consideration of the premises

and of the covenants and agreements in this modi-

fication contained, the said Sellers agree that when

desired by the Buyers and on reasonable notice from

them in order to enable the Sellers to send a rej^re-

sentative to supervise this work, that the Sellers

will allow tbe Buyers to mill enough ore from said

property to [34] test said mill but not to exceed an

amount, however, necessary to produce gold to the

value of approximately $1000.00, and the Buyers

will pay the cost of such rejjresentative, which cost

shall be his actual expenses and not to exceed $10.00

per day for such time as he puts in on the property.

In consideration of the above, the Sellers agree



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 41

to the substitution of the work of running the adit

level to the intersection of the vein in lieu of the

sinking of said shaft and the Buyers agree to per-

form said work in accordance with all of the terms

of said contract, which it is agreed between the

parties hereto is modified only to the extent of this

Supplemental Agreement and otherwise shall re-

main in full force and effect.

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have here-

unto set their hands and seals the 28th day of April,

1934.

CHANDIS SECURITIES COMPANY
(Signed) HARRY CHANDLER

President. «

M. N. CLARK
ALICE CLARK RYAN

Sellers,

RUSSELL F. COLLINS
BEN L. COLLINS

Buyers.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
By RUSSELL F. COLLINS

President

Successors in interest to the Buyers,
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[35]
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Exhibit, "3^'

This xVgreement, made and entered into this 29th

day of August, 1936, by and between Mutual Gold

Corporation, a corporation, party of the first part,

and J. A. Vance, party of the second part, Wit-

nesseth

:

That Whereas, the party of first part is contem-

plating the raising of approximately the sum of

$30,000 to place its mining property, located near

Mono Lake, California, in operation; and

Whereas, the party of the second part has agreed

to assist in the raising of said amount to the extent

which he has heretofore ad^dsed the board of di-

rectors of the party of the first part ; and

Whereas, the party of the first part has agreed,

if said fund is raised, the party of the second i:)art

shall serve as general manager under certain terms

and conditions; now, therefore,

It Is Agreed as follows, to-wit:

That the party of the second part is hereby em-

ployed as general manager of the party of the first

part, ^Yiih full and com])lete authority for and on

behalf of the party of the first, part to expend the

sum of $30,000 to place the mine of the party of

the first part in production and to pay such obliga-

tions which shall have been incurred by the com-

pany in comiectdon with said property during the

months of August and September, 1936.

That the party of the second part shall remain

as general manager of the property of the first i^art
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after the said mine shall have been placed in pro-

duction and during the operation of said mine until

such time as the said sum of $30,000 shall have

been fully repaid to parties advancing said funds

to the [36] party of the first part, in accordance

with the terms of such agreement as shall be made

by first party with parties advancing said fvmds.
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That the party of the second part shall serve

without any compensation whatsoever, except that

he shall be entitled to full reimbursement for all

expenses which he shall incur in connection with

his position as general manager, which said ex-

penses shall be paid monthly.

That party of the second part shall employ M. J.

Keiley as a mining engineer upon said property if

he is able to make satisfactory arrangements with

him; but if not, party of the second part shall

have the right to employ such mining engineer as

he may select with the approval of the board of di-

rectors of the first party.

That in the event of the death, resignation or in-

ability of the party of the second part to act as the

general manager, those subscribing for the said

sum of $30,000 shall have the right to designate a

new general manager and the party of the first part

agrees to employ such general manager as may be

designated; and in connection with the designation

of such general manager, if those raising said funds

are unable to agree in the selection of the general
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manager, those advancing a majority in amount of

the fimds shall have the right to designate the new

general manager to be appointed in the place and

stead of the said party of the second part.

That the said fmids so raised for the purpose of

placing the said mine in production shall be placed

in a special fund of said corporation and may be

withdrawn only upon the check of the party of the

second part for and on behalf of said [37] corpora-

tion, or such other party as the party of the second

l)art may designate; but in the event the party of

the second part shall designate any other person, ex-

cept G. F. Ferbert or such other party as may be

suitable to first party, to withdraw said funds, the

l^arty of the second part shall be responsible for

the withdrawal thereof.
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That the party of the second part shall incur no

personal liability for any matter or thing whatever

which he may do for and on behalf of this corpora-

tion while acting under the terms of this contract,

and as general manager of said corporation, and

shall incur no personal liability for any contracts or

obligation which he may incur foi* and on behalf of

the party of the first part, while acting as general

manager of the party of the first part, nor shall

second party be liable for any mistakes or errors in

judgment or any omissions of any character while

acting as general manager of first party as herein

provided.
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In Witness Whereof, we have hereunto set ou^

hands and seals the day and year in this instrument

first above written.

MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION

By J. E. STIEOLER, President

Attest: E. FUSON, Secy.

First Party

J. A. VANCE
Second Party

The foregoing contract is hereby approved by

the following as directors of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, a corporation:

J. E. STIEGLER
W. L. GRILL
RUSSELL F. COLLINS
J. A. VANCE
R. P. WOODWORTH
FRED P. FREEMAN [38]

EXHIBIT '^4"

Referring to that certain agreement made the

13th da\' of July, 1932, hy and l^etween the Chandis

Securities Company, M. N. Clark and Alice Clark

Ryan, therein designated as the Sellers in which

agreement said Sellers agree to sell to Russell F.
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Collins and Ben L. Collins, designated therein as

the Buyers, that certain i)roperty known as the Log

Cabin Mines situated in Mono County, California,

and more particularly described in said agreement,

which said agreement for the i)urposes herein is

hereby made a part hereof, and which said agree-

ment was, with the consent of the Sellers, assigned

to and assumed by Mutual Gold Corporation: and;

Referring to that certain Supplemental Agree-

ment made April 28, 1934, by and between the same

parties.

The same are hereby moditied and amended as

follows this 9th day of October, 1936.

For and in consideration of the undertaking and

agreement b}' the Mutual Gold Corporation, the as-

signee of said Buyers to spend ui)on said pi'operty

the additional sum of Thirty Thousand ($30,000.)

Dollars under the direction of said Mutual Gold

Corporation, as hereinafter set forth, the Chandis

Securities Compam- and Alice Clark Eyan, for

herself and as assignee of M. N. Clark, hereby agree

to and with the Mutual Gold Corporation to modify

said agreement as follows:

The Sellers will allow to the corporation the sum

of Eight ($8.00) Dollars per ton to pay the ex-

penses of mining and milling all ore taken out in

develoi^ment work below the ore reserved in the

contract of July 13, 1932, down to the drifts exist-

ing on that date, approximately one hundred Twen-

ty Five (125) feet below the collar of the present
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main working shaft and within the extreme North

and South faces as they existed on the 13th [39]

day of July, 1932, provided that this work consists

of raises and levels and that the raises are not

closer to each other than two hundred (200) feet

and the levels are not closer than one hundred (100)

feet to each other, and

Provided further, that all receipts in excess of

Eight ($8.00) Dollars ])er ton from mining and

milling of said ores from this work shall be i)aid

to the Sellers to a]3ply upon the purchase price
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heremider, and under said original contract of July

13, 1932, and

Provided further, that the corporation may, as

provided in the original contract, mill any other ore

outside of the herein described area, and should

said corporation mill or mine any such, the allow-

ance for mining and milling thereof shall be the

same as set forth in the original contract, to-wit,

Five ($5.00) Dollars per ton and that all excess

over and above these amounts shall be paid to the

Sellers as provided in said contract, and

Provided further, that said Corporation shall

not mill any of the ore ])rohibited in the original

contract without the additional written consent of

the Sellers being first had and obtained, and

Provided further, that should the aggregate of

these payments not amount to the sum of Ten

Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars on or before Noveni-
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ber 1, 1937, that the Corporation shall make up any

such deficit, and

Provided fiirthei*, that should said payments from

the milling and marketing- of ores as aforesaid not

amount to Ten Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars for

the years ending November 1, 1938, November 1,

1939, and November 1, 1940, that the Corporation

will in like manner make up such deficit on account

of the pur- [10] chase price so that the Sellers will

receive the minimum sum of Ten Thousand ($10,-

000.00) Dollars during each of said years, and

Provided further, that the remainder of the pur-

chase i)rice shall be payable on or before November

1, 1911.

The Corporation warrants to the Sellers, as a

partial consideration for this amendment, that it

has on deposit Fifteen Thousand ($15,000.00) Dol-

lars in the Old National Bank At Spokane, Wash-

ington, which money can be drawn only upon the

order of J. A. Vance, its general manager, and only

for the purpose of carrying on the work aforesaid,

and that it has Fifteen Thousand ($15,000.) Dol-

lars more subscribed for this purpose which will

be available upon ten (10) days' call to be used

for the same purposes and in the same manner, and

til at the expenditures of said total of Thirty Thou-

sand ($30,000.00) Dollars for the ]nirposes as here-

in set forth, to-wit, mining, milling and developing

said proi)erty by the Mutual (lold Cor])oration

(page) -2-



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 49

under the advice and supervision of capable man-

agement is guaranteed by said Corporation.

Should the Mutual Gold Corporation fail to keep

any and all of the provisions of this modification

agreement, the Corporation may, at its option, ter-

minate same by giving notice to the Sellers of its

desire so to do, in which event said original agree-

ment shall stand in all respects as though this modi-

fication agreement had not been made.

CHANDIS SECURITIES COMPANY
By HARRY CHANDLER

And
ALICE CLARK RYAN

Sellers

Accepted this 10th day of October, 1936.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
By J. A. VANCE,

V. Pres. [41]

EXHIBIT "5"

PRODUCTION CERTIFICATE

No $

For value received, the undersigned, a Washing-

toii Corporation, agrees to i)ay to

the sum of Dollars,

witliout interest, out of net production receii)ts ac-

cruing from the sale of ores from its mining prop-
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erty, before any dividends shall be declared or paid

by it upon its capital stock, and in no other manner

whatsoever, except that in case of a voluntary or

involuntary sale of its mining property, any bal-

ance unpaid hereon shall be paid out of the ])ro-

ceeds thereof before aiw distribution shall be made

to its stockholders.

''Net Production Receipts" hereinbefore referred

to shall be construed to mean such receipts as shall

remain after deducting therefrom all of the costs

of producmg, handling and milling said ore, neces-

sary corporation expenses and taxes, a reasonable

sum for mine development, such sum as the Board

of Directors shall determine may be necessary for

the purchase and/or payment of necessary mining

equipment, and payments on account of the pur-

chase price of said mining property by royalty or

otherwise.

All sums which the undersigned shall have for

the retirement of this and similar certificates shall

be applied pro-rata upon the same.

The execution of this certificate has been author-

ized b}^ resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dated this day of January, 1938.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

By
Vice President

Attest:

Secretary [42]
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EXHIBIT ^'6"

Memorandum of Agreement between Mutual Gold

Cori3oration organized under the laws of the State

of Washington, with its principal place of business

at Spokane, and operating solely near Leevining,

Mono County, California, hereinafter called the

Seller, and Frank A. Garbutt, of Los Angeles, here-

inafter called the Buyer, Witnesseth

The Seller, through its duly authorized represen-

tatives, states to the Buyer that it requires further

equipment to make said property properly profit-

able as follows:

1. Bringing in electric power from Leevining

or Tiago Lodge, 21/2 miles $11,000.00

2. Electric Hoist complete with motor and

starter, etc 7,000.00

3. Cage or skip and mine cars 1,500.00

4. Ball Mill, 100 tons capacity, including

motor, etc 7,000.00

5. Classifier complete 3,000.00

6. Cyanide equipment, including tanks, motor

and equipment capable of handling 100 tons

daily 25,000.00

7. 6 inch pipe line, 5000 feet and installation

thereof, to carry tailings to impounding

dam 3,000.00

8. 500 cubic foot compressor, with motor, etc. 4,000.00

9. Additional building to house new machin-

ery, including coverage for cyanide tanks 3,000.00

10. New . bunkhouses and addition to cook

house 1,500.00

11. Assay office and equipment 1.000.00
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12. Enlargement of present ore bins at shaft

and mill 1,000.00

13. Payroll, truck hauling, cement, sand, etc.

for 60 days during installation of above 10,000.00

14. Payment due on property Nov. 1, 1938 10,000.00

Total $84,000.00

[43]

The Seller and Bmer agree to cooperate in in-

vestigating and detevnlining whether more snitable

milling equipment than that above described and

recommended by the Seller can be obtained and

if, m the oi)inion of the Buyer, such proves to be

the case, he may, at his option, alter the specifica-

tions of the milling equii)ment accordingly.

The Seller agrees to sell to the Buyer and to

forthwith transfer to liim the contract owned by it

dated July 13, 1932, with the Chandis Securities

Company, M. N. Clark and Alice Clark Ryan for

the purchase of the Log Cabin Mine and the group

of mining claims contiguous thereto, subject to all

modifications of said contract, which contract and

its modifications are, for purposes of descrij^tion

and otherwise, hereby made a part hereof; included

in this sale are all other property, personal and real,

belonging to the Seller now on or adjacent or tribu-

tary to, or used in connection with said Log Cabin

Mine and its group.

The Seller agrees to forthwith transfer its title

to said property, real and personal, to Frank A.

Garbutt.
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111 consideration of this agreement and the trans-

fer above set forth, the Buyer agrees to do the fol-

lowing things

:

1. Furnish $10,000. to make the payment due

the ovviiers of the Log Cabin Mine November 1st,

1938, before its due date.

2. Organize as soon as possible a corporation of

such capital stock as he may desire and forthwith

transfer to said corporation all titles received by

him hereunder as soon as said Corporation is quali-

fied to hold same, issuing all of its Capital Stock

fully paid therefor.

As a part of the consideration for the transfer

of said title to it, such corporation shall contempo-

raneously therewith or immediately thereafter agree

that it will not sell or part [44] with the title to

any real estate referred to herein nor any part

thereof, without either (a) the written consent of

the Seller herein; or (b) the vote of a majority of

the directors of the corporation duly authorized or

approved by its stockholders; or (c) its bankruptcy;

or (d) a two-thirds vote of its stockholders; and the

B*'-laws will carry a clause substantially setting

forth this condition in the language above and that

this provision of the By-laws shall not be amended

except Ijy the vote of sixty (60%) per cent of the

outstanding stock or a unanimous vote of the entire

board of directors.

3. Forthwith transfer one-half of its tota] au-

thorized Capital Stock less one controlling share,
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to the Seller, which stock shall carry with it the

right to a full minority representation on the Board

of Directors of the corporation to be formed.

4. Furnish additional funds to a minimum of

$100,000, including the above mentioned $10,000.

to said coi'xjoration to be formed, as needed by it to

equip said Log Cabin Mine with a mill of an esti-

mated capacity of one hundred (100) tons daily

or more, a suitable hoist and to bring in electrical

power, and for such other equipment and supplies

as appear advisable, including paj^ment of taxes

and the protection of titles.

5. Take care of all further payments falling due

to the owners of said Log Cabin Mine group

amounting to $120,000. in all.

6. Proceed with the work of properly equipping

said property as rapidly as conditions wdll permit

unless prevented by weather, strikes or other cir-

cumstances not controlled by the Buyer.

7. At the Buyer's option to advance additional

fmids should [45] such advances, in the opinion of

the Buyer, become necessary or advisable.

8. Furnish the Seller with proper and detailed

monthly statements of the operations of the Cor-

poration to be formed.

9. The Buyer agrees to cooperate with the Sel-

lers in any reasonable \vay in protecting its and

its stockholders' interest in order that the smallest

shall receive benefits proportionate to the largest.

For all advances made bv him the Buyer shall
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be entitled to be repaid out of any profits or fimds

available from the operation of said property or

sale or other disposition of the property, but not

otherwise.

When the Buyer has performed all acts herein-

above set forth which are obligatory hereunder he

shall be deemed to have fulfilled this contract and

his liability shall cease.

The liuyer may also terminate his lia])ility here-

under at any time after furnishing the first $10,-

000 specified herein by notifying the Seller of his

desire so to do and by placing his fifty (50%) per

cent of the stock plus the one controlling share ob-

tained by the Buyer hereunder, in escrow with the

Title Insurance and Trust Comi)any or with any

responsible bank selected by the Buyer with irre-

vocable instructions to deliver it to the Seller when-

ever and as soon as the money from net profits or

fruni its dividends or from the Seller sufficient to

repay the Buyer has been received by the trustee

for the benefit of the Buyer. And should the Buyer

(or, in event of his death, his estate) fail from any

cause to perform his part of this agreement he

hereby agrees to deposit said stock in escrow in

the same manner as in this paragraph ])rovided and

under the same terms and conditions as though

the Buyer were terminating [-1:6] his liability.

Should said Buyer withdraw as above or fail to

perform his agreement as above provided, the Sel-

ler shall have the right to elect a majority of the
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board of directors, and such board shall have the

right to immediately elect new officers, both con-

ditioned upon (a) the repayment to the Buyer of

the monies advanced Ijy him, or (b) the securing of

same by a first lien upon the assets of the corpora-

tion subject only to its contract of jjurchase of July

13, 1932, or, at the option of the Buyer he may elect

at an}' time before or while said stock is in escrow

to accei)t in full payment for all money advanced

by him such pro rata of said stock as said ad-

vances bear to one hundred thousand dollars. While

the Buyer retains such control he agrees to vote

upon all matters arising as appears to the best in-

terests of the corporation.

It is the intention of both the Seller and Buyer

that in event of such withdrawal by the Buyer he

shall be entitled to the return of his advances out

of profits oiil}' or out of funds derived from the

sale of said property or from the sale of the stock

obtained by the Seller hereunder should the Seller

sell the property or stock to third parties after hav-

ing obtained title thereto by reason of the with-

drawal of the Buyer.

This right to repayment shall extend only for such

advances as are made in accordance with this con-

tract and the Buyers herein shall not be entitled

to repa\nient for any further or additional ad-

vances unless or until he has secured the written

approval of the Seller thereto. In computing net

profits actual operation expenses only shall be con-
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sidered and no charge sliall be made on account of

officers' salaries, interest or capital expenditures.

[47]

While such stock is in escrow it shall be voted

by the Buyer, and its dividends shall go to the

Buyer until his advances have been repaid and any

dividends received b}' him shall ajjply u^^on such

repayment.

The Buyer or his representatives, will consult at

all reasonable times with the Seller before making

any umisual or extraordinary outlays not contem-

plated herein and further agrees, insofar as his

control of the enterprise is concerned, to use his

best judgment in carrying on the operations con-

templated.

In witness whereof the said Seller has hereby

caused its name to be subscribed by its President

thereunto duly authorized by its board of Direc-

tors this 2nd day of September, 1938, and its offi-

cial seal to be affixed, and the said Buyer has here-

unto subscribed his name and affixed his seal as of

the date aforesaid.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

By J. E. STEIOLER
FRANK A. GARBUTT [48]
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EXHIBIT "7"

MINING DEED

This Indenture, Made this 21st day of September,

A.D. 1938 between Mutual Gold Corporation, a cor-

jjoration authorized to do business in the State of

California as a foreign corporation of the County

of and State of party of the first

part, and Frank A. Garbutt of the County of Los

Angeles and State of California, party of the sec-

ond part, witnesseth:

That the said party of the first j^art, for and in

consideration of the sum of One and no/lOOths

($1.00) and other valuable considerations Dollars

Gold Coin of the United States, to it in hand paid

by the said party of the second part, the receipt

whereof is hereby acknowledged, has Granted, Bar-

gained, Sold, Remised, Released, and forever Quit-

claimed, and by these presents does Grant, Bargain,

Sell, Remise, Release and forever Quit-CIaim unto

the said party of the second part, his heirs and as-

signs, the following lode mine claims as located, sur-

ve3^ed, recorded and held by said i^art... of the first

part. Log Cabin, Log Cabin #1, Log Cabin #2,

Log Cabin #3, l^og Cabin #4, Log Cabin #5, Log

Cabin #6, Log Cabin #7, Log Cabin #8, Mill site,

New Year #2, Federal #1, Federal #2, Log Cabin

Annex, Tamarack, Oro, Burke Fraction, Summit

Extension, Summit Extension #1, Summit Exten-

sion #2, Summit Extension #3, Summit Extension

#4, Summit Extension #5, Lakeview, Lakeview

#1, Lakeview #2, Lakeview #3, Gmisight, Gun-
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sight #1, Gunsight #2, Gimsight #3, Timber

Slope, Contact, Contact #1, Mutual Gold Lode,

-Mutual Gold Lode #1, Dome and Dome #1. in

Mining District, Mono County, State of

California, together with all the dips, spurs and

angles, and also all the metals, ores, gold and silver

bearing quartz, rock and earth therein, and all the

rights, privileges and franchises thereto incident,

appendant and appurtenant, or therewith usually

had and enjoyed; and also all and singular the [49]

tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances there-

unto belonging, or in anywise appertaining, and the

rents, issues and profits thereof; and also all the

estate, right, title, interest, property, possession,

claim and demand whatsoever, as well in law as in

equity, of the said party of the first part, of, in or

to the said i:>remises and every part and parcel

thereof, with the appurtenances.

To have and to hold, all and singular, the said

premises, together with the appurtenances and privi-

leges thereto incident, imto the said party of the

second ])art, his heirs and assigns forever.

In testimony whereof, the said party of the first

l^art has hereunto set its hand and seals the day and

year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
a corporation

By J. E. STEIGLER,
President

Attest

:

E. FUSON,
Secretary
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State of Washington,

Coimty of Yakima—ss.

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the

above named County and State, do hereby certify

that on the 22 day of September, 1938, personally

appeared before me, J. E. Stiegler, to me known to

be the President of the Corporation that executed

tlie within and foregoing instrument and acknowl-

edged the said instrument to be tlie free and volun-

tary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses

and purposes therein mentioned, and he on oath

stated that he was authorized to execute said instru-

ment and that the seal affixed is the corporate seal

of said corporation.

In witness whereof, I have heremito set my hand

and affixed ni}^ official seal the day and year first

above written.

(Notarial Seal)

A. M. OTTO
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Natches. [50]

EXHIBIT "8"

ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT
Know all men by these presents that in considera-

tion of the sum of One Dollar and other valuable

considerations in hand paid, receipt of which is here-
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by acknowledged, Mutual Gold Corporation, a cor-

poration, authorized to do business as a foreign cor-

poration in the State of California, do hereby sell,

assign, transfer and set over unto Frank A. Gar-

butt all of its right, title and interest in and to that

certain contract dated July 13, 1932, between Chan-

dis Securities Company, M. N. Clark and Alice

Clark Ryan as the Sellers and Russell F. Collins

and Ben L. Collins as the Buyers, together with all

modifications and agreements supplemental thereto.

In witness whereof the assignee herein hereunto

sign same by its dul}^ authorized officers and affixes

the cori)orate seal the day and year first above

written Sept. 21, 1938.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
a corporation

By J. E. STEIGLER
President

Attest

:

E. FUSON
Secretary

State of Washington,

Comity of Yakima—ss.

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for

the above named County and State, do hereby cer-

tify that on this day of September, 1938, i)er-

sanally api^eared before me J. E. Steigler to me

known to be the President of the corporation that

(page) -1-
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executed the within and foregoing instrument and

acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and

vohmtary act and deed of said corporation, for the

uses and i)uri)oses therein mentioned, and he on

oath stated that he was authorized to [51] execute

said instrmnent and that the seal affixed is the cor-

2)orate seal of said corporation.

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

A. M. OTTO
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Natches. [52]

EXHIBIT "9"

BILL OF SALE

Know all men by these presents, that Mutual

(lold Corporation, a corporation, authorized to do

business in the State of California, as a foreign

cor2)oration, the party of the first part, for and in

consideration of the sum of One and no/lOOths

($1.00) and other valuable considerations Dollars,

to it in hand paid by Frank A. Oarbutt the ])arty

of the second part, the receipt whereof is hereby

acknowdedged, does by these presents grant, bargain,

sell, convey and confirm unto the said party of the

second j^art, his executors, administrators and as-

signs, the following described personal i)roperty,
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located and being in County of Mono, State of Cali-

fornia, to-wit:

Al] of the mining machinery, tools and equipment

of every kind and character belonging to the party

of the first part, together with all supplies of every

nature belonging to said first party, also the follow-

ing automotive equipment:

One Chevrolet IV2 ton truck, Motor

#T-3783707

One Chevrolet IV2 ton truck. Motor

#T-4480353

One Dodge 3 ton panel body truck Motor

#OB-20184, Ser. #113491

One Ford Closed Cab ])ick-up truck Motor

#1391644

To have and to hold the same to the said party

of the second part, his executors, administrators and

assigns, forever.

And Mutual Gold Corporation, a corporation does

for its heirs, executors and administrators, covenant

and agree to and with the said party of the second

part, his executors, administrators and assigns, to

warrant and defend the sale of such proi^erty, goods

and chattels hereby made unto the said part}' of the

second part, his executors, and assigns, against all

and every persons whomsoever, lawfully claiming or

to claim the same. [53]
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In testimony whereof, we have hereunto set our

hands and seals the 22 day of Sei^t. m the year of

our Lord, one tliousand nine hundred and 38.

(Cor. Seal)

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
a corporation

By J. E. STEIGLER
President

and

E. FUSON
Secretary

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in presence of

State of Washington,

County of Yakima—ss.

On this 22 day of September, 1938, before me, a

Notary Public in and for the above named County

and State, personally appeared J. E. Steigler to me
known to be the President of the corporation that

executed the wdthin and foregomg instrument, and

acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and

voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the

uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath

stated that he was authorized to execute said in-

strument and that the seal affixed is the corx)orate

seal of said corporation.
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In witness whereof I have hereimto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Notarial Seal] A. M. OTTO
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Natches.

No. 988 State of California

Comity of Mono—ss.

Filed for record at rec^uest of David E. Hinckle

on the 7th day of Nov. 1938 at 55 minutes past 9

A. M.

GEO. C. DELURY, JR.,

County Recorder

By GRACE J. BRANDON
Deputy

Recorded in Book 14, page 322, Official Records.

[54]

Exhibit ''10"

Los Angeles, Cal., Oct. 31, 1938

Mutual Gold Corporation:

Referring to that certain contract entered into

with you on September 2, 1938, and again upon Sep-

tember 22, 1938 I hereby withdraw from same as

it is therein provided that I may do and I also

elect to, and do hereby terminate my liability there-

imder.
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I have fully performed my part of said contract

to date and admit and agree that you likewise will

have wholly performed said contract on your part

as soon as you give me the security contemplated

therein.

If you are in accord, I suggest that, in addition

to this formal notice which terminates said con-

tract, we enter into the following agreement to ter-

minate same by mutual consent.

FRANK A. GARBUTT

Receipt of the foregoing notice is hereby acknowl-

edged and accepted as of the date hereof, October

31, 1938.

MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION

By W. L. GRILL
G. H. FERBERT

This Agreement Made this 1st day of November,

1938, by and between the Mutual Gold Corporation,

a corporation organized under the laws of the State

of Washington, the Party of the First Part, and

Frank A. Garbutt, of Los Angeles, California, the

party of the Second Part, Witnesseth:

That For and in Consideration of the sum of

$10.00 mutually in hand paid, tlie receipt of whicli

is hereby acknowledged, and [55] in consideration

of the mutual promises and agreements herein-

after contained, the parties hereto do hereby agree

to and with each other as follows, to-wit:
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1. Both parties agree that the certain contract

entered into by them on September 2 and Septem-

ber 22, 1938, is hereby by mutual consent, abro-

gated, terminated and ended as fully and complete-

ly as if it had never been entered into and that the

same is and shall be of no further force and effect,

and that neither party thereto shall hereafter take

any benefit or benefits therefrom or incur any lia-

bility thereunder, thereby or therefrom, and eacli

of the parties hereto, here])y releases the other from

any claim or claims thereunder of every name or

nature whatsoever.

2. The party of the second part has advanced,

and contracted with third parties to advance certain

sums of money for the benefit of the first party, in-

cluding $11,000 for the construction of a power

line, the purchase of certain machinery, the pay-

ment of wages, etc., all of which has been or will

be evidenced by proper vouchers or other satis-

factory proof.

3. The party of the second part further agrees,

upon demand, to advance the additional sum of

$10,000 to make a payment falling due to the own-

ers of the Log Cabin Mines and such additional

monies as may be necessary to j^ay for any ma-

chinery, material, supplies, labor or other expendi-

tures heretofore made by the party of the second

part or hereafter made by him at his option at the

request or with the consent of the party of the

first part.

4. The party of the first part agrees that, in con-
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sideration for the money advanced and the money

to be advanced, it will give to the party of the second

part it^ notes, due one day after date, dramng 6%
interest until paid, and that the party of the second

part may and shall hold title to the real and [56]

personal property heretofore conveyed to him by

said party of the first part in trust as security for

the payment of said notes.

5. The party of the second part hereby acknowl-

edges that he holds the titles to the real estate and

personal property heretofore conveyed to him by

the party of the first part, in trust for the benefit

of said party of the first part but subject to and

as security for the repayment to the party of the

second part of the monies advanced and to be ad-

vanced by him for the benefit of said party of the

first part and/or for the benefit of the said property

which consists of what is known as the Log Cabin

Klines and the machinery, equipment and tools there-

on, l^oth fast and loose, which property is more

fully described in the documents of transfer here-

tofore made by the party of tlie first part to the

party of the second part, reference thereto being

had and which are hereby made a part, hereof for

all purposes of this agreement.

6. Sliould the party of the first ])art organize or

cause to be organized or acquire a Corporation to

take over and hold said property in which corpora-

tion it owns all of the Capital Stock, the party of

the second part will, on demand, transfer said prop-

erty subject to his claim against it to such corpora-
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tion, and accept contemporaneously therewith a

pledge of all of its stock as security for his said

notes and immediately thereafter, and as soon as

possible said party of the first part will execute and

deliver to the party of the second part such docu-

ments as may be necessary, proper and sufficient to

evidence and establish said indebtedness of record.

In Witness Whereof the parties hereto have here-

unto set their hands and affixed their seals the year

and day first above written.

MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION

By W. L. GRILL

And G. H. FERBERT
FRANK A. GARBUTT [57]

EXHIBIT ^^11"

This Agreement, made and entered into as of the

17th day of December, 1938, by and between Mutual

Gold Corporation, organized and existing under the

laws of the State of Washington and authorized to

do business in California, hereinafter called the

Party of the First Part, Frank A. Garbutt, of Los

Angeles, California, hereinafter called the Party of

the Second Part, and Log Cabin Mines Company,

a California corporation, hereinafter called the

Party of the Third Part, Witnesseth:
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That Whereas, heretofore, to-wit, upon Septem-

ber 2ncl and again upon September 22nd the First

Party entered into an agreement with Second Party

relating to the developing and equipping of the Log

Cabin group of mines and mining claims located

near Leevining, Mono County, California, and held

by First Party under a certain contract to pur-

chase from the Chandis Securities Company, M. N.

Clark and Alice Clark Ryan, dated July 13, 1932,

together with all existing modifications of said con-

tract, which, with its modifications, is hereinafter

designated as the contract, in which the property

that is the subject of this agreement is fully de-

scribed, and which said contract for the purpose

of description and for all other purposes of this

agreement is hereby made a part hereof ; and

Whereas, under said agreements of September

2nd and/or September 22nd the First Party did

transfer to Second Party said contract together with

all other real property owned and controlled by it

in that locality, and all of its machinery, tools and

personal property used in connection therewith, (all

of said real property and interests therein and said

personal property being hereinafter designated as

the property) ; and

AYhereas, said transfer, while absolute in its terms,

was in trust nevertheless, for the purposes of said

agreements of [58] September 2nd and 22nd and

particularly for the purpose of facilitating and m-

suring the transfer of said contract and

(page) —1—
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said property to a corporation to be formed; and

Whereas, before the formation of such corpora-

tion the Second Party elected to withdraw from

said contracts of September 2nd and 22nd as there-

in provided and terminate his liability thereunder

and upon October 31, 1938, did in writing, so with-

draw, having fully fulfilled his ol)ligations up to

the time of said withdrawal; and

Whereas, thereafter, to-wit: upon the 1st day

of November, 1938, the First Party entered into

an agreement with Second Party agreeing that

such withdrawal should be b}^ mutual consent and

fixing the status of the parties, which said agree-

ment of November 1 is hereby made a part hereof;

and

Whereas, the First Party was reluctant to have

the Second Party withdraw and is desirous of con-

tinuing the association and the Second Party is

willing to do so upon terms offered by First Party

which are similar to, and substantially accomplish^*^

the same results contemplated in said contracts

which have been terminated but in a different way

more satisfactory to both of the parties hereto;

and

Whereas, First Party is the owner of said con-

tract and said property, subject to future payments

to be made to the sellers thereof, and subject to

the indebtedness owing to the Party of the Second

Part; and

Whereas, First Party is without funds to equi])

and develop said property and is desirous that the
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same be done without any unnecessary delay; and

Whereas, First Party believes that said property

should be [59] equipped substantially as follows, at

the estimated cost set forth:

(page) —2—

1. Bringing- in electric power from Leevining

or Tioga Lodge, 21/2 miles $11,000.00

2. Electric hoist complete with motor and

starter, etc 7,000.00

3. Cage or skip and mine cars 1,500.00

4. Ball mill, 100 tons capacity, including

motor, etc 7,000.00

5. Classifier complete 3,000.00

6. Cyanide equipment, including tanks, motor

and equipment capable of handling 100

tons daily 25,000.00

7. 6-inch pipe line, 5,000 feet and installa-

tion thereof, to carry tailings to impound-

ing dam 3,000.00

8. 500 cubic foot compressor, with motor, etc. 4,000.00

9. Additional building to house new machin-

ery, including coverage for cyanide tanks 3,000.00

10. New bunkhouse and addition to cook

house 1,500.00

11. Assay office and equipment 1,000.00

12. Enlargement of present ore bins at shaft

and mill 1,000.00

13. Payroll, truck hauling, cement, sand, etc.

for 60 days during installation of above 10,000.00

14. Payment due on property November 1,

1938 10,000.00
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And Whereas, of the above list the Second Party

has heretofore furnished the following items or the

money therefor, for which First Party is now in-

debted, to-wit:

1. Electric hoist (plus cost of hauling, foun-

dations and installation, at this time un-

known) 1,225.00

2. Power Line 11,000.00

7. Payments on pipe line (increased to 8-inch)

8. Compressor (less hauling, foundations and

installation) 1,600.00

[60]

13. Payrolls, hauling cement, materials, heat-

ers and other necessary expenses, approxi-

mately 3,000.00

14. Payment due to owners November 1, 1938 10,000.00

Total, approximately

(page) —3—

And Whereas, the Party of the First Part owns

and controls the Party of the Third Part, the Log-

Cabin Mines Company, a California corporation,

with an authorized capital of $10,000 of a par value

of $1.00 per share

;

Now Therefore, in consideration of the premises

and in consideration of the sum of Ten ($10.00) Dol-

lars mutually in hand paid, the receipt whereof is

hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the

promises, covenants and agreements hereinafter set

forth, the parties hereto do hereby agree to and with

each other as follows, to-wit:
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1. The i^arties of the First Part and Second

Part agree to cooperate in investigating- and de-

termining whether more suitable equipment than

that above described and recommended by First

Party can be obtained, and if, in the opinion of the

Second Party such proves to be the case, he may, at

his option, alter the specifications of such equipment

accordingly.

2. First party agrees to purchase for cash all

of the capital stock of the Third Party, which lias

a permit from the Corporation C^ommission of Cali-

fornia, to sell the same to First Party.

3. First Party agrees to give and does hereby

give to Third Party a firm option to purchase said

contract and property for the sum of Ten ($10.00)

Dollars and the other benefits herein set forth, sub-

ject, however, to any claims, liens or indebtedness

owing to Second Party but reserving to First Party

[61] from this option the tailings now on a por-

tion of said property below the mill and also re-

serving from this transfer the surface of the ground

upon which said tailings are located and for the

purpose of securing this option in event the Third

Party exercises same by the majority vote of its

Board of Directors, said First Party agrees and

does hereby agree, acknowledge and confirm that

Second Party holds the titles to said contract and

said property, first, as securing the payment to him

of all monies advanced or to be advanced by him

heremider and, second, for the purpose of trans-

ferring same to Third Party subject, to such in-
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debtedness if and when Third Party elects to exer-

cise said option.
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4. First Party hereby gives and grants to Sec-

ond Party a firm option to purchase a majority of

the stock, to-wit 5001 shares of the capital stock

of Third Party for the total smn of $5001.00 and in

order to protect said Second Party in the right to

purchase same, First Party has delivered or has

authorized the delivery of said 5001 shares of stock

into escrow to be delivered to the Second Party if

and when he exercises said option and pays the

$5001.00 specified to be paid therefor by the payment

of $5001.00 to the First Party, or, at the option

of Second Party, he may exercise said option by

paying or crediting either First or Third Party

with said amount of $5001.00 upon any advances

heretofore or hereafter made by Second Party for

the benefit of either First oi' Third Party or for

the benefit of said property and/or contract. Sec-

ond Party may exercise said option at any time

prior to the termination of this contract and while

said stock is in escrow and until Second Party has

been repaid in full, he shall vote [62] said stock as

herein otherwise provided.

5. Party of the Second Part agrees to loan or

advance to the Party of the Third Part from time

to time as or before needed, funds to a minimum of

Ninety-five Thousand ($95,000.00) Dollars, for the

protection and development of said property and
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the property covered by said contract, and for equip-

ment, as needed by Third Party to equip said Log

Cabin Mine with a mill of an estimated capacity of

one hundred (100) tons daily or more, as herein

set forth, and/or the payment of its debts incurred

by or to Second Party, which said minimum of

$95,000.00

(page) —5—

shall include sums for which the Party of the First

Part is now obligated to the Party of the Second

Part and which said obligation shall, upon the

completion of this contract, and the exercise of the

option by the Party of the Second Part to j^urchase

said 5001 shares of stock of the Party of the Third

Part, cease to be the obligation of the Party of the

First Part, and become the obligation of the Party

of the Third Part to the Party of the Second Part

;

said advances to be repaid with interest at the rate

of ten (10%) per cent per annum, but said interest

in any event not to total more than Five Thousand

($5,000.00) Dollars, regardless of the time elapsing

before the repayment of said advances; and al] of

said advances, together with said interest, to be

payable only out of the first profits or funds avail-

able, as and when they accrue and become available

from the operations or sale or other disposition of

the said Mines, and/or contract and property to be

conveyed to and owned by the Party of the Third

Part hereimder, but not otherwise to be repaid.

6. That as one of the principal reasons for the
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entering [63] into this contract by the parties here-

to is the protection of the stockholders and more

especially the small stockholders of the First Party,

in order that their rights shall be preserved while

the property is being developed and placed upon a

paying basis for their proportionate benefit, there-

fore it is further agreed that should the First Party

be forced into insolvency or should any creditor or

creditors obtain judgment against it or its prop-

erty which threatens to extinguish the rights of its

small stockholders or take their equities from them,

then and in such event, anything to the contrary

contained herein notwithstanding, the Second Party

shall have the option at any time thereafter to de-

clare all monies advanced by him due and payable

and proceed to recover the same by due process of

law.

(page) —6—

The Second Party agrees:

7. To proceed with the work of properly equip-

ping said property as rapidly as conditions will

permit unless prevented by weather, strikes or other

circumstances not controlled by the Party of the

Second Part.

8. At the option of the Second Party to take

care of all further payments to the owners of said

Log Cabin Mine group, amounting to $120,000.00 in

all which fall due during the life of this agreement.

9. At the option of the Party of the Second

Part to advance additional funds over and above
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said minimum of $95,000.00 should such advances,

in the opinion of the Party of the Second Part,

become necessary or advisable.

10. The Party of the Third Part hereby agrees,

immediately upon the convej^ance of said contract

and property to it, to execute and deliver to the

Party of the Second Part a first lien [64] upon said

contract and property, subject to the balance due

the o\Miers upon said contract as security for the

said advances of the Party of the Second Part made

to the Party of the First Part herein, and all fur-

ther advances thereafter made by the Part}^ of the

Second Part to the Party of the Third Part; and

the Party of the Third Part further agrees to exe-

cute from time to time such documents as are neces-

sary and proper to assure said liens, together with

all renewals thereof Avhich may be required from

time to time by the Party of the Second Part.

11. The Party of the Second Part may at any

time terminate his liability hereunder hy notifying

the Party of the First Part and said escrow holder,

in writing, that he does not desire to proceed fur-

ther hereimder, and the liability of the Party of

the Second Part to make any further advances here-

under, except for debts heretofore incurred by him

for the Party of the Third Part, shall immediately

cease and terminate ; and in the event of such termi-

nation, all of said stock belonging to the said Party

of the Second Part in the Party of the Third Part,

should he

(page) —7—
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have exercised his option hereunder to purchase

same, shall be held by said escrow holder for the ben-

efit of the Party of the First Part and be delivered

to it as soon as and whenever all of the advances

theretofore made by the Party of the Second Part

shall have been repaid to him, plus the total interest

charges hereinbefore set forth and the further pay-

ment of One ($1.00) Dollar for the said 5001 shares

of the party of the Third Part held in escrow as

aforesaid.

12. In the event that the Party of the Second

Part shall fail, neglect or refuse to proceed furtlier

with the contract or give written notification of his

termination of liability here- [65] under, then the

Party of the First Part shall have the right to

elect a majority of the Board of Directors of the

Party of the Third Part and such Board shall have

the right to immediately elect new officers of the

Party of the Third Part, both conditioned upon the

repayment to the Party of the Second Part of the

monies advanced by him.

At the option of the Party of the Second Part

he may elect at any time before or while said stock

is in escrow to accept in full payment for all money

advanced by him such pro rata of said stock as said

advances and money paid for stock bear to One

Hundred Thousand Dollars at which time he may
complete said advances then remaining unmade.

13. It is the intention of all of the parties here-

to that should the Party of the Second Part with-

draw as herein provided or should he fail, neglect
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or refuse to proceed further with the contract that

he shall be entitled to the return of such advances

as he may have made or may make, out of profits

only or out of funds derived from the sale of said

property or from the sale of the stock obtained by

the Party of the First Part heremider should the

Party of the First Part and/or the Party of the

Third Part sell the property or stock to third par-

ties after having obtained title thereto by reason

of the withdrawal of the Party of the Second Part

but notwithstanding such intention and

(page) —8—
in event of such contingencies should the funds de-

rived from the souix^es above mentioned be insuf-

ficient to repay said advances to the Party of the

Second Part within the times hereinafter s])eci-

fied, then and in that event the Parties of the First

Part and Third Part agree that they will repay to

the Party of the Second Part all such advances not

in excess of Fifty Thousand 166"] ($50,000.00) Dol-

lars within one (1) year and all advances in ex-

cess of Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00) Dollars within

two (2) years thereafter, or after such withdrawal,

anything in this contract to the contrary notwith-

standing. •

In computing net profits actual operating ex-

penses only shall be considered and no charge shall

be made on accoimt of officers' salaries, interest or

capital expenditures.
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14. This right to repayment shall extend only

for such advances as are made in accordance with

this contract and the Party of the Second Part,

herein shall not be entitled to repayment for any

further or additional advances unless or until he

has secured the written approval of the Party of

the First Part, thereto.

15. The Party of the Second Part, or his repre-

sentatives, mil consult at all reasonable times with

the Party of the First Part before making any un-

usual or extraordinary outlays not contemplated

herein, and further agrees, insofar as his control

of the enterprise is concerned, to use his best judg-

ment in carrying on the operations ^contemplated.

16. That while said 5001 shares of the stock of

the Party of the Third Part under option to or be-

longing to the Party of the Second Part is in es-

crow, as aforesaid, it shall be voted by the Party of

the Second Part and all dividends thereon shall be

paid to the Party of the Second Part until his ad-

vances have been entirely repaid, and any dividends

received by the Party of the Second Part shall

apply upon such repayment.

While the Party of the Second Part retains the

control he agrees to vote upon all matters arising as

appears to the best interests of the corporation.

17. That the capital stock of the Party of the

Third Part [67] shall not be increased until all of

said advances made by the Party of the Second Part

are repaid in full.

(page) —9—
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18. The Party of the Third Part agrees that it

will not dispose of its contract or real property,

nor any part thereof, without at least one of the

following things as a condition precedent thereto,

either

(a) The written consent of the Party of the First

Part.

(b) The vote of a majority of the directors of

the Log Cabin Mines Company, duly authorized or

approved by a two-thirds vote of its stockholders.

(c) The bankruptcy of the said Party of the

Third Part.

(d) Bv the unanimous vote of the entire Board

of Directors of the Party of the Third Part, dul}^

approved or authorized by a majority of its stock-

holders.

19. The Party of the Third Part agrees to fur-

nish the Party of the First Part with proper and

detailed monthly statements of its operations.

20. The Party of the Third Part agrees that

imtil the advances made by the Party of the Second

Part have been repaid in full and imtil the owners

have been paid in full, it will pay no salaries to its

officers and directors, and, in any event, it will

pay no salaries, bonuses or other emoluments ex-

cept for actual work done or services performed at

their fair value.

21. The Party of the Second Part agrees that

after being secured, as provided in paragraph num-

bered 10, he will, upon the demand of the Party
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of the First Part, forthwith release any and all

liens or claims that he has agamst the 4999 shares

of stock belonging to the Party of the First Part

in the Party of the Third Part. [68]

22. In the event the Party of the First Part

becomes dissatisfied with the manner in which the

Party of the Second Part is carrying out this con-

tract it agrees to state to him in

(page) —10—

writing its cause of dissatisfaction and give hiiu

ninety (90) days in which to cure same, before

taking any action in regard thereto.

28. It is further agreed that the Party of the

Second Part incurs? no personal liability hereunder

for errors in judgment or for failure to do any

thing or i)erform any act herein set forth to be

done or performed.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties of the First

Part and Third Part have caused these presents to

be duly executed by their authorized olticers and

their corporate seals to be hereunto affixed, and the

Party of the Second I*art has hereunto set his

hand and seal, the day and year first above writ-

ten.

[Seal] MUTUAL COLD
CORPORATION

By J. E. STEIGLER
President

Attest: E. FUSON
Secretary

Party of the First Part.
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FRANK A. GARBUTT
Party of the Second Part.

LOG CABIN MINES
COMPANY

By
President

Attest :

Seeretaiy

Party of the Third Part.

EXHIBIT "12"

The consideration for this deed is less than a

hundred dollars.

Mining Deed

This Indenture, made this 10th day of April,

1939, between Mutual Gold Corporation, a corpora-

tion organized and existing under the laws of the

State of Washington and authorized to do business

in the State of California, party of the first ]:>art,

and Log Cabin Mines Company, a corporation or-

ganized and existing under the laws of the State

of California and having its principal place of

business in the County of Los Angeles, State of

California, party of the second part,

Witnesseth : that the said party of the first part,

for and in consideration of the suuj of five dollars

($5.00) lawful money of the United States to it hi
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hand paid by the said inirty of the second part,

the receipt of which is hereb}^ acknowledged, has

gi'anted, bargained, sold, remised, released, and

forever quit-claimed, and by these premises does

grant, bargain, sell, remise, release and forever

quit-claim imto the said party of the second part,

and to its successors and assigns, the following lode

mining claims situated in the County of Mono,

State of California, as said claims are located, sur-

veyed and recorded:

Log Cabin, Log Cabin No. 1, Log Cabin No.

2, Log Cabin No. 3, Log Cabin No. 4, Log

Cabin No. 5, Log Cabin No. 6, Log Cabin No.

7, Log Cabin No. 8, Millsite, New Year No. 2,

Federal No. 1, Federal No. 2, Federal No. 3,

Log Cabin Annex, Tamarack, Oro, Lurke Frac-

tion, Summit Extension, Summit Extension

No. 1, Summit Extension No. 2, Summit Ex-

[70] tension No. 3, Summit Extension No. 4,

Summit Extension No. 5, Lakeview, Lakeview

No. 1, Lakeview No. 2, Lakeview No. 3, Gun-

sight, Gunsight No. 1, Gunsight No. 2, Gun-

sight No. 3, Timber Slope, Contact, Contact

No. 1, Mutual Gold Lode, Mutual Gold Lude

No. 1, Dome, and Dome No. 1.

Together with any and all other claims and real

l^roperties owned by said party of the first i^art in

said Mono County, and together with all the dips,

spurs, and angles, and also all the metals, ores.
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gold and silver-bearing quartz, rock, and earth

therein, and all the rights, privileges, and fran-

chises thereto incident, appendant, and appurte-

nant, or therewith usually had and enjoyed; and

also all and singular the tenements, hereditaments,

and appurtenances thereunto belonging, or in any-

Avise appertaining, and the rents, issues, and prof-

its thereof; and also all the estate, right, title, in-

terest, property i^ossession, claim, and demand

whatsoever, as well in law as in equity, of the

said party of the hrst ])art, of, in or to the said

2)remises, and every part and })arcel thereof, with

the appurtenances.

To have and to hold, all and singular, the said

lU'emises, together with the appurtenances, and priv-

ileges thereto incident, unto the said party of the

second ])art, its successors and assigns forever.

Reserving, However, to the Party of the First

Part from this deed the tailings now on a i)ortion

of said propert}^ below the mill situated on said

property, and also reserving from this deed to the

party of the tirst part the surface of the ground

ui)on which said tailings are located.

In Witness Whereof, the said party of the first

part has hereunto set its hand and seal, by its

proper officers thereunto dul\' authorized, on the

day and in the year first above written. [71]

[Corporate MUTUAL GOLD
Seal] CORPORATION

By J. E. STIEGLER,
President

and by C. T. ORR, Secretary
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State of Washington

County of Spokane—ss:

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for

the above-named county and state, do hereby cer-

tify tliat on this 10th day of April, 1939, person-

ally appeared before me C. T. Orr, to me known to

be the secretary of said Mutual Gold Corporation,

and they acknowledged tlie said instrument to be

the free and voluntary act and deed of said cor-

poration, for the uses and purposes therein men-

tioned, and they on oath stated that they were au-

thorized to execute said instrument and that the

seal affixed thereto is the corporate seal of said

corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal the day and year

first above written.

[Notarial E. D. WELLER
Seal] Notary Public in and for the

State of Washington, residing at

Spokane.

State of Washington

Count}^ of King—ss.

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for

the above named county and state, do hereby cer-

tify that on this 8th day of April, 1939, personally

appeared before me J. T. Stiegler, to me known to

be the President of the Mutual Gold Corporation,

the corporation that executed the within and fore-
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going instrument, and he acknowledged the said

instrument to be the free and voluntary act and

deed of said corporation, for the uses and pur-

poses therein mentioned, and he on oath stated that

he was authorized to execute said instrument and

that the seal affixed thereto is the corporate seal of

said corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have heremito set my
hand and affixed my official seal the day and year

first above written.

[Notarial A. B. BOWES
Seal] Notary Public in and for the

State of Washington, residing at

Seattle. [72]

EXHIBIT ''13''

Bill of Sale

Know All Men by These Presents, that Mutual

Ciold Corporation, a corporation, authorized to do

business in the State of California and organized

and existing under the laws of the State of Wash-

ington, the party of the first part, for and in con-

sideration of the sum of five dollars ($5.00) to it in

hand paid by Log Cabin Mines Company, a cor-

poration organized and existing under tlie laws of

tlie State of California, the party of tlie second

part, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
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does b}' these presents i^iaiit, bargain, sell, con-

vey and confirm unto the said party of the second

part, its successors and assigns, the following de-

scribed ])ersonal propert}' located and being in the

County of Mono, State of California:

All of the mining machinery, tools, and

equipment of every kind and character beloii;;-

ing to the party of the hrst part, together with

all supplies of every nature belonging to said

first ])arty, and also the following automobile

equi}jnient: One Clievrolet one-and-a-half ton

truck. Motor No. T-3783707 ; one Chevrolet one-

and-a-half ton tj-uck, Motor No. T-4480353 ; one

Dodge three-ton panel body truck. Motor No.

GB-20184, serial No. S113491; and one Ford

Closed Cab pick-up truck, Motor No. 1391644.

To have to and hold the same to the said party

of the second part, its successors and assigns, for-

ever.

And Mutual Gold Corporation does, for its suc-

cessors and assigns, covenant and agree to and with

the said party of the second part, its successors and

assigns, to warrant and defend the sale of said

property, goods, and chattels hereby made unto

said party of the first part, its successors and as-

signs, against all and every person and persons

whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same.

In Witness Whereof, said party of the first part

has, by its proper officers thereunto duly author-
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ized, subscribed its name and affixed its corporate

seal on this 10th day of [73] April, 1939.

[Corporate MUTUAL GOLD
Seal] CORPORATION

By J. E. kSTIEGLER
President

and by C. T. ORR
Secretary.

State of Washington

County of Spokane—ss.

On this 10th day of April, 1939, before me, a

notary public in and for the above named county

and state, personally appeared C. T. Orr, to me
known to be the secretary of said Mutual Gold Cor-

poration, and they acknowledged the said instru-

ment to be the free and voluntary act and deed of

said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein

mentioned, and on oath stated that they were au-

thorized to execute said instrument and that the

seal affixed is the corporate seal of said corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Notarial Seal] E. D. WELLER
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Spokane.
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State of Washington

County of King

On this 8th day of April, 1939, before me, a no-

tary public in and for the above named comity and

state, personally appeared J. K Steigler, to me
known to be the president of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, the corporation that executed the within and

foregoing instrument, and acloiowledged the said in-

strument to be the free and voluntary act and deed

of said corporation, for the uses and purposes there-

in mentioned, and on oath stated that [74] he was

authorized to execute said instrument, and that the

seal affixed is the corporate seal of said corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Notarial Seal] A. P. BOWES
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.

No. 157 filed for record at the request of David E.

Hmckle Apr. 18, 1939, 30 minutes past 9 o'clock

A. M.

GRACE J. BRANDON
County Recorder

Recorded in Book 15, page 31 Official Records.

[75]
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EXHIBIT ''14"

Mining Deed

This Indenture, made this 21st day of July, 1939,

between Frank A. Garbutt of the County of Los An-

geles, State of California, a single man, party of the

first part, and Log Cabin Mines Cmpany, a corpora-

tion organized and existing under the laws of the

State of California and having its principal place

of business in the County of Los Angeles, State of

California, ]3arty of the second part.

Witnesseth

That the said party of the first part, for and in

consideration of the sum of five dollars ($5.00) law-

ful money of the United States to him in hand paid

by the said party of the second part, the receipt of

which is hereby acknowledged, has remised, released,

and forever quitclaimed, and by these presents does

remise, release and forever quitclaim unto the said

party of the second part, and to its successors and

assigns the following lode mining claims situated in

the County of Mono, State of California, as said

claims are located, surveyed and recorded.

Log Cabin, Log Cabin No. 1, Log Cabin No.

2, Log Cabin No. 3, Log Cabin No. 4, Log

Cabin No. 5, Log Cabin No. 6, Log Cabin No. 7,

Log Cabin No. 8, Millsite, New Year No. 2, Fed-

eral No. 1, Federal No. 2, Federal No. 3, Log

Cabin Annex, Tamarack, Oro, Burke Fraction,

Summit Extension, Summit Extension No. 1,
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Summit Extension No. 2, Summit Extension

No. 3, Summit Extension No. 4, Summit Ex-

tension No. 5, Lakeview, Lakeview No. 1, Lake-

view No. 2, Lakeview No. 3, Gunsight, Gun-

sight No. 1, Gunsight No. 2, Gimsight No. 3,

Timber Slope, Contact, Contact No. 1, Mutual

Gold Lode, Mutual Gold Lode No. 1, Dome and

Dome No. 1.

Together with all the dips, spurs, and angles, and

also all the metals, ores, gold and silver-bearing

quartz, rock and earth therein, and all the rights,

privileges, and franchises thereto incident, append-

ant, and appurtenant, or therewith [76] usually had

and enjoyed; and also all and singular the tene-

ments, hereditaments, and appurtenances thereunto

belonging, or in any\\dse appertaining, and the rents,

issues and profits thereof; and also all the estate,

right, title, interest, property, possession, claim,

and demand whatsoever, as well in law as in equity,

of the said pai'ty of the iirst i)art, of, in, or to the

said ])remises and every ])art and parcel thereof,

v.ith the a])])urtenances.

To liave and to Jiold, all and singular, the said

premises, together with the ai)purtenances and ])riv-

ileges thereto incident, unto the said party of the

second i)art, its successors and assigns foi'ever.

Reserving, However, to the Party of the First

Part from this deed the tailings now on a ])ortion

of said pro]>erty below the mill situated on said

property, and reserving also to said party of the
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first part from this deed the surface of the ground

upon wliich said tailings are located.

In Witness Whereof, the said party of the first

l^art has liereunto subscribed his name on the day

and in the year first above written.

FRANK A. GARBUTT

State of California

Coimty of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 21st day of July, 1939, before me, Althea

K. Hinckle, a notary public in and for said county

and state, personally appeared Frank A. Garbutt,

known to me to be the ])erson whose name is sub-

scribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged

to me that he executed the same.

Witness my hand and official seal.

[Notarial Seal] ALTHEA K. HINCKLE.

My commission expires jNlay 20, 1910. [77]

EXHIBIT "15"

Mining Deed

This Indenture, made this 9th day of August,

1939, between Mutual Gold Corjioration, a corpora-

tion organized and existing under the laws of the

State of Washington and authorized to do busi-

ness in the State of California, party of the first

part, and Log Cabin jNlines Company, a corpora-
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tioii organized and existing under the laws of the

State of California and having- its principal place

of business in the County of Los Angeles, State of

California, party of the second part,

Witnesseth

:

^J'hat the said party of the first part, for and in

consideration of the sum of five dollars ($5.00)

lawful money of the United States to it in hand

paid by the said part}' of the second part, the re-

ceipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted,

bargained, sold, remised, released, and forever quit-

claimed, and by these presents does grant, bai'gain,

sell, remise, release, and forever quitclaim unto

the said party of the second part, and to its suc-

cessors and assigns, the following lode mining claims

situated in the Count}^ of Mono, State of California

as said claims are located, surveyed, and recorded:

Mutual Gold Lode No. 2, Mutual Cold Lode

No. 3, Mutual Gold Lode No. 4, Mutual Gold

Lode No. 5, and Mutual Gold Lode No. (5

Together with any and all other claims and real

properties owned by said party of the hrst part

in said Mono County, and together with all the

dij^s, spurs, and angles, and also all the metals, ores,

gold and silver-bearing quartz, rock, and earth

therein, and all the rights, privileges, and fran-

chises thereto incident, appendant and appurte-

nant, or therewith usually had and enjo^^ed; and

also all and singular the tenements, hereditaments.
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and appurtenances thereunto [78] belonging, or in

anywise appertaining, and the rents, issues and

l^rofits thereof; and also all the estate, right, title,

interest, proi^erty, possession, claim, and demand

whatsoever, as well in law as in equity, of the

said party of the first part, of, in, or to the said

premises, and every part and X)arcel thereof, witli

the appurtenances

;

To have and to ]iold, all and singular, the said

jjremises, together with the apj^urtenances, and

])rivileges thereto incident, unto the said party of

the second part, its successors and assigns forever.

(page) —1—
Reserving, However, to the Party of the First

Part from this deed any tailings that may be now

on any part of said above-mentioned five claims,

and also reserving from this deed to the party of

the first part such parts, if any, of the surface of

said claims as may have said tailings located there-

on.

in Witness Whereof, the said party of the first

part has hereunto set its hand and seal, by its

])roj)er officers thereunto duly authorized, on the

day and in the year first above written.

[Corporate Seal] MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION,

By J. E. STEIOLER
President

and by C. T. ORR
Secretarv
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State of Washington

C\)nnty of Spokane—ss.

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for

the above named county and state, do hereby cer-

tify that on this 10th day of August, 1939, person-

ally appeared before me, C. T. Orr, to me known

to be the secretary of said Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, and he acknowledged the said instrument to

be the free and voluntary act and deed of said cor-

poriition, for the uses and purposes therein men-

tioned, and he on oath stated that he was authorized

to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed

thereto is the corporate seal of said corporation.

[79]

In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Notarial Seal] E. D. WELLER
Notary Public, residing at Spokane, A¥n.

State of Washington

County of Yakima—ss.

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for

the above named county and state, do hereby cer-

tify that on this 9th day of August, 1939, personally

arjpeared before me J. E. Steigler, to me known to

be tlie president of Mutual Gold Corporation, tlie

cori)oration that executed the within and foregoing

instrument, and he ack]iov\ledged the said instru-

ment to be the free and voluntary act and deed of
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said corporation, for the uses and purposes there-

in mentioned, and he on oath stated that he was

authorized to execute said instrument and that the

seal affixed thereto is the corporate seal of said

corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Notarial Seal] A. M. OTTO
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Naches.

No. 632. Filed for Record at the request of David

F. Hinckle Aug. 17, 1939, 20 minutes past 9 o'clock

A.M.
GRACE J. BRANDON

County Recorder.

Recorded in Book 15, ])age 225 Official Records.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 20, 1939. [80]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BILL OF PARTICULARS.

The plaintiffs, in pursuance to the order of court

dated February 19th, 1940, hereby furnish the de-

fendants with the particulars requested in, and by,

paragraphs 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 of defendants' de-

mand, to-wit:
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First

:

In addition to tlie averments stated in the com-

plaint, and particularly in Paragraphs IX, XV, X
and XVIII thereof, allege that the circumstances

constituting the frauds which are the basis of this

action are:

(a) August 6th, 1938, CI. H. Ferbert and Rus-

sell F. Collins, who were then directors of Mutual

Gold Corporation, attended a meeting of the stock-

holders of said corporation at Spokane, Washing-

ton, and also a directors' meeting on the same day,

at which said meetings, with the consent, approval

and authorization of Clarbutt, they stated and re])-

resented to the stockholders and [87] to the direc-

tors that said Garbutt was willing to make a deal

with Mutual Gold Corporation that was a better

deal than the proposal which had been made by

Lloyd J. Vance, and which Vance proposal was in

substance, to take care, that is provide for the j^ay-

ment of, all the creditors of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, and develop the mine referred to in the com-

])laint, for a half interest in said mine. Based on

said re])resentations of Ferl^ert and Collins, the di-

rectors' meeting was adjourned to meet August 13,

1938 at Seattle, Washington.

(1j) Thereupon, and between x\ugust 6th, 1938

and August 13th 1938, Ferbert and Collins went

from Spokane to Los Angeles, where they met with

Garbutt, and returned with a proposal ]nir])orting

to be made by, and in the name of, Cecil B. DeMille,
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but not signed, a true copy of which is attached

hereto as Exhibit ''A''. Said unsigned proposal

was, on August 13th, 1938, submitted to, and at, a

meeting of the board of directors of Mutual Gold

Corporation by Russell F. Collins, G. H. Ferbert

and W. L. Grill, at which meeting all of the di-

rectors of the comiianv were j^resent. The substance

of such proposal was that the said DeMille was

willing to agree that if Mutual Gold would execute

a transfer of all of its assets to the said Frank A.

Garbutt as trustee, to be delivered to the corpora-

tion on the completion thereof, he, DeMille, would

form a corporation and execute to Mutual Gold

Corporation fifty per cent of said stock, less one

share, in full payment for all of its assets.

(c) August 16th, 1938, with the knowledge, con-

sent, approval and authorization of said Garbutt,

one M. J. Keily went from Los Angeles to Seattle,

where he met certain of the directors of Mutual

Gold Corporation. Said meeting was private, and

the identity of all of the directors attending said

meeting with [88] Keily is not known to the plain-

tiffs, but included J. E. Steigler and W. L. Grill.

Following which, and on or about August 16th, or

August 18th, 1938, with the knowledge, consent, av-

proval and authorization of said Garbutt, the said

AY. L. Grill informed the directors, at a board

meeting of Mutual Gold Corporation, that it was

necessary to make a deal with Garbutt to transfer

the assets of Mutual Gold Corporation unto him in

order to save and avoid trouble with the owners in
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respect to a claim of right by Garbutt, acting for

the owners, to forfeit the contract of purchase, Ex-

hibit ''1", contained in the complaint.

(d) Thereafter, on or about August 25th, 1938,

the said Frank A. Garbutt caused to be issued a

notice and claim of forfeiture of said purchase con-

tract, as set out later in this bill of particulars. On
or about August 26th, 1938, the said Frank A.

Garbutt phoned from Los Angeles to the said W. Ij.

Grill, at the Vance Hotel in Seattle, that he, on

behalf of the owners, insisted upon the forfeiture of

the ])urchase contract for alleged breach thereof, and

that he, for the owners, w^ould refuse to accept pay-

ment in full of the entire purchase price provided

to ]je paid in said contract, all of which was com-

municated by the said W. L. Grill to the board of

directors of Mutual Gold Corporation, at a meeting

held about August 27th, 1938, at which meeting

Ferbert and Grill were present, and a resolution

was adopted by the votes of Ferbert, Hickcox,

Steigler and Grill as follows, to-wit

:

Resolved that this cor|)oration accept the

offer as embraced in the memorandum of con-

tract prepared and submitted by Frank A.

Garbutt, and that the president be and he is

hereby authorized to execute the same provided

that it be amended to include the following:

1. That the titles to the property of the

Mutual Gold Corporation be transferred to the

buyer to be held [89] in escrow until the sum

of $100,000.00 shall be paid into the new cor-
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poration to be organized to take titles to the

said property;

2. That the seller shall, at all times through

its stock interest, have a full minority repre-

sentation on the board of directors of the cor-

poration to be formed

;

3. That adequate i^rovision be made by

articles, by-laws and otherwise of the new cor-

poration that said new corporation cannot sell

its mining properties and equipment without a

two-third vote of the stockholders of the com-

pany, and that the directors shall not have the

authority to make or dispose of said proj^erty

without the prior approval of two- thirds of the

outstanding capital stock of the new corpora-

tion;

4. That in the event of the withdrawal by

the buyer after it shall have advanced said

$100,000.00 or more, the seller shall have the

right to elect a majority of the board of direc-

tors and such board shall have the right to im-

mediately elect new officers of the new cor-

poration
;

and that suitable j)rovision be made for pay-

ment of the open account creditors of the said

Mutual Gold Corporation, and further that, in

the event that said contract is executed the

same be ratified by the stockholders of the com-

pany.
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(e) Plaintiffs further allege upon information

and belief that the said Garbutt caused to be paid

the traveling expenses of the said Ferbert and Col-

lins from Spokane to Los Angeles and return

therefrom to Seattle, incurred by them during the

week following August 6th, 1938. Concurrently

therewith, the said Frank A. Garbutt, at times and

under particular circumstances known to him and

the said directors of Mutual Gold Corporation, did

arrange to advance, and later did advance and pay

the i)ersonal ex])enses of two of said directors, to-

wit: Russell F. Collins and W. L. Grill, and did

em]:>loy one of said directors, to-wit: Russell F.

Collins, on a date unknown to plaintiffs, for ser-

vices commencing about September 17th, 1938, and

continuously thereafter, to work for him in the

negotiation for, and execution of the several con-

tracts and conveyances complained of herein, and

in the operation of said mining property, and f(n'

said ser- [90] vices paid the said Russell F. Collins

money, in amounts known to him and to the said

Russell F. Collins, but not known to plaintiffs. Also,

the said Garbutt paid the traveling expenses of the

said Collins for tri])s to and from Los Angeles and

elsewhei-e in connection with the several negotia-

tions and acts for the procurement and execution of

the several contracts, conveyances and deeds under

attack in the comj^laint, and charged the expense of

all thereof to Mutual Gold Corporation. That the

ledger account of the said Frank A. Garbutt con-

tained items charged to Mutual Gold Corporation



104 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

for i)aynients and adA'aiices made which included

the following:

September 27, 1938 Russell F. Collins Traveling

Exp $ 50.00

September 20, 1938 Miscellaneous Expense 150.00

October 6, 1938 Russell F. Collins services 19.25

October 12, 1938 Russell F. Collins Traveling

Exp 20.00

October 19, 1938 Russell F. Collins — period

ending 10/15 50.00

November 5, 1938 Russell F. Collins, Traveling

Exp 129.55

November 17, 1938 Russell F. Collins, Board,

Room & Mileage 92.89

November 21, 1938 Russell F. Collins, acct. haul-

ing contract 35.00

November 25, 1938 Russell F. Collins, hauling

machinery and pipe, on acct. 20.00

November 25, 1938 Russell F. Collins, hauling

machinery balance 25.31

January 19, 1939 Russell Collins on account 50.00

February 28, 1939 Russell F. Collins Wages 20.00

That said item of September 20, 1930, $150., is

listed as miscellaneous expense, whereas in truth and

in fact it was i)aid to W. T.. Grill as traveling ex-

penses, and was so admitted, in the presence of

Frank A. Garbutt, by Mr. Carter his accountant, at

the time of, and in, the deposition of Frank A. Gar-

butt given on or about August 25th, 1939. That all

of said advances were made without any authority

by Mutual Gold Corporation or its board of direc-

tors, upon the initiation of Frank A. Garbutt, who



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 105

tlicreiipon assumed to charge the same upon his

ledger account against Mutual Gold. [91]

All of the foregoing were, and are, circumstances

and particulars accompanying, and part of, the

several frauds which are the basis of complaint in

this action, and are in addition to the facts, cir-

cumstances and particular conveyances, deeds, bills

of sale and contracts executed by and between tlie

said Mutual Gold Corporation, Frank A. Garbutt,

T^og Cabin Mines Company and the several directors

of each of said companies, in consummation of said

frauds. All of said circunivstances and particulars,

which accompanied, constituted and were a part of

said frauds as alleged in tlie complaint, are within

tlie knowledge of the defendants.

Second

:

In response to the fourth demand, to-wit: a more

dofiriite statement of what plaintiffs mean by their

averment on page 4, lines 10 and 11, that they "de-

A^elo])ed ore bodies in excess of one hundred twenty-

five thousand (125,000) tons", ])laintiffs allege that

said averment means that mineralized rock of com-

mercial value to the amount of one himdred twenty-

five thousand (125,000) tons had been demonstrated

to exist in the ])1ace subject to be stoped, excavated

and removed from the mine.

Third

:

In response to the fifth demand ])lain tiffs allege

that the names of tlie ]:)ersons to whom the alleged
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indebtedness mentioned in Paragraph VIII of the

complaint was owing, are as follows

:

On open accounts about $1,284.93, to-wit

:

Associated Oil Co $ 8.00

Robert J. Cole 175.00

E. Fuson _ 237.60

John W. Graham & Co 1.59

[92]

Thomas R. L. Harris 25.00

Hess Gara ge _ 159.77

L. W. Hutton Estate 30.00

Kent & Rusch 116.14

Leevining Market 153.96

Marshall Letter Cp 19.81

Pacific Telephone & Telegraph Co 2.25

Hazel Riley 3.50

Shaw Borden Co 1.74

State of California Unemployment 53.30

State of Washington Unemployment 4.86

Success Printing Co 33. 1

5

Tiogo Stores 20.83

U. S. rTOvernment—Unemployment 61.88

U. S. Government—Old Age 32.81

Western Union Telegraph Co 3.74

H. P. Woodworth 140.00

$1,284.93

On Payroll, $550.44, to-wit

:

R. F. Collins $ 367.50

J. R. Sturgeon „ 182.94

$ 550.44
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To Stockholders on open accounts about $22,785.04, to-

gether with accrued interest thereon at 6%, the exact

amount of which these plaintiffs are unable to defi-

nitely state at this time, to-wit:

G. H. Ferbert $ 436.90

W. L. Grill 77.00

L. E. Keller 176.50

J. E. Stiegler 3,000.00

F. T. Hickcox 100.00

F. 0. Straight 1 00.00

J. A. Vance 18,592.30

J. A. Vance 302.34

$22,785.04

Til at there was also owing", on production notes,

$1,807. with accrued interest thereon in the approxi-

mate amount of $445.40. Said production notes were

then owned and held, as plaintiffs are advised, be-

lieve, and therefore allege, by the respective parties

in the respective amounts as follows:

Numlier Name Amount

3 H. Robinson $ 50.00

4 J. B. Rhodes 25.00

5 George F. Shiley 50.00

6 F. M. Haight 3.00

7 Louie Lauer 15.00

9 F. Fletcher 23.50

[93]

11 F. S. Compton 5.00

15 E. F. Mealey 20.00

16 M. A. Goi-e. • 5.00

20 N. F. Kuhn 25.00

24 M. Madsen 100.00

^5 F. M. Fry 5.00

26 Helen M. Lorenz 25.00
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ffmaber Name Amount

28 Chas. P. Jaeger 60.00

29 W. N. Appleman 5.00

32 S. J. Nerdrum 25.00

35 Earl Mayfield 60.00

37 M. Freshwater 40.00

38 Erich Richter 50.00

39 Helen Haefer 5.00

44 Evelyn Horning- 10.00

45 Besse Thomas 5.00

46 E. A. Thomas 19.00

51 Aylward Machinery Co 150.00

53 Gns Hess 140.00

54 A. B. Fitschen 10.00

55 Dr. P. Remington 50.00

58 Chris Mattley 15.00

59 R. T. Nelson 25.00

62 M. VerAvey 50.00

65 W. R. Steinbergen 35.00

68 Dr. n. R. Ridgeway 5.00

69 Robert Jacobson 20.00

72 Jack Steenbergen 25.00

74 John Peterson 115.00

75 Melvin Noland 32.50

76 S. J. Nodrum 20.00

79 Albert Henderson 50.00

80 Evelyn Harrng 15.00

81 Lonie Lauer 35.00

89 Dr. E. T. Richter 50.00

92 H. E. Bnrton 25.00

94 H. D. Showalter 100.00

97 0. H. Beyers 64.00

98 Dr. Chas. E. Bntts 25.00

99 W. B. Clifton 45.00

100 T. Jrijita 15.00

102 Minnie Rose 10.00

104 G. A. Lukens 25.00

107 Awylward Machinery Co 25.00

$1,807.00
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There was also owing on production certificates

$30,000. not due, payable out of net production re-

ceipts accruing from the sale of ores from its min-

ing property, or out of the profits of a voluntary

or invokmtary sale thereof, as set out in the j^ro-

duction certificates, a form copy of which is hereto

attached. Marked Exhibit "B'', and made a part

hereof, which production [94] certificates were then

owned and held, as plaintiffs are advised, believe,

and allege, by the following parties in the following

respective amounts

:

Number Nume Amount

1 Ross Doty $ 30.00

2 Nettie Fairfield 6.00

3 Al Page 501.00

4 Mr. & Mrs. E. J. Griffin 3.00

5 F. H. Hess 150.00

6 Robt. Jaeobson 5.00

7 N. F. Kuhn 25.00

8 Jim Moore 45.00

9 Hidekichi Nishifue 75.00

10 Erich Richter 30.00

11 Jack W. Robillard 3.00

12 C. A. Sparks 15.00

13 J. T. Steenbergen 20.00

14 Sue Steenbergen 20.00

15 Frank B. Totusek 12.00

16 Jerome Totusek 12.00

17 Mary E. Wall 3.00

18 W. Cr. Peebles 1,000.00

19 N. D. Showalter 90.00

20 Melvin Noland 12.00

21 P. E. Earthen 60.00

22 F. M. Campbell 200.00

23 Gus Hess 100.00

24 John Peterson 75.00

25 Louie Lauer 27.00
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Number Name Amount

26 Alliert Berry 60.00

27 Wilfred Berry 60.00

28 Jerome Totusek 48.00

29 Robert Jaeobson 5.00

30 M. R. Stone 99.00

31 Cassie Eberle 45.00

32 Thos. Cowan 30.00

33 Ava B. Colby 24.00

34 Israel Martin 9.00

35 N. N. Richardson 45.00

36 Tillie M. Martin 9.00

37 P. J. Lynch 300.00

38 Chas. Blank 1,002.00

39 F. H. Hess 375.00

40 F. Z. Hurd : 300.00

41 John S. Bates 475.05

42 Gilbert Page 112.50

43 E. F. Akers 500.00

44 Rol)ert A. Black 150.00

45 F. II. Foster 125.03

46 Louise Woodward 1,000.00

47 Thos. A. Malone 20.00

48 Gasper Geo. Receconi 102.00

49 G. H. Ferbert 4,000.00

50 Vance Lumber Co 6,000.00

51 Frank B. Totusek 100.00

[95]

52 Fred P. Freeman 100.00

53 Fred P. Freeman 100.00

54 Fred P. Freeman 100.00

55 J. A. Woodin 75.00

56 H. K. Mardong 750.00

57 C. D. Smeltzer 51.00

58 H. D. Keenan 100.00

59 J. E. Stieo-ler 3,209.42

60 J. A. Vance 8,000.00

$30,000.00
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That the further indebtedness of said Mutual Gold

Corporation, owing at said time, plaintiffs are un-

able to more definitely state at this time.

Fourth

:

In response to the sixth demand, plaintiffs allege

that on August 25, 1938 Frank A. Garbutt, without

valid cause or justification, gave to Mutual Gold

Corporation written notice of forfeiture of the pur-

chase contract, a cop}' of said notice being hereto

attached, marked Exhibit ''C, and made a part

hereof. Said forfeiture was wrongful, fraudulent

and unlawful in that same Avas without present or

contemplated consideration and part of a scheme

whereby illegally to deprive Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion of its assets as alleged in the complaint and in

this bill of particulars.

Fifth:

In resjDonse to the seventh demand, plaintiffs al-

lege that the arrangement for compensation, re-

ferred to in lines 22 and 23 of page 6 of the com-

plaint, was paid pursuant to an arrangement with

Russell F. Collins, G. H. Ferbert and W. L. Grill.

[96]

Sixth:

In response to the eighth demand, plaintiff's allege

that the defendant Frank A. Garbutt

:

(a) Procured the services of Russell F. Collins,

G. H. Ferbert and W. I.. Grill to actively assist in

doing all and several the acts complained of in the
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co7iiplaint, and specified in this bill of particulars.

(b) Arranged for, and did pay to Russell F.

Collins and W. L. Grill their expenses, and for ser-

vices, in the several amounts as shown herein.

(c) Gave the notice of forfeiture of August 25th,

1938, a copy of which is attached hereto.

(d) Induced the said Russell F. Collins and

G. H. Ferbert to state and represent at a meeting

of the stockholders and a meeting of the directors

of Mutual Gold Corporation, held August 6th, 1938

or therabouts, that he would make a better deal

than Yance, and in the interests of Mutual Gold

Corporation. By their aid he obtained the several

conveyances herein complained of, and made the

several contracts specified in the comi)laint.

(e) Organized, and caused the organization of

Log Cabin Mines Company to relieve himself of

I^ersonal responsibility in tlie premises, said Log

Cabin Mines Company being witliout assets except

such as he owned and controlled.

(f) On or about September 11th, 1938, took

wremgful possession of said mine and of all of the

assets of Mutual Gold Corporation, and ever since

has been in possession and control of same, and at

all times since Sei)tember 2, ]938, held himself out

to Mutual Gold Corporation and its stockholders as

its reprcseutative, operating the property for it.

[97]

All of the particular acts by the said Frank A.

Garbutt were done under such circumstances that

tlie true status of the property was unknown to
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plaintiffs or other objecting stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation, and was not disclosed or divulged

by defendants, and said status and the accounts of

said transactions were not enerted upon, and did not

appear upon the books of account, or records of

Mutual Gold Corporation; that the books of account

of Log Cabin Mines Com2:)any have never been made

accessible to plaintiff's or said dissenting stockhold-

ers. That at all times there was a non-disclosure by

defendants of the true facts of said transactions,

and a holding out to Mutual Gold Corj^oration and

its stockholders that said mine was the property of

Mutual Gold Corporation and operated by Garbutt

for it.

W. H. ABEL,
O. C. MOORE,
FREDERICK D. ANDERSON,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs. [98]

State of Idaho

County of Kootenai—ss.

M. I. Higgens, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says: that he is one of the plaintiffs

herein, and that he makes this verification on his

own behalf and on behalf of his co-plaintiffs; that

he is familiar with the contents of the foregoing

bill of particulars and that the matters and things

therein contained are true in substance and in fact.

M. I. HIGGENS.
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Subscribed and Sworn To before me this 19 day

of March, 1940.

(Seal) J. WARD ARNEY,
Notary Public in and for the State of Idaho, resid-

ing at Coeur d'Alene.

My commission expires 11-1-43. [99]

EXHIBIT ''A"

Memorandum of Agreement between Mutual Gold

Corporation, organized under the laws of the State

of Washington, hereinafter called the Seller, and

Cecil B. deMille, hereinafter called the Buyer, Wit-

nesseth

:

The Seller, through its duly authorized represen-

tatives, states to the Buyer that it holds and is the

owner in good standing of the contract hereinafter

described for the lease and purchase of the Log

Cabin Mine and that it has complied with all of

the agreements to be performed to date thereunder;

That it requires further equipment to make said

property ])roperly i)rofitable:

1. Brin^in^ in electric power from Leeviningr

or Tiosa TjodfiC, 21/2 miles $11,000.00

2. Electric hoist complete with motor and

starter, etc 7,000.00

3. Ca<>e or skip and mine cars 1,500.00

4. Ball mill, 100 tons capacity, including

motor, etc 7,000.00
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5. Classifier complete 3,000.00

6. Cyanide equipment, including tanks, motor

and equipment capable of handling 100 tons

daily 25,000.00

7. 6-inch pipe line, 5000 feet and installation

thereof, to carry tailings to impounding

dam 3,000.00

8. 500 cubic foot compressor, with motor, etc. 4,000.00

9. Additional building to house new machin-

ery, including coverage for cyanide tanks 3,000.00

10. New bunkhouse and addition to cookhouse... 1,500.00

11. Assay office and equipment 1,000.00

12. Enlargement of present ore bins at shaft

and mill 1 ,000.00

13. Payroll, truck hauling, cement, sand, etc.

for 60 days during installation of above 10,000.00

14. Payment due on property Nov. 1, 1938 10,000.00

Total $88,000.00

The Seller operated said property for about 8

months and [100] treated the ore by amalgamation

only, in the ]:)resent 35 ton mill owned by it on the

property with a daily recovery of $297.50 and a

daily expense of $205.00,

The Seller milled some ()300 tons of ore, being-

all of the oi'e obtained from its development work

on said property and realized $53,350.00 therefrom

at a profit of about $14,000; detailed costs having

been furnished to the Buyer.

The Seller and Buyer agree to cooperate in in-

vestigating and determining whether more suitable

milling equipment than that above described and
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recommended by the Seller can be obtained and if,

in the opinion of the Bnyer, such proves to be the

case he may, at his option, alter the specification

of the milling equipment accordingly provided said

alteration meets with the approval of M. J. Keily.

The Seller agrees to sell its contract dated July

13, 1932 with the Chandis Securities Company,

M. N. Ryan and Alice Clark Ryan for the purchase

of the Log Cabin Mine and the grouiJ of mining

claims contiguous thereto, subject to all modifica-

tions of said contract, which contract and its modi-

fications are hereby made a part hereof; Inchided

in this sale are all i)ersonal and real property be-

longing to the Seller now on or adjacent or tribu-

tary to, or used in connection with said Log Cabin

Mine and its group.

And as to the fulfillment of this agreement upon

the part of The Buyer will require some time, the

Seller agrees to forthwith transfer its title to said

j)ro2)erty, real and personal, to Frank A. Garbutt,

as trustee, to insure the carrying out of this agree-

ment but without liability upon the trustee except

the liability to transfer the said property to the

Buyer, or his nominee, if and when said Buyer has

well and fully performed his agreements con- [101]

tained herein and/or re-convey said title to the Seller

in event said ]3uyer does not faithfully carry out

his agreements herein contained.

The '^Prustee shall not be liable for any acts or

omissions of either party hereto nor for any de-

fects in the title to said ])roperty either existing or
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future, no matter how caused, and shall not be re-

quired to perform any act for the protection of

said title unless or until instructed in writing" by

the beneficiaries hereunder and furnished with funds

to do so. It is also agreed and understood that said

trustee may acquire, if he so desires, an}^ interest

with either the Seller or Buyer without affecting

his status as trustee.

In consideration of this agreement and the trans-

fer above set forth, the Buj^er agrees to do the

following things:

1. Fuiiiisli $10,000 to make the payment due the

owners of the Log Cabin Mine November 1st, 1938.

2. Organize a cor])oration of such Capital Stock

as he may desire and forthwith transfer one-half of

its total authorized Capital Stock less one controll-

ing share, to the Seller.

3. Furnish additional funds to a minimvim of

$100,000. including the above mentioned $10,000 to

said corporation to be formed, as needed by it to

equi]) said Log Cabin Mine with a mill of an esti-

mated capacity of one hundred (100) tons daily or

more, a suitable hoist and to bring in electrical

130wer and for such other equipment and supplies as

appear advisable.

4. Cause said trustee to transfer to said Cor-

poration all titles received hereunder forthwith

after said Corporation is qualified to hold same.

5. Take care of all further payments falling due

to the owners of said Log Cabin Group amounting

to $120,000.00 in all. [102]
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6. Proceed with the work of properly equipping

said 2)roperty as raj^idly as weather conditions will

permit.

7. Employ M. J. Keily, if he is available and as

long as Frank A. Garbutt deems it advisable, to

direct and superintend said mining operations.

8. At the Buyer's option to advance additional

funds should such advances, in the opinion of the

Buyer, become necessary or advisable.

9. Furnish the Seller with proper and detailed

monthly statements of the operations of the Cor-

poration to be formed.

10. The Buyer agrees to cooperate with the

Seller in any reasonable way in protecting its and

its stockholders' interests in order that the smallest

shall receive benefits proportionate to the largest.

The Buyer shall be entitled to be repaid for all

advances made by him out of any profits or funds

avaOable from the operation of said property or sale

or otlier disposition of the property, but not other-

wise.

AVlien the Buyer has i:)erformed all acts herein-

above set forth which are obligatory hereunder he

shall be deemed to have fulfilled this contract and

]ijs liability shall cease.

The Buyer may also terminate his liability here-

under at any time after furnishing the first $10,000

specified herein by surrendering this contract and

re-transferring said property to the Seller, in which

event the Buyer shall be entitled to a repayment of

the monev advanced bv him but onlv out of net
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profits, or out of funds derived from the sale of

said property shall the Seller herein sell to third

parties. This right to repayment shall exist only

for such advances as are made in accordance with

this contract and the Buyer herein shall not l)e

entitled to re- [103] payment for any further or

additional advances, unless he has secured the writ-

ten approval thereto of the Seller.

The Buyer, or his representatives, will consult at

all reasonable times with the Seller before making

any unusual or extraordinary outlaj^s not contem-

plated herein and further agrees, insofar as his

control of the enterprise is concerned, to use his best

judgment in carrjdng on the operations contem-

plated. [104]

EXHIBIT ''B"

PRODUCTION CERTIFICATE

No $

For Value Received, the midersigned, a Washing-

ton Corporation, agrees to pav to

the sum of Dollars, without interest, out

of net production receipts accruing from the sale of

ores from its mining ])roperty, before any divi-

dends shall be declared or i:>aid by it upon its

capital stock, and in no other manner whatsoever,

except that in case of a voluntary or involuntary

sale of its mining property, any balance unpaid

hereon shall be paid out of the proceeds thereof
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before any distribution shall be made to its stock-

holders.

''Net Production Receipts'' hereinbefore referred

to shall be construed to mean such receipts as shall

remain after deducting therefrom all of the costs of

producing, handling and milling said ore, necessary

corjDoration expenses and taxes, a reasonable sum

for mine development, such sum as the Board of

Directors shall determine may be necessary for the

purchase and/or payment of necessary mining

equipment, and payments on account of the pur-

chase price of said mining property by royalty or

otherwise.

All sums which the undersigned shall have for

the retirement of this and similar certificates shall

be applied pro-rata upon the same.

The execution of this certificate has been author-

ized by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dated this day of January, 1938.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

By
Vice President.

Attest

:

Secretary. [105]
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EXHIBIT "C"

Mutual Gold Corporation August 25, 1938

401 Fernwell Building-

Spokane, Wash.

Gentlemen

:

This will inform you that we have elected to can-

cel and we hereby cancel your option and contract

to ])urchase the Log Cabin Mine, which option and

which contract is dated July 13, 1932. This action is

final and absolute.

We recognize that this cancellation, while legal,

may work a great hardship upon your stockholders

but should you wish to negotiate for rehabilitation

of tliis contract you may negotiate with the under-

signed who will give the matter consideration pro-

vided your defaults are cured and other points of

difference are adjusted to }iis satisfaction.

(Signed) FRANK A. GARBFTT.
Frank A. Garbutt—duly author-

ized representative of the

owners, Chandis Securities

Company and Alice Clark

Ryan.

cc to

Mutual Gold Corporation

Box 377, Leevining, Cal.

cc to

Mutual Gold Corporation

Attention: Mr. J. A. Vance, General Manager,

Vance Hotel,

Seattle, Washington

[Endorsed] Bill of Particulars. Filed Mar. 28,

1940. [106]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF FRANK A. GARBUTT, ALICE
CLARK RYAN, AND LOG CABIN MINES
COMPANY.

Defendants Frank A. Garbutt, Alice Clark Ryan,

and Log Cabin Mines Company, a corporation, for

answer to plaintiifs' coni])laint herein, admit, deny,

and alleges as follows

:

I.

Defendants are without knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations contained in paragraph I of the com-

plaint.
^

II.

Answering paragraph IV of the complaint, de-

fendants deny that ]:>laintiif Charles W. Sutherland

was at the time this suit was brought, or is now, a

stockholder of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation,

but admit that a majority of the stockholders and

directors of said Mutual Gold Corporation were

opposed to the bringing of this action. Further an-

swering, defendants allege that they have no knowl-

edge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of plaintiffs' other allegations contained

in said ])aragraph.

III.

Answering paragrai>h Y of the complaint, defend-

ants deny that Frank A. Garbutt has represented

the owners in any respect since October 3, 1938.

[107]
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IV.

Answering paragraph VI of plaintiffs' complaint,

defendants admit that a stamj) mill was erected on

one of said claims; they deny that ore bodies in

excess of 63,500 tons were developed in or on said

claims; they deny that snch oi-e bodies as were

developed contained recoverable gold valnes in ex-

cess of $650,000.00; and they allege that they are

without knowledge or information sufficient to form

a ])elief as to the truth of the other allegations of

said i^aragraph.

Further answering, defendants allege tbat said

stani]) mill was erected by one J. A. Vance while

he was acting as manager of defendant Mutual Gold

Corporation's properties; that said J. A. Vance is

the real party plaintiff:* in interest herein who in-

duced and procured the nominal i^laintiifs to bring

t]iis action; that said mill was mitit for milling ore

at said property; that the money expended therefor

was wasted and lost to defendant Mutual Gold Cor-

poration through the negligence, incompetence, and

betra}^al of trust of said J. A. Vance; and that said

develo})ed ore contained no gold whatever that could

have been recovered at a profit by the mill erected

by, and the methods used by, said J. A. Vance as

such manager.

V.

Answering paragraph VII of said complaint, de-

fendants, deny that all the assets mentioned therein

had a value on Sej)tember 2, 1938 or at any other

time in excess of $60,000.00; deny that the stamp
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mill, milling and mining machinery, supplies, and

equij)ment mentioned therein were of the reasonable

value of more than $3,000.00; and deny that the

additional mining claims mentioned therein were

of the reasonable value of more than $5,000.00.

VI.

Answering ]:)aragraph VIII of said complaint, de-

fendants [108] allege that they are without knowl-

edge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations coiitained therein.

VII.

Answering paragraph IX, X, XI, XII, XIII,

XIV, XV, XVI, XVII, XVIII, and XIX of said

complaint, defendants deny that Frank A. Garbutt

at an}^ time conspired at all with or prevailed upon

or caused the board of directors and/or executive

officers of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation or

any other person or corporation to transfer or agree

to transfer the Mutual Gold Corporation's assets,

or any assets, to a new corporation or at all, or to

do anj^thing whatsoever. Further answering, de-

fendants allege that all the acts of Frank A. Gar-

butt complained of were taken and ])erformed by

him in good faith at the request of the Mutual Gold

Corporation and without any secret or hidden pur-

pose ov intent in the belief that they were legal and

fair and equitable to all parties concerned; and de-

fendants allege that any and all transfers and acts

of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation were made
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and performed by it througli its said executive of-

ficers and directors of their own violation without

any duress, menace, fraud, or undue or improper

influence whatsoever on the part of Frank A. Clar-

butt or any other person, and were made and per-

formed by it withoTit any intent to circumvent or

violate any laws of the State of Washington or any

laws, or to injure said Mutual Gold Corporation or

its stockholders or creditors; and defendants fur-

ther aJlege that all such transfers and acts were

Diade and performed by said Mutual Gold Cor-

ixn-ation, through its said executive officers and di-

rectors, with the authorization and approval of its

stockholders, for an adequate and fair considera-

tion, in a manner which defendants believe to have

been in accord with the laws and public policy ap-

plicable thereto, because defendant Mutual Gold

Corporation had no funds with [109] which to

carry on its business and because said executive

officers and directors therefore believed such trans-

fers and acts to be for the best interest of said

corporation and its stockholders and creditors, and

to be necessary to prevent the total loss of said

assets.

Further answering, defendants deny that said

new corporation was to have no capital or assets

other than the assets of the Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, and allege that it was to have and did have

$10,000.00 cash ])aid into it for its capital stock.

Further answering, defendants allege that provi-

sion vras made by defendants Mutual Gold Corpora-
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tion, Frank A. Clarbutt, and Log Cabin Mines

Compan}" for payment of the creditors of Mutual

Gold Corporation.

Further answering, defendants deny that Frank

A. Garbutt wrongfully gave any notice of forfeiture

or arranged to advance or did advance the personal

expenses of two or any number of said directors, or

agreed to employ or did employ any of said directors

to work for him in the negotiation for or the execu-

tion of any contracts or conveyances whatever; but

defendants admit that Frank A. Garbutt loaned

money from time to time to defendant Mutual Gold

Corporation at its special instance and request wliich

said corporation used for the payment of such ex-

l^enses as it deemed fit and proper.

Further answering, defendants deny that any of

defendant Log Cabin Mines Company's stock has

been pledged to Frank A. Garbutt as alleged in

paragra})h XYII of the complaint, or to any one

else.

YIII.

Defendants deny each and every allegation con-

tained in paragrai)h XX and paragraph XXI of

said complaint. [110]

IX.

Answering the allegation in paragraph XXII of

said com])laint that an installment of ten thousand

dollars ($10,000.) due November 1, 1939 on the

purchase contract has not been paid, defendants

allege that $5,000.00 of said installment has been
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paid and that as to the other $5,000.00 such exten-

sion of time for i:>aynient has been obtained as may
he necessary for the obligors to as late as, but not

beyond, November 1, 1940. Defendants deny each

and every other allegation contained in said para-

graph.

X.

Defendants are without knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to the tnith of the

allegations contained in paragraph XXIII, XXV,
and XXYII of said complaint.

For a Further, Separate, and Second Defense,

Defendants Allege:

That plaintiff Helen Maude Lorenz is estopped to

bring this action for the reason that, as defendants

are informed and believe and on that ground allege,

she gave her proxy to J. E. Stiegler, president of

defendant Mutual Gold Corporation, to be voted by

him at the meeting of the stockholders of said cor-

poration held on August 6, 1938; and that he voted

said proxy, pursuant to authority that said plaintiff

had giveii him, in favor of a resolution adopted at

said meeting authorizing the directors of said cor-

X^oration to do anything they deemed advisable in

dealing with or dis])osing of said corjxu'ation's

property.

For a Further, Separate, and 1'hird Defense,

Defendants Allege

:

^rhat the title to said contract of July 13, 1932 and

to the supplements and modifications thereof has
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been ad- [111] judged in Case No. 440-367 in the

Superior Court of the State of California in and

for the County of Los Angeles, entitled "Log Cabin

Mines Compan}^, a corporation, plaintiff, vs. Mutual

Gold Corporation, a cor])oration, defendant," to be

vested in defendant Log Cabin Mines Company;

and that said judgment has become final and the

matter is now res judicata. A copy of said judgment

is attached hereto, marked "Exhibit A", and is

hereby made a part of this answer.

For a Furtlier, Separate, and Fourth Defense,

Defendants Allege:

That on August 6, 1938, at a meeting of the

stockholders of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation

regularly called and held, a resolution was adopted

by tlie affirmative vote of more than two-thirds of

al] said stockholders authorizing the doing of all the

acts of said defendant corporation that plaintiffs

complain of. A copy of said resolution is attached

hereto as "Exhibit B", and is hereby made a part

of this answer.

For a Further, Separate, and Fifth Defense, De-

fendants Allege:

I.

That ])laintiffs are not the real parties in interest

in this action; that the real party in interest is one

J. A. Vance of the State of Washington; that this

suit was brought at his instigation ; that he solicited

each of the nominal plaintiffs to join in this suit and
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agreed to pay all their expenses incurred herein,

including attorneys' fees; that this suit is one of

four that he has caused to be brought to further his

plan to obtain control of said defendant Mutual

(lold Corporation and its property ; and that this suit

was not brought in good faith to and for the benefit

of the minority stockholders of said Mutual Gold

Corporation other than the said J. A. Vance. [112]

II.

That said J. A. Vance is estopped to bring this

action for the reason that he voted in favor of the

resolution of which Exhibit B attached hereto is

a copy.

Wherefore, defendants pray that plaintiffs take

nothing by their action, and that defendants have

judgment for their costs herein.

DAVID E. HINCKLE,
Attorney for Defendants.

[113]
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EXHIBIT A
In the Superior Court of the State of California

in and for the County of Los Angeles

No. 440-367

LOG CABIN MINES COMPANY, a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION, a corporation,

et al.

Defendants.

JUDGMENT QUIETING TITLE AFTER
DEFAULT TO PERSONAL PROPERTY.

In this action, it appearing to the satisfaction of

this Court, sitting in Department 34 thereof, that

(a) The defendant Mutual Gold Corporation, a

corporation, was duly and personally served with the

Summons and Complaint herein, and

(b) It further appearing that no appearance has

l^een made and no answer filed by the said defend-

ant; and a default of said defendant having been

duly entered; and evidence having been introduced

and heard in o])en court, and the court being satis-

fied that the allegations of the complaint are true,

and that the relief asked for should be granted.

Now, upon motion of David E. Hinckle, Attorney

for the plaintiff I^og Cabin Mines Company,

It is hereby Ordered, Adjudged, and Decreed:

1. That at the time of the commencement of this

action there was vested in plaintiff, as the owner
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absolute, title to that certain contract dated July

13, 1932 for the sale of certain mining claims m
Mono County, California, executed by M. N. Clark,

Alice Clark Ryan, and the Chandis Securities Com-

l^any as vendors, and by Russell F. Collins and

Ben L. Collins as vendees, as said contract was

supplemented by written instrument dated Axndl

28, 1934 and was modified and amended by written

instrument executed on or about October 9, 1936, a

[114] copy of said contract being attached, as ''Ex-

hibit A", to the complaint filed herein, and a copy

of said instrument supplementing said contract

being attached, as "Exhibit B", to said complaint,

and a copy of said uistrument modifying and

amending said contract being attached, as "Exhibit

C", to said complaint.

Said mining claims agreed by said contract to be

conveyed are: Log Cabin, Log Cabin No. 1, Log

Cabin No. 2, Log C^abin No. 3, Log Cabin No. 4, Log

Cabin No. 5, Log Cabin No. 6, Log Cabin No. 7,

Log Cabin No. 8, Mill Site, New Year No. 2, Fed-

eral No. 1, Federal No. 2, Federal No. 3, Log Cabin

Annex, Tammarack, Oro, and Burke Fraction.

II. Plaintiff's title to the above described pei--

sonal pro])erty is here))}' foi'ever quieted against any

and all claims, demands, and/or pretensions of

said defendant to any right, title, jjossession, lien,

interest, and^or equity in the above described ])er-

sonal property, and it is hereby perpetually en-

joined and restrained from setting up or making any
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claim to or ujion the personal property above de-

scribed, or any part thereof.

Dated: Jime 13th, 1939.

WILSON,
Judge of the Superior Court.

[115]

EXHIBIT B

RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY THE STOCK-
HOLDERS OF MUTUAL GOLD CORPORA-
TION ON AUGUST 6, 1938.

'^ Resolved, that the Board of Directors of this

corporation be and they are hereby authorized, em-

powered and directed to sell, lease, deal with, oper-

ate, exchange or otherwise dispose of, to any person,

persons, or corporation desiring to purchase, lease,

deal with, exchange, operate same, any part of or

all of the assets of this corporation, at such time or

times, for such price and upon such terms and con-

ditions, for cash or otherwise, including the exchang-

ing for shares in another corporation, domestic or

foreign, as they in their absolute discretion deem

expedient, advisable or desirable, and to perform

any other acts in this connection, which in their

judgment thev ma}^ deem necessary or advisable."

[116]

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Frank A. Garbutt being by me first duly sworn,

deposes and says: that he is one of the defendants
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answering herein to the comi)kiint in the above en-

titled action; that he has read the foregoing an-

swer and knows the contents thereof; and that the

same is true of his own knowledge, except as to the

matters which are therein stated upon his informa-

tion or belief, and as to those matters that he be-

lieves it to be true.

FRANK A. GARBUTT.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 11th day

of April, 1940.

(Seal) ALTHEA K. HINCKLE,
Notary Public within and for Los Angeles County,

California.

My commission expires May 20, 1940.

[Endorsed] : Filed A])r. 11, 1940. [117]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF
MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION.

Defendant Mutual Gold Corporation, a corpora-

tion, for answer to ])laintiil's' complaint herein, ad-

mits, denies, and alleges as follows:

I.

Defendant is without knowledge or information

sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations contained in ])aragraph I of the com-

plaint.
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II.

Answering paragraph IV of the complaint, de-

fendant denies that plaintiff Charles W. Sutherland

was at the time this suit was brought, or is now,

a stockholder of defendant Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, but admits that a majority of the stockholders

and directors of said corporation were opposed to

the bringing of this action. Further answering, de-

fendant alleges that it has no knowledge or informa-

tion sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of

plaintiffs' other allegations contained in said para-

graph.

III.

Answering i)aragraph V of the complaint, de-

fendant denies that Frank A. Garbutt has repre-

sented the owners in any respect or matter since

October 3, 1938. [118]

TV.

Answering paragraph YI of plaintiffs' complaint,

defendant admits that a stamp mill was erected on

one of said claims; but it denies that ore bodies in

excess of 63,500 tons were developed in or on said

claims; denies that such ore bodies as were de-

veloped contained I'ecoverable gold values in excess

of $650,000.00; and denies each and every other al-

legation contained in said ])aragraph.

Further answering, defendants allege that said

stam]) mill was ei'ected by one J. A. Vance while he

was acting as manager of defendant Mutual Gold
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Corporation's properties; that said J. A. Vance is

'the real party plaintiff in interest herein who in-

duced and procured the nominal plaintiffs to bring

this action; that said mill was unfit for milling ore

at said claims; that the money expended therefor

was wasted and lost to defendant Mutual Gold Cor-

poration through the negligence, incompetence, and

betrayal of trust of said J. A. Vance; and that

said developed ore contained no gold whatever that

could have been recovered at a profit by the mill

erected b}^, and the methods used by, said J. A.

Vance as such manager.

V.

Answering paragraph VII of said complaint, de-

fendant denies that all the assets mentioned therein

had a value on September 2, 1938 or at any other

time in excess of $60,000.00; denies that the stam])

mill, milling and mining machinery, supplies, and

equipment mentioned therein were of the reasonable

value of more than $5,000.00; and denies that the

additional mining claims mentioned therein were of

the reasonable value of more than $5,000.00.

VI.

Answering paragraphs IX, X, XI, XII, XIII,

XIV, XV, XVI XVII, XVIII, and XIX of said

complaint, defendant [119] denies that Frank A.

Garbutt at any time conspired at all with or pre-

vailed upon or caused the board of directors and/or

executive officers of defendant Mutual Gold Cor-
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l)oration or any other person or corporation to

transfer or agree to transfer the Mutual Gold Cor-

poration's assets, or any assets, to a new corpora-

tion or at all, or to do anything- whatsoever. Fur-

ther answering, defendant alleges that all the acts

of Frank A. Garbutt complained of were taken and

l^erfornied by him in good faith at the request of

the Mutual Gold Corporation and without any

secret or hidden purpose or intent in the belief that

tliey were legal and fair and equitable to all parties

concerned: and defendant alleges that any and all

transfers and acts of defendant Mutual Gold Cor-

poration were made and j^erformed by it through

its said executive officers and directors of their own

volition without any duress, menace, fraud, or un-

due or improper influence whatsoever on the part

of Frank A. Garbutt or any other person, and were

]nade and performed by it without any intent to

circumvent or violate any laws of the State of

Washington or any laws, or to injure said Mutual

Gold Corporation or its stockholders or creditors;

and defendant further alleges that all such transfers

and acts were made and performed by it, through

its said executive officers and directors, with the

authorization and approval of its stockholders, for

an adecpiate and fair consideration, in a manner

which defendant believes to have been in accord with

the laws and public ])olicy applicable thereto, be-

cause defendant had no funds with which to carry

on its business and because said executive officers
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and directors therefore believed such transfers and

acts to be for the best interest of said corporation

and its stockholders and creditors, and to be neces-

sary to prevent the total loss of said assets.

Further answering, defendant denies that said

new cori^oration was to have no capital or assets

other than the as- [120] sets of the Mutual Gold

Corporation, and alleges that it was to have and did

have $10,000.00 cash paid in to it for its capital

stock.

Further answering, defendant alleges that provi-

sion was made by defendants Mutual Gold Cor-

poration, Frank A. Garbutt, and Log Cabin Mines

Company for payment of the creditors of Mutual

Gold Corporation.

Further answering, defendant denies that Frank

A. Garbutt wrongfully gave any notice of forfeiture

or arranged to advance or did advance the personal

expenses of two or any number of said directors, or

agreed to employ or did employ any of said di-

rectors to work for him in the negotiation for or

the execution of any contract or conveyance what-

ever; but defendant admits that Frank A. Garbutt

loaned money to it from time to time at its special

instance and request, which is used for the ])ayment

of such expenses as it deemed fit and proper.

Further answering, defendant denies that any of

defendant Log Cabin Mines Company's stock has

been pledged to Frank A. Garbutt as alleged in

paragraph XVII of the complaint, or to any one

else or at all.
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VII.

Defendant denies each and every allegation con-

tained in paragraphs XX, XXI, and XXII of said

complaint.

VIII.

Answering paragraph XXIII of said complaint,

defendant admits that, as alleged, a special meeting

of its stockholders was called and the call rescinded,

but denies that said rescission was because of op-

position of its stockholders to any corporate action

j)erformed or i)roi30sed to be performed, and denies

each and every other allegation in said paragraph

contained. [121]

IX.

Answering paragraph XXIV of said complaint,

defendant denies that plaintiffs or any other of de-

fendant's stockliolders have ai)plied to the presi-

dent of tliis defendant corporation to call a stock-

holders' meeting to consider specially the acts,

agreements, and conveyances comj^lained of, or to

obtain relief therefrom; and denies that said presi-

dent has ever refused to call such a stockholders'

meeting.

X.

Answering paragraph XXV of said complaint,

defendant admits that the number of shares of this

corporation's stock represented b\' ])laintiffs is less

than one-third of all the outstanding stock of this

corporation, but denies each and every other alle-

gation in said ])aragra])li contained.
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XI.

Answering paragraph XXVII of said complaint,

defendant denies that it has no legal remedy to

protect its rights, interest, and title in said prop-

erty, and denies that its rights, interest, and title

therein and thereto are in anywise in jeopardy.

For a Further, Separate, and Second Defense

Defendant Alleges

:

That plaintiff Helen Maude Lorenz is estopped to

bring this action for the reason that, as defendant

is informed and believes and on that ground al-

leges, she gave her proxy to J. E. Stiegler, ])resi-

dent of this defendant corporation, to be voted by

him at the meeting of the stockholders of this cor-

poration held on August 6, 1938; and that he voted

said prox}^, pursuant to authority that said plain-

tiff had given him, in favor of a resolution adopted

at said meeting authorizing the directors of this

corporation to do anything they deemed ad- [122]

visable in dealing with or disposing of this defend-

ant's property.

For a Further, Separate, and Third Defense, De-

fendant Alleges:

That the title to said contract of July 13, 1932

and to the su]>plements and modifications thereof

has been adjudged in Case No. 440-367 in the Su-

perior Court of the State of California in and for

the County of Los Angeles, entitled "Log Cabin

Mines Company, a corporation, plaintiff, vs. Mutual

Gold Corporation, a corporation, defendant," to
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])e vested in defendant Log Cabin Mines Company;

and that said judgment has become final and the

matter is now res judicata. A coj^y of said judg-

ment is attached hereto, marked ''Exhibit A," and

is hereby made a part of this answer.

For a Further, Separate, and Fourth Defense,

Defendant Alleges:

That on August 6, 1938, at a meeting of the

stockholders of this defendant corporation regu-

laily called and held, a resolution was adopted by

the affirmative vote of more than two-thirds of all

said stockholders authorizing the doing of all the

acts of this defendant that plaintiffs complain of.

A copy of said resolution is attached hereto as

"Exhibit B'', and is hereby made a part of this

answer.

For a Further, Separate, and Fifth Defense,

Defendant Alleges

:

That plaintiffs are not the real parties in interest

in this action; that the real party in interest in

one J. A. Vance of the State of Washington; that

this suit was brought at his instigation; that he so-

licited each of the [123] plaintiffs to join in this

suit and agreed to pay all their ex})enses incurred

herein, including attorneys' fees: that this suit is

one of four that he has caused to be brought to

further his j^lain to obtain control of this defend-

ant cor])oration and its i)roperty: and that this

suit was not brought in iiood faith to and fur the
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benefit of the minority stockholders of this corpora-

tion.

That said J. A. Vance is estopped to bring this

action for the reason that he voted in favor of the

resohitio]! of which Exhibit B attached hereto is a

copy.

AVherefore, defendant prays that ]jlaintilfs tal^e

nothing by their action, and that defendant have

judgment for its costs.

DAVID E. HINCKLE,
Attorney for Defendant. [12i]

EXHIBIT A

In the Superior Court oC the State of California

In and for the County of Los Angeles

No. 440-367

LOU CABIN MINES COMPANY, a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION, a corporation,

et al.,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT QUIETING TITLE AFTER DE-

FAULT TO PERSONAL PROPERTY.

In this action, it appearing to the satisfaction of

this Court, sitting in Department 34 thereof, that
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(a) The defendant Mutual Gold Corporation,

a corporation, was duly and personally served with

the Summons and Complaint herein, and

(b) It further appearing that no appearance has

been made and no answer filed by the said defend-

ant; and a default of said defendant having been

duly entered; and evidence havmg been introduced

and lieard in open court, and the court being satis-

fied that the allegations of the complaint are true,

and that the relief asked for should be granted,

Now, upon motion of David E. Hinckle, Attor-

ney for the plaintiif Log Cabin Mines Company,

It is hereby Ordered, Adjudged, and Decreed;

I. That at the time of the conunencement of

this action there was vested in plaintiff, as the

owner absolute, title to that certain contract dated

Juh' 13, 1932 for the sale of certain mining claims

in Mono County, California, executed by M. N.

Ckirk, Alice Clark Ryan, and the Chandis Securi-

ties Compan^y as vendors, and by Russell F. Col-

lins and Ben L. Collins as vendees, as said contract

was sui)])lemented by written instrument dated

April 28, 1934 and was modified and amended by

written instrument executed on or about October

9, 1936, a copy [125] of said contract being at-

tached, as ''Exhibit A," to the complaint filed here-

in, and a coj)}' of said instrument supplementing

said contract being attached, as "Exhibit B", to

said complaint, and a co])y of said Instrument modi-

fying and amending said contract being attached,

as "Exhibit C", to said comi)laint.
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Said mining claims agreed by said contract to be

conveyed are: Log Cabin, Log Cabin Xo. 1, Log

Cabin No. 2, Log Cabin No. 3, Log Cabin No. 4,

Log Cabin No. 5, Log Cabin No. 6, Log Cabin No. 7,

Log C^abin No. 8, Mill Site, New Year No. 2, Fed-

eral No. 1, Federal No. 2, Federal No. 3, Log Cabin

Annex, Tamarack, Oro, and Burke Fraction.

11. Plaintiff's title to the above described per-

sonal property is lieieby forever quieted against

any and all claims, demands, and/or x^retensions

of said defendant to any right, title, possession, lien,

interest and/or equity in the above described per-

sonal propert}^, and it is hereby perpetually en-

joined and restrained from setting up or making

any claim to or upon the personal pro])erty above

described, or any part thereof.

Dated: June 13th, 1939.

WILSON
Judge of the Superior Court.

[126]

EXHIBIT B

Resolution Adopted by the Stockholders of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation on August 6, 1938.

"Resolved, that the Board of Directors of this

corporation l)e and they are hereby authorized, eni-

l^owered and directed to sell, lease, deal with, oper-

ate, exchange or otherwise dispose of, to any person,

persons, or corporation desiring to purchase, lease.
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deal with, exchange, or operate same, any part of

or all of the assets of this corporation, at such time

or times, for such price and upon such terms and

conditions, for cash or otherwise, inchiding the ex-

clianging for shares in another cori)oration, do-

mestic or foreign, as they in their absokite discre-

tion deem expedient, advisable or desirable, and

to perform any other acts in this connection, which

in their judgment they may deem necessary or ad-

visable." [127]

{State ol' Washington

County of Spokane—ss.

E. Fuson, being by me first duly sworn, deposes

and says: that she is the assistant secretary of Mu-

tual (xold Corporation, a Washington corporation,

and one of the defendants in the alcove entitled ac-

tion; that she has read the foregoing answer and

knows the contents thereof; and that the same is

true of her own knowledge, except as to the matters

which are therein stated upon her information or

belief, and as to those matters that she believes it

to be true.

E. FUSON

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 8th day

of April, 1940.

[Seal] E. I). WELLER
Notary Pu))lic in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of C'alifornia.

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 11, 1940. [128]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSAVEE OF CHANDIS SECURITIES
COMPANY

Comes now the defendant, Cliandis Securities

Company, and answering plaintiffs' complaint and

liill of Particulars for itself, alone, admits, denies

and alleges as follows:

I.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph I

of i>laintilfs' complaint.

II.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph IV
of plaintiffs' complaint.

III.

Denies that Prank A. Garbutt represented this

defendant since the negotiation of the purchase

contract referred to in paragraph V of plaintiffs'

complaint in respect to all matters of performance

thereof, or in any such matters whatsoever, and

alleges that said Prank A. (larbutt is not now, and

at no time has been, the agent or representative of

this defendant in respect to matters of perform-

ance of said purchase contract.
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IV.

Alleges that this defeiulaiit is without knowledge

or informa- [129] tion sufficient to form a belief

as to the truth of the allegations in paragraph VI
of plaintiffs' complaint.

V.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph VII

of plaintiffs' complaint.

VI.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

tjuth of the allegations contained in paragraph VIII

of plaintiff's complaint.

VII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph IX
of plaintiff's comj^laint.

VIII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph X
of i)laintitfs' complaint.

IX.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the
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truth of the allegations contained in paragraph XI
of ])laintitfs' complaint.

X.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph XII
of plaintiffs' complaint.

XI.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in jjaragraph

XIII of plaintiffs' complaint.

XII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or in- [130] formation sufficient to form a belief

as to the truth of the allegations contained in para-

graph XIV of plaintiffs' complaint.

XIII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph XV
of plaintiff's complaint.

XIV.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragra])h

XVI of plaintiffs' complaint.
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XV.
Alleges that this defendant is without knowl-

edge or information sufficient to form a belief as

to the truth of the allegations contained in para-

graph XVII of plaintiffs' complaint.

XVI.

Answering paragraph XVIII of plaintiffs' com-

l)laint. denies that the deed, a copy of which is at-

tached to plaintiffs' complaint, marked Exhibit

"14" was executed with the knowledge and ap-

proA^al of this defendant, and alleges that this de-

fendant is without knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the other

allegations in said paragraph XVIII contained.

XVII.

Answering paragraph XIX of plaintiff's' com-

I^laint, alleges that this defendant is without knowl-

edge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations contained in said para-

graph XIX of plaintiff's' complaint.

XVIII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraj^h XX
of plaintiffs' comxjlaint. [131]

XIX.
Answering paragraph XXI of plaintiff's com-

plaint, denies that each of the contracts, deeds,

bills of sale and assignments referred to in said
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paragraph XXI were executed and the acts of

Mutual Gold Cori^oration, Frank A. Garbutt and

Log Cabin Mines Company referred to in said

l)aragraph XXI were done with the knowledge and

approval of this defendant; denies that said con-

tracts, deeds, bilJs of sale and assignments were

executed and said acts of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, Frank A. Garbutt and Log Cabin Mines Com-

paji\' were done as a part of the unlawful con-

spiracy alleged by plaintiff to transfer all of the

assets of Mutual Gold Corporation to Log Cabin

Mines Company without consideration, for a minor-

it}' stock interest in Log Cabin Mines Company, and

alleges that all of said contracts, deeds, bills of

sale and assignments were executed and the said

acts of Mutual Gold Corporation, Frank A. Gar-

butt and Log Cabin Mines Company were done

without the knowledge or approval of this defend-

ant. Alleges that this defendant is without knowl-

edge or information sufficient to form a belief as

to the truth of the other allegations in said i)ara-

graph XXI contained.

XX.
Answering paragraph XXII of plaintiffs' com-

Ijlaint, admits that the installment of Ten Thousand

Dollars ($10,000.00) due on the purchase contract

November 1, 1939 had not been ])aid at the time of

filing plaintiffs' com])laint. Alleges that subsequent

to the time of filing ])laintift's' complaint, and on

or about March 29, 1940, the sum of Five Thou-

sand Dollars ($5,000.00) on account of said in-
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stallment of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00)

was paid to and received by this defendant. Denies

that this defendant has refused to recognize Mu-
tual Gold Corporation as the owner of the purchase

contract referred to in said paragraph XXII of

plaintilfs' complaint at all times [132] since Sep-

tember 2, 1938, or at any time, or at all. Alleges

that this defendant is without knowledge or in-

formation sufficient to form a belief as to the truth

of the other allegations in said paragraph XXII
contained.

XXI.
Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph

XXIII of plaintilfs' complaint.

XXII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph

XXIV of plaintiffs' complaint.

XXIII.

Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph

XXV of i^laintiff's' complaint.

XXIV.
Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the
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truth of the allegations contained in paragrai)h

XXVI of plaintiffs' complaint.

XXV.
Alleges that this defendant is without knowledge

or information sufficient to form a belief as to the

truth of the allegations contained in paragraph

XXA^II of plaintiffs- complaint.

XXVI.
Answering paragra])h First of plaintift's' Bill of

Particulars furnished the defendants pursuant to

order of court dated February 17, 1940, supi^leraent-

iiig plaintiffs' complaint, denies that the circum-

stances and particulars referred to in said i)ara-

graph First are within the knowledge of this de-

fendant and alleges that this defendant is without

knowledge or information su.fficient to form a belief

as to the truth of the allegations [133] in said para-

graph First contained.

XXVII.
Answering paragraph Third of plaintiffs' Bill

of Particulars furnished the defendants pursuant

to order of court dated February 17, 1910, supple-

menting plaintiffs' complaint, alleges that this de-

fendant is without knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the alle-

gations contained in i)aragra])h Third of plain-

tiffs" Bill of Particulars.

XVIII.

Answering paragraph Fourth of plaintiffs' Bill of

Particulars furnished the defendants pursuant to
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order of court dated February 17, 1940, supple-

ineuting plaintiffs" complaint, alleges that this de-

fendant is without knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the alle-

gations contained in paragraph Fourth of plain-

tiffs' Bill of Particulars.

XXIX.
Answering allegations contained in paragraphs

Fifth and Sixth of plaintiffs' bill of particulars,

furnished the defendants pursuant to order of

court dated February 17, 1940, supplementing plain-

tiffs' complaint, admits that the true status of the

property referred to on page 12 of said Bill of Par-

ticulars v,as not disclosed or divulged by this

defendant, and alleges that this defendant is with-

out knowledge or information sufficient to form a

belief as to the truth of the allegations in said para-

graphs Fifth and Sixth contained.

Wherefore, the defendant, Chandis Securities

Company X3rays that plaintiffs take nothing by their

action, and that this defendant have judgment for

its costs herein.

RICHAED G. ADAMS
Attorney for Defendant,

Chandis Securities Compan}.

Times Building,

202 West First Street,

Los Angeles, California

MAdison 2345 [134]
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State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

H. E. Downing, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says: That lie is an officer, to-wit, Assistant-

Secretary of Cbandis Securities Company, one of

the defendants in the foregoing and above entitled

action; that he has read the within Answer and

knows the contents thereof; and that the same

is true of his own knowledge except as to the mat-

ters which are herein stated on his information or

belief, and as to those matters he believes it to be

true.

H. E. DOWNING
Subscribed and sworn to l)efore me this 18th day

of April, 1940.

[Seal] C. O. DENNING
Notary Public in and for said County and State.

[Endorsed] : Answer of Chandis Securities

Company. Filed Apr. 18, 1940. [135]

['J'itle of District Court and Cause.]

REPLY UNTO ANSWER OF MUTUAL
GOLD CORPORATION

For reply unto the answer of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration i>laintift*s admit, deny and allege as fol-

lows :

I.

Answering unto paragraph four thereof, they

deny that said stamp mill was erected by J. A.
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Vance, and dem^ that he was manager, or acting as

manager, of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation's

properties at the time said stamp mill was erected;

denj^ that said J. A. Vance is the real party in in-

terest herein, and deny that the plaintiffs are nomi-

nal plaintiffs only; deny that J. A. Vance induced,

or procured, jjlaintiffs to bring this action, but

admits that J. A. Vance has, and will, contribute

to [146] the prosecution thereof; deny that said

mill was unfit for milling ore ; deny that the money

expended for said mill was wasted, or lost, to de-

fendant ^lutual Gold Corporation through the neg-

licence, incompetenc}^ or betrayal of trust of the

said J. A. V^ance, and deu}^ that said money was

wasted, or lost, at all to Mutual Gold Corporation;

deny that said developed ore contained no gold

recoverable at a profit by the said mill, or by tlie

methods used by J. A. Vance as manager.

II.

For reply unto paragraj)!! six, plaintiffs deny

that any of the acts of Frank A. Garbutt, com-

plained of, were in good faith, or taken, or per-

formed, by him in good faith, and deny that any of

said acts were had, or done in the belief that they

were legal and fair and equitable. Deny that there

was no duress, menace, fraud or luidue, or improper,

influence on the part of Frank A. Garbutt, and

deny that there was no intent to circumvent, or

violate, the laws of the State of Washington; deny

that there was no intent to injure Mutual Gold
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Corporation, its stockholders and creditors; deny

that said transfers and acts were made and pei--

forined with the anthorization and approval of the

stockholders of defendant Mntual Gold Corpora-

tion; deny that there was adequate, or fair, consid-

eration, or any consideration therefor; deny that

the executive officers and directors of Mutual Gold

Corporation believed said transfers and acts to be

for the best interests of the corporation, and its

stockholders and creditors, or to be necessary to

prevent loss of assets; deny that provision was

made by the defendants, or either of them, for pay-

ment of the creditors of Mutual Gold Corporation.

[147]

III.

For repl}' mito the second defense in said answer

of Mutual Gold Corporation, the plaintiffs admit,

deny and allege:

(1) Den}' that plaintiff Helen Maude Lorenz is

estoi>ped to bring this action; admit that she gave

a proxy to J. E. Stiegler to be voted by him at the

meeting of the stockholders held August 6, 1938,

but deny the passage of the alleged resolutioii

claimed to have been passed at said meeting, and

deny the legality thereof. That the call for said

meeting did not include among the purposes of said

meeting, the organization by Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion of Log Cabin Mines Company, or any new

cor] (oration, or subscription to the stock thereof, or
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transfer of all, or any, of the assets of Mutual Gold

Corporation to any such corporation, nor include

i:)roposed authorization of the acts, transactions,

or instruments, or any thereof, under attack in the

complaint. The proxy given by Helen Maude Lorenz

to J. E. Stiegler did not authorize him to vote in

support of any such resolution or action, or any

resolution of like import.

TV.

For repl}' unto the third defense in said answer,

plaintiffs admit, deny and allege as follows:

(1) Admit that on the 13th day of July, 1939,

in the Sui)erior Court of the State of California in

and for the County of Los Angeles, there was made

rmd entered in Case No. 440-367, entitled: "Log

Cabin Mines Company, a corporation, plaintiff, vs.

Mutual Cold Corporation, a corporation, et al, de-

fendants", a purported and pretended final judg-

ment purporting to quiet title [148] to said pur-

chase contract in Log Cabin Klines Com^jany. Plain-

tiffs deny that said judgment has become final or

res adjudicata as against these plaintiff's, or at all.

Said judgment was rendered by default solely upon

false allegations in the complaint therein that Log

Cabin Klines Compaii}' was the owner by assign-

ment of the said purchase contract, and that Mutual

Gold Corporation wrongfully claimed and asserted

an interest therein, whereas, ^lutual Gold Corpora-

tion was the actual owner, but at the time was dis-

claiming ownership of the said purchase contract,
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and Log Cabin Mines Company had no interest

therein except to the extent that it was a trustee for

Mutual Gold Corporation in respect thereto.

(2) At the time of the alleged transfer of the

purchase contract, an interlocking directorate ex-

isted between said two companies, Mutual (xold Cor-

])oration and Log Cabin Mines Company, in that

G. H. Ferbert and W. L. Grill were members of

each thereof, and a majority of the directors of each

comj^any were, and have been at all times, domi-

aiated and controlled by Frank A. Garbutt, and the

action. Case No. 440-367, was l)rought by Log Cabin

Mines Company against Mutual Gold Corporation

hi collusion between defendants, as part of the plan

complained of in the com])laint.

(3) None of the i)laintiff:* stockholders, nor any

considerable number of stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation (other than Frank A. Garbutt,

W. L. Grill, G. H. Ferbert, J. E. Stiegier and Rus-

sell F. Collins) had any knowledge or information

of the institution or pendency of said action, or the

entry of judgment therein, until the answer in this

case was served. The issues in said action were

false, sham, feigned, and fictitious, and the [149]

court in which judgment was rendered was without

jurisdiction of the subject matter, or the cause of

action, for that the situs of said purchase contract,

and the vendee's interest in the propert}' covered

thereby, was in Mono Count}-, California, and not

elsewhere. The directors and executive officers of
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Mutual Gold Corporation acted in excess of their

powers in failing and refusing to defend said ac-

tion and in permitting judgment to go by default,

all with the fraudulent i^urpose to affirm by said

judgment the lodgment of the purchase contract,

and the vendee's interest therein, in Log Cabin

Mines Compan}-. Said purchase contract, and the

vendee's interest therein, was a material, and the

main asset of Mutual Gold Corporation, without

v\ jiich it could not carry on its corjjorate activities.

(4) When said action, Case No. 440-367, was

instituted, a stockholders* action, to-wit: Case No.

103 233, was and ever since has been, pending in

the Superior Court of the State of Washington for

Si)okane County, in which A. P. Bateham and E. T.

Eichter were plaintiffs, and Frank A. Garbutt, Mu-

tual Gold Corporation and Log Cabin Mines Com-

2)any were defendants, which action was a stock-

holders' suit, brought by the minority stockholders

of, and on behalf of. Mutual Gold Corporation, to

quiet its title to said x>urchase contract. The several

defendants herein knew of the pendency thereof

and of all the proceedings therein, and Log Cabin

Mines Compan}', notwithstanding such knowledge,

falsely alleged in the comi)laint in said action that

Mutual Gold C(>r])oration wrongfully claimed an

interest in the purchase contract, when in fact Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, by said dominated board of

directors, wrongfully refused in said action to claim

any interest, but disclaimed an\- interest, in the i)ur-

chase contract. [150]
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V.

For reply unto the fourth defense in said answer,

the plaintiffs admit, den>' and allege:

(1) Deny each and every allegation therein con-

tained, and deny the passage of any resolution at

said stockholders' meeting of August 6, 1938. The

stockholders of Alutual Gold Corj^oration did not,

unanimously or otherwise, by any resolution, au-

thorize Mutual Gold Corporation, its board of di-

rectors, or executive officers, to organize, or cause

to be organized. Log Cabin Mines Company, or any

new corporation, for which Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion would subscribe for all, or any part, of the ca^)-

ital stock thereof, or transfer all, or any, of the

assets of Mutual (J old Corjioration thereto. That

no call for stockholders' meeting on said date, or at

any other time, informed the stockholders of Mu-

tual Gold Corporation of any purpose, or proposal to

organize, or authorize the organization of Log Cabin

Mines Company, or anynew corporation, or subscri])e

for the capital stock, of any thereof, of Log Cabin

Mines Company, or any new corporation, or trans-

fer all, or any of the assets of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration thereto, and no proxy by any stockholder

authorized any holder thereof to vote to authorize

the jjassage of any resolution for any of said jiur-

poses. That any such resolution would have been,

and was, in violation of the laws of the State of

Washington and the public policy of said state,

for that no meeting was called, or held, for any of
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said 2:)iirposes, nor lawful approval of the stock-

Iwlders obtained, as required by the laws of Wash-

i]igton and the public policy of said State. [151]

VI.

For reply unto the fifth defense in said answer,

the plaintitfs admit, deny and allege:

(1) Deny that they are not the real parties in

interest herein; deny that the real party in interest

is J. A. Vance; deny that said suit was brought

at liis instigation, but admit that he was one, among

others, wlio solicited the plaintitfs to act as such,

and that since the action was brought he has con-

tributed to pay the court costs and attorneys' fees

incurred therein; deny that any other stockholders'

suit has been brought to their knowledge, except a

suit brought in the Superior Court of the State of

Washington for Spokane County, in which A. P.

Bateham and E. T. Richter were plaintitfs and

Frank A. Garbutt, Mutual (lold Corporation and

Log Cabin Mines Comj)any were defendants, in

which suit jurisdiction has not been obtained over

the subject matter of the cause of action, nor over

the persons of any of the defendants, except Mu-

tual (xold Cori)oration, and which is not upon the

cause of action sued on herein. Deny that J. A.

A'ance has aiu' ])lan to control Mutual Gold Cor-

poration or its ])roperty; deny that this suit was

not brought in good faith, or for the benefit of the

minority stockholders of the corporation; deny
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that the said J. A. Vance is estopped to bring this

action.

Wherefore, Plaintiffs pray judgment upon their

coniphiint herein.

W. H. ABEL
O. C. MOORE
FKEDERICK D. ANDERSON

Frederick D. Anderson

650 Subway Terminal Bldg.

Los Angeles, California

Attorneys for Plaintiffs.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sep. 3, 1940. [152]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REPLY UNTO ANSWER OF FRANK A. GAR-
BUTT, ALICE CLARK RYAN, AND LOG
CABIN MINES COMPANY

For reply unto the answer of Frank A. Garbutt,

Alice Clark R^^an and Log Cabin Mines Company

plaintiffs admit, deny and allege as follows:

I.

Answering mito Paragraph IV thereof, they deny

that said stamp mill was erected by J. A. Vance,

and deny that he was manager, or acting as man-

ager, of defendant Mutual Gold Corporation's ]n-op-

erties at the time said stam]> mill was erected ; deny

that said J. A. Vance is the real party in interest
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lievein, and deny that the plaintiffs are nominal

l)laintiffs onl} ; deny that J. A. Vance indnced, or

procured plaintiffs to bring this action, but admit

^liat J. A. Vance has, and will, contribute to tlie

prosecution thereof; deny that said mill was mifit

for milling ore; deny that tlie money expended for

said mill was wasted or lost to defendant Mutual

Cxold Corporation through the negligence, [153]

incompetency or betrayal of trust of the said J. A.

Vance, and deny that said money was wasted, or

lost at all to Mutual Gold Corporation; deny that

said developed ore (-ontained no gold recoverable

at a i^rofit by the said mill, or by the methods used

by J. A. Vance as manager.

II.

For reply unto Paragrai)h VII, plaintiffs deny

that any of the acts of Frank A. Garbutt com-

l)lained of were in good faith, or taken or per-

formed by him in good faith, and den}' that any of

said acts were had, or done, in the belief that they

were legal, fair and equitable. Deny that there was

no duress, menace, fraud or undue or improper

intiuence on the part of Frank A. Garbutt, and

deny that there was no intent to circumvent, or

violate the laws of the State of Washington; deny

that there was no intent to injure Mutual (xold

Corporation, its stockholders and creditors; deny

that said transfers and acts were made and ])er-

formed with the authorization and ai)proval of the
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stockholders of defendant Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion; deny that there was adequate, or fair con-

sideration, or any consideration, therefor ; deny that

the executive officers and directors of Mutual Gold

Corporation believed said transfers and acts to be

for the best interests of the corporation, its stock-

holders and creditors, or to be necessary to prevent

loss of assets; deny that provision was made by the

defendants, or either of them, for payment of

the creditors of Mutual Gold Corporation.

III.

For reply unto the second defense in said an-

svrer, the plaintiffs admit, dem- and allege: [154]

(Ij Deny that plaintiff Helen Maude Lorenz

is estopped to bring this action; admit that she gave

a proxy to J. E. Stiegler to be voted by him at the

meeting of the stockholders held August 6, l<So8,

but deny the passage of the alleged resolution

claimed to have been })assed at said meeting, and

den}^ the legality thereof. That the call for said

meeting did not include among the purposes of said

meeting, the organization b}^ Mutual Ciold Corpora-

tion of Log Cabin Mines Company, or any new cor])o-

ration, or subscription to the stock thereof, or trans-

fer of all, or any, of the assets of Mutual Gold

Corporation to any such corporation, nor include

proposed authorization of the acts, transactions, or

instruments, or any thereof, under attack in the

complaint. The proxy given by Helen Maude Lor-

enz to J. E. Stiegler did not authorize him to vote
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in support of any snch resolution or action, or any

resolution of like import.

IV.

For vQ.\)\y unto the third defense in said answer,

plaintiffs admit, deny and allege as follows

:

(1) Admit that on the 13th day of July, 1939,

in the Superior Court of the State of California

in and for the County of Los Angeles, there was

made and entered in Case No. 440-367, entitled:

"Log Cabin Mines Comj)any, a corporation, plain-

tiff, vs. Mutual Gold Corporation, a corporation, et

al, defendants", a purported and pretended final

judgment purporting to quiet title to said purchase

contract in Log Cabin Mines Company. Plaintift's

deny that said judgment has become hnal or res

adjudicata as against these plaintiffs, or at all. Said

judgment was rendered by default solely upon false

allegations in the complaint therein [155] that Log

Cabin Mines Comj)any was the owner by assign-

ment of the said purchase contract, and that Mu-

tual (lold Corporation wrongfully claimed and as-

serted an interest therein, whereas, Mutual Gold

Corporation was the actual owner, but at the time

was disclaiming ownership of the said purchase con-

tract, and Log Cabin Mines Company had no in-

terest therein except to the extent that it was a

trustee for Mutual Gold Corporation in respect

thereto.

(2) At the time of the alleged transfer of the

])urchase contract, an interlocking directorate ex-



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 165

isted between said two companies, Mutual Gold Cor-

poration and Log Cabin Mines Company, in that

G. H. Ferbert and W. L. Grill were members of

each thereof, and a majority of the directors of

each company were, and have been at all times,

dominated and controlled b}' Frank A. Garbutt,

and the action. Case No. 440-367, \vas brought by

Log Cabin Mines Company against Mutual Gold

Corporation in collusion bet^veen defendants, as

l)art of the jjlan complained of in the complaint.

(3) None of the jDlaintiff stockholders, nor any

considerable number of stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation (other than Frank A. (Jarbutt,

W. L. Grill, G. H. Ferbert, J. E. Stiegler and Rus-

sell F. Collins) had any knowledge or information

of the institution or ])endency of said action, or the

entry of judgment therein, until the answer in this

case vras served. The issues in said action were false,

sham, feigned, and fictitious, and the court in which

judgment was rendered was without jurisdiction of

the subject matter, or the cause of action, for that

the situs of said jjurchase contract, and the vendee's

interest in the property covered thereby, was in

Mono County, California, and not elsewhere. [1-36]

The directors and executive officers of Mutual Gold

Corporation acted in excess of their })owers in fail-

ing and refusing to defend said action and in i)er-

mitting judgment to go by default, all with the

fraudulent purpose to affirm b>' said judgment the

lodgment of the ]jurchase contract, and the vendee's
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interest therein, in Log Cabin Mines Company. Said

i:)nrchase contract, and the vendee's interest there-

in, was a material, and the main asset of Mutual

(lold Cori)oration, without which it could not carry

on its corporate activities.

(4) When said action, Case No. 440-367, was

instituted, a stockholders' action, to-wit: Case No.

103 233, was and ever since has been, pending in

the Sui)erior Court of the State of Washington for

Spokane County, in which A. P. Bateham and E. T.

Richter were plaintiffs, and Frank A. Garbutt, Mu-

tual Cold Corporation and Log Cabin Mines Com-

pam' were defendants, which action was a stock-

holders' suit, brought ))y the minority stockholders

of, and on behalf of. Mutual Gold Corporation, to

quiet its title to said purchase contract. The several

defendants herein knew of the pendency thereof

and of all the proceedings therein, and Log Cabin

Mines Company, notwithstanding such knowledge,

falsely alleged in the comi)laint in said action that

^lutuaJ Gold Corporation wrongfully claimed an in-

terest in the purchase contract, when in fact Mu-

tual Gold Cori)oration, by said dominated board of

directors, wrongfully refused in said action to claim

any interest, but disclaimed am- interest, in the

l)urchase contract.

V.

For reply uiito the fourtli defense in said answer,

tlie plaintiffs admit, deny and allege: [157]
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(1) Deny each and eveiy allegation therein con-

tained, and deny the passage of any resolution at

said stockholders' meeting of August 6, 1938. The

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation did not,

unanimously or otherwise, by any resolution, auth-

orize Mutual Gold Cor])oration, its board of direc-

tor's, 0]' executive officers, to organize, or cause to l)e

organized. Log Cabin Mines Company, or any new

co]'])oration, for whicli Mutual Gold Corporation

would subscribe for all, or au}^ part, of the capital

stock thereof, or transfer all, or any, of the assets

of Mutual Gold Corporation thereto. That no call

for stockholders' meeting on said date, or at any

other time, informed the stockholders of Mutual

Gold Corporation of any pur])ose, or pro])osal, to

organize, or authorize the organization of Log

Cabin Mines Company, or any new corporation, or

subscribe for the capital stock, or any thereof, of

Log Cabin Mines Company, or any new corporation,

or transfer all, or any of tlie assets of Mutual Gold

Corporation thereto, and no pi'oxy by any stock-

holder authorized any holder thereof to vote to

authorize the ])assage of any resolution for any of

said ])urposes. That any such resolution would have

been, and was, in violation of the laws of the State

of Washington and the ])ublic policy of said state,

for that no meeting was called, or held, for any of

said purposes, nor lawful a])i)roval of the stock-

holders obtained, as required by the laws of Wash-

ington and the ])ublic policy of said state.
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\1.

For reply unto the fifth defense in said answer,

tlie plaintiffs admit, deny and allege:

(1) Deny that they are not the real parties iii

interest herein; [158] deny that the real party in

interest is J. A. Vance; deny that said suit was

brought at his instigation, but admit that he was

one, among others, wlio solicited the i^laintiffs to

act as such, and tliat since the action was brought

lie lias contributed to pay the court costs and at-

torneys' fees incurred therein; deny that any other

stockholders' suit has been lirought to their know-

ledge, except a suit brought in the Superior Court

of the State of Washington for Spokane County, in

which A. P. I>ateliam and E. T. Richter were plain-

tiffs and Frank A. (larbutt, Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion and Tx^g Cabin Mines Comj)any were defen-

dants, in whicli suit jurisdiction has not been ob-

tained over the subject matter of the cause of

action, nor over tlie persons of any of the defen-

dants, except Mutual Gold Corporation, and which

is not u])on the cause of action sued on herein. Deny

that J. A. Vance has any plan to control Mutual

Gold Cor])oration or its ])roperty; deny that this

suit was not brought in good faith, or for the bene-

fit of the minority stockholders of the corporation;

deii}' that the said J. A. Vance is estopped to bring

this action.
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Wherefore, Plaintiffs pray judgment upon their

complaint herein.

W. H. ABEL
O. C. MOORE
FREDERICK I). ANDERSON

650 Subway Terminal Build-

ing, Los Angeles, California.

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 3, 1940. [159]

At a stated term, to wit: The September Term,

A. D. 1941, of the District Court of the Ignited

States of America, within and for the Central Di-

vision (»f the Southern District of California, held

at the Court Room thereof, in the City of Los An-

geles on Tuesday, the 16th day of Se]:)tember, in the

year of our Lord one tliousand nine hundred and

forty-one.

Present: The Llonorable: Ben Harrison, District

Judge.

No. 714-BH Civil

HELEN M. SUTHERLAND, et ah.

Plaintiffs,

vs.

FRANK A. GARBUTT, et al.,

Defendants.
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CHANDIS SECURITIES CO., a corp.,

Cross-complainant,

vs.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION, a Corp.,

LOG CABIN MINES COMPANY, a corp.,

and ALICE CLARK RYAN,
Cross-defendants.

This cause having' been heretofore heard by the

Court at the trial on evidence both oral and docu-

mentary, argument of counsel, l)oth oral and by

brief, and was ordered submitted, and the Court

liavin.o- duly considered the record, evidence, plead-

ings, and the law n])])licable, and being fully ad-

vised in the ])remises now liands down and orders

filed its Memorandum of Opinion, and in accord-

ance therewith orders the cross-com])laint dismissed

without prejudice, and that defendants are entitled

to .iudgment and are directed to prepare and sub-

mit findings of fact and conclusions of law. Memo-

randum of 0])inion filed. [175]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM OPINION

No useful purpose will be served in this memo-

randmn opinion to attem])t to set forth a detailed

statement of the facts. This case in one sense is a

re-enactment of the case (^f Vance v. Mutual Gold
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Corporation, 108 P. 2d, 799, and the recital of facts,

in so far as they are pertinent to the case now at

issue, is adopted hy me as the historical backo-round

of this case. While I appreciate the plaintiffs in the

two cases are different and the purpose of the liti-

gation is different, yet, at the same time, the present

litigation is the outgrowth of the Garbutt contracts

mentioned in the Vance case, and for the purpose of

this memorandum opinion, I shall discuss the legal

[176] effect of the transactions represented by the

Garbutt contract Exliibit 13.

The court lias been ])rincipally concerned as to

whether or not said cor]X)ration had authority to

enter into said contract and the consummation

thereof, whereby it transferred all of its assets to the

Log Cabin Mines Com])any. In other words, was

said contract and the consummation thereof intra

or ultra vires.

This b]-ings me to the cjuestion as to whether the

Washington statutes of 1932 apply or whether the

])owers and authority of this corporation were

broadened by the amendments of 1933. Plaintiff's

contend that the rights of the stockholders were

fixed by the state of the law at the time of its in-

corjioration and that it was beyond the power of

the legislature to broaden or change said powers by

subsequent legislation. I have concluded that this

cor])0]'ation had the ])owers conferred u])on it by

the laws of Washington at the time this agreement

was entered into. Section 1, Art. XII, of the con-

stitution of Washington provides as follows:
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''Corporations may be formed imder general

laws, but shall not be created by special acts.

All laws relating" to corporations may be al-

tered, amended or repealed by the Legislature

at any time, and all corporations doing busi-

ness in this state may, as to such business, be

regulated, limited or restrained by laws."

Thus it will be seen that Washington followed

the practice suggested in the Dartmouth College

case and reserved the power to alter or amend the

laws controlling existing cor])orations, and that said

constitutional provision became a part of the con-

tract or articles of incorporation and the incorpora-

tors and subsequent stockholders became stockhold-

ers in said cor])oration subject to the rights of the

state to amend the statutes as ])rovided in said con-

stitutional provision. Looker v. Maynard, 179 I". S.

46; Union Trust Co. v. Moore, 175 Pac. 565, 567;

Duke V. Force, 208 Pac. 67; 16 C. J. S., p. 757, Sec.

320. [177]

Sec. 3803-36 Rem. Rev. Stat. ])rovides as

follows:

''A voluntary sale, lease or exchange of all

the assets of a C(n'])oration may be authorized

by it upon such terms and conditions as it deeins

expedient, including an exchange for shares in

another corporation, domestic or foreign.

"If the cor])oration is able to meet its lia-

bilities then matured, such authorization shall

be given at a meeting of shareholders, duly

called for the purpose, and by such vote of the
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shareholders as may be provided for in the

articles of incorporation, or, if there be no such

specific provision, then by the vote of the hold-

ers of two-thirds of the voting power of all

shareholders. If the corporation be unable to

meet its liabilities then matured, such authoriza-

tion may be given by the vote of the board of

directors.

''This section shall not be construed to

authorize a conveyance or exchange of assets

which would otherwise be in fraud of corporate

creditors or of minority shareholders or sliare-

holders without voting rights. (L. '33, sec. 36,

p. 798.)"

This section certainly authorizes the transfer of

all of the assets to the Log Cabin Mines Company

in exchange for stock in the said company. In other

words, the transaction was within the power of the

cor])oration. But plaintiffs contend that the notice to

stockholders was insufficient. I consider the notice

sufficient and the court in the Washington case ap-

p?irently under findings XII and XIII found that

the resolution passed ]nii'suant to said notice was

sufficient. The notice and resolution passed in ])ur-

suaiice thereto were broad enough to cover the

authorization of the agreement. Even if the notice

was insufficient, the board of directors had the

authority in view of the fact that the corporation

had matured liabilities. If the plaintiffs in the case

were dissatisfied with the resolution, they had their

remedy under [378] Sec. 380.3-41 Rem. Rev. Stat.
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Plaintiffs complain that the contract and transfer

was ill fraud of creditors but the case of Vance v.

Mutual Gold Corporation, 108 P. 2d 799-804, dis-

posea of this point when the court stated

:

" * * * Appellants' situation is more favor-

able than at any time since the formation of the

corporation. Res])ondents' board of directors

has not put it out of the ]iower of the company

to pay its contracts. On tlie contrary, the com-

pany is in a much better ])osition to pay all of

those obligations, including the notes owing to

appellants."

Even under the laws of Washington, as they

existed in 1932, the transfer would not be ultra vires

undei- Logie v. Mother Lode Cop])er Mines Co. of

Alaska, 179 Pac. 835. T agree with defendants that

this case is authority for the condemned acts of the

Mutual Gold Company. I'he articles of the Mutual

Gold were sufficiently broad to permit the transfer

or exchange. Plaintiffs ])lace great reliance upon the

case of Moore v. Los Lugos Gold Mines, 21 P. 2d,

253, but that case involves primarily the contractual

relationship between the stockholders and the cor-

])oration, wherein certain non-assessable stock was

issued and ])resents an entirely different factual

situation from the case before me or as set forth in

Logie y. Mother Lode Co])])er Mines, supra. In this

case we have in a sense no vested contractual rights

involved. Theis v. Spokane Falls Gaslight Co., 74

Pac. 1004, ant/dates the amendment of 1933 and

deals with a going prosperous concern, beside it ap-
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pears that this case has been specifically overruled

by Lange v. Reservation Mining- and Smelting Co.,

93 Pac. 208. The case of Child v. Idaho Hewer
Mines, 284 Pac. 80, familiar to counsel for plaintiff

also supports my conclusion. I realize that it is dif-

ficult to reconcile many of the authorities but the

rights of the stockholders when made non-assessable

by the articles of incorporation are always protected.

(]() C. J. S. 759.) Thompson on Corporations, Third

Ed. \o\. 1, sec. 429. [179]

It is interesting to note under the authority of

Mooi'e V. Los Lugos Gold Mines, supra, that the de-

fendants might very easily be deemed guilty of

laches (see page 264-5).

It must be remembered that Subdivision (b) of

Article 2 of the Articles of Incorporation of Mu-
tual Gold provides as follows:

''To acquire by ])urehase or exchange, or in

any other manner, in the United States or in

Foreign Countries, mining claims, grounds or

lodes, mining and mineral rights, concessions

01- grants, or any interest therein, and to sell,

exchange, lease or in any other manner to dis-

])ose of the whole or any part thereof or any

interest therein when desirable.''

In Pitcher v. Lone Pine-Surprise Consol. Min.

Co., 81 Pac. 1049, the Supreme Court of Washing-

ton stated:

"The selling of these mines was not an act

ultra vires. The articles of incorporation, among

other things, recite, 'The purpose for trhich this
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corporation is formed are to w^ork, operate, buy,

sell, lease, locate, acquire, procure, hold and

deal in mines,' etc. The trustees, therefore, had

the power to sell these mines."

As far as I can ascertain this case has never been

overruled. It would, therefore, appear under this

autliority that the acts of the corporation were not

Ultra vires.

In view of luy conclusious, Hirschfeld v. McKiu-

ley, 78 F. (2d), 124, 131, and Cecil B. BeMille Pro-

ductious V. Woolery, 61 F. (2d), 45, have no bearino-

on the case at bar.

Coombes v. Getz, 285 V. S. 434 and Ettor v. City

of Tacoma, 228 U. S. 148, both involve vested rights

at the time the law was chau.iied, while in this case,

the law liad been chauged lono" ju'ior to the trausac-

tions under attack. For a fiue distinction see Rainey

V. Michel, 57 P. 2d. 932; (105 A. L. R. 148).

I do not hold there Avas a sale, uor do I look upon

the transaction [180] as a conversion. I further feel

that the consideration was adequate.

Plaintiffs insist that the transactiou was uot a

sale, and if it v\-as a sale, it sliould have been for

cash. The court, as stated before, does not consider

the transaction a sale but an exchange for the ])ur-

])ose of creating an oi:)erating company. Plaintiffs

also attack the power of exchange and cite 63 A.

L. R. 1004, but as heretofore pointed out the statutes

and the articles of incorporation are broad enough

to cover such exchange. (See other notes iu 63 A.

L. R. 1004.)
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Plaintiffs have raised many i)oints and showered

the court witli citations. I have examined the same

with care and for the ])nrpose of assisting couiisel

in the preparation of findings make the following-

comments :

1. The Log Cabin was not set up to evade the

law.

2. The Log Cabin was not set up to evade a con-

tract.

3. Mutual Gold did not incorporate Log Cabin.

4. The transaction was not a dissolution.

5. Tlie transaction did not involve a reduction

of capital stock.

6. Garbutt was not guilty of fraud, duress or

coercion.

I am of the opinion that all parties acted in good

faith. The dii-ectors were faced with a serious situa-

tion and can see no fraud because they preferred

to deal with Garbutt instead of Vance. The plain-

tiffs infer fraud at every ste]) but I find against

them in that res]:>ect.

This case looks to me like the kettle calling the

])ot black. The entire trouble developed when Vance

Avas unable to put over his deal. At the time he sub-

mitted his proposition to the corporation he nn-

doubtedly thought the cor])oration had no other al-

ternative l)ut to accept it but when the directors,

through their own initiative, worked out a deal witli

Garbutt, the fur began to fiy. From that time on it

ha^' been a battle royal, and it is a reasonable in-

fei-ence that the real [18]] ])arty in interest in this
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case is J. A. Vance. (See Mrs. Sutherland's deyjosi-

tion.) This inference can also be drawn from the

fact that the same counsel appearing in this action

also appeared in the Washington case; that Vance

was ])ersonally present at the trial and that the com-

bined holdings of the plaintiffs would not justify

either tlie institution or prosecution of this action.

I appreciate the fact tliat at the trial I refused

to allow the defendants to go into this phase of the

case (See Transcri])t ]). 333), but evidently under

the authorities of Pitcher v. Lone-Pine-Surprise

Consol. Min. Co., supra ; Breeze v. Lone Pine-Sur-

])rise C(»ns()l. Min. Co., 81 Pac. 1050, and Speckert

Y. Bunker Hill Arizona Min. Co., 106 P. 2d 602, I

was in error.

The findings in the trial court in Washington

covered nuich of the ground covered in this case.

My conclusions are similar to Judge Greenough's

and I ado])t findings XII, XIII, XIV, XV and

XVI. I also ado])t his conclusions of law, Xos. I

and IV.

By reason of a stijailation on file, the cross-com-

plaint is dismissed without ])re,iudice.

Defendants are entitled to judgment and are di-

rected to ])re]:)are and submit findings of fact.

Dated: Los Angeles, California, September 16,

1941.

BEN HARRISOX
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Se])t. 16, 1941 [182]



vs. Frank A. Garhiitt, et al. 179

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The above-entitled cause came on for trial on

March 18, 1941, at 10 o'clock a. ni., and was there-

after on that day and on March 19, 20, and 21, 1941,

tried before the Honorable Ben Harrison, Judp^e

presiding, a trial by jury having been waived b>'

the parties to said action. Plaintiffs did not appear

in ]ierson, but ap])eared by their attorney Frederick

D. Anderson, Esq., on whose motion W. H. x\bel,

Esq., and O. C. Moore, Esq. of the State of Wash-

ington were admitted by the Court to i)ractice be-

fore it in this case and to be associated with said

Frederick D. Anderson as attorneys for the plain-

tiff's. Defendant Frank A. Clarbutt and defendant

and [185] cross-defendant Alice Clark Ryan a]:>-

jjeared in i)erson and by their attorney David E.

Hinckle, Esq. ; defendants and cross-defendants Log

Cabin Mines Com])any, a corporation, and Mutual

Gold Cor])oration, a corporation, appeared by their

attorney said David E. Hinckle, on whose motion

AVilliam L. Grill, Esq. of the State of Washington

was admitted by the Court to practice before it in

this case and to be substituted for said David E.

Hinckle as attorney for said Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion. Thereafter, and until the Court adjourned on

March 20; 1941, defendant and cross-defendant Mu-

tual Gold Corporation was re])resented by said Wil-

liam L, Grill as its attorney, at which time, on his
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motion he withdrew as such attorney and said David

E. Hinckle was substituted for him. Defendant and

eross-compL^inant Chandis Securities Company, a

corporation, apj^eared by its attorney Richard G.

Adams, Esq.

Both oral and documentaiy evidence were intro-

duced hy the respective parties. Thereafter the

cause was orally argued for the j^laintiffs to the

Court, and was briefed by the i)arties. On Septem-

ber 12, 1941, defendants and cross-defendants sti])U-

lated in writing with cross-complainant, by and

through tlieir res])ective attorneys, that the cross-

com])laint filed herein be dismissed without pi'eju-

dice. On Sei)tember 16, 1941, the Court ordered said

cross-com])laint dismissed without prejudice ])ur-

suant to said stipulation, and ordered judgment for

the defendants against tlie i)laintift*s.

And the Coui't, being fully advised in tlie

premises, now makes its findings of fact and its con-

clusions of law as follows:

Findings of Fact

I.

Plaintiffs Helen M. Sutherland and Charles AV.

Sutherland are citizens of the Dominion of Canada.

Plaintiffs M. I. Higgens and Maybelle Higgens are

citizens of the State of Idaho. Plaintiff Helen Maude

Lorenz is a citizen of the State of Oregon. [186]

Defendant Frank A. (larbutt and defendant and

cross-defendant Alice Clark Ryan are citizens of

the State of California.
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II.

Defendant and evoss-defendant Log Cabin Mines

Company is a corporation organized imder the laws

of the State of California. Defendant and cross-

ooni])lainant Chandis vSeeiirities Coni|)any is a cor-

])oration organized nnder the laws of the State of

California.

III.

Defendant and cross-defendant Mutnal Gold Cor-

]^oration was organized as a cor])oration nnder the

laws of the State of Washington on May 11, 19:]2,

and is now a corporation organized and existing nn-

der said laws. On November 8, 1933, Mntnal Gold

Cor])oration was dnh' ({nalified nnder the laws of

the State of California to engage in business therein,

and ever since has been so qnalified.

IV.

Mutual Gold Corporation's Articles of Incorpora-

tion ])rovide that the objects and purposes for which

the cor])oration is organized are, among others, to

sell, exchange, lease, or in any other manner to dis-

])ose of the whole or any part of its mining claims,

grounds or lodes, mining and mineral I'ights, con-

cessions, or grants, or any interest therein when

desirable, and to bu}', sell, and otherwise deal in

ores, metals, ])lants, machinery, tools, im])lements,

groceries, ])rovisions, clothing, boots and shoes, hard-

ware, wooden and metallic ware, and all other ar-

ticles and things in anywise required or callable (tP

being used in connection with mining operations.
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y.

Mutual Gold Corporation has outstanding 2,641,-

182 shares of capital stock. At the time the acts

complained of were performed, and at all times

since, plaintiffs Helen M. Sutherland and Charles

W. Sutherland each owned 333 of said shares;

plaintiffs M. I. Higgens and Maybelle Higgens each

owned 333% of said [187] shares, and plaintiff

Helen Maude Lorenz owned 500 of said shares.

YI.

Plaintiffs brought and maintain this action as

stockholders of, and for and on behalf of Mutual

Gold Cor])oration, and for and on behalf of all the

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation similarly

situated, a controlling majority of the directors and

a majority of the stockholders of that corporation

being o]j])osed to the bringing of such suit.

VII.

The matter in controversy, exclusive of interest

and costs, exceeds the sum of $3,000.00.

VIII.

On July 13, 1932, Chandis Securities Company,

Mrs. M. X. Clark, and Alice Clark Ryan, as owners

of eighteen lode gold mining claims in Mono Coun-

ty, California, entered into a written contract to sell

said claims for $150,000.00 to Russell F. Collins and

Ben L. Collins, a copy of said contract being in

evidence as Exhibit 2, and being hereby made a y)art

<>r these findings. Mutual Gold Corporation was or-

EXHIBIT 2 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 1 thereto, at page 23.
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ganized, and on July 18, 1932, the contract was as-

signed to it with the consent of the sellers, said

eoiporation assuming the buyers' obligations. The

contract was amended in 1934 by written instru-

ment, in evidence as Exhibit 3 and hereby made a

part of these findings. Mrs. M. N. Clark's interest in

the contract and said claims was transferred in 1935

to Alice Chirk Ryan. Said contract was amended

again in 1936 by written instrument, in evidence as

Exhibit 4 and hereby made a i)art of these findings.

Frank A. Garbutt acted as agent for tlie owners in

negotiating the contract and the amendments, and

continued to represent them until October 3, 1938,

liiit not thereafter. Said contract as amended called

for a ])ayment of $10,000.00 on November 1 in each

of the years 1937, 1938, 1939, and 1940 to the sellers,

and payment of the whole balance of the purchase

])rice on November 1, [188] 1941, and required that

said claims should be developed, that when sufficient

tonnage of commercial ore was in sight to justify

it a mill suitable for econoinical milling should be

erected, and that ore shoidd be milled.

IX.

Mutual Gold Cor])oration ])aid a total of $20,000.00

on said purchase price and expended in excess of

$150,000.00 in the performance of its contract with

the sellers up to April, 1938, at which time opera-

tions ceased because funds available for operating

had been exhausted.

EXHIBIT 3 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 2 thereto, at page 38.

EXHIBIT 4 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 4 thereto, at page 45.
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X.

In 'Tilly, 1938, Mutual Gold Cori)oration was in

need of funds to build a mill in place of the pilot

mill whicli it had been operating. Thereupon Lloyd

J. Vance, son of J. A. Vance, for himself and J. A.

Vance, submitted to Mutual Gold Corporation in

writing- a plan which is in evidence as part of Ex-

hibit 5 and is made a part of these findings. At a

meeting held July 18, 1938, the directors of Mutual

Gold Corporation adopted a I'esolution as follows:

'* Resolved that the offer of Lloyd Vance as

submitted to this meeting, (copy of which is

spread n])on the mimites) when changed and

altered in conformity with the changes herein-

before set out in these minutes, be and the same

is hereby received, approved and recommended

to the stockholders for acceptance; that the an-

nual meeting of the stockholders be called and

held as soon as possible and not later than the

6th day of August, A. D., 1938, at the hour of

11:00 o'clock A. M. for the purpose of electing

a Boai'd of Directors and approving and acting

u])on the oft'ei- of the said Lloyd Vance for the

sale and disposition (^f the undivided one-half

interest in and to the holdings of the company,

and authorizing and em])owering the Board of

J)ir(>ct(>rs to sell or otherwise dispose of the

whole or [189] any part of the assets of the cor-

poration at such time or times and on such

terms aiid conditions as they may deem ade-

(juate, and to form and enter into any working

EXHIBIT 5 is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 230.
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agreement along the lines as contemi)lated by

the offer of said Lloyd Vance, or such other or

diiferent agreement as they may, in their abso-

hite discretion deem advisable, and to transact

any and all othei- business that may come be-

fore said meeting, and that the Secretary be

and she is hereby authorized, empowered, and

instructed to set the date of such meeting at the

earliest moment ])ossible as ])rovided by law

and the by-laws of this corporation, and that

a letter be sent with the notice of such meeting

to all the stockholders advising them fully with

respect to the necessity of some such action and

covering the activities of the company since the

last report to them made under date of A])ril

5, 1938, such leyyer to be approved and signed

by Mr. T. E. Stiegler as President; and tliat

Wednesday, the 20th day of July A. D., 19:3S,

at 12:00 o'clock noon be and the same is hereby

fixed as a recorded date for the determination

of the shareholders entitled to notice of such

meeting."

Said Vance offer was su])])lemented by a letter

written by Lloyd A'ance to the corporation on Au-

gust 12, 1938, said letter being in evidence as Ex-

hibit 98 and being hereby made a ])art of these find-

ings. Said J. A. Vance was the largest creditor, a

large stockholder, a director, and vice i)resident of

Mutual Gold Corj)oration, and had entered into a

contract dated August 29, 1936, with said corpora-

EXHIBIT 98 is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 667.
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tioii to act as its general manager, said contract

being in evidence as Exhibit 78.

XI.

On or abont July 20, 1938, notice of the annual

meeting of stockholders to be held on August 6,

1938, in Spokane, Washington, was mailed to the

stockholders of the Mutual Gold Corporation. Said

notice is in evidence as Exhibit 6, and sets forth

that the [190] meeting would be held

"To authorize, empoyer and direct the Board

of Directors to accept the offer of Lloyd Vance

as outlined in the letter of the President under

date of .Inly 20tli, 1938, a copy of which letter

is herewitli enclosed, and l\v reference made a

])art liereof, and/or autlnn-ize, empower and di-

]'ect tlie l>oard of Directors to make and enter

into sucli other or different deal with Lloyd

Vance, or any other ]^erson or cor]^oration, with

res])ect to all of the assets of this corporation,

the management, control and operatiim thereof,

the division of the })rofits thereof or otherwise

as such Board of Directors shall, in their abso-

lute discretion, deem expedient, advisable or

desirable.

"To authorize and empower the Board of

Directors to sell, lease, exchange or otherwise

dispose of all of the assets of this corporation

at such time or times, for such price and upon

such terms and conditions, for cash or other-

Avise, as they shall, in their absolute discretion

EXHIBIT 78 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 3 thereto, at page 42.
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deem expedient, advisable or desirable, includ-

ing the exchanging for shares in another cor-

poration, domestic or foreign."

XII.

The letter of the President under date of July

20, 1938, referred to in said notice, is in evidence

as Exhibit 8, is addressed to the stockholders, and

accompanied the said notice. After summarizing the

Lloyd Vance ])ro])osal, it stated:

"You will be asked to ap])rove the oft'er (re-

ferring to that of Llo3^d Vance) and authorize

the Board to execute such contract as they sliall

deem advisable, and will also be requested to

authorize them to sell or otherwise dispose of

the whole or any ])art of the assets of the Mu-

tual (lold Corporation at such time or times, and

on such teriiis and conditions as they shall, in

their absolute discretion, [191] deem adequate

so that they may be placed in a position to dis-

pose of the whole or any ])art of the property,

and liave full authority to do so should they

find it necessary or advisable."

XTTT.

The meeting of tlie stockholders was held August

6, 1938, pursuant to said notice. The stock ])reseut

and entitled to vote was as follows:

Present in person 856,404 shares

Present by proxy 1,105,953 "

Present by endorsed certificates 22,250

Total present and entitled to vote 1,984,607
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The total issued outstanding stock ^Yas 2,633,830

shares. At said meeting 649,223 shares or said issued

stock was not present or represented, and did not

vote. Each of the proxies voted thereat was in the

form in evidence as Exhibit 7, hereby made a j^art

of these findings, which form was as follows:

*'Proxy

"Know All Men by These Presents; That I,

the undersigned hereby constitute and appoint

.1. E. 8tiegler, or J. A. Vance or

with power of substitution, my attorneys and

l^roxies to appear and vote at the Annual Meet-

ing of Stockholders of the Mutual Gold Cor-

poration to be held at 401 Fernwell Building,

S]iokane, Washington, Saturday, August 6th,

1938, at 11:00 o'clock A. M., and at any and

all adjournments thereof for tlie following pur-

poses :

"1. To elect a Board of Directors.

"2. To approve, ratify and confirm the acts

and j)roceedings of the Board of Directors and

Officers of the corporation, since the last An-

nual Meeting of Stockholders. [192]

"3. To authorize, empower and direct the

]>oard of Directors to accept the offer of Lloyd

Vance as outlined in the letter of the President

under date <if July 20th, 1938, a copy of which

letter is lierewith enclosed, and by reference

made a ])arl hereof, and /or authorize, empower

and direct the Board of Directors to make and
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enter into such other or different deal with

Lloyd Vance, or any other person oi' corpora-

tion, with res]ject to all of the assets of this cor-

X)oration, the management, control and opera-

tion thereof, the diAdsion of the profits thereof

or otherwise, as such Board of Directors sliall,

in their absolute discretion, deem expedient, ad-

visable or desirable.

"4. To authorize and empower the Board

of Directors to sell, lease, exchange or otherwise

dispose of all of the assets of this corporation

at such time or times, for such price and upon

such terms and conditions, for cash or other-

wise, as they shall, in their absolute discretion

deem expedient, advisable or desirable, includ-

in,^' the exchanging for shai'es in another cor-

poration, domestic or foreign.

"5. To take action upon and transact any

other business which ma}' properly and lawfully

come before the meeting.

"The undersigned hereby ratifies and con-

firms all that either of said persons, or their

substitute, may lawfully do at said meeting.

^ Dated this 21st day of Jidy, A. D., 1938.

(Seal)
'

' Witness

:

XIV.

At said meeting, the following resolution was

adopted, [193] all of said 1,984,607 shares being

cast therefor:



190 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

''Resolved that the Board of Directors of this

corporation be and they are hereby authorized,

empowered, and directed to sell, lease, deal with,

operate, exchange, or otherwise dispose of, to

any person, persons or corporation desiring to

purchase, lease, deal with, exchange, or operate

same, any part of or all of the assets of this

corporation, at such time or times, for such

price and ujx^n such terms and conditions, for

cash or otherwise, including the exchanging for

shares in another corporation, domestic o]' for-

eign, as tliey in their absolute discretion deem

expedient, advisable or desirable, and to per-

form any other acts in this connection which in

their judgment they may deem necessary or

advisable/'

XY.

At tlie time said resohition was adopted on Au-

gust 6, 1938, Mutual Gold Corporation was not

able to meet its obligations then matured, the

amount of wliicli is set out in ])aragraph XXXY of

these findings, and at no time thereafter and prior

to the ])erformance of tlie acts in this action com-

])lained of was it able to meet them.

XVI.

]n August, 1938, the directoi's of the corporation

sought and obtained from Frank A. Garbutt an

agreement to finance tlie (•or])oration on certain

terms and conditions which were incor])orated in a

contract between him and the cori)oration dated
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September 2, 1938. Said contract provided that he

was to take over the corj^oration 's assets and de-

velop and operate its mining- i:>]'operties. It is in evi-

dence as Exhibit 13, and is hereby made a part of

these findings.

XVII.

Pursnaut to resohition of the board of directors

of Mntual [194] Gold Corporation passed Septem-

ber 7, 1938, a s])ecia] meeting of the stockholders

was called for September 24, 1938, for the pnri)ose

of ratifying or refusing to ratify the contract of

September 2, 1938, between Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion and Frank A. Garbutt. Notice thereof, in evi-

dence as Exliibit 17, and foi'm of proxy, in evidence

as Exhibit 18, were mailed to the stockliolders. At

a meeting of the board of directors of Mutual Gold

Corporation held September 19, 1938, the Board of

Directors adopted a motion requiring the secretary

to advise the stockholders that said meeting of

stockholders called for September 24, 1938, had

been called off by the board. Said proposed meeting

of September 24, 1938, was never held.

XVIII.

On September 22, 1938, said contract with Frank

A. Garbutt was re-executed ])ursuant to a resolution

of said bojird of directors adopted at a meeting reg-

ularly called and held on Sei^tember 7, 1938, which

provided that

—

"In view of the authority and powei' given

to the board of directors by the stockholders at

EXHIBIT 13 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 6 thereto, at page 51.

EXHIBIT 17 is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 295.

tvurni-r io :„ „=i. (^^^^, ir, P».r>nrfpr'c Transrrint at Caere 296.
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a special meeting of the stockholders called on

the 6th day of August, 1938, and in view of the

present fuiancial condition of the company, this

corporation do, and it hereby does, accept that

certain contract bearing date the 2d day of Sep-

tember, 1938, between Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, a corporation, and Frank A. Garbutt, and

all of the terms and provisions thereof; and

that the president of this corporation, Mr. J. E.

Stiegler, be and lie hereby is authorized and

directed to execute said contract, if the previous

ratification thereof is not legally sufficient, for

and on behalf of this corporation, and to exe-

cute any and all documents, papers, bills of

sale, deeds, and conveyances necessary to make

said document legally effective and to carry out

the terms and conditions [195] and provisions

thereof.''

XIX.
Mutual Gold Cor])oration executed its mining

deed bearing date of Se])tember 21, in evidence as

Exhibit 23, conveying said eighteen claims and

others to Frank A. Garbutt, and executed its assign-

ment bearing date of September 21, 1938, in evi-

dence as Exhibit 24, transferring said purchase con-

ti"ict of July i:'), 1932, to Mr. Garbutt, and executed

its bill of sale bearing date of September 22, 1938,

ill evidence as Exhibit 25, transferring to Mr. Gar-

butt said cor]ioration's mining machinery, tools,

su])])lies, and equipment, including its automotive

EXHIBIT 23 is set forth in Complaint, as Hxhibit 7 thereto, at page '^8.

EXHIBIT 24 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 8 thereto, at page 60.

EXHIBIT 2 5 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 9 thereto, at page 62.
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equipment. Said deed, assignment, and bill of sale

were made to Frank A. Garbutt in trust f(jr a cor-

poration to be formed.

XX.
Log" Cabin Mines Company was organized under

the laws of the State of California on October 18,

1838, at the instance and under the direction of

Frank A. Garbutt, with a capital stock of 10,000

shares having a par value of $1.00 a share. The

majority of the board of directors were at all times

selected by Frank A. Garbutt and he at all times

after the issue of its ca])ital stock owned a majority

thereof.

XXI.

Said T^og Ca])in Mines Company was not organ-

ized by or for Mutual Gold Corporation. The organ-

ization and incorporation of Log Cabin Mines Com-

])a]iy ov any other new corporation by, or for, Mu-

tual (fold Cori)oration was never submitted to, or

authorized by, the stockholders of Mutual Gold Cor-

])()]'ation, at any meeting called or held for that

])ur])ose.

XXII.

Said Log Cabin Mines Com])any was organized

for the express purpose of acquiring all the ])ro])-

ert\' and assets of Mutual Gold Corporation and

o])erating the same, and it has never engaged in

[196] any other business than operating said ])vn-

])erties.
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XXIII.

Frank A. Garbutt's relationship to Log Cabin

Mines Company at all times subsequent to its organ-

ization was as promotor, trustee, general manager,

I^rineipal stockholder, and principal creditor.

XXIY.
It was im])ossible to operate the Mutual Gold Cor-

poration properties on the proceeds of a capitaliza-

tion of Log Cabin Mines Com])any of ten thousand

dollars ($10,000.00) at one dollar ($1.00) per share,

which fact was at all times well known to Frank

A. Garbutt and all other parties to this litigation.

XXV.
Frank A. Garbutt ])roceeded to advance money

and to do the things he had agreed to do, including

the payment to the sellers of $10,000.00 on Novem-

ber 1, 1938, for Mutual Gold Corporation.

XXVI.
On October 31, 1938, Frank A. Garbutt gave Mu-

tual Gold Corporation notice of termination of said

contracts of September 2, 1938, and September 22,

1938, and at the same time Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion and Frank A. Garbutt entered into an agree-

ment dated November 1, 1938, terminating said con-

tracts and making Frank A. Garbutt trustee for

Mutual Gold Corporation of the transferred proper-

ties. The action of the officers in executing said

agreement was a])])roved by the board of directors

of Mutual Gold Corporation November 7, 1938. Said
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notice of October 31, 1938, and said agreement of

November 1, 1938, are in evidence as Exhibit 32 and

are liereby made a ])art of these findings.

XXYII.
On December 17, 1938, the board of directors of

Mntnal Gold Corporation adopted the following

resolution:

"Whereas tliis cor])oratioii has been negotiating

for some few weeks with Mr. Frank A. Garbntt for

a contract [197] along the lines of the contract made

witli him on or about September 2 and 22, 1938;

and Whereas, the terms of such contract have been

practically agreed upon; and Whereas, the form of

such contract has been read to and studied by the

board ; and Whereas, it will be for the best interests

of this company that said contract be entered into;

now. therefore, Be It Resolved that this company

enter into said contract with said Frank A. Garbutt,

whicli contract has been fully read, discussed and

studied by the board; and Be It Further Resolved,

that the President of this corporation be and he

hereby is authorized and directed to deliver said

contract to said Frank A. Garbutt and to Log Cabin

Mines Company, a corporation."

XXVIII.

Thereafter Mutual Gold Corjxn-ation entered into

a contract with Frank A. Garbutt and Log Cabin

Mines Company, dated December 17, 1938, whereby

Frank A. Garbutt l)ecame trustee of said transferred

EXHIBIT 32 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 10 thereto, at page 65.
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l)i"operties for Log Cabin Mines Company, and

wherein for a valnable consideration the said Log

Cabin Mines Company undertook to become the

operating company in carrying on the development

and operation of said mining property. Said con-

tract is in evidence as Exhibit 40, and is hereby

made a ])art of tliese findings.

At the next jnmual meeting of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration's stockholders lield on February 1, 1939,

the contract of December 17, 1988 (Exhibit 40 above

referred to) was I'atified by a resolution of the stock-

liolders. Neither the notice of said meeting, in evi-

dence as Exhibit 94 and hereby made a part of these

findings, nor the proxy form solicited by the man-

agement, in evidence as Exhibit 95 and hereb}^ made

a ])art of these findings, contained any reference to

sucli i)roposed action of the stockholders. The stock

present at said meeting and entitled to vote was as

follows: [198]

Present in ])erson 164,114 shares

Present by i)roxy 2,149,342
"

Total ])resent and entitled to

v<^te 2,313,456
''

The vote upon said resolution ratifying the said

contract of December 17, 1938, was as follows:

Shares voting for 1,458,969%

Shares voting against 841,153%

EXHIBIT 40 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 11 thereto, at page 69.

EXHIBIT 94 is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 606.

EXHIBIT 95 is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 607.
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Said contract was also approved by resolution of

the board of directors held on June 6, 1939.

XXX.
On October 20, 1938, S. C. Hall, a friend of Frank

A. Oarbutt 's made a subscription to the capital stock

of Log Cabin Mines Comi)any. He cancelled the sub-

scri]:>tion on November 2, 1938. Xo fTirther stock

subscrijition was made until on or about April 17,

1939, when Mutual Gold Corporation subscribed for

the entire capital stock and borrowed ten thousand

dollars ($10,000.00) from Frank A. Oarbutt to i)ay

therefor. Frank A. Oarbutt and Mutual Oold Cor-

poration executed certain deeds, assignments, and

bills of sale to Log Cabin Mines Company, the first

of which was on March 10, 1939, said documents

being in evidence as Exhibits 45, 46, 47, 52, and 0.

Thus, from the date of its organization to March

10, 1939, Log Cabin Mines Company was entirely

without assets.

XXXI.
The subscription to and jnirchase of said Log-

Cabin Mines Comi)any shares by Mutual Oold Cor-

poration had been authorized by resolution of Mu-

tual Oold Corporation's board of directors, and the

borrowing of said $10,000.00 from Frank A. Oar-

butt to pay for said shai'es had been authorized by

resolution of said board on October 21, 1938. Said

resolution read as follows:

"Be It Further Resolved, that Mr. O. H. Fer-

bert and Mr. W. L. Orill are hereb\' authorized

EXHIBIT 45 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 12 thereto, at page 84.

EXHIBIT 46 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 13 thereto, at page 88.

EXHIBIT 47 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 14 thereto, at page 92.

EXHIBIT 52 is set forth in Complaint, as Exhibit 15 thereto, at page 94.

EXHIBIT O IS set forth in the Reporter's Transcript at page 548.



198 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

and directed to arrange, if they deem it advis-

able, for the organization of [199] a new cor-

poration under the laws of California or any

other state, with a par value of $10,000, di-

vided into 10,000 shares, or such other par value

or number of shares as they may deem advis-

able, and to subscribe to said shares for and on

behalf of tlie Mutual Gold Corporation.

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W.
L. Grill be and they are hereby authorized and

directed to negotiate a loan in the sum of

$10,000 to pay for the subscription of $10,000

to the new com])any in the event that a now

company is organized."

XXXII
Said stock was issued on or about April 17, 1939,

to MutuR] Gold Corporation for $10,000.00 cash,

and was deposited in escrow in Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, under order of the California Commissioner

of Corporations. Thereafter, Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion transferred 5001 of said shares to Frank A.

Garbutt ])ursuant to the terms of said contract of

December 17, 1938. Said Mutual Gold Corporation

still retains the remaining 4,999 of said shares,

which are still in said escrow and have never been

])ledged or otherwise encumbered.

XXXIII.
The said deeds, assignments, and bills of sale to

Log Cabin Mines Company transferred to that com-
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l)any both those of Mutual Gold Corporation's as-

sets that had been previously transferred to Frank

A. Clarbutt and those which had not, with the excep-

tion of some tailings and the surface of the ground

on which W\qy lay. Said transfers to Log Cabin

Mines Company were in exchange for its stock is-

sued to Mutual Gold Corporation.

XXXIV.
Tlie transfer of said assets of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration to Log Cabin Mines Company was made

upon a consideration wliich was not cash. [200]

XXXV.
The obligations of Mutual Gold Corporation at

the time said transfers w^ere made and on August

6, 1938 and at all times thereafter were (1) approxi-

mately $1,835.37 absolutely due and payable; (2)

open accounts on production certificates $1,008.07,

with interest thereon, not due; (3) $30,000.00 rep-

resented by ])roduction notes according to the terms

of the form of production note in evidence as Ex-

hibit 69 and made a ])art of these findings, (4) open

accounts with stockholders $22,785.01 not due; and

(5) the uni)aid balance of the ])urchase i)rice under

said contract of July 13, 1932.

XXXVI.
On April 17, 1939, said Log Cabin Mines Com-

pany employed Frank A. Garbutt as manager, and

he has so acted at all times since without salary.
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XXXVII.
The said contract executed on September 2, 1938

and reexeciited on September 22, 1938, and said

contract executed as of December 17, 1938 were

made by the board of directors of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration with the purpose and intent that out of

the net proceeds from said mining property. Mu-

tual Gold Corporation ^vould pay all its outstanding

indebtedness; and on August 23, 1939, in order

that there might l^e no question as to their inten-

tion, the said board of directors entered into a sup-

plemental agreement with Frank A. Garbutt and

Log Cabin Mines Company specifically providing

that after the repayment of the amounts advanced

by the operating company for labor and machinery

and any other expenses as in said contract pro-

vided, the net i^roceeds from said mining property

belonging and accruing to Mutual Gold Corporation

should first be paid to discharge said indebtedness.

Said supplemental agreement is in evidence as Ex-

hibit J, and is hereb}" made a part of these findings.

XXXVIII.
Since the making of said contracts, Log Cabin

Mines Company and Frank A. Garbutt have ex-

pended labor and money in the de- [201] velopment

of the said mining property, installing thereon a

new mil] capable of milling in excess of 100 tons

of ore per day, together with other proper ma-

chinery and equijoment, so that the total expense

of equipping and developing said proj^erty by the

EXHIBIT J is set forth in Reporter's Transcript at page 520.
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said Log Cabin Mines Company and Frank A. Gar-

butt since the making of said contracts has ex-

ceeded the sum of $100,000.00. They have milled

aj^proximately 48,500 tons of ore, for which approxi-

matel}' $265,000.00 has been received. They have

paid the owners $20,000.00 out of this on the pur-

chase price of the said eighteen claims, and sub-

stantially all the remainder has been expended in

operating, develojnng, and protecting the mining

l)roperty. None of the money advanced by Frank

A. Garbutt has been repaid to him and no interest

thereon has been paid, except that Mutual Gold

Coi-poration is entitled to a credit of $5,001.00 for

the 5,001 shares of Log Cabin Mines Company stock

transferred to him. All ore extracted from the

property by Frank A. Gai'butt and Log Cabin Mines

Company, and all proceeds therefrom, have been

accounted for to Mutual Gold Corporation.

XXXIX.
Xone of the said acts of the Mutual Gold Corpo-

ration or of its officers or directors, or of Log Cabin

Mines Company or of its directors or officers, or of

Cliandis Securities Company or of its directors or

officers, or of Frank A. Garbutt, or of Alice Clark

Ryan, was performed to evade, or circumvent, or

Adolate the laws of the State of Washington or any

law, or to evade Mutual Gold Corporation's said

coiitraet of August 29, 1936 with J. A. Vance or any

other contract or obligation of Mutual Gold Corpo-

ration, or to evade any contract or obligation of
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any of the other said defendants, or to injure Mu-

tual Gold Corporation or its stockholders or credi-

tors or any one, or with the intent to defraud any

one of any right or propert}', or pursuant to any

conspiracy; but each act of all said defendants and

officers and di- [202] rectors was done in good faith

and in the belief that the best interest of Mutual

Gold Corporation and its stockliolders and credi-

tors was being served thereby, and with the intent

that such interests would be so served.

XL.

No act of any of said corporations or of their

respective officers or directors, or of Alice Clark

Rj^an, was induced or influenced by any fraud,

duress, or coercion of Frank A. Garbutt or of any

other person.

XLI.

Frank A. Garbutt has not converted any mineral,

ore, or other property of Mutual Gold Corporation's

to his own use.

XLII.

Said contract of July 13, 1932 for the purchase

of said mining claims is in good standing and not

in danger of being terminated because of any fail-

ure to pay the sellers any installment x^ayment on

the purchase price of said claims.

From the foregoing Findings of Fact, the court

makes the following

—
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

The transactions set forth m the foregoing find-

ings of fact constituted an exchange of the assets

of Mutual Gold Corporation for half the capital

stock, less one share, of Log Cabin Mines Company,

and did not constitute and were not equivalent to

a sale of the assets of, or a reduction of the capi-

tal stock of, or a dissolution of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration.

II.

Such exchange was and is authorized by the Ar-

ticles of Incorporation of Mutual Gold Corporation

and by its stockholders [203] and directors, and by

the laws of the State of Washington.

III.

Mutual Gold Corporation did not by such ex-

change put it out of its power to pay its obligations

out of net production receipts accruing from the

sale of ores or minerals extracted from ores from

its mining jjroperty, and did nut jeopardize or in-

terfere with the rights of its creditors or its stock-

holders.

lY.

1'he board of directors of Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, in authorizing the execution of the said con-

tracts and instruments for the development and

operation of its mining properties acted without

fraud and in the exercise of their sound discretion.
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V.

The acts of the defendants did not constitute

fraud, either actual or constructive.

VI.

There was adequate consideration for said ex-

change and the executing of said contracts and in-

struments; and said exchange, contracts, and in-

struments are valid and legal.

VII.

The force, effect, and validity of the j^urchase con-

tract of July 13, 1932 have not been destroyed or

impaired by any act of the defendants.

VIII.

Defendants are entitled to judgment that plain-

tiffs take nothing by this action and that defendants

shall recover their costs from the plaintiffs.

IX.

By reason of the stipulation filed herein, cross-

defendants are entitled to a judgment that the cross-

comi)laint be dismissed without prejudice and with-

out costs to either cross-defendants or cross-com-

plainant. [204]

Let judgment be rendered and entered accord-

ingly.

Done in open court this 30 day of October, 1941.

BEN HARRISON
Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 30, 1941. [205]
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In the District Court of the United States

Southern District of California

Central Division

No. 714-BH

HELEN M. SUTHERLAND, CHAS. W. SUTH-
ERLAND, M. L HICJGENS, MAYBELLE
HIGGENS, and HELEN AiAUDE LORENZ,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

FRANK A. GARBUTT, CHANDIS SECURI-
TIES COMPANY, a corporation, ALIC^E

CLARK RYAN, LOG CABIN MINES COM-
PANY, a corporation, and MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION, a corporation.

Defendants.

CHANDIS SECURI^riLS (X>MPANY, a corpora-

tion,

Cross-Complainant,

vs.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION, a corporation,

LOG CABIN MINES COxMPANY, a corpora-

tion, and ALICE CLARK RYAN,
Cross- J )efendants.

JUDGMENT
The above-entitled cause came on for trial on

March 18, 1941, at 10 o'clock a.m., and was there-

after on that day and on March 19, 20, and 21, 1941
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ti-ied before the Honorable Ben Harrison, Judge

presiding, a trial by jury having been waived by the

i)arties to said action. Plaintiffs did not appear in

person, but appeared by their attorney Frederick

D. Anderson, Esq., on whose motion W. H. Abel,

Esq. and O. C. Moore, Esq., of the State of Wash-

ington were admitted by the Court to practice be-

fore it in this case and to be associated with said

Frederick D. Anderson as attorneys for the plain-

tiffs. Defendant Frank A. Garbutt and defendant

and [207] cross-defendant Alice Clark Ryan ap-

])('ared hi person and by their attorney David E.

Hinckle, Esq.; defendants and cross-defendants

Log Cabin Mines Coni])any, a cor])orati()n, and Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, a corporation, appeared by

their attorney said David E. Hinckle, on whose mo-

tion William L. Grill, Esq. of the State of Wash-

ington was admitted by the Court to practice ])e-

fore it in this case and to be substituted for said

David E. Hinckle as attorney for said Mutual Gold

Corporation, 'riiereaf'ter, and until the Court ad-

journed on March 20, 1941, defendant and cross-

defendant Mutual Gold Cor])oration was repre-

sented by said William L. Grill, as its attorney,

at which time, on his motion he was i)ermitted Ijy

tlie CoTU't to withdraw as such attorney and said

])avid E. Hhickle wa.s substituted for liim. Defend-

ant and cross-complainant Chandis Securities Com-

pany, a corporation, appeared by its attorney Rich-

ard G. Adams, Esq.

Jiotli oral and documentary evidence were intro-

duced by the respective parties. Thereafter the
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cause was orally argued for tlie plaintiffs to the

Court, and was briefed by the parties. On Septem-

ber 12, 1941, defendants and cross-defendants stip-

ulated in writing with cross-complainant, by arid

tlirough their resj^ective attorneys, that the cross-

conii>laint filed herein be dismissed without preju-

dice.

The Court, being fully advised in the premises,

and having heretofore signed and filed its findings

of fact and conclusions of law, now renders its

judgment in accordance therewith.

It is hereby ordered, adjudged, and decreed

1. That plaintiffs take nothing by their action,

and that defendants have and recover from the

plaintiffs said defendants' costs including daily

Rei^orter's fees and disbursements in said action

in the sum of $88.63.

2. That the cross-complaint filed herein be dis-

missed without prejudice and without costs to

either cross-defendants or [208] cross-complainant.

Dated this 30tli day of Oct., 1941.

BEN HARRISON
Judge

Judgment entered Oct. 30, 1941.

Docketed Oct. 30, 1941.

Book CO. #7 Page 229.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk,

By MURRAY E. WIRE,
Deputy.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 30, 1941. [209]
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[Title of District Court aiul Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given that Helen M. Sutherland,

Charles W. Sutherland, M. I. Higgens, Maybelle

Higgens and Helen Maude Lorenz, i)laintii¥s above

named, hereby appeal to the Circuit Court of Aj)-

peals for the Ninth Circuit from paragraph 1 of

the tinal judgment entered in this action on Oc-

tober 30, 1941, which is in the following words and

tigures, to wit:

•'It is hereby ordered, adjudged and decreed:

"1. That plaintiffs take nothing by their action

and the defendants have and recover from the

plaintiifs said defendants' costs including daily Re-

porter's fees and disbursements in said action in

the sum of $88.63."

Dated this 26th day of January, 1942.

W. H. ABEL,
O. C. MOORE,
FREDERICK D. ANDERSON

By FREDERICK D. ANDERSON
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Address: 650 Subway Terminal

Bldg.

Los Angeles, California.

Telephone: Michigan 0804

[Endorsed]: Copies mailed to David E. Hinckle

and Richard (i. Adams, Attys. for Defts.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 26, 1942. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk. By E. L. S., Deputy. [211]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT [1 (39)]

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 1

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

Know all men by these presents, that we, the un-

dersigned, Ben L. Collins and Ilarley Little, citi-

zens of the LTnited States and citizens and residents

of the State of Washington, and Russell F. Collins,

citizen of the United States and resident of the

State of Idaho, have this day voluntarily associated

ourselves together for the purpose of incori)orating

under the Laws of the State of Washington and do

hereby certify in triplicate as follows:

Article I.

The name of this corporation shall be Mutual

Gold Corporation.

Article II.

The objects and purposes for which this corpora-

tion is organized are as follows:

a. To search, ])rospect and explore for ores and

minerals of all kinds, to locate mining claims,

grounds and lodes in the United States of America

and the territories thereof, and in Foreign Coun-

tries, and to record the same pursuant to the min-

ing laws of the District and Country uf their loca-

tion; to work and develop mining claims, grounds

and lodes ; to crush, concentrate, smelt, retine, dress.
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amalgamate and prej^are for market ores, metals

and mineral substances of all kinds, and to con-

struct and maintain power houses, mills, and con-

centrating reduction and refining plants and build-

ings of every kind and nature, and to install there-

in, or in connection therewith, such machinery and

appliances as may be necessary or convenient for

carrying out the objects and purj^oses of the cor-

poration.

b. To acquire by purchase or exchange, or in

any other manner, in the United States or in For-

eign Countries, mining claims, grounds or lodes,

mining and mineral rights, concessions or grants,

or an}' interest therein, and to sell, exchange, lease

or in any otlier mannei- to dispose of the whole or

any })art thereof or any interest therein when de-

sirable.

c. To acquire by location, i)urchase, exchange or

in any other manner water and water rights, reser-

voirs, acqueducts, mill sites, power sites, and rights

of wa}' which may be necessar}' or convenient in the

development and operation of its mining proper-

ties, or for other uses in connection therewith.

d. To buy, sell, and otherwise deal in ores,

metals, plants, machinery, tools, implements, gro-

ceries, provisions, clothing, boots and shoes, hard-

ware, wooden and metalic ware, and all other ar-

ticles and things in anywise required or callable of

being used in connection with mining operations,

and to mainifacture all such articles when required.
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e. To a.rquire, construct, carry out, maintain,

improve, equip, manage, control, or superintend

any roads, ways, private railways, private tram-

ways, bridges, reservoirs, acqueducts, pipe lines,

power plants, Inxlraulic works, factorieVi, ware-

houses and dwelling houses that may be required

for the uses and purposes of the corporation.

f. To acquire, own, hold, buy, sell and in every

other" manner deal in the shares of stock of other

corj^orations, and to exchange shares of its own

capital stock for any of the things, rights or ])roi)-

erties which it might otherwise lawfully acquire

and hold as enumerated in this article.

/. To borrow money for the purpose of acquir-

ing, improving, develox)ing, operating and maintain-

ing its mining ])roperties, and for all other la\vful

purposes in connection thei-ewith, including the

payment of debts and expenses, and to issue there-

for its notes, bonds or other obligations in writing,

and to secure the same by mortgage or deeds of

trust upon all or any part of its personal ]>roperty

and real estate and the appurtenances thereto.

Article III.

The amount of capital stock of said corj^oration

is '$50,000.00 divided into hve million shares of the

i:>ar value of one cent per share.

Article IV.

The corporation shall be managed by a Board of

three Directors w^hich number may be increased



212 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

to seven at any regular stockholders' meeting or

special stockholders' meeting called for that pur-

pose; the names and addresses of the trustees who

shall manage said corporation until July 18th, 1932,

are as follows:

Ben L. Collins Spokane, Wash.

Harley Little Spokane, Wash.

Russell F. Collins Wallace, Idaho

Article V.

The term of existence of said corporation shall

be fifty years.

Article VI.

The principal place of business of said corpora-

tion shall be the City of Spokane, Washington, but

meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at

such other 2>l'^ces within or without the State of

Washington as may be provided in the By-laws

or by resolution of the Board of Directors.

In witness whereof, we have heremito set our

hands this 11th day of May, 1932.

(Signed) BEN L. COLLINS
(Signed) HARLEY LITTLE
(Signed) RUSSELL F. COLLINS

State of Washington,

County of Spokane—ss.

I, the undersigned, a Notary Pul)lic in and for

the above named County and State, do hereby cer-
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tif\- that on this 11th day of May, 1932, personally

appeared before nie Ben L. Collins and Harley

Little, to me known to be the individuals described

in and who executed the within instrument, and

acknowledged that they signed and sealed the same

as their free and voluntary act and deed, for the

uses and pur}>uses herein mentioned.

Given under my hand and official seal the day and

year last above written.

(Notarial Seal)

(Signed) E. D. WELLER
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Spokane.

State of A¥ashington,

County of King—ss.

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for

the above named County and State, do hereby cer-

tify that on this lltli day of May, 1932, personally

appeared before me Russell F. Collins, to me known

to be the individual described in and who executed

the within instrument, and acknowledged that he

signed and sealed the same as his free and volun-

tary act and deed, for the uses and purposes there-

in mentioned.

Given under my hand and official seal the day

and year last above written.

(Notarial Seal)

(Signed) OTIS 13. HARLAN
Notary Public ui and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
OF

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

At a special meeting of the stockholders of Mu-

tual Grolcl Corporation, called for that purpose, held

at the office of the company in Sj)okane, Washing-

ton on June 18th, 1934, there being represented at

said meeting 3,285,612 shares of stock, either in

person or by proxy, out of 1,562,935 shares outstand-

ing, it was unanimously voted to amend the articles

of incorporation to increase the authorized capital

of said corporation as follows:

That Article III of said articles of incorporation,

reading as follows, to-wit

:

^'Article III''

"The amount of capital stock of said corpo-

ration is $50,000.00 divided into five million

shares of the par value of one cent per share."

be and the same is herein' amended to read as

Article III.

The amomit of ca])ital stock of said corpo-

ration is $70,000.00 divided into seven million

shares of the par value of one cent per share.

Dated at Spokane, Washington, June 20th, 1934.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
(Signed) R. P. WOODWORTH

Vice-President.

Attest

:

BEN. L. COLLINS
Secretaiy
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State of Wasliington,

County of Spokane—ss.

R. P. Woodworth and Ben L. Collins, being each

first duly sworn, says: That they are respectively

Vice President and Secretary of Mutual Gold Cor-

Ijoration; that the foregoing is a true and correct

report of the special meeting of stockholders of

said corporation called for the purpose of amending

the articles of incorporation to increase the author-

ized capital of said company.

(Signed) R. P. WOODWORTH
(Signed) BEN L. COLLINS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20tli day

of June, 1934.

(Signed) E. D. WELLER
Notary Public for Washington Residing at Spokane

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF AR-
TICLES OF INCORPORATION OF I^HE

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

At a regular annual meeting of the stockholders

of Mutual Gold Cor])oration, held in Spokane,

Washington on February 5th, 1936, notice thereof

being regularly given, wliich notice specified the

purjiose of amendmg the articles of incorporation

relating to the caj)ital of said corporation, the fol-

lowing resolution was regularly offered and sec-

onded :

Resolved, that Articles III of the Articles

of Incorporation of Mutual Gold Corporation

be amended to read as follows:
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"Article III.

"The amount of the capital stock of said

corporation is $157,500.00 as follows:

"a. $132,500.00 divided into 2,650,000 shares

of common stock of the par value of 5^ per

share.

"b. $25,000.00 divided into 100,000 shares

of Class A common stock of the par value of

25^^ per share, which shall have equal voting

rights with the other common stock and shall

receive a iDreference dividend of 25f per share

before any dividend shall be declared upon the

other common stock and after such preference

dividend shall have been fully paid, the shares

of both classes of stock shall be t^qual in all

respects.
'

'

Upon said resolution ]3ein^- i)ut to a vote, out of

a total of 6,315,171 shares outstanding 4,276,589

shares, present in jjerson and by proxy, voted in

favor of said resolution and 196,023 shares, present

in person or by proxy, voted against said resolu-

tion.

It appearing that more than two-thirds of the

outstanding stock voted for said resolution. Article

III of said Articles of Incorporation was declared

amended in accordance with the resolution.

Thereupon, it was moved, seconded and unani-

mously carried by vote of 4,472,612 shares that the

outstanding common stock of the corporation be
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exchanged for the new conmion stock on the basis

of tliree shares of the outstanding common stock

for one share of the new common stock.

(Signed) R. P. WOODWORTH
Vice President

(Signed) J. P. HALL
Secretary

State of Washington,

County of Spokane—ss.

R. 1^. Woodworth, as Vice-i^resident and J. F.

Hall, as Secretary of Mutual Gold Corporation, be-

ing each duly sworn on oath depose and say: That

the foregoing certificate is a true and correct copy

of the proceedings of the annual meeting of the

stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation relating

to the amendment of Articles of Incorx)oration, in-

creasing the capital of said corporation and reducing

the number of shares and providing for the basis

of reduction of said shares.

(Signed) R. P. WOODWORTH
(Signed) J. P. HALL

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 8tli day

of February, 1936.

(Signed) E. D. WELLER
Notary Public hi and for the State of Washington,

residing at Spokane.
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BY-LAWS OF THE MUTUAL GOLD
CORPORATION

Article I—Stockholders

Sec. 1. The annual meeting of the stockholders

of this Company for the election of Directors shall

be held at the office of the Company in the City

of Spokane, Spokane County, Washington, on the

first Monday in June of each year if said day is

not a legal holiday, but if a legal holiday then on

the day following.

Sec. 2. Special meetings of the stockholders may

be called to be held at the office of the Company

at its principal place of l)usiness, at any time by

the President, or by a majority of the Board of

Directors. It shall be the duty of the President to

call a si)ecial meeting upon the written request of

the holders of two-fifths of the stock of the corpo-

ration.

Sec. 3. In addition to the notice required by

law, notice of meetings written or j^rinted for every

regular or special meeting of the stockholders, shall

be signed by the President or Secretary and mailed

by the Secretary of the Company to the last known

address of each stockholder as shown by the books

of the Company, not less than ten days before such

meeting, and if for a special meeting, such notice

shall state the object or objects thereof, and no

other business shall be transacted at such special

meeting.
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Sec. 4. A quorum at any meeting of the stock-

liolders, which consists of a majority of stock is-

sued, represented either in person or b}' proxy. A
majority of such quorum shall decide any question

that may come before the meeting. Every person

acting therein in jjerson or by proxy or by repre-

sentative, must be a bona tide stockhokler, liaving

stock in his own name on the stock books of the

cori>oration, at least ten days prior to such meeting.

Sec. 5. xVny stockhokler may vote his stock by

proxy in writing, given to any other stockholder

of the Conqjany. No person shall vote as a proxy

miless he is a stockholder authorized to act in said

meeting, and shall i)resent to and tile with the Sec-

retary, written authority so to do, signed by the

stockholder whom he represents.

Sec. 6. At such annual meeting of the stock-

holders of the Comically for the election of Direc-

tors three Directors shall be elected from among

the holders of stock, unless the number of Directors

shall have been changed to seven, in which case

seven shall be so elected, who shall serve for one

year and until their successors are elected, and

qualified. At least one of which Directors must be

a citizen and actual bona fide resident within the

State of Washington. All elections of Directors

must be b}^ ballot and the vote of the stockholders

representing a majority of the issued ca])ital stock

shall be necessary to a choice. If for any reason

Directors are not elected at the annual meeting of
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the stockholders, a special meeting shall be called

for that j)iirpose within thirty days thereafter, at

which time Directors shall be elected in all respects

as at the annual meeting. At all elections for Di-

rectors each stockholder of record shall have the

right to vote in person or by proxy for the number

of shares of stock owned by him for as many per-

sons as there are Directors to be elected, or to

cunmlate said shares and give one candidate as

many votes as the number of Directors multiplied

by the number of his shares of stock shall equal, or

to distribute them on the same principle among as

many candidates as he shall think tit.

Sec. 7. The order of business at the annual meet-

ings, and as far as i^ossible at all other meetings

of the stockholders shall be:

1. Roll call

2. Proof of due notice of meeting

3. Reading and disposal of any unapproved min-

utes

4. Reports of officers and committees

5. Election of Directors

6. Unfinished business

7. New business

8. Adjourmnent.

Article II—Directors

Sec. 1. The corporate powers, business and

property of this corporation shall be exercised, con-

ducted and controlled by a Board of Three Direc-

tors, unless said number shall be subsequently
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cluiiiged to seveji, who shall be stockholders of the

CoDipany. All vacancies m the Board of Directors

shall he tilled by the remaining membership of the

Board for the unexpired term or terms. Directors

shall receive no comi^ensation for their services

as Directors, but they shall be allowed their rea-

sonable traveling expenses for attending meetings

of the Board.

Sec. 2. The regular meetings of the Board of

Directors shall be held at the office of the Company

at Spokane, Spokane County, Washington, on the

tirst Monday of each month, if not a legal holiday

then on the next succeeding day, and may be held

at any other time or place within or without the

State of Washington, when so designated by a reso-

lution adopted before the adjournment of any reg-

ular meeting or when all the Directors are present,

or agree in writing to hold such meeting at any

other time or place.

Sec. 3. Special meetings of the Board of Direc-

tors shall be held at the principal office of the Com-

pany, or may be held at aiu' time and place within

or without the state without notice and for the

transaction of any business, by unanimous written

consent of all the Directors, or by the ])resence of

aJl tlie Directors at such meetings. Special meetings

of the Board of Directors to be held at the principal

office of the Comj)any may be called at any time by

the President or by any two members of the Board

of Directors.
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Sec. 4. Notice of special meetings of the Board

of Directors shall l)e delivered personally by the

Secretary to each member of the Board, or such

notice may be mailed by the Secretary to each mem-

ber, not later than one da}' before such special

meeting, and such notice shall state the purposes

thereof, and no other business shall be transacted

at such special meeting miless b}^ unanimous con-

sent of all the Directors in writing. Notices of regu-

lar and adjourned meetings of the Directors shall

not be required.

Sec. 5. A quorum at any meeting of the Board

of Directors shall consist of a majority of the entire

membership of the Board, and a majority of such

quorum shall decide an}- question that may come

before the meeting. In the absence of a majority

of the Board of Directors, those present may ad-

journ the meeting from da}^ to day.

Sec. 6. Officers of the Company shall be elected

by the Board of Directors at their first meeting

after the annual election of Directors for each year.

If any office shall become vacant during the year,

the Board of Directors shall fill the same for the

unexpired term. The Board of Directors shall fix

the compensation of all officers of the Company.

Sec. 7. The Board of Directors may at any time

by a tAvo-thirds vote of the full membership of the

Board, for good causes shown, remove any officer

or other emj)loyee of the Comi^any.
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Sec. 8. The order of business at the meetings of

the Board of Directors shall be as follows:

1. Roll Call

2. Proof of due notice of meeting (when notice

is required)

3. Reading and disposal of any unapproved min-

utes

4. Reports of officers and connnittees

5. Unfinished business

G. New business

7. Adjournment.

Article III—Officers

Sec. 1. The officers of the Company shall be a

President, one or more Vice Presidents, who shall

be elected from among the Directors, and a Secre-

tary and Treasurer and an attorney who shall be

elected from among the Directors or stockholders,

all of whom shall be elected for one year, and shall

hold office until their successors are elected and

cpuilihed, unless removed sooner from office as here-

inbefore provided. The office of Secretary and Treas-

urer may be united in one person.

Sec. 2. The President shall preside at all meet-

ings of the stockholders and directors; shall have

general management and supervision of the affairs

of the Company; he shall sign as President all cer-

tificates of stock, and all contracts and other in-

struments in writing, which have been first ap-

])roved and authorized by the Board of Directors;
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lie shall call the Directors together whenever he

deems it necessary, make reports to the Directors

and stockholders, and perform such other duties

as are incident to his office, or are properly re-

quired of him by the Board of Directors. His acts

at all times and in all matters shall be under the

direction of the Board of Directors. He shall re-

ceive such salary, if any, as the Board of Directors

may from time to time tix and allow.

Sec. 3. In the absence of the President, or in

case of his inability to perform his duties, the Vice

President shall exercise all the functions of the

office.

Sec. 4. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to

keep full and accurate ujinutes of the ])roceedings

of the Board of Directors and of the stockholders,

in a proper book, and to issue all necessary no-

tices for such meetings. He shall keep a book of

blank certificates of stock, fill out and countersign

all certificates issued, and make the corresponding

entries on the margin of each book on such issu-

ance. He shall make transfers of stock upon the

books of the Company, upon surrender of the

original certificate, and shall keep a proi)er transfer

book and stock ledger in debit and credit form,

showing the number of shares issued to and trans-

ferred by any stockholder, and the dates of such

issuance and transfer. He shall keep proper account

books of all transactioiis of the Company and dis-

charge such other duties as pertain to his office,
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01' which are prescribed by the Board of Directors.

He shall be entitled to charge and collect the snni

of Fifty Cents (.50) for each certificate issued in

making transfers of stock on the books of the

Company, (except original issue), t<» be paid by the

X)arty having the transfer made, and shall receive

such additional compensation for his services as the

Board of Directors may from time to time fix and

allow.

Sec. 5. The Treasurer shall have the custody of

all moneys and securities of the Company, and

sluill keei) regular books of account and balance

the same each month. He shall deposit the same in

the name of the Company in such bank or trust

Company as the Directors shall from time to time

designate, and shall pay out the same b}' check

only in payment of bills or debts of the Company

which have first been audited and directed to be

Ijaid by the Board of Directors. He shall make a

rei)ort in detail of all moneys received, from whom,

when, and for what purpose, to the Board of Direc-

tors at least quarterly, and make such other re-

ports and statements as the Board of Directors

may require. He shall take itemized, receipted

vouchers for all money paid out, and file the same

with the Secretarx' with his report. He may be

req\iired to give a surety bond in such sums as the

Board of Directors shall fix, the })remiiuii thereto

to be paid by the Company. He shall sign or coun-

tersign such instruments as require his signature,
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and shall i)erform all duties incident to his office,

or that are properly required of him by the Board

of Directors. He shall receive such compensation

for his services as the Board of Directors may from

time to time fix and allow.

Sec. 6. The attorney shall be the legal advisor

of the Directors and stockholders, shall have charge

of any and all legal business in which the Company
may be interested and shall receive such compen-

sation from time to time as the Directors may fix

and allow.

Article IV.

Stock, Stock Books and Stock Certificates

Sec. 1. Certificates of stock in such form as the

Directors may prescribe shall be issued when fully

paid up, in numerical ordei- from the stock certifi-

cate books, signed by the President and Secretary,

and sealed with the corporate seal. A record of each

certificate issued shall be kept on the stub thereof.

Sec. 2. Shares of stock may be transferred at

any time by the holders thereof, or by attorney le-

gally constituted or by legal representative, upon

the delivery of the original certificate projjerly en-

dorsed or transferred but no transfer shall be valid

except between the parties thereto until the same

is entered in i)roper form on the books of the Com-

pany, and no such entry shall be made until the

surrender of the certificate of stock. The surren-

dered certificate shall be cancelled before a new

certificate shall be issued in lieu thereof, and the
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cancelled certificate shall be retained by the Sec-

retaiy. No transfer of stock shall be made upon

the books of the Company until all indebtedness

to the Company from the j^erson in whose name

the stock stands, whether for assessment, calls or

otherwise, is paid.

Sec. 3. All stock of the Company remaining un-

issued, or that may be donated to or otherwise

acquired by the Comi^any, shall be treasury stock,

and shall be held subject to disposal b\' the Board

of Directors. Such stock shall neither vote nor

particii)ate in dividends while held in the treasury

of the Comjjany.

Sec. 4. The board of Directors may require a

bond in such sum as it may deem reasonable to

protect the Company from loss, before ordering the

issuance of a duj^licate certihcate of stock claimed

to have been lost or destroyed by any stockholders.

Sec. 5. The stock books of the Company shall

be closed ten days previous to any regular or spe-

cial meeting of the stockholders, and also ten days

previous to the payment of any dividend, and the

list of stockholders as appears upon the books of

the Company at the time of closing said books shall

determine who shall vote said stock at such meetings

or receive dividends thereon.

Article V—Seal

Sec. 1. The corporate seal of the Company shall

consist of the words "Mutual Cold Corporation,
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Incorporated, Seal 1932", and such seal as im-

pressed on the margin hereof is hereby adopted

as the corporate seal of the Company.

Sec. 2. The Secretary shall have the custody of

the corporate seal and shall affix the same to all

certificates of stock and other instruments of the

Company requiring a seal when so directed by the

Board of Directors.

Article VI.

The Directors of the Company may appoint an

Advisory Committee of from three (3) to Fifteen

(15) members, any member of whom may be called

in at any time by the Directors to confer with the

Board on any matter in which the Company may
be interested. The advisory committee shall be

chosen from among the stockholders of the Com-

pany, other than the Directors; each member of

the Advisory Committee shall hold such office from

the date of his appointment until the next annual

meeting of the stockholders.

Article VII.

Sec. 1. These By-Laws may be amended, re-

pealed or altered in whole or in j)art, or new By-

laws may be adopted at the annual meeting of the

stockholders, or at any special meeting of the stock-

holders called for that purpose, by a vote represent-

ing two-thirds of the outstanding stock, or by writ-

ten consent of the holders of two-thirds of the out-
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standing capital stock, given in the manner required

by law.

Sec. 2. The Board of Directors may adopt ad-

ditional 133^-Laws in harmony herewith, but shall not

alter oi' repeal any by-laws adopted by the stock-

holders of the Company.

The foregoing By-Laws consisting of seven (7)

articles were duly approved and ado])ted this 26tli

day of May, 1932.

RUSSELL F. COLLINS
President

BEN L. COLLINS
Secretary

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 2

is set forth in the Com])laint, as Exhibit 1 thereto,

at page 23.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 3

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 2 thereto,

at page 38.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 4

is set forth in the Comi)laint, as Exhibit 4 thereto,

at page 45.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 5

MINUTES OF MEETING OF DIRECTORS
OF MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

Held

July 18th, 1938

The Board of Directors of the Mutual Gold Cor-

poratiou met at the office of the company at the

Vance Hotel, Seattle, Washington, on Monday the

18th day of July, A. D., 1938 at tlie hour of 2:00

o'clock P. M. pursuant to adjournment and pur-

suant to notice sent to all the Directors and pur-

suant to call and waiver of notice duly signed by

the members of tlie Board.

The meeting was called to order by President

J. E. Stiegler, who presided, Vice President R. P.

Woodw<n'tli acting as Secretary.

Roll call showed tlie following results:

Present—J. E. Stiegler, R. P. Woodworth, F. T.

Hickcox, W. L. Grill, J. A. Vance, Russell F. Col-

lins,

Absent—G. H. Ferbert.

Lloyd Vance and Robt. J. Cole wei'e also present.

Call and WaiA^er of Notice was ordered spread

u])nn the mimites and was as follows:

''AVAIVER OF NOTICE
of

DIRECTORS' MEETING
AVe, the undersigned, being all the directors

of the Mutual Gold Corporation, do hereby
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call a meeting- of the Board of Directors to be

held at tlie Vance Hotel, Seattle, Washington,

on Monda\' the 18th day of Jnly, A. D., 1938

at tlie hour of 2 :00 o'clock P. M.

We do hereby waive notice (»f the time, place

and ])Ui'pose of the said meeting, and do hereby

consent that any and all business in any way

pei'taining to the affairs of the comj^any may

be transacted thereat.

R. P. WOODWORTH
J. E. STIEGLER
RUSSELL F. COLLINS
W. L. GRILL
F. T. HICKOCK
J. A. VANCE"

The president stated that the meeting had been

called for the ])urpose of ])roviding some way for

the financing of the cor]joration and the further

development and o])eration of its ])roperty and

stated that the proposition that had been made l)y

the Board of Directors to the Sunshine Mining

Company had been rejected.

After some considerable discussion in regard t(^

the matter, Lloyd Vance made a verbal offer to

provide a corporation to take over and manage

the pro])erty of the Mutual Gold Cor])oration, and

after some discussion, Mr. Vance was requested to

submit the proposition to the Board in writing and

the meeting was adjourned to reconvene at the
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same place at 7:30 P.M. to enable Mr. Vance to

prepare and submit a written offer as outlined.

Tlie meeting reconvened at 7:30 P.M., Monday

the 18t]i day of July, A. D., 1938 pursuant to ad-

journment. The same officers presided and roll

call showed the same ])ersons present as above set

forth.

Ml'. Lloyd Vance submitted a written proposition

to the Board of Directors which was ordered spread

U])on the mimites and is as folloAvs:

^'Seattle, Washington

July 18th, 1938

''Tn The Board of Directors of the Mutual

Gold Corporatio]!

:

(xentlemen:

I herewith submit the following proposition

with respect to your holdings and property

situated in Mon^ County, California

:

I and my associates will form a corporation

under the laws of the State of Washington

with a ca])ital stock equal to the present out-

standing capital stock of your corporation, the

new corporation to have a par value of 25^'.

Your corporation is to assign to me and the

new corporation, an undivided one-half inter-

est in yonr contract for purchase of said ])rop-

erty and a good and sufficient mining deed to

an undivided one-half interest in and to all

of your other claims and holdings and turn
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over to lis the exclusive management and con-

trol of the property. We are to agree to in-

stall, as soon as weather conditions will permit,

an amalgamation and cyanide ])lant caj^able

of handling at least one hundred tons per da}'

and will also install a hoist and other neces-

sary mining eqnii^ment and buildings and fur-

nish sufficient funds for working capital. We
will also take care of the ])ayments due and to

become due on your ])urchase contract for the

said claims and in i-eturn therefore we are to-

have all of the income from the said property

until such time as all funds which we have ad-

vanced in the installation of machinery and

equipment
;
payments on contract and for what-

ever purpose in connection with the operation

of said j)roperty, after which time the net o])-

erating ])rotits from the operation of said pro])-

erty shall be ])aid to you until your funded

debt has been ])aid off and your ])referred stock

has received its ])referred dividend at which

time we are to oavu an undivided one-half in-

terest in and to the ])ro])erty and assets of your

corporation and in and to the assets of tlie

new corporation, in other words, after the re-

j^ayment to us of the fimds which we havc^

advanced, and the re-payment to you of your

funded debt, and 25f j)er share on your pre-

ferred stock, each corporation shall be entitled

to and shall receive one-half of the net oper-

ating profits.
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If this proposition nieets with your approval,

a detailed contract is to be worked out, you are

to forthwith call a meeting of your stockholders

and have them ratify the same and extend to

the stockholders of your corporation the rig'ht

to purchase stock in the new corporation on the

same proportionate basis as they now hold

stock in the Mutual Gold Corporation. To take

care of the present indebtedness for loans to

your corporation, you will increase your ca]:)i-

tal st<x-k so that this $24,000 of indebtedness,

(or whatever the amoimt may be), will be taken

care of on a stock bonus and note basis, the

same as was provided when you raised your last

$30,000, or if you prefer, we will take care of

these loans to your corporation, in which event

the new corporation shall receive 60% interest

in the property and you will receive 40% inter-

est u])on the coin])letion of the terms herewith

outlined, or in other words the profits at, that

shall be divided 60% to the new cor]x^ration

and 40% to vour corporation.

We will, of course, agree to take care of the

assessment w(n'k which may be necessary to

protect your claims as required by law, or in

the event that we should decide we do not wish

to hold any of the said claims, Ave will notify

you in sufficient time so that you can do the

assessment work thereon on the present ma-

chinery and equi])inent which you now have.
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We, of course, will be allowed to sell or dis-

pose of in such manner as we see fit and will

make ])roper accounting to your corporation

therefor. However, we shall have the right to

use and have the exclusive management and

control of all of the property of your corpo-

ration.

This olfer is made contingent upon our ex-

amination of the titles and claims now held

under lease and o])tion for which we are to

have a period of fifteen days from the date

hereof to examine and if not satisfactory this

offer may be withdrawn.

Respectfully submitted,"

Objections were rai^^ed as to the ])ro])osition sub-

mitted as follows:

1. That the current obligations and capital stock

tax of the Mutual Gold Corporation should be

taken care of by the new company.

2. That the new company should take over the

recent loans of Mr. J. A. Vance and Mr. J. E.

Stiegler to the Mutual Gold Cor])oration, and that

the same should be a ])ai't of the new cor])orati<)U

with right to such new cor])oration to reimburse

itself for ex])enditures in this respect the same as

any other ex])enditures.

3. That after the new company had been repaid

from the net o])erating ])rofits all funds which it

had advanced for Mutual Gold Corporation, loans

assumed, expenses incurred, etc., that the net oper-
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ating' profits would then be paid over to the Mutual

Gold Corporation until such time as is funded debt

had been paid off and its Class A stock had re-

ceived dividends of 25'/ per share from and after

which time the net operating profit would be divided

on a 50-50 basis.

4. That Lloyd Vance should guarantee a sub-

scription to the new corporation, exclusive of the

loans assumed by it, in the amount of $70,000.

After some considerable discussion Mr. Lloyd

Vance agreed to accept the changes recommended

in tlie said offer and the Secretary was instructed

to let the minutes so sliow.

Thereu])(m, on motion made by Mr. Grill, seconded

by Mr. iJickcox and unanimously carried, the fol-

lowing resolution was ado]^ted:

Resolved tliat the offer of Lloyd Vance as sub-

mitted ti> this meeting, (co])y of which is spread

U])(»n tlie minutes) when changed and altered in

conformity witli tlie changes hereinbefore set out

in these minutes, be and the same is hereby received,

a20])roved and recommended to the stockholders for

acceptance ; that the annual meeting of the stock-

holders be called and held as soon as possible and

not later than the 6th day of August, A. D. 1938 at the

lioiir of 11 :C0 (/clock A.M. for the purpose of elect-

ing a Jjoard of Directors and a])])roving and actin.g

u])oii the offer of the said Lloyd Vance f(n' the sale

and dis])osition of the undivided one-half interest

in nnd to the holdings of the coi]i])any, and autlKn--
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izing- and empowering the Board of Directors to

sell or otherwise disjoose of the whole or any part

of the assets of the eor])oration at such time or

times and on such terms and conditions as they

ma>' deem adequate, and to form and enter into

any working agreement along the lines as contem-

plated by the offer of said Lloyd Vance, or such

other or different agreement as they may, in their

absolute dr^scretion deem advisjible, and to transact

any and all other business that may come before

said meeting, and that the Secretary be and she is

herein- niitliorized, em])owered and instructed to set

tlie date of such meeting at the earliest moment

])ossible as {)rovided by law and the b^^-laws of this

corporation, and that a letter be sent with the notice

of such meeting to all the stockholders advising

them fully witli resj)ect to the necessity of some

such action and covering the activities of the com-

pany since the last report to {ehm made under date

of April f), 19:38, such letter to be a])])roved and

signed by Mr. J. E. Stiegler as President; and that

Wednesday, the 20th day of .July A. D., 19:38 at

12:00 o'clock noon be aud the same is hereby fixed

as a recorded date for the determination of the

shareholders entitled to notice of such meeting.

On motion duly made, seconded and cai-ried the

Treasurer was instructed to pay to Russell F. Col-

lins the sum of $100.00 as soon as funds were avail-

able.

On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the

Secretarv was instructed to ask for 60 davs exten-
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sion of time within which to file the Capital Stock

Declaration for the reason and on the grounds that

a deal was pending for the sale of the property of

the company, which, if consummated would materi-

ally affect the declaration of value.

iS^o further business appearing the meeting, on

motion duly made, seconded and carried was ad-

journed to be reconvened at the office of the com-

]iany, 401 Fernwell Building, in the City of Spo-

kane, Washington on Saturday, the 6th day of

August, 1938 at the hour of 9:30 A.M. or at such

hour and place on the day fixed for the holding

of the stockholders meeting as contemplated by

these minutes.

President

Recording Officer

Directors



vs. Frank A. Garbutt, et al. 239

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 6

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETIING OF
STOCKHOLDERS

of

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

Date of Meetin,^—Ai^snist 6, 1938

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting*

of Stockholders of the Mutual Gold Corporation

will be held at the office of the Company, 401 Fern-

well Building, in the City of Spokane, Washington,

on Saturday, the 6th day of August, A. D. 1938, at

the hour of 11:00 o'clock x\. M., for the following

]nir])oses

:

1. To elect a Board of Directors for the en-

suing year.

2. To a])prove, ratify and confirm the acts

and ])roceedings of the Board of Directors and

Officers of the cor])oration since the last Annual

Meeting of Stockholders.

3. To authorize, empower and direct tlie

Board of Directors to accept the offer of Lloyd

Vance as outlined in the letter of the President

under date of July 20th, 1938, a co])y of which

letter is hereAAdth enclosed, and by reference

made a part hereof, and/or authorize, empower

and direct the Board of Dii-ectors to make and

enter into such other or diiferent deal with

Lloyd Vance, or any other ])erson or corpora-

tion, with respect to all of the assets of this

corporation, the management, control and oper-
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ation thereof, the division of the profits thereof

or otherwise, as such Board of Directors shall,

in their absolute discretion, deem expedient, ad-

visable or desirable.

4. To authorize and empower the Board of Di-

rectors to sell, lease, exchange or otherwise dis-

pose of all of the assets of this corporation at

such time or times, for such price and upon such

terms and conditions, for cash or otherwise, as

tliey sliall, in their absolute discretion deem ex-

pedient, advisable or desirable, including the

exchanging for shares in another corporation,

domestic or foreign.

5. To take action u])on and transact any

other business which may properly and lawfully

come before the meeting.

The Minute Book of the corporation will be pre-

sented to the meeting and will be o])en for the

ins])ection of stockholders.

The enclosed form of ])roxy is solicited by the

management and it is the intention of the proxies

named therein to vote for the election of tlie Direc-

tors of the corporation for the ensuing year, and

in favor of a])])r()ving, ratifying and confirming

the acts and ])roceedings of the Board of Directors

and the Officers of the cor])oration since the last

Annnal Meeting of Stockholders of the corporation

(held February :^ 1987) and as outlined above.

Tf yon do not exjx'ct to be ])ersonally ])i'esent at
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the meeting- the Board of Directors request that

you sign and return the enclosed proxy at once.

Dated July 20, 1938.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
By E. FUSON, Secretary.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 8

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
401 Fernwell Building-

Spokane, Wash.

Directors

J. A. Vance, Seattle, AVash.

Russell F. Collins, Leevining, Cal.

R. P. Woodworth, Spokane, Wash.

J. E. Stiegler, Naches, Wash.

W. L. Grill, Seattle, Wash.

F. T. Hickeox, Tacoma, Wash.

G. H. Ferbert, Naches, Wash.

Officers

J. E. Stiegler, President

R. P. Wood^Yorth, Vice-President

T. A. Vance, Vice-President

Russell F. Collins, Vice-President

E. Fuson, Secy.-Treas.

July 20, 1938

Dear Stockholders:

By direction of the Board of Directors there is

enclosed herewith notice of meeting of the stock-
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holders of your Company to be held, at the office

of the Com]^any at 401 Fernwell Building, in the

City of Spokane, Washington, on Saturda}^ the 6th

day of August, 1938, at the hour of 11:00 o'clock

A. M.

If you will not be ])ersonally present at the said

meeting, kindly sign and i-eturn, at once, tlie proxy

Avliich is enclosed herewith, tliat all stock may be

represented at this meeting—this is imperative.

Since the reports mailed to you under date of

April r)th. 1938, your officers and directors have

been actively engaged in endeavoring to provide

ways and means for the further financing and oper-

ation of your ])roperty. Mr. J. A. Vance, Vice-

President and General Manager, recently spent

about two vreeks at tlie ])roperty with Mr. Robert

J. Code, Mining Engineer, who, under date of June

14, 1938, made a very comprehensive report of his

findings, with recommendations. Tests have also

been made with respect to the proper treatment

of this ore to effect a better saving than was pos-

sible with our ])resent equipment.

The result of these reports seems to be that we have

at least 125,000 tons of ore available that averages

about $11.20 per ton. That savings by amalgama-

tion, as shown by laboratory test, is about 50%
wliile by actual o])erati(^n we recovered about 64%.

That approxomately 98V>% may be recoverable by

amale'amation and cvanidation.
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While use of our present equipment was ad-

visable during the development period for the pur-

pose of determining the character and continuity

of the ore, proper method of treatment, and to

assist in providing funds to carry on the work, the

condition of the property is now such that further

operation with the present equipment should not be

continued. A new amalgamation and cyanidation

])hiiit capable of liandling at least 40,000 tons ])er

year should be installed, electrical power line ])ut

in, new hoist equipment, mining machinery and

additional accommodation for larger crew })rovided.

With this idea in view we have been contacting

some of the larger well-known oj^erating com|)anies

with a view of interesting them in taking over and

operating your property under similar terms and

conditions as the Azurite, Jack Waite and others

have been handled. A¥hile we have not been suc-

cessful in this res])ect our lack of success, we be-

lieve, was due to the present low market on base

metals and the imsettled business conditions in gen-

eral and not ao any lack of merit or interest in your

proj^terty.

Time also is short, as it is necessary, if any addi-

tional equipment is to be installed this year, that

it be installed at once. Another $10,000.00 i:)ayment

is due this fall on the contract of purchase and a

crew must be kept continuously employed at the

]:)r()])ert>' to Ivce]) the tunnels in working condition,

which would require about $20,000 to ])e spent for
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these items—funds for wliicli would have to ])e

raised outside.

The best offer which we have thus far received

and which will be submitted to you, as stockholders,

for your approval, was received from Lloyd Vance

on the 18th instance, the substance of which, as

agreed to, is as follows:

That Mr. Ivloyd Vance, and his associates, will at

once form a corporation under the laws of the

State of Washington with a capital at least equal

to the present outstanding capital of the Mutual

Gold Corporation ; the stock of the new corporation

having a par value of 25 cents per share. That

the stockholders of tlie Mutual Gold Corporation

will be given an opportunity to purchase an in-

terest in the new corporation equal to what their

present holdings are in the Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, that is, holders of 5 per cent par common

stock, will be given an opportunity to purchase one

25 cent ])ar share in the new corporation for each

5 shares of common they now hold and the present

Class A 25 cent par stockholders, will be offered

an opportunity to purchase one 25 cent par share

in the new corjjoration for each Class A share they

now hold.

Mr. Lloyd Vance and associates will underwrite

$70,000.00 at least of stock in the new^ corporation

as a guarantee that that amount will be immediatel.y

available for the carrying out of the terms of the

contract.
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The new corporation will agree to forthwith in-

stall an amalgamation and eyanidation plant capable

of handling at least 100 tons per day, new hoist,

power line, adequate mining equij^ment and tools,

erect such additional buildings as may be necessary,

take care of payments on the option and lease for

the ]nirchase of the ])roi)erty, provide funds for

taking care of the current liabilities of the Mutual

Gold Corporation and the present capital stock

tax of the Mutual Gold Corporation, and will also

t-ikc into the ne\v corporation the $21,000.00 in

debts consisting of loans made to the Mutual G(^ld

Cor])oration over and above its last $30,000.00

funded debt.

The new corporation is to haA^e the exclusive man-

agement and control of all of the property of the

Mutual Gold Corporation and all of the net oper-

ating profits shall go to the new corporation until

such time as any and all funds expended by it in

the operation of the property, installing machinery,

])ayment of loans, and any and all funds expended

by it for whatever purpose shall have been paid,

after which time all of the net operating profits

shall go to the Mutual Gold Corporation until such

time as its funded debt shall have been paid off and

its Class A stock shall have received 25 cents per

share, at and from which time the net operating

profits shall be divided 50-50 between the Mutual

Gol'l Corporation and the nev; cor})oration.

This, in substance, coA'ers the principal ])oints

conf.'iined in the offer of Llovd Vance, the details
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of the contract of course, it will be necessary for

your Board of Directors to work out.

You will be asked to apj)rove the offer and author-

ize the Board to execute such contract as they shall

deem advisable, and will also be requested to authoi*-

ize them to sell or otherwise dispose of the whole

or any part of the assets of the Mutual Gold Cor-

])oration at such time or times, aiid on such term or

terms and conditions as the,Y shall, in their abso-

lute discretion, deem adequate so that they may be

])laced in a position to dispose of the whole or any

])art of the ])roperty, and have full authority to do

so sliould they find it necessary or advisable.

Very ti'uly yours,

J. E. STIEGLER,
President.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 9

MINIATES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF
STOCKHOLDERS

OT

MUTUAL GOL-D CORPORATION

Held Auoust 6, 19:38

The stockholders of the Mutual Gold Corporation

met in regular anmial session at the office of the

company, 401 Fernwell Building in the City of

Spokane, State of A¥ashington, on Saturday the

6tli da>^ of August A. D., 1938 at the hour (^f

11 :00 o'clock A.M., pursuant to call and notice.



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 247

The meeting' was called to order by President

J. E. Stiegier who asked R. P. Woodworth to pre-

side, Secretary E. Fuson acting as recording officer.

The Chair appointed Mr. E. D. Weller and Mrs.

E. Fuson as proxy committee to check and rei)ort

on the proxies.

The office of the company being inadequate to

acco«?odate the stockholders, the meeting, on mo-

tion duly made, seconded and carried was adjourned

to l3e reconvened at the office of the Company in

the x\ssembly Room of the Old National Bank

Building, Spokane, Washington at the hour of 2:00

o'clock P.M.

The meeting reconvened at 2:00 o'clock P.M. at

the office of the Company in the Assembly Room of

tlie Old National Bank Building, Spokane, Wash-

ington pursuant to adjournment, the same officers

being in the chair.

Roll call showed the following results

:

Present in Person 856,404

Present by Proxy 1,105,953

Present by Endorsed Certificates... 22,250

Total shares present and entitled

to vote 1,984,609

Total shares outstanding 2,633,830

Shares necessary for a majority 1,316,916

Shares necessary for a % majority...l,755,890

Tlie ])roxy committee reported that the proxies

were in remdar f(U*m in the amounts as above
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stated, and iii:>on motion duly made, seconded and

carried, the report of the proxy committee was ac-

cepted and approved.

The Secretary presented a copy of the Notice of

the Annual Meeting* pursuant to which the meeting-

was held, and a cop}^ of the letter of J. E. Stiegier,

President referred to and made a part of said notice

together with the affidavit of mailing to each and

all stockholders of record more than 10 days prior

to the date fixed for the meeting as provided by

the by-lav/s of the compajiy. The same being in

regular form and there being no objections thereto,

the Chair de/cared the meeting was regularly and

duly called and open for business.

The minutes of the last meeting of the stockhold-

ers held February 3, 1937 were read and on motion

duly made, seconded and carried, approved as read.

The reports of the officers and directors having*

been mailed to the stockholders together with a copy

of the balance sheet, and there being no objection

thereto, on motion duly made, seconded and car-

ried, same were ordered accepted and approved.

Tlie ]iext order of business was the election of a

Doard of seven directors to serve until the next

annual meeting of the stockholders and until the

election and qualification of their successors.

The following were duly nominated:

J. E. Stiegier F. T. Hickcox

W. L. Grill R. F. Collins

J. A. Vance CI. H. Ferbert

R. P. Woodworth
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There being' no further nominations, same on mo-

tion duly made, seconded and carried were declared

closed. There being no contest for any of the offices

of directors, on motion duly made, seconded and

carried, the Secretary was instructed to cast the

imanimous ballot of all shares present and entitled

to vote for the said directors so nominated, and the

Secretary thereupon cast 1,984,609 votes for the said

directors and the Chair thereupon declared that

J. E. Stiegler, W. L. Grill, J. A. Vance, F. T. Hick-

cox, R. F. Collins, G. H. Ferbert, and R. P. Wood-

worth were duly elected and so declared them to be,

to serve until the next annual meeting of the stock-

holders and the election and qualification of their

successors.

The chair then read the notice of the new business

to be taken up at the meeting as contained in the

notice of the meeting which was to authorize the

Board of Directors to enter into some form of

agreement with someone along the lines as contained

in the offer which had been submitted to them by

Lloyd J. Vance, to form a corporation to take over

and manage the property, or to authorize the Board

to enter into such other or different deal with Lloyd

J. Vance or any other person or persons as the}'

mi gilt see fit, and further to authorize the Board of

Directors to sell or otherwise dispose of the prop-

erty at such time or times and on such terms and

conditions as they might see fit. Mr. Lloyd J. Vance

then Jianded the Cliair the following letter addressed
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to the Board of Directors which was read to the

stockholders

:

'

' Seattle, Washington

August 6th, 1938

2:30 P.M.

Board of Directors

Mutual Gold Corporation

401 Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Wn.

Gentlemen :.

Reference is hereby made to my offer sub-

mitted to you at the meeting of your Board

held at the Vance Hotel, Seattle, Washington,

on Monday, the 18th day of July A. D., 1938.

In view of tlie fact that this offer, as sub-

mitted by me, has not yei been acce])ted by you,

and that the changes made in same at your

meeting altered the written proposal as sub-

mitted, so that the terms thereof are somewhat

different and in view of the fact that I was

unable to secure an abstract on the Mutiuil Gold

properties as there was no abstract office in

Mono County, said offer is hereby withdrawn.

Furthermore, it is my understanding that two

of the directors have another proposition which

they favor.

LLOYD T.VANCE"

Mr. Russell F. Collins then asked Mr. Ferbert to

present his ])ro])osition. Mr. Ferbert then read a
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telegram from Mr. Keily addressed to Russell F.

Collins which stated in substance (said telegram not

being filed with the Secretary) that Mr. Keily was

unable to answer the questions which had been

asked in a telegram to him by Mr. Collins, and

that he could not make any definite commitments

as to what anyone would do, but he felt sure that

Mr. Garbutt would enter into a contract satisfac-

tory to the Board.

Mr. Ferbert then ask Mr. Collins to explain the

matter further advising the stockholders as to what

the contents of his telegram to Mr. Keily had been.

Mr. Collins advised that he had wired Mr. Keily

to advise him as to whether or not Mr. Garbutt was

willing to go ahead with the same kind of a deal

that had been submitted by Mr. Vance and whether

or not he would let the stockholders of the corpora-

tion set in in the same manner which Mr. Vance

had oiferecl to do.

He then went ahead to explain that after Mr.

Vance's offer had been received by the Board, Mr.

Garbutt had been contacted to see whether or not

he \vould make a deal the same as Mr. Lloyd Vance

had oifered, and that Mr. Garbutt stated that he

would take Mr. Vance's vehicle and pledge $86,-

000.00 of his own money if the deal were turned

over to him, and that he would guarantee that there

would be no forfeiture of the contract or any

trouble in that respect if he had the deal. Mr. Col-
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lins then explained that Mr. Garbutt was a man of

his word and that he would personally guarantee

that anything Mr. Garbutt had said he would stand

back of, and that Mr, Garbutt was the agent for

the owners and that Mr. Keily, who had sent the

telegram, w^as the mining superintendent who had

been on the property for the company and as agent

for the owners, and that if a deal was entered into

with Mr. Garbutt, naturally there would be no

trouble with regard to the contract of purchase.

The Chair then asked Mr. E. D. Weller to pre-

side, and after attaining the floor, explained that

the so called offer which Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Col-

lins were attempting to make was mere hearsay and

not a concrete proposition. He then read to the

stockholders the offer which had been submitted

by Mr. Lloyd J. Vance and requested that same

be spread upon the minutes, and a copy thereof is

hereto attached and made a part hereof.

Mr. Woodworth then went on to explain that the

offer which he had just read was a concrete propo-

sition, that no other definite offer had yet been

received, that the telegram was vague, not signed

by Mr. Garbutt and mere hearsay, and was an at-

tempt to seal the offer which had been made by

Mr. Lloyd Vance, which was not fair in that Mr.

Vance, Sr. had saved the property for the company

at two different times by the expenditure of his

own money, and that it did not seem right to him

to let an outsider take the same deal as presented
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by Mr. Lloyd Vance, and he presented the follow-

ing resolution and moved its adoption:

"Resolved, that the offer of Mr. Lloyd J. Vance,

as outlined in the letter of the President of this

corporation to the stockholders thereof, as more

fully outlined at this meetmg and set forth in the

minutes thereof, be and the same is hereby ap-

proved, and that the Board of Directors of this

corporation be, and they are hereby authorized,

empowered and directed to accept said offer and to

take any and all steps necessary or deemed neces-

sary, and/or to enter into such other or different

deal or agreement with Lloyd J. Vance or any other

person or corporation with respect to the manage-

ment, control and operation of all the assets of this

corporation, the division of profits thereof or other-

wise as the Board of Directors of this corporation

shall, in their absolute discretion deem expedient,

advisable or desirable."

Some discussion was had thereon without a sec-

ond, whereupon Mr. Woodworth withdrew the reso-

lution and offered the following resolution and

moved its adoption:

"Resolved, that the Board of Directors of this

corporation be and they are hereby authorized, em-

powered and directed to sell, lease, exchange or

otherwise dispose of, to any person, persons or

corporation, at such time or times, for such price

and upon such terms and conditions, for cash or

otherwise, including the exchanging for shares in
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another corporation, domestic or foreign, as they

in their absolute discretion deem expedient, advis-

able or desirable, and to perform any other acts

in this connection, which in their judgment they

may deem necessary or advisable." Which motion

Avas seconded by Mr. Bateham.

Mr. Grill then offered the following resolution

and moved its adoption:

"Resolved, that the Board of Directors of this

corporation be and they are hereby autliorized, em-

l)owered and directed to sell, lease, deal with, oper-

ate, exchange or otherwise disi)ose of, to any person,

persons or corporation desiring to purchase, lease,

deal with, exchange, operate same, any part of or

all of the assets of this corj^oration, at such time

or times, for such price and upon such terms and

conditions, for cash or otherwise, including the ex-

changing for shares in another corporation, domes-

tic or foreign, as they in their absolute discretion

deem expedient, advisable or desirable, and to per-

form any other acts in this comiection, which in

their judgment they may deem necessary or ad-

visable."

The resolution was duly seconded, ballot taken

and 1,98J:,609 shares voted in favor thereof. The

chair then declared same duly carried.

Mr. Woodworth then resumed the chair and called

upon Mr. Cole, Mining Engineer who had recently

examined the property, to address the stockholders.

.Mr. Cole thereu])on explained to the stockholders
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the result of his examination and findings and went

into some detail in regavd thereto.

No further business apj)earing, the meeting on

motion duly made, seconded and carried was ad-

journed.

J. E. STIEGLER
Chairman

E. FUSON
Secretary

Seattle Washington

August 5th, 1938.

Board of Directors,

Mutual Gold Corporation,

401 Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Washington.

Gentlemen

:

Reference is hereby made to my offer submitted

to you at the meeting of your Board held at the

Vance Hotel, Seattle, Washington, on Monday, the

18th day of July, A. D. 1938.

In view of the fact that this offer, as submitted

by me, has not as yet been accepted by you, and

that the changes made in same at your meeting

altered the written proposal as submitted, so that

the terms thereof are somewhat confusing, I am
exercising the right specifically reserving therein

and said off'er is hereby withdrawn, and in lieu

thereof I herewith submit the following proposition
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with respect to your holdings and property situate

in Mono County, California.

I will forthwith upon your acceptance of this

offer and my proj^osition as herein contained, or-

ganize a corporation imder the laws of the State of

Washington, having a capital stock of $162,500.00,

divided into 650,000 shares of common stock of the

par value of 25 cents each. Such corporation shall

be known as the Mono Lake Mining Company, or

by such other name as I may decide upon. Such

corporation so formed by me is to take over all

of the mining property and equipment of your cor-

poration and to operate the same mider the pro-

posed terms and agreement as set forth in the

memorandum of agreement hereto attached and

made a part hereof, and your accei)tance of this

oifer will be an agreement by you to execute such

agreement, forthwith upon the comx)letion of the

organization of such corporation.

It is understood that no personal liability of any

kuid, character or description shall rest upon me
other than as to the forming of such corporation

as herein contemplated and that an}- and all lia-

bility with respect to the carrying out of the terms

of said contract shall be upon the corporation so

formed, and not upon me.

Respectfully submitted,

LLOYD J. VANCE
Vance Lumber Company
Joseph Vance Building,

Seattle, Washington.
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AGREEMENT
This Agreement made and entered into this

day of August, 1938, by and between the Mutual

Gold Corporation, a corporation organized and ex-

isting under and by virtue of the laws of the State

of Washington with its j)rincipal place of business

at Spokane, Washington, and authorized to do

business within the State of California, party of the

first part, hereinafter called "Owner", and

, a corporation organized and existing

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

Washington, party of the second part, hereinafter

called ''Operating Company'',

Witnesseth

:

That whereas the party of the first part is now^

the owner and holder of that certain lease and

agreement dated July 13, 1932, made and executed

by tlie Chandis Securities Company, M. N. Clark

and Alice Clark Ryan, as Sellers, and Russell F.

Collins and Ben Collins, as Buyers, for the sale

and purchase of the following described mining-

claims situate in Mono County, California, in what

has been known at various times as Mono Lake

Mining District, Bridgeport Mining District, and

Homer Mining District, to-wit: Log Cabin, Log

Cabin No. 1, Log Cabin No. 2, Log Cabin No. 3,

Log Cabin No. 4, Log Cabin No. 5, Log Cabin No.

6, Log Cabin No. 7, Log Cabin No. 8, Mill Site,

New Year No. 2, Federal No. 1, Federal No. 2,

Federal No. 3, Log Cabin Annex, Tamarack, Oro
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and Burke Fraction; the Log Cabin No. 2, Log

Cabin No. 6 and Log Cabin No. 7 being patented

and the others unpatented lode mining claims; a

copy of which agreement, marked "Exhibit A" is

hereto attached and made a part hereof as fully

and to all intents and purposes as tho set forth in

full herein, and hereinafter referred to with all

amendments and changes therein as "Purchase

Contract", and

Whereas on or about the 13t]i day of July, A.D.

1932, sui)plemental agreement aifecting the said

contract was made and entered into by and between

the said Chandis Securities Company, M. N. Clark

and Alice Clark Ryan, and the Mutual Gold Cor-

poration, a coi)y of which agreement marked "Ex-

hibit B" is hereto attached and made a part hereof

as fully and to all intents and purposes as tho

set forth in full herein, and

Whereas other agreements changing and altering

the said original agreement have been made and

entered into, all of which agreements are familiar

to the Operating Comj^any, and all of which agree-

ments are hereby referred to and made a part here-

of as fully and to all intents and x>urposes as tho

set forth in full herein, and

Whereas there is a balance due and unpaid on

the said Purchase Contract in the amomit of One

Hmidred and Thirty Thousand ($130,000.00) Dol-

lars, and

Whereas the party of the first part is the owner
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of the following mipatented lode mining claims situ-

ate in Homer Mining District, in the County of

Mono, State of California, described as follows,

to-wit: Timber Slope, Contact, Contact No. 1, Mu-

tual Gold Lode, Mutual Gold Lode No. 1, Dome,

Dome No. 1, and recorded in Volume 1, pages 223,

224 and 225, Mono County Records, title thereto

being acquired ])y deed dated November 15, 1932,

executed by John Simpson, Mar}^ Stevens and Rus-

sell F. Collins and filed December 21, 1932, and re-

corded in Volume 7 of Official Records, i3age 201,

records of Mono County, California (seven claims)

and also

Lakeview, Lakeview No. 1, Lakeview No. 2, Lake-

view No. 3, Gunsight, Gunsight No. 1, Gunsight No.

2 and Gunsight No. 3, title thereto being acquired

by deed dated November 15, 1932, executed by

John Simpson, Mary Stevens, Walter Stewart and

Russell F. Collins and recorded in Volume 8 of

Official Records, page 306, Records of Mono Coun-

ty, California (eight claims), and also

Summit Extension, Summit Extension No. 1,

Summit Extension No. 2, Summit Extension No. 3,

Summit Extension No. 4 and Summit Extension

No. 5, title thereto being acquired on November

15, 1932, by deed executed by John Simpson, Mary

Stevens, Walter Stewart and Russell F. Collins,

said deed being recorded in Volume 8 of Official

Records, page 305, Records of Mono County, Cali-

fornia, (six claims). (Said fourteen claims last
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described being also conveyed to owner by deed

from same parties filed for record December 21,

1932, and recorded in Volume 1, Official Records,

page 202, Mono County California) and

Whereas the Owner has certain milling equip-

ment, mining equipment and machinery and tools

situate upon the above described property, which

milling equipment and machinery is inadequate

and not practical for the further continued use

and operation of its property, and

AVhereas the owner has certain supplies situate

ui)on the said i3roperty in the approximate amount

of One Thousand ($1,000.00) Dollars, and

Whereas the owner has certain indebtedness due

on open accounts, production certificates, production

notes and current bills and does not have sufficient

funds to carry on and continue its jnining operation,

and

Whereas the Owner desires to enlist for the pur-

pose of further developing, equipping and operat-

ing the said mining property, the financial re-

sources and mining skill of the Operating Company,

and

Whereas the Operating Company is willing to

utilize its resources and skill in connection with the

said mining property;

Now, therefore, in consideration oi' the premises

and the nuitual benefits to be derived therefrom, the

sum of Ten ($10.00) Dollars l)y each ])arty to the

other in hand paid, the receii)t and sufficiency of
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which is hereby acknowledged, the j)arties hereto

hereby agree as follows:

1. The period of this agreement shall be per-

petual, subject to the termination thereof by the

expiration of the Charter of the Owner, and subject

further to the termination thereof as hereinafter

provided.

2. The Operating Company agrees to furnish

a minimum of Seventy Thousand ($70,000.00) Dol-

lars to be expended by it insofar as may be neces-

sary in the construction of an amalgamation and

cyanide plant on the property with a rated capa-

city of one hundred tons ])er twenty-four hours,

installation of a hoist, power line, necessary mining

equipment and buildings, and provide sux)plies and

^vorking capital to operate the mine.

3. The Operating Compan}^ agrees to assmne the

outstanding open accounts of the Owner in the

amount of Twenty-one Thousand Five Hundred

Seventy Eight Dollars and Fifty Cents ($21,578.50)

by exchanging stock in the Operating Company at

par Avith the creditors owning said accounts, but

the Operating Company does not otherwise assume

said accounts or obligate itself to pay the same.

4. The ca^jital stock of the Operating Comioany

shall be One Hundred Sixty-two Thousand Five

Hundred ($162,500.00) Dollars and the number of

shares into which it shall be divided is 650,000

common shares of the part value of twenty-five cents

each. The present stockholders of the Owner shall
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have the right to subscribe, within fifteen days

from the date of this contract, to the stock of the

Operating Company, in the ratio of one share in

the Oi^erating Company for each five shares of

common stock held in the Owner, and one share of

the stoclv of the Operating Company for each five

shares of preferred stock held in the Owner. After

the expiration of said fifteen day period the present

stockholders shall have no further right to make

an}' subscription thereto and the Operating Com-

paii}- shall have the right to sell or otherwise dis-

l)ose of any and all of its stock not so subscribed

at such time, or times, and on such terms and

conditions, for cash or otherwise, as it shall see

fit, i^rovided, however, that none of said stock shall

be disposed of at less than twenty-five cents per

share.

5. The Operating Company agrees to advance

the amount necessary to pay the installment of Ten

Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars, which by the con-

tract of purchase, the Owner is obliged to pay on

November 1, 1938, and to assume any and all lia-

bility of the Owner under the said "Purchase

Contract'' according to the terms and conditions

thereof as contained in the said contract and any

and all modifications or changes thereto, and to

comply with all of the terms and conditions thereof,

and to keep the same in good standing at all times.

6. The Operating Company agrees to advance

the necessary funds to take care of the capital
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stock tax of the Owner due and payable in the

year 1938 and any and all current bills of the

Owner now due.

7. The Operating Company further agrees to

perform the assessment work required by law as

to any of the unpatented mining claims hereinabove

described, so as to fully protect the Owner at all

times in that respect, provided, however, that the

Operating Company ma}^ at any time relinquish

its rights in and to any of the said un])atented

mining claims which it does not deem advisable to

develop further or longer hold, and may be relieved

from all liability in regard thereto by executing a

conve3^ance of its interest in the said mining claims

to the Owner, and delivering same in sufficient

time for it to perform any assessment work neces-

sary to protect the said claims.

8. The Operatmg Company shall have, and is

hereby given, the right to apply for and secure

patent, in the name of the Owner, to any of the

said above described mining claims and have the

same surveyed; that any and all charges and ex-

penses so paid by the 0])erating Company shall be

rei^aid to it as a part of its operating ex])e]ises as

herein i^rovided.

9. The Owner covenants and agrees to assign,

transfer and set over to the Operating Company,

and by these presents does hereby assign, transfer

and set over unto the Oi)eratiiig Company an un-

divided one-half interest in and to the contract
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oi' purchase hereinbefore referred to, marked "Ex-

hibit A" and hereto attached and made a part

hereof, subject to the terms and conditions hereof,

and does hereby agree to forthwith turn over the

exclusive possession of all of said property and

the exclusive management and control thereof unto

tlie Operating Company, to be operated by it per-

manently except as herein otherwise provided, and

the said Owner does hereby further agree as, if

and when title shall be executed to it l)y or mider

the terms of the said ''Purchase Contract"' to

forthwith execute to the Operating Conij^any a good

and sufficient deed transferring and setting over

to the said 02)erating Company an undivided one-

half interest in and to said mining claims; said

Owner does further agree at such time to execute

a good and sufficient deed to the other mining claims

hereinabove described conveying, transferring and

setting over to the said Operating Company an un-

divided one-half interest in and to the said mining

claims, and to execute au}- and all instruments of

transfer necessary, or deemed necessar^^, m order

to convey, set over and transfer to the Operating

Company an midivided one-half interest in and to

the said mining claims and each and all of them,

to the end that each of the parties hereto shall at

such time own an midivided one-half interest in

nnd to the said i:)roi)erty.

10. The Operating Coiiij)any shall prom[)tly be-

gin and prosecute vigorously the installation of the
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new milliiig plant with related appurtenances and

start operating- subject to such delays as may be

occasioned by force majeure.

11. The Operating Company shall mine and mill

and operate the property in accord with good min-

ing ijractice and in such manner as, in the opinion

of the Operating Company, will be in the best in-

terests of all concerned and upon such tonnage scale

as the ores available in said ])roperties, in the

opinion of the Operating Company, justify, and

in accord with good mining practice, and subject

further to such production limitations as may be

im])osed by any authorized governmental agency,

provided, however, that such operation shall at all

times be in accord with and as provided and set

forth in the said "Purchase Contract" and any

and all amendments thereto.

12. The net i^rofits shall be determined, by de-

ducting the total expenses of whatsoever nature

in connection with the operation of the properties

including all costs of management, administration

and operation, from the net proceeds from crude

ores and/or concentrates or mint returns or other

products from the property, and same shall be

divided as follows:

(a) The payments on the contract of purchase

shall be met first as they become due and payable.

(b) After sufficient working capital has been

accumulated the net profits shall thereafter be
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credited against the expenditures made by the

Operating Company under the terms hereof or in

connection herewith until such time as any and

all of said expenditures and advances shall have

been rei)aid to the said Operating Company.

(c) Thereafter the net profit shall be distrib-

uted, first, to the payment of the production certifi-

cates and production notes of the Owner now out-

standing and amounting to Thirty One Thousand

Eight Hundred and Seven ($31,807.00) Dollars,

and second, to the retirement of its preferred stock

then outstanding.

(d) After the retirement of the above obliga-

tions in the order as enumerated, the net profit

shall be distributed fifty percent to the Owner and

fifty percent to the Operating Company. The net

profits shall be distributed semi-annually, quarter-

ly or monthly, at the ojjtion of the Operating Com-

pany.

13. At all reasonable times an accredited repre-

sentative of the Owner shall have full and free

access to the said properties, to the plants handling

the ores and to the metallurgical and financial rec-

ords pertaining thereto so as to be currently in-

formed and assured as to the correctness of the

accounts which the Operating Company shall ren-

der, as soon as conveniently possible after the ter-

mination of each six months period (or quarterly

if the Operating Company so desires) and the

Owner shall have thirty days from the date of mail-
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ing- said accounts within which to examine the same

and object thereto in writing, if any error is foimd

therein, it being understood and agreed that failing

such objection within said period the accounts shall

be considered correct.

14. The Operating Company shall keep true and

accurate books of account, assay records and maps

of any and all work and furnish to the Owner, by

mailing to him at the close of each day's business,

a copy of all daily rei^orts showing the number of

tons mined, number of tons milled, assay value of

the heads and the assay value of the tails, and shall

also furnish a copy of all monthly reports, by the

su])erintendent or management, of development and

operations and ma])s explanatory thereof, showing

the operatious thereof for each month, by mailing

the same monthly to the Owner and shall also fur-

nish the Owner, promptly upon the receipt of same,

with a duplicate copy of all mint, smelter or other

returns covering any and all shipments of ore or

l)roduets shipped or sold from the pro])erty, and

will, at the request of the Owner, notify the Owner

as to any and all cleanup dates so that the Owner

may have a representative present at such time,

should it so desire.

15. No officers' salaries of the 0])erating Com-

])aiiy shall be ])aid or accrue until such time as the

o]x-rations of the property ainomit to One Hundred

Fifty Thousand ($150,000.00) Hollars hi net iucomo.

'^i'hereafter the management fees of the Operating
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Company shall be reasonable and sucli as are usually

charged in similar active operations.

16. Except as otherwise provided in the Pur-

chase Contract and the modifications thereof, the

Operating' Companv shall not be required to mine,

mill or otherwise operate the said properties during

such time as it shall be prevented from so doing by

causes beyond its control, including labor troubles

or when the low grade of the ores or low metal

prices shall render operations hereunder unprofit-

able, and during any such period or periods the

Operating Company shall be excused from such })er-

formance excepting only the obligation to take care

of said ])roperty as though it were the complete

owner thereof and to maintain the same ; Provided,

however, that upon the removal of the cause of dis-

ability or of unprofitable conditions the Operating

Company shall promptly resume and continue oper-

ations.

17. In the event that the operation of the said

proi)erty at am' time becomes unprofitable, w^hether

by reason of ores of low grade or otherwise, de-

velo])ment and other expenditures made by the Op-

erating Company in an endeavor to restore the said

propert,y to a profitable operation shall be con-

sidered as expenditures by the Operating Company

to which it is entitled to reimbursement as herehi

provided.

18. After the expenditure of Seventy Thousand

($70,000.00) Dollars herein by the Operating Com-

pany, it expressly reserves, and shall have, the right
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to terminate this Agreement at any time during

the period upon giving sixty days previous notice

in writing to the Owner of its intention so to do,

and upon the termination thereof the Operating

Company shall have no further liability hereunder

other than the distribution of any profits due the

Owner uj) to the date of such termination, and the

Owner shall be entitled to take possession of the

said property and the Operating Company does

hereby agree, upon the happening of such event, to

reconvey and turn over to the Owner, the title and

possession of the said property together with all

right, title and interest of the Operating Company

in and to all su])plies, tools, machinery, imj^lements,

equipment and buildings placed thereon, and the

Owner shall be entitled to the exclusive management

and control thereof and to operate the same.

19. Any and all daily and monthly reports to be

furnished to the Owner herein, shall be sufficiently

given if sent to the Owner at its address herein

given, and any other notice provided for herein

shall be sufficiently given if sent by registered mail

addressed to the party entitled to receive the same

as follows:

To: Mutual Gold Corporation,

401 Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Washington.

To:

1418 Joseph Vance Building,

Seattle, Washington,
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except as either party hereto shall hereafter in-

struct the other party by written notice to be ap-

pended to this agreement.

20. The Owner agrees to assume and pay any

and all damages, if any, caused or arising out of

the negligent operation of its property, if any, that

may have resulted or result in the pollution of the

waters of any stream or to the damage or injury

of an^^one entitled to the use of the waters of such

stream, and that in the event of its failure so to

do, that the Operating Company shall have, and is

hereby given, the right to make any such settlement,

compromise or defence of any and all such claims,

demands and actions therefor upon such terms and

conditions as it shall see fit and to reimburse itself

for any and all sums so expended from the first

funds available and that any and all damages so

resulting from future o] aeration of the ])roperty by

the 0])erating Company shall be construed to be

as an operating expense and shall be so treated.

21. It is further understood and agreed that the

Operating Com])any shall have, and is hereby given,

the right to sell or otherwise dispose of, for cash or

otherwise, and on such terms and conditions as it

shall decide upon, without accounting to the Owner

therefor, any and all machinery, equipment and

tools now on the ])roperty, and to use such funds

as it sees fit.

22. It is further understood and agreed that the

onlv S7i])plies now remaining at the ])ro])erty
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amount to aj^proximately the sum of One Thousand

($1,000.00) Dollars, and that the Operatmg Com-

l)any shall have, and is hereby given, the right to

use and dispose of any and all such supplies, in

such manner as it sees fit without accounting to the

Owner therefor.

23. In the event that the Operating Company

shall at any time advance for or on behalf of the

Owner any funds for the payment of its office ex-

pense, running expense, operating expense , or

otherwise, the Operathig Compau}- is hereby given

tlie right and sliall liave the right to reimburse it-

self, i'ov such funds so advanced or so paid, out of

tlie first monies that would otherwise be due and

])ayable to tlie Owner.

24. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit

of and be binding u])on the parties hereto, their suc-

cessors and assigns, and shall be a covenant running

Avith the land.

In Witness Whereof the said parties have caused

these ])resents to be executed in their behalf by their

i'es])ective officers thereunto duly authorized and

their seals hereunto duly affixed and duly attested,

as of the day and year first hereinabove written.

MI^TI^AL GOT.D CORPORATION
By

President

Owner
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Attest

:

Secretary.

By
President

Operating Company.

Attest

:

Secretary.

Attached to tliis Contract were the following Ex-

hibits

—

Exhibit A—Purchase Contract—See Pages 1 to 9

of Contract File.

Exhibit B—Supplemental Agreement—See Pages

13-14 of Contract File.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 10

Minutes of Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Gold Corporation

Held August 6, 1938

The Board of Directors of the Mutual Gold Cor-

poration met at the office of the Company at 401

Fernwell Building, Spokane, Washington, on

Saturday the 6th day of August, A. D., 1938, at the

hour of 9:30 A. M. ])ursuant to adjournment.

The meeting was called to order by President J.

E. Stiegler, who presided, Vice President R. P.

Woodworth acting as Secretary.
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The office of the company being crowded, the

meeting was immediately adjourned to be convened

at the office of the company at 745 Peyton Bldg.,

Spokane, Washington, at which place it forthwith

reconvened.

Roll call showed following results:

Present—J. E. Stiegler, W. L. Grill, G. H. Fer-

bert, J. A. Vance, R. F. Collins, R. P. Woodworth

Absent—F. T. Hickcox.

Messrs. Lloyd J. Yance and R. J. Cole were also

present.

Unapi)roved minutes of meetings were read,

signed and api)roved.

Mr. Lloyd J. Yance presented an offer wherein

he agreed to form a corporation to take over and

manage the property of the company, a copy of

which offer is attached to the minutes of the annual

stockholders' meeting held on this date and hereby

referred to and made a part hereof.

Mr. Woodworth presented forms of resolutions

which he had prepared for submission to the stock-

holders that these matters miglit be properly pre-

sented to them and which resolutions conformed

witli the action taken by the directors at their last

meeting. No objection was made thereto.

After some discussion, no action being taken, the

meeting adjourned to be reconvened at the same

place by the new Board of Directors immediately

following the annual meeting of the stockholders.

The Board reconvened immediately following the

annual meeting of the stockholders. Mr. J. E. Stieg-
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ler was chosen temporary chairman and R. P. Wood-

worth temporary secretary.

Roll call showed the followmg resnlts:

Present—J. E. Stiegler, W. L. Grill, G. H. Fer-

bert, J. A. Vance, R. F. Collins, R. P. Woodworth.

Absent—F. T. Hickcox.

The Directors present qualified by subscribing to

the oath of office which was ordered inserted in the

minute hook immediately following the minutes of

this meeting.

The following officers were duly nominated and

elected

:

J. E. Stiegler, President

J. A. Vance, Vice President

R. P. Woodworth, Vice President

R. F. Collins, Vice President

E. Fuson, Secretary

E. Fuson, Treasurer

E. D. Weller, Attorney

The officers elected, who were present, thereupon

accepted the offices to which each had been elected.

Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Collins then stated that they

Avonld get Mr. Gari)iitt <;n the long distance 'j^houe

and obtain from him a telegram setting forth tlie

terms of his ]:>roposition to form a corporation to

take over av manage the })ro])erty, and that they

would submit same to the Board, and requested tliat

tlie meeting be adjourned to reconvene at 7:00

o'clock P. M. at 745 Pevton P>uilding, Spokane,

Washington. On motion duly made, seconded and

carried, the meeting was adjourned to be reconvened
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at 7:00 o'clock P. M. at 745 Peyton Building,

Spokane, Washington.

The meeting reconvened at 7:00 o'clock P. M. on

Saturday the 6th day of August, A. D., 1938, at 745

Peyton Building, Spokane, Washington, pursuant

to adjournment.

The meeting was called to order by -I. E. Stiegler,

President, R. P. Woodworth, Vice President acting

as recording officer. The same directors were pres-

ent. Mr. TJoyd J. Vance and Mr. R. J. Cole were

also present.

Mr. G. H. Ferbert moved that he and Mr. Collins

be sent to Los Angeles to contact Mr. Garbutt and

the com])any pay their expenses. There was no sec-

ond to said motion, whereupon Mr. Ferbert moved

tliat he and Russell Collins be sent to Los Angeles

to contact Mr. Garbutt without ex])enses to endeavor

to secure a contract with Mr. Garbutt. Mr. Grill

moved an amendment to said motion, that they be'

required to report back inunediately. The amend-

ment was accepted by Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Collins,

duly seconded, and ])ut to a vote. Mr. Collins, Mr.'

Stiegler, Mr. Ferbert, and Mr. Grill voted in favor

thereof. Mr. Vance and Mr. Woodworth voted

against said motion.

Mr. Woodworth stated that in his o])inion, in view

of the fact that Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Collins were

evi'lently interest parties, that he did not consider

the motion had passed. Mr. Grill stated that it had

1)assed and the directors voting in favor of said mo-

tion agreed with him.
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Mr. Lloyd J. Vance thereupon presented the

withdrawal of his offer and stated that unless the

board intended to accept said offer at once that he

wished to Avithdraw it.

Mr. Woodworth stated to the board that it was his

opinion that the offer should be accepted at once;

that the proposed form of contract submitted with

said offer and as a part thereof, had been prepared

by him, that if anything" was to be done toward put-

ting- a mil] on the property this year that action

would have to be taken at once. That on the ap-

proval of Mr. Lloyd Vance's offer by the Board at

its last meeting, believing- that the stockholders

would authorize the Board to enter into some such

form of agreement, Mr. Cole, Mining Engineer, had

been to California for Mr. Vance, that arrange-

ments had already been made to put in the power

line at once, that mill machinery and equipment

capable of handling over 150 tons per day was ready

to be moved in, and that trucks were already ar-

ranged for to haul it in as well as additional mine

equipment and that everything was ready to move

immediately if the Board would accept Mr. Vance's

offer. That the proposed offer that Mr. Collins and

Mr. Ferbert had stated they would be able to get

from Mr. Garbutt, according to their own admis-

sions, contained no better terms and in some re-

spects was not so good in that there was no assur-

ance that the stockholders would be joermitted to

];)articipate therein the same manner. That no defin-

ite offer of any kind from Garbutt was before the
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Board nor any definite assurance that any offer as

favorable could be secured from him. That a definite

concrete offer was before the Board as made by Mr.

Vance. That it was admitted that the only deal

which had been proposed to Mr. Garbutt was one

based on the offer which Mr. Vance had made and

the Board approved at its last meeting and that it

was not fair or honest for the Board to turn down

Mr. Vance's offer and that same should be accepted

at once, and moved that it be so accepted.

It was moved b}' Mr. drill, seconded by Mr. Fer-

bert that no action be taken on the offer of Mr.

Lloyd J. Vance by the Board until report had been

received as to what Mr. Garbu^ would do with re-

spect to entering into a like contract with the com-

pany. The matter was i)ut to a vote, Messrs. Grill,

Stieg'ler, Collins and Ferbert voting in favor there-

of, Ml'. Vance and Mr. Woodworth voting against

said motion. Mi*. Vance's offer was thereupon with-

drawn by him.

It was moved by Mr. Grill, seconded by Mr. Col-

lins that the meeting be adjourned to be reconvened

at the Vance Hotel, Seattle, Washington, on Satur-

day the 13th day of August, A. D., 1938, at 10:00

o'clock A. M. Messrs. Stiegler, Ferbert, Collins, Grill

and Vance voted in favor of said motion, Mr. Wood-

worth voting against same.

President.

Recording Officer.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 11

August 25, 1938

Mutual Gold Corporatiou

401 Feruwell Buildiug

Spokane, Wash.

Gentlemen.

This will inform you that we have elected to can-

cel and we hereby cancel your option and contract

to purchase the Log" Ca])in Mine, which option and

which contract is dated July 13, 1932. This action is

final and absolute.

We recognize that this cancellation, while legal,

may work a great hardship upon your stockholders

l)ut should you wish to negotiate for rehabilitation

of this contract you may negotiate with the under-

signed who will give the matter consideration ])ro-

vided your defaults are cured and other points of

difference are adjusted to his satisfaction.

(Signed) FRANK A. GARBUTT
Frank A. Garbutt—duly author-

ized representative of the

owners, Chandis Securities

Company and Alice Clark

Ryan,

cc to

Mutual Gold Coi'])oration

7>ox 377, Leevining, Cal.

cc to

Mutual Gold Cor])oration

Attention: Mr. J. A. Vance, General Manager,

Vance Hotel,

Seattle, Washington.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 12

Frank A. Garbutt

Suite 712 - 411 West 7th Street

Los Angeles, California

September 2, 1938

Mutual Gold Corporation, and

J. A. Vance, General Manager,

Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Wash.

Gentlemen

:

I have the letter of August 29th signed by J. A.

Vance, General Manager Mutual Gold Coi'poration,

addressed to me at 411 West Seventh Street, which

states

:

''I cannot accept cancellation of the contract

to purchase the Log Cabin Mine" . . . "The Mu-

tual Gold Cor])oration has ])erformed the con-

tract on its ])ai't in every particular" ... ''I

would thank you to specify the matters claimed

to be in default" . . . "Please prom])tly advise

me."

Altliougli T thir.k we liave no obligation to

acquaint yon vrith }'our defaults, T ^vil] quote ]uirts

of 3^our contract of July 13, 1932

:

"The said buyers agree to well and sufficiently

timber the tunnels, shafts and drifts . . . and

re})air all old timbering in such workings and

in all existing openings which are now open

and which show any mill ore . . . for the preser-

vation of said mine."
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^' After said shaft has been sunk to the inter-

section of the vein and drifted on for a distance

of not less than 200 feet, if by that time suf-

ficient tonnage of commercial ore is in sight to

justify a mill, and if not, as soon as sufficient

tonnage of commercial ore is in sight, the buy-

ers agree to build a suitable mill and mill

buildings and to install proper milling machin-

ery for the economical and proper milling of

said ore and to proceed without delay in a

minerlike fashion to mill and market said ores

wliich have been developed on said property"

.

''In consideration of the foregoing conditions

. . . and in consideration of their faithfully

keeping all of the covenants herein contained

said sellers hereby give said buyers the right

to purchase'' ...

''Time is of the essence of this agreement,

and it is expressly agreed that in case of any

violation by the buyers of any covenant herein

contained or on theii' failure or refusal to carry

out or comply with all of the terms and condi-

tions of this agreement . . . the sellers at their

election may terminate this agreement."

"Tn the event of a default by the said buyers

ill performing any of the conditions or coven-

ants herein set forth . . . the sellers may at their

o])tion give notice to said buyers of the termina-

tion of this agreement by depositing such notice

in the Ignited States mail, registered and post-

age prepaid, addi'essed to said buyers at the
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mine and at the last known postoffice address

given to said sellers by said buyers, and the

depositing- of said notices and the affidavit by

the sellers or any of them that same have been

deposited shall be conclusive proof that the

notices were given and this agreement shall be

terminated thereby at the option of said sellers.
'

'

"The sellers may exercise said option and

give such notice in accordance therewith."

Then follows another clause stating

"In the event of a default by the buyers in

the performance of some covenant or conditions

in itself immaterial and of which default they

may be unaware the sellers, before giving notice

as above set forth, shall notify said buyers of

the default complained of and shall allow them

thirty days from the date of giving said notice

in which to cure same and remedy said defaults

so complained of."

Your defaults do not come under this categor3^

We are advised competently and with what we

regard as absolute proof that in tlie fall of 1937 the

shaft had reached the intersection of the vein, had

been drifted on a distance of not less than 200 feet

and that sufficient tonnage of commercial ore was in

sight to justify a mill. However this may be, at

some time shortly thereafter and, in any event, not

later than earh^ February, 1938, a large amount of

commercial ore having been encountered you con-

spired with others interested in your venture to shut
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down the property and, as you expressed it, ''get

hold of the contract." Pursuant to this phan you

made efforts and caused efforts to be made to pur-

chase the sellers' interest in the contract to you for

less than it was worth, withholding from them and

also, we are informed, withholding from some of

your own stockholders and directors, true informa-

tion of the condition of the mine. It was your plain

duty, under the exact woi'ding of your contract, to

"build a suitable mill and mill buildings and to in-

stall proper milling machinery . . . and proceed

without delay ... to mill said ores."

That since the time of your discovery a period

of six mouths lias elapsed and ]U'ior thereto a con-

siderable time elapsed during which you were wholly

iu default.

There are other gromids f<u' defaidt which it is

not necessary to go into here. However, for your

further iirPoriiiatiou, will state that we have your

admissions aud the indisputable evidence of others

that the milliug equijmient and machinery on the

]:)roperty is inadequate, not practical and not eco-

]iomical for the treatment of these ores.

A material consideration for the terms of pay-

nuMit given yon was tliat yon would ])Toceed upon

tlio develoi^ment of ore to install ])roper milliug

machinery for the economical milling of said ore and

io ])roceed without delay to mill said ores and to

pay the proceeds to the sellers as in your contract

])rovided.
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Your fiction that you are not in default finds no

favor in our e}^es. It is wholly in accord with your

past tactics of concealment and evasion of jo\\.v re-

sponsibilities.

In our notice to you c^f August 25 we frankly

stated our attitude toward the Mutual and the con-

ditions under wliicli ^ve might negotiate for a re-

habilitation of your contract.

The undersigned, as you are aware, has been ne-

gotiating with the Mutual for a contract looking to

the operation of its pro])erty. I have no desire to

undertake sucli responsibilities and the only con-

sideration for so doing is to provide the stock-

holders witli an alternative so that they would not

be forced to acce])t the manifestly tricky and unfair

contract that you liave attem])ted to force u])on

them.

To show you the lack of esteem in which this ef-

fort of yours is held, I quote, in part, from one of

the comnumications fi-om a stockholder regarding it

:

''A goodly number of the stockholders have

ex])ressed their views and not one of them, ex-

cepting Woodworth, seemed in favor of it, and

they I'un all the way from downright panic,

bogged down like a cow in the mud, some few

are quite bellicose and want to fight, and I think

they would welcome anything of a constructiA^e

and fair nature that might give promise of

])ulling them ont of the jam.

"Personally, I think this ])roposal set forth

bv the Vances is one of the most vicious I have
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seen, and I am doubtful if it could possibly get

by the Security Act; if so I would have less

faith in that law than I now have."

I trust I have made my position entirely clear.

The owners have a friendly feeling for the stock-

holders as also have I, but my first duty is to the

owners whom I represent.

Your liability for your acts or omissions is to

your stockholders who, it seems to me, could re-

cover from you if they lose their property by rea-

son of your laches.

Yours truly,

(Signed) FRANK A. CtARBFTT.
FAG-C

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 13

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 6 thereto,

at page 51.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 14

MINUTES OF ADJOURNED ANNUAL MEET-
ING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

The adjourned annual meeting of the board of

directors of Mutual Gold Corj^oration, a corpora-

tion, was held at the Vance Hotel in the City of

Seattle, King County, Washington, beginning at

10 o'clock A. M. on the 7th day of September, 1938,
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there being present Mr. J. E. Stiegler, Mr. J. A.

Vance, Mr. F. T. Hickcox, Mr. R. P. Woodworth

and Mr. W. L. Grill and Mr. G. H. Ferbert. Mr.

Russell F. Collins was absent.

Mr. Grill made a brief report of the conferences

had with Mr. Garbutt at Los Angeles and then read

the contract between the Mutual Gold Corporation

and Frank A. Garbutt, which had been executed by

Mr. Garbutt and Mr. Stiegler, as the president of

the corporation, subject to the ratification thereof

by the board of directors of the company.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Ferbert that the action of the president of

this comjjany, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, in executing that

certain written contract dated the 2nd day of Sep-

tember, 1938, between Mutual Gold Corporation, a

corporation, and Frank A. Garbutt, be ratified, ap-

proved and confirmed, as fully and to the same

extent as though originally authorized by the board

of directors of this company, and that the said con-

tract be and the same is hereby ratified, approved

and confirmed in all details; and that the president

of this company, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, be and he hereby

is authorized and directed to carry out and perform

the same and to execute with the secretary of this

company all deeds, bills of sale and documents of

every kind and character whatsoever necessary to

make said contract legally effective and to carry

out the terms and provisions thereof, subject to the

ratification of the action of the board thereon by a
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special meeting of the stockholders to l^e called for

such purpose.

It was moved by Mr. Woodworth and seconded

b}- Mr. Vance, as a substitute motion, that the offer

of Lloyd Vance be accepted. Mr. Woodworth and

Mr. Vance voted in favor of said substitute motion

and Mr. Hickcox, Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Grill voted

against said substitute motion and the same was

not carried.

Upon a vote being had upon the original motion,

said motion carried by the votes of Mr. Stiegler,

Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox and Mr. Grill. "Sir. Wood-

worth and Mr. Vance voted ''No" thereon.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Ferbert that this corporation do and it

hereby does accept that certain contract bearing

date the 2nd day of September, 1938, between Mu-

tual Gold Cori^oration, a corporation, and Frank A.

Garbutt, which contract has been read to the Board,

and all of the terms and provisions thereof; and

that the president of this corporation, Mr. J. E.

Stiegler, be and he hereby is authorized and di-

rected to execute said contract, if the previous rati-

fication thereof is not legally sufficient for and on

behalf of this corporation, and to execute any and

all documents, papers, l^ills of sale, deeds and con-

A'eyances necessary to inake said document legally

effective and to carry out the terms, conditions and

provisions thereof; this action of the board to be

subject to ratification by the stockholders at a spe-
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cial meeting to he called for such purpose. Said

motion carried by the votes of ]Mr. Stiegler, Mr.

Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox and Mr. Grill. Mr. Woodworth

and Mr. Vance voted ''No" thereon.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Ferbert that the president of this cori)ora-

tion, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, be and hereby is authorized

and directed, for and on behalf of this corporation,

to borrow the sum of $25,000 from an}' i)erson, firm

or corporation, uj^on the best terms possible, giving

the note of this corporation or other written obli-

gation, and for and on behalf of this corporation

to execute a pledge or assignment of any or all of

the assets of the corporation as security therefor.

Said motion carried by the votes of Mr. Stiegler,

Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox and Mr. Grill. Mr. Wood-

worth and Mr. Vance voted "No" thereon.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Woodw^orth and

seconded by Mr. Vance that proxies for the said

stockholders' meeting be sent out in blank to the

stockholders of the company by the secretary. Upon

a vote being had Mr. Vance and Mr. Woodworth

voted in favor thereof and Mv, Ferljert, Mr. Hick-

cox and Mr. Grill voted against the same and said

motion did not carry.

It was regularl}^ moved hy ^Ir. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Hickcox that proxies be sent out by the

secretary designating J. E. Stiegler or blank the

proxy of such stockholder, to vote at said special

meeting of the stockholders. Mr. Grill, Mr. Ferbert

and Mr. Hickcox voted in favor thereof and Mr.
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Vance and Mr. Woodworth voted against the said

motion. Said motion was carried.

It was regularly moved, seconded and, upon a

vote being had, carried, that the secretary of the

corporation be and is authorized and directed to call

a special meeting of the stockholders of the company

at the earliest possible time, for the purj^ose of

ratifying or refusing to ratify the action taken by

the board in connection with the said contract dated

the 2nd day of September, 1938, between Mutual

Gold Corj^oration and Frank A. Garbutt, and that

such meeting also be called for the consideration

and acting upon the offer of Lloyd J. Vance, or any

other offer from any other person, firm or corpora-

tion, and the authorization of the board to accept

and execute the same.

Xo further business coming before the directors,

the meeting thereupon adjourned.

(Signed) W. L. GRILL,

Secretary Pro Tem.

Mr. Anderson: Which will be Plaintiff's' Exhibit

14. I offer in evidence an unsigned letter dated

September 9, 1938, to Mutual Gold Corporation,

J. A. Vance, General Manager, and J. E. Stiegler,

President; subject matter is notice of default, and

I will ask counsel if he will stipulate that that was

a copy of Mr. Garbutt 's letter of that date and to

those persons.

Mr. Hinckle : So stii)ulated.
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Mr. Anderson: Do other counsel, if your Honor

please, [39] likewise stipulate?

Mr. Grill: Yes; on the statements made.

The Court : It may be marked.

The Clerk: Exhibit 15. [40]

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 15

September 9, 1938

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Mr. J. A. Vance, General Manager,

Mr. J. E. Stiegler, President

401 Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Washington

Gentlemen

:

On August 25th we served you with notice of

default on your contract of July 13, 1932, and noti-

fied you of its termination and terminated it as in

said contract provided.

In this same communication we also advised you

of our willingness to negotiate for the reinstatement

of said contract under certain conditions which have

not been met.

Instead we received a communication from your

Manager, J. A. Vance, declining to "accept cancel-

lation" and stating:

"Mutual Gold Corporation has performed the

contract on its part in every j)articular.''

This is so far from the truth that we now, without

prejudice to said termination of August 25, 1938,

again inform you that, in accordance with the terms
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of said agreement of July 13, 1932, we have elected

to terminate, and do hereby terminate, your option

and contract under said agreement to purchase the

Log Cabin Mines and other i^roj^erty described in

said agreement, and do hereby terminate said agree-

ment in its entirety.

Also that we will not negotiate for a reinstate-

ment of same unless and until we receive from you

a statement in writing satisfactory to us as to the

reason for your breaches of the following conditions

of your contract and your acts and statements fol-

lowing:

1. Your agreement to keep the ore intact above

the 125 foot level.

2. Post non-liability notices and maintain same

after posting.

3. Repair and keep in repair all old timbering in

existing oj^enings.

4. Strictly comply with the Workmen's Compen-

sation Act.

5. Install a i)roper mill for the economical and

proper milling of said ore.

6. Proceed without delay to mine, mill and mar-

ket said ores.

7. To impound all mill tailings which assay over

$1.00 per ton.

8. Pay to the sellers any excess over $8.00 per

ton.

9. Work continuously not less than 150 shifts of

competent miners per month.
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10. Obtain and furnish to the sellers a release

or waiver from your vendors before you allow an\'

material, machmery or supx^lies to be l)rought upon

said property.

11. Obtain like releases from all emi^loyees and

furnish same to sellers before employing any labor.

12. Your ordering our representative off of the

l^roperty.

13. Your concealment from us of material in-

formation.

14. Your statement that "Mutual Gold Corpo-

ration has performed the contract on its part in

every particular". As long as you take this position,

there can be no negotiations.

Copies to

Mutual Gold Corporation

Box 377, Leevining, Cal.

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Attention: Mr. J. A. Vance, Gen. Mgr.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 16

Mutual Grold Corporation

401 Fernwell Building

Spokane, Wash.

Directors

J. A. Vance, Seattle, Wash.

Russell F. Collins, Leevining, Cal.

R. P. Woodworth, Spokane, Wash.

J. E. Stiegler, Naches, Wash.

W. L. Grill, Seattle, AVash.

F. T. Hickcox, Tacoma, Wash.

G. H. Ferbert, Naches, Wash.

Officers

J. E. Stiegler, President

R. P. Woodworth, Vice-President

J. A. Vance, Vice-President

Russell F. Collins, Vice-President

E. Fuson, Secy.-Treas.

September 12, 1938.

To the Stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation

:

The stockholders of the company at the annual

meeting held on the 6th day of August, 1938, author-

ized the board of directors to sell, lease, deal with,

exchange or dispose of any part of or all of the

assets of the corporation, for cash or otherwise,

including exchanging for shares in another corpora-

tion, domestic or foreign, as they in their discretion

might deem expedient, advisable or desirable.

Prior thereto there had been submitted to the

board of directors an offer by Lloyd J. Vance. At
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the meeting of the board of directors following the

stockholders' meeting, the board was advised that

an offer w^ould be received from Mr. Cecil B.

deMille. The board meeting was adjourned to a sub-

sequent date, at which a proposal was submitted,

which proposition was considered by the board and

attempts made to secure certain changes therein.

The board deemed it advisable to consider such

proposition, as it was presented by Mr. Frank A.

Grarbutt, the agent of the owners of the Log Cabin

group of claims.

JJuring the course of the consideration of the re-

spective offers, a notice of cancellation of the com-

pany's contract of purchase covering the Log Cabin

group of claims was received by the company, which

notice was signed by Mr. Frank A. Garbutt.

In order to bring the matter to a head, the board

authorized Mr. Stiegler, Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Vance,

Mr. Hickcox and Mr. Grill to go to California and

confer with Mr. Garbutt. Thereupon, Mr. Ferbert,

Mr. Collins, Mr. Grill and the writer conferred

with Mr. Garbutt at Los Angeles and certain modifi-

cations of the contract proposed by Mr. Garbutt

were obtained and a contract signed by the writer,

as president of the company, subject to ratification

by the board. The terms of the contract were the

best it was possible to obtain from Mr. Garbutt.

A board meeting was held on the 7th day of Sep-

tember, at which the action of the president of the

company was ratified and the contract approved by

the board, subject to its ratification by the stock-
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holders of the company. The board members votmg-

in favor of the ratification were Mr. Ferbert, Mr.

Hickcox, Mr. Grill and Mr. Stiegler. Those voting

against were Mr. Woodworth and Mr. Vance. The

writer was advised that the contract was api^roved

by Mr. Collins, the one director absent. It was the

feeling of the writer, as well as the other members

of the board voting in favor of the contract, that if

it was not accepted the company would become in-

volved in long and expensive litigation with the

owners of the pro^Derty over the attempted cancella-

tion of the contract, and even though the company

were ultimately successful in such litigation, little

might remain for the stockholders after the termi-

nation thereof.

The writer wishes to state that if a longer time

had been available, and the conditions different, a

much better contract might have been obtained from

other sources. However, in view of the entire situa-

tion and the fact that the company has unpaid obli-

gations and no funds to carry on, the board members

voting in favor of the proposition felt that the corn-

pan}^ had no alternative.

You will find enclosed herewith proxy made out in

favor of the writer or blank. The writer wishes }'ou

to feel at liberty to exercise your best judgment in

the matter and if you wish to have your proxy run

to anyone else, eliminate his name and place the

name of anyone \'ou desire therein, if it is impos-

sible for you to be personally present at the stock-



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 295

holders' meeting. However, the undersigned urges

you to be either present at said meeting or repre-

sented by proxy.

Sincerely yours,

J. E. STIEGLER,
JES:pb President.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 17

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCK-
HOLDERS OF MUTUAL GOLD

CORPORATION

Notice Is Hereby Given that in accordance with

Resolution of the board of directors of Mutual Gold

Cori^oration passed on September 7, 1938, a special

meeting of the stockholders of said corporation will

be held at the office of the company at 401 Fernwell

Building, Spokane, Washington, on September 24th,

1938, at eleven o'clock A. M. for the purpose of

ratifying or refusing to ratify the action taken by

the said board of directors in accepting a certain

contract, dated September 2nd, 1938, by and be-

tween Mutual Gold Corporation and Frank A. Gar-

butt, said acceptance being subject to ratification by

the stockholders at a special meeting called for that

purpose and to consider at said meeting and pass

upon the offer of Lloyd J. Vance or any other offer

from any other person, firm or corporation, includ-
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ing authorization to the board of directors to accept

and execute same.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
By E. FUSON,

Secretary.

[Written on reverse side.]

Sept 15-1938

Mr. Vance:

I ana sending you my proxy as if I send it to

Spokane it may be lost.

Thanks for your letter.

JENNIE M. TATTERSALL

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 18

(Postcard addressed to)

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Wash.

PROXY
Know All Men By These Presents that I, the

midersigned, do hereby constitute and appoint R. P.

Woodworth my true and lawful attorney to repre-

sent me at the special meeting of the stockholders

of Mutual Gold Corporation to be held on the 24tli

day of September, 1938, at eleven o'clock A. M. at

the office of the company, 401 Fernwell Building,

Spokane, Washington, and do hereby authorize and
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empower him to vote at said meeting and at any

adjournment thereof for me and in my name and

stead upon the stock then standing in my name on

the books of said company, and I hereby grant my
said attorney all the powers that I should possess

if personally present at said meeting.

Witness my signature this 15th day of Septem-

ber, 1938.

JENNIE M. TATTERSALL
Witnessed By:

GEO. G. HANNAN

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 19

Mutual Gold Corporation

401 Fernwell Building

Spokane, Wash.

September 16, 1938.

J. E. Stiegler

R. P. Woodworth

J. A. Vance

Russell F. Collins

W. L. Grill

F. T. Hickcox

G. H. Ferbert

Directors of Mutual Gold Corporation:

Notice is hereby given that a Special Meeting of

the Board of Directors of the Mutual Gold Cor-
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poration is called to be held at 610 Colman Build-

ing, Seattle, Washington on Monday, the 19th day

of September, 1938 at the hour of 10:00 o'clock

A. M. for the purpose of reconsidering the action

taken by said Board upon the ratification by the

Board of the contract between Frank A. Garbutt

and the Mutual Gold Corporation dated September

2, 1938 and the further purpose of considering any

other proposal that may be brought before said

meeting for the develoj^ment and operation of the

Mutual Gold Corporation properties in Mono

County, California, and any other matters inci-

dent or pertaining to the aforementioned business.

(Signed) J. E. STIEGLER
President

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 20

Frank A. Garbutt

Suite 712—411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

September 12, 1938.

Mr. M. F. Haley,

Leevining, Cal.

Dear Mr. Haley:

When I talked with you last Saturday and Sun-

day 3^ou were to gather certain information and

write me your conclusions and recommendations at

once with a list of what changes you wanted to

make and what you needed to start up the mill with-
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out delay. A week later I have not heard from you.

I promised to write you not later than Wednes-

day afternoon or Thursday morning and this I

did. Knowing your condition as you told it to me,

I put you on my payroll for two weeks so you

could bridge over the delay without hardship to

yourself until the mine would be ready to employ

you.

I am particular about keeping any promises I

make and like those with whom I plan to become

associated to be the same. Otherwise there can l^e

no mutual confidence.

Sincerely,

F. A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.

P. S. You will not, of course, go on my payroll

until you commence work.

F. A. G.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 21

(Post Card Addressed to)

Lloyd J. Vance,

Joseph Vance Bldg., Spokane, Wash.

Spokane, Washington

September 20, 1938

Stockholders of Mutual Gold Corp.:

On Monday, September 19, 1938 your Board of

Directors reconsidered their previous action upon

the proposed contract with Mr. Frank A. Gar-
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butt, regarding the operation of the Mutual Gold

mining property and ratified and approved same

in accordance with the stockholders' authority of

August 6th, 1938.

It will therefore not be necessary to hold the

Special Stockholders' Meeting called for Septem-

ber 24th, and same is cancelled by order of the

Board.

J. E. STIEGLER
President

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 22

Minutes of Special Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Gold Corporation

Pursuant to due notice, a special meeting of the

board of directors of Mutual Gold Corporation was

held at 610 Colman Building, in the city of Seattle,

King County, Washington, beginning at, 10 o'clock

a. m. on Monday, the 19th day of September, 1938,

there being present Mr. J. E. Stiegler, Mr. J. A.

Vance, Mr. G. H. Ferbert, Mr. F. T. Hickcox, Mr.

R. P. Woodworth, Mr. W. L. Grill and Mr. Rus-

sell F. Collins.

The President asked Mr. Grill to act as secre-

tary of the meeting.

The secretary of the meeting read the notice

calling the meeting and the affidavit of the secre-

tary of the company regarding the mailing of the

notice.
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The secretary of the meeting thereupon read the

last notice of cancellation given by the owners of

the Log Cabin mining claims.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and sec-

onded by Mr. Ferbert that the board reconsider the

action taken by it at its meeting on the 7th day of

September UT3on the following proceedmgs:

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and

seconded by Mr. Ferbert that the action of the

president of this company, Mr. J. E. Stiegier,

in executing that certain written contract dated

the 2d day of September, 1938, between Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, a corporation, and

Frank A. Garbutt, be ratified, approved and

confirmed, as fully and to the same extent as

though originally authorized by the board of

directors of this company, and that the said

contract be and the same is hereby ratified,

approved and confirmed in all details ; and that

the president of this company, Mr. J. E. Stieg-

ler, be and he hereby is authorized and di-

rected to carry out and perform the same and

to execute with the secretary of this company

all deeds, bills of sale and documents of every

kind and character whatsoever necessary to

make said contract legally effective and to carry

out the terms and provisions thereof, subject

to the ratification of the action of the board

thereon by a special meeting of the stockhold-

ers to be called for such purpose. * * *
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It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and

seconded by Mr. Ferbert that this corporation

do and it hereby does accept that certain con-

tract bearing date the 2d day of September,

1938, between Mutual Gold Corporation, a cor-

IDoration, and Frank A. Garbutt, which con-

tract has been read to the board, and all of the

terms and provisions thereof; and that the

president of this corporation, Mr. J. E. Stieg-

ler, be and he hereby is authorized and directed

to execute said contract, if the previous ratifi-

cations thereof is not legally sufficient for and

on behalf of this corporation, and to execute

any and all documents, papers, bills of sale,

deeds and conveyances necessary to make said

document legally effective and to carry out the

terms, conditions and provisions thereof; this

action of the board to be subject to ratifica-

tion by the stockholders at a special meeting to

be called for such purpose.

The following voted in favor of said motion : Mr.

Stiegler, Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Collins, Mr. Hickcox and

Mr. Grill; and the following against said motion:

Mr. Woodworth and Mr. Vance. The President de-

clared the motion carried.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Ferbert that, in view^ of the authority and

power given to the board of directors by the stock-

holders at a special meeting of the stockholders

called on the 6th day of August, 1938, and in view
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of the present financial condition of the company,

the action of the president of this company, Mr.

J. K Stiegler, in executing that certain written

contract dated the 2d day of September, 1938, be-

tween Mutual Gold Corporation, a corporation, and

Frank A. Garbutt, be ratified, approved and con-

firmed, as fully and to the same extent as though

originally authorized by the board of directors of

this company, and that the said contract be and

the same is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed

in all details; and that the president of this com-

pany, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, be and he hereby is au-

thorized and directed to carry out and perform the

same and to execute with the secretary of this com-

pany all deeds, bills of sale and documents of every

kind and character whatsoever necessary to make

said contract legally effective and to carry out the

terms and provisions thereof. Upon a vote being

had upon said motion, said motion was carried by

the votes of Mr. Hickcox, Mr. Collins, Mr. Grill,

Mr. Stiegler, and Mr. Ferbert. Mr. Woodworth and

Mr. Yance voted ^*No" upon said motion.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and second-

ed by Mr. Ferbert that, in view of the authority

and power given to the board of directors by the

stockholders at a special meeting of the stockhold-

ers called on the 6t]i day of August, 1938, and in

view of the present financial condition of the com-

pany, this corporation do and it hereby does accept

that certain contract bearing date the 2d day of
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September, 1938, between Mutual Gold Corporation,

a corporation, and Frank A. ' Garbutt, and all of

the terms and provisions thereof ; and that the pres-

ident of this corporation, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, be

and he hereby is authorized and directed to execute

said contract, if the previous ratification thereof is

not legally sufficient for and on behalf of this cor-

poration, and to execute any and all documents, pa-

pers, bills of sale, deeds and conveyances necessary

to make said document legally effective and to carry

out the terms, conditions and provisions thereof.

Said motion carried by the votes of Mr. Stiegler,

Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Collins, Mr. Hickcox and Mr.

Grill. Mr. Vance and Mr. Woodworth voted *'No"

thereon.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and seconded

by Mr. Ferbert that the president of this corpora-

tion, Mr. J. E. Stiegler be and hereby is authorized

and directed, for and on behalf of this corporation,

to borrow the sum of $25,000 from any person, firm

or corporation, upon the best terms possible, giving

the note of this corporation or other written obli-

gation, and for and on behalf of this corporation to

execute a pledge or assignment of any or all of

the assets of the corporation as security therefor.

Said motion carried by the votes of Mr. Stiegler,

Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox, Mr. Collins and Mr.

Grill. Mr. Woodworth and Mr. Vance votes ''No"

thereon.

Mr. Woodworth thereupon presented his resig-

nation as vice-president and a director of the com-
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pany, to take effect immediately. Mr. Vance there-

upon presented his resignation as vice-president

and director, to take effect immediately, and would

not reconsider such action. Said resignations were

thereupon duly and regularly accepted.

Mr. E. D. Weller was thereupon duly and regu-

larly elected vice-president of the company, to fill

out the unexpired term of R. P. Woodworth, re-

signed, as vice-president of the company, to serve

until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify.

. Mr. Vance thereupon presented to the meeting

the statements of Mr. J. R. Sturgeon for compen-

sation and Mr. M. F. Haley for overtime. No action

was taken thereon at the meeting.

It was regularly moved by Mr. Grill and sec-

onded by Mr. Ferbert that the secretary of the

company be authorized and directed to notify the

stockholders of the company of the action of the

board in ratifying and/or authorizing and ap-

proving the contract of F. A. Garbutt, and to fur-

ther notify the stockholders that the special meet-

ing of the said stockholders called for the 24th

day of September, 1938, had been called off by the

board. Upon a vote being had, said motion was

carried by the votes of Mr. Stiegier, Mr. Ferbert,

Mr. Hickcox, Mr. Collins and Mr. Grill. Mr. Vance

and Mr. Woodworth voted ''No" thereon.

No further business coming before the directors,

the meeting thereupon adjourned.

(Signed) W. L. GRILL
Secretary of the Meeting
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 23

is set fortli in the Complaint, as Exhibit 7 thereto,

at page 58.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 24

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 8 thereto,

at page 60.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 25

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 9 thereto,

at page 62.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 26

Frank A. Garbutt

Suite 712—411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

September 23, 1938

To the Board of Directors

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Mr. J. E. Stiegler, President.

Progress Report

Your bargain with me and its purposes have been

thoroughly discussed heretofore with a majority

of your Board and your attorney. I expect to in-

terest in your enterprise entirely satisfactory and

responsible parties and I hope that my connection

therewith will prove to be only a stop-gap for I
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have no desire, at, my age, to again become actively

interested in mining.

I have also heretofore made it sufficiently clear

to you that my first duty is to the owners of the

property, whom I represent, but that this duty is

not necessarily incompatible with a desire to pro-

tect your stockholders.

Time is a very essential element with you and

for one reason or another not necessary to go into

here, a lot of time you could ill afford has been

wasted.

Early in the fall of 1937 you had reached the

250 level and drifted into mill ore at which time

imder your contract you were obligated to build

a suitable mill for the economical and proper mill-

ing of the ore and to proceed without delay to

market same.

This you did not proceed to do. To the contrary,

these facts were concealed from the o^\aiers while

your manager attempted to buy out the owners at an

unfair discount and as late as the early part of

February wrote to an associate as follows

:

"... under the circumstances we can't do

anything except fire the whole crew and shut

dowm or get ahold of the contract."

This was a deliberate and willful violation of

your contract and for this and other reasons, the

owners, when the true conditions became known

to them, served upon you a notice of termination

of your contract in accordance with its terms.
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Prior to this, however, your manager still de-

layed complying with your contract with the own-

ers while he attempted to negotiate a contract with

either himself or his son which looked to giving

them control of the property upon terms which

your directors state were wholly unsatisfactory.

This delay extended up to the latter part of June

and culminated at a stockholders' meeting in Au-

gust, 1938, at which a report by Mr. Cole was pre-

sented to your stockholders. This report purported

to have been made some time in June and various

metallurgical determinations set. forth therein were

dated Jmie 14 and June 20th, respectively.

These delays are further rendered inexcusable

by the fact that your manager had received a writ-

ten report from Mr. Keily, dated March 10, ac-

quainting him with the true conditions at the mine

which formed a record which also aids the owners

in establishing a willful violation of their contract.

However, who ever caused these delays, the ef-

fects are the same except insofar as liability there-

for is concerned. The time is gone and your position

is jeopardized.

When you entered into your contract with me

and its ratification was delayed for one reason or

another while your opposing factions argued their

differences, I realized that a loss of this season would

be fatal to you and therefore, knowing that what-

ever the outcome a power line would be absolutely

necessary, I guaranteed the Power Company tlie
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cost of their survey and preliminary work to the

trifling amount of $500.00.

On receipt of your wire of September 19th that

my contract had been fully authorized, I have done

the following things:

1. Immediately ordered the power line, paid

$11,000 therefor and received the assurances of the

Company that it would be completed by October

15th, and sooner if possible.

2. Engaged Mr. Russell Collins, one of your di-

rectors, to act as assistant in the field to expedite

all work as much as possible; to keep in touch

with your Board of Directors and obtain your ad-

vice and to keep you informed of the progress of

our work.

3. I have engaged Mr. M. F. Haley, formerly in

your employ, who was most highly recommended to

me by Mr. Keily a few days before he died, and

called him here in consultation. Being a practical

mill man myself, it gives me pleasure to state I

have found Mr. Haley to be thoroughly familiar

with all of the details of his business and so far we

have been in thorough agreement as to past oj^era-

tions and future procedure. I have had assays made

for him so he could inform himself as to past re-

sults and estimate the future. We have discussed and

listed his requirements and have ordered such things

as required time to get and are receiving bids on

current material and supplies, such as electric

lamps, wiring, electric material, etc.
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4. Have gone into the matter of tailings dis-

posal and water pollution which appears to be a

sticker with no possible satisfactory solution that

does not involve future development from a dif-

ferent shaft, in the distant future and have, I hope,

devolved a temporary plan upon which Messrs. Col-

lins, Haley, Sturgeon and I can agree for the im-

mediate present that will enable us to acquire data

and work out a feasible plan for the future. We
have discussed this problem at length with compe-

tent engineers of the Western Machinery Co. and,

after several days of figuring, they frankly admit

their inability to solve it in a satisfactory manner.

I have communicated with expert engineering firms

in Salt Lake and Denver in an endeavor to find a

solution. I am also working on a novel solution

of my own which gives some promise.

5. We are lining up for consideration the neces-

sary equipment, hoist, cage, compressor, cars, jack-

hammers, receiver, mill, et^'.

6. Metallurgical Investigations: I want to say

in this connection that I have thoroughly studied

Mr. Cole's report and, while not wishing to be

considered as criticizing it in any way for what

it i^urports to be, I do not, find it either satisfactory

or convincing.

Briefly, his heads and values are computed in va-

rious ways $12.60 - $13.40 - $11.20 - $15.65 - $20.30

and $13.00 and recovery by amalgamation from

$8.50 to $5.60. 1 do not say that his computations are

not correct or justified.
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Neither do I say that the metallurgical investi-

gations your manager had made in Los Angeles and

Berkeley are not correct as far as they go but to

me they are superficial and unconvincing and I be-

lieve it would be extremely hazardous to select and

install a mill without further knowledge.

I have therefore sent a 150 lb. sample to the

Colorado School of Mines, at Golden, whose equip-

ment and experience are unexcelled for making

metallurgical determinations; am consulting a lead-

ing engineering firm of Denver; have sent two 50

lb. samples to John Herman, of Los Angeles, who

is well equii:)ped for the determinations I desire to

make here (he has done work for me for 20 years)

and his reputation for care and accuracy is un-

surpassed. I am consulting mth R. A. Perez & Co.

who made some of the tests for Mr. Vance; am
making some tests in my own laboratory, which is

well equipped and has been in continuous operation

for 9 years, and will take such other steps as com-

mon prudence and these investigations dictate.

You will be kept advised through Mr. Collins of

results.

In addition to the above and in view of your prob-

lems I recently visited Bodie, where a friend, Mr.

Klipstein, is operating a large mill similar in flow

to the one we propose to install, and the Empire, at

Grass Valley, where a friend, Mr. Nobs, who has

known me for 20 years, is in charge of an 80 stamp

mill and cyanide plant, etc. of 400 tons daily ca-
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pacity, about such a plant as we might use, so as to

acquaint myself with modern practice.

I wish to assure you that as long as I am con-

nected with the management that every stockholder,

large or small, myself included, will receive exactly

the same treatment.

There will be no withholding or coloring of in-

formation. No director, myself included, will re-

ceive any consideration as such. We are trustees for

the stockholders. If we sink we will sink together.

If we profit, we will profit proportionately. There

will be no dodging of my responsibility to any stock-

holder of any corporation of which I am director or

manager.

If you should have any cause for dissatisfaction

I trust you will immediately commimicate with me
so that we may thrash it out without delay. I also

want the benefit of all of the advice and sugges-

tions that you can give me. We have a tough job

and I want to do my part well.

Sincerely,

FKANK A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 27

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
401 Fernwell Building

Spokane, Washington

September 26, 1938.

To the Stockholders of

Mutual Gold Corporation:

In connection with the deal which the company

has concluded with Mr. Frank A. Garbutt, you will

find enclosed herewith copy of a report which he

has just sent to the board of directors of the Mutual

Gold Corporation, which is self-explanatory.

Owing to the lateness of the season, it is impos-

sible to purchase and install a new mill before next

year. It appears from Mr. Garbutt 's report that

he plans to operate the property during the win-

ter if weather conditions permit by making neces-

sary changes so as to permit such operation. This

should be for the best interests of the Mutual, as

four or five months' further development work

should result in the blocking out of a much larger

body of ore. If this is the result, then it may be

possible that Mr. Garbutt will construct a larger

mill than his contract provides.

There is no question in my mind or in the minds

of the members of the board that all of tlie stock-

holders of the Mutual Gold Corporation will be

treated fairly and squarely by Mr. Garbutt and

that their interests in the long run will haA^e a

greater value than if any other offer had been ac-
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cepted, which would have occasioned unending liti-

gation. The writer has been advised that various

members of the board will send out letters to the

stockholders giving their views of the entire situa-

tion.

You may also rest assured that the board of di-

rectors of the compan}^, after a full and thorough

consideration of the matter, did what in its judg-

ment it deemed for the best intei-ests of the com-

pany.

You will be kept informed from time to time as

to the affairs of the company and the operation of

the mine.

Yours sincerely,

J. E. STIEGLER
President

JES:pb

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 28

October 3, 1938.

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Mr. J. A. Vance, General Manager,

Vance Hotel, Seattle, Wash.

Gentlemen

:

Under date of August 25th, 1938, our represen-

tative, Frank A. Garbutt, served upon you a no-

tice of termination of our contract with you as in

said contract provided, absolute in its terms, but

which left the door open to negotiations for a rein-

statement if undertaken by you at that time.
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Instead of opening such negotiations you re-

plied on August 29th, 1938

''Mr. Frank A. Garbutt

411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California.

Dear Sir:

A copy of your letter of August 25, 1938 to

Mutual Gold Corporation has been received by

me. As general manager of Mutual Gold Cor-

poration and as a director I cannot accept can-

cellation of the contract to purchase Log Cabin

Mine.

Mutual Gold Corporation has performed the

contract on its part in every particular, and

until now there has not been the slightest in-

timation that its performance was not satis-

factory to the owners. I would thank you to

specify the matters claimed to be defaults,

and also the points of difference to which ref-

erence is made in your letter. Please promptly

advise me.

Very truly yours,

J. A. VANCE
General Manager, Mutual

Gold Corporation."

We considered your statement not in accordance

with the facts and, therefore, served a second no-

tice of termination upon yoii in order to cure any

possible technical defects in the previous notice.
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Mr. Garbutt informed us that at the earnest

solicitation of some of your directors and stock-

holders, he attempted to find parties who would

help you in your financing and, failing in this, that

he told you he would find $10,000 for you with which

to make the payment due November 1st so that you

Avould have time to turn around and not l)e coerced

into signing any contract unsatisfactory to you.

He informs us also that as a result of further

negotiations he entered into a contract with you,

designed as a stop-gap to enable you to proceed to

do the things your contract with us called for until

someone else could be found to help you; also that

in accordance therewith you have assigned to him

your interest in your agreement with us. However,

we find that such assignment does not conform to

the requirements of your agreement with us and

before w^e take up any negotiations looking to a

renewal of your contract we desire that you be

represented by a duly authorized representative in

addition to your assignee.

He also stated to you, so we are informed, that

his connection with you Avould have no influence

upon whether or not we rehabilitated your con-

tract, and this is true.

Mr. Garbutt has approached us seeking a rein-

statement of your contract which we have declined

under all of the circumstances as stated by him,

among which are that in hope of such reinstatement

he has expended a considerable sum of money in

building a power line to the property and for
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other things designed to allow an early eomi)li-

ance with your terminated contract with us which

money was advanced without our knowledge and

was necessarily at his own risk.

Mr. Garbutt has also infoi'med us of }'our own

internal dissensions, and of the opposition in cer-

tain quarters to him and his contract, in all of which

we have no direct concern.

In view of all of the circumstances we are re-

lieving Mr. Garbutt of the responsibility of repre-

senting us and you will, in event you desire to

communicate further, address us individually ; C'han-

dis Securities Company, Times Building, Los An-

geles, attention of Harry Chandler, and x\lice (lark

Ryan, 112 South Orlando Street, Los Angeles.

We have a friendly feeling for Mr. Russell Col-

lins through whom most of our business has l)een

done and we have no desire to work a hardship

upon your stockholders, many of whom we believe

are in ignorance of the true conditions, but:

We are not satisfied with the way you have evad-

ed carrying our your contract with us nor pleased

with your Managing Director, Mr. Vance's uncan-

did statement to us that ''you have complied with

your contract in every particular", when you w^ell

know this is not true and, in view of the many
concessions we have made you in the past we are

not pleased by your concealment from us of devel-

opments at the mine; nor by the excuse of your

manager's attornev that vou had no contractual ob-
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ligation to inform us; nor by his contention that

our failure to take action sooner, constituted a

waiver of the many breaches of your contract, and

we are not at all reassured by your internal dis-

sensions, nor by the threats of litigation amongst

yourselves which it appears have been extended to

covertly include us.

As long as this is possible or theratened, you

may expect no consideration from us.

If our former contract could not be enforced for

the reasons intimated, that is sufficient reason in

itself for our reluctance to reinstate it.

However, we still do not desire to close the door

against further negotiations and, as your time is

short, we state our position as follows:

We consider your former contract as terminated

and at an end. We are willing to enter into nego-

tiations looking toward making a new one pro-

vided such negotiations are instituted at once and

completed before November 1st, 1938.

We would expect such new contract, amongst

other things, to provide full protection for us

against such eventualities as led up to the termina-

tion of your former contract and against such

threats as its termination brought forth as well

as against happening which might impair our se-

curity.

We would be pleased to receive a statement of

your position and your views on the subject and

an intimation of the course you intend to pursue.
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Also it may save time if you will designate a per-

son to represent you in these negotiations.

Yours truly,

CHANDIS SECURITIES
COMPANY

By HARRY CHANDLER
President

AIJCE CLARK RYAN

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 30

Minutes of Special Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Gold Corporation

Pursuant to due waiver of notice, a special meet-

ing of the directors of Mutual Gold Corporation, a

corporation, was held at 610 Colman Building in

the City of Seattle, King County, Washington, on

Friday, the 21st of October, 1938, there being pres-

ent Mr. Stiegler, Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox and

Mr. Grill. Mr. Collins was absent.

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Stiegler,

the President, who presided.

The following resolutions were duly introduced,

discussed and, upon a vote being had, unanimously

adopted

:

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L.

Grill, directors, be and they hereby are authorized

and directed to go to California to negotiate with

Mr. Garbutt with reference to cancellation of his

contract, and for the negotiating with him to secure
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the advances which he has made or may hereafter

make as required by his contract, or negotiate for

such other arrangements therefor as may be for

the best interests of the company; and

Be It Further Resolved that Mr. G. H. Ferbert

and Mr. W. L. Grill are hereby authorized and di-

rected to arrange, if they deem it advisable, for

the organization of a new corporation under the

laws of California or any other state, with a par

value of $10,000, divided into 10,000 shares, or such

other par value or number of shares as they might

deem advisable, and to subscribe to said shares for

and on behalf of the Mutual Gold Corporation.

Resolved, that in the event such corporation is

organized, Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L. Grill

be and they hereby are authorized and directed to

arrange for the transfer of mining claims, contract

and machinery from Frank A. Garbutt to said

new corporation in connection with the termination

of the said contract with Frank A. Garbutt, if

the same shall be terminated.

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L.

Grill be and they hereby authorized to designate

the temporary directors of such new corporation,

if one be organized.

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L.

Grill be and they hereby are authorized and directed

to negotiate for and on behalf of this company

with Mr. Frank A. Garbutt for the obtaining of a

new contract, if Mr. Frank A. Garbutt is desirous
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of entering into a new contract after the termina-

tion of the present one, any and all of such terms

to be wholly subject to the subsequent approval,

confirmation and ratification of the board of di-

rectors.

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L.

Grill be and they hereby are authorized and di-

rected to enter into negotiations for and on behalf

of the company in comiection with the existing con-

tract of Mr. Frank A. Garbutt, and any new con-

tract, if any, which he may desire to submit to Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, which negotiations shall

be completely subject to the approval, confirmation

and ratification of the board of directors of the

Mutual Gold Corporation.

Resolved, that Mr. G. H. Ferbert and Mr. W. L.

Grill be and they are hereby authorized and di-

rected to negotiate a loan in the sum of $10,000 to

pay for the subscription of $10,000 to the new

company, in the event that a new company is or-

ganized.

Mr. Grill thereupon suggested that a director be

appointed to fill out the unexpired term of Mr. R.

P. Woodworth, resigned, and Mr. A. P. Bowes

was duly nominated and, upon a vote being had,

elected as a director of the company, to fill out th(;

said unexpired term of Mr. Woodworth, and to serve

until the next regular annual meeting of the stock-

holders and until his successor is elected and shall

qualify.
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No further business coming before the directors,

the meeting thereupon adjoumed.

W. L. GRILL
Secretary Pro Tern

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 32

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 10 thereto,

at page 65.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBn^ :}4

Mimites of Special Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Cxold Corporation

Pursuant to due waiver of notice and consent

thereto, a si)ecial meeting of the directors of Mu-

tual Grold Corporation, a corporation, was lield on

Monday, the 7th day of November, 1938, at TSIO

Colman Buildino' in the city of Seattle, King

County, Washington, there being present Mr. J. F.

Stiegler, Mr. F. T. Hickcox, Mr. W. L. Grill and

Mr. A. P. Bowes, constituting a majority (^f the

directors of the company.

Tlie meeting vras called to oj-der by the President,

741- T. F ^'liealfr. V\-ho presided.

Mr. (^h'ill fully repoi'ted the resnlts of his nicft-

ing with Mr. Garbutt in Los Angeles on October 31

and November 1 and 2.

Mr. Grill also reported that he and Mr. Ferbert

had acknovrledged receipt, on behnlf of the Mutual

G-ohl Coi-r)oration. of notice of withdrawal of the
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company's contract of September 2 and September

22, 1938, with Mr. Frank A. Garbiitt, and also the

execution of an agreement with Mr. Garbutt by

Mr. Grill and Mi-. Ferbert, as directors and repre-

sentatives of the Mutual Gold Corporation, dated

Xovember 1, 1938, subject to the ratification and

approval of the board of directors.

The following resolution was duly introduced,

discussed and u])on a vote being had, unanimously

adojjted:

Resolved, that the execution of that certain con-

tract read to the board, dated the first day of No-

vember, 1938, between Mutual Gold Corporation and

Frank A. Garbutt, signed by W. L. Grill and G. H.

Ferbert, as representatives and directors of the Mu-

tual Gold Corporation, be and the same is hereby

ratified, ap]jroved and confirmed as the contract of

tlie Mutual Gold Corporation; and

Be It Further Resolved, that if for any reason

the signatures of the said W. L. Grill and G. H.

Ferbert are in any way insufficient, the President

of this cor})oration, J. E. Stiegler, be and he hereby

is authorized and directed to execute the said agree-

ment as President of the corporation.

The following resolution was duly introduced,

discussed and, upon a vote being had, unanimously

adopted

:

Resolved, that the President of this corporation

be and he hereby is authorized and dii-ected to exe-

cute a conditional sale contract covering the ])ur-
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chase of certain mining machinery and equipment

with the Western Machinery Compan}^, which con-

tract Avas read to the board.

No further business coming before the board, the

meeting thereupon adjourned.

W. L. GRILL
Secretary pro tem.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 36

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION

401 Fernwell Building

Si^okane, Washington

December 1, 1938.

Mutual Gold Cor])oratiou Stockholders:

Enclosed lierewitli i)lease find Progress Re])ort

recently sent to the Board of Directors of Mutual

Gold Cor])oratio]i by Mr. Frauk A. Garbutt.

Tt is the intention of the Bo.^rd to send re])orts

to the stockholders from time to time so that they

may keep ]:)osted on the affairs of tlie Company.

Yevy truly yours,

MT^TI^AL GOLD CORPORATION
By J. E. STIEGLER

President.

Enc.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 37

Minutes of Special Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Gold Corporation

Pursuant to the consent of all directors of the

com])any, a special meeting" of the board of direc-

tors of Mutual Gold Corporation, a corporation, was

held at 610 Colman Building- in the city of Seattle,

King- County, Washington, on Monday, the 28th

day of November, 1938, at the hour of 10 o'clock

A. M., tliere being present a majority of the board

of directors.

The meetiug was called to order by the President,

Mr. .1. E. Stiegler, who presided.

The meeting considered the contracts presented

by Mr. Garbutt aud authorized Mr. W. L. Grill to

])re])are a contract as nearly along the lines of the

old contract as ])ossible, consistent vrith certaiu ideas

Mr. Garbutt desired iucor])orated in it.

The meeting was thereupon adjourned to the 9th

day of December, 1938, at the hour of 10 o'clock

a. m., to meet at 610 Cohnan Building, Seattle,

Washington.

W. L. GRILL
Secretary Pro Tem.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 38

Minutes of Adjourned Special Meeting of Directors .

of Mutual Gold Corporation

Pursuant to notice given at the special meeting

of the directors of Mutual Gold Corporation held

on the 28th day of November, 1938, which was ad-

journed to the 9th day of December, 1938, a special

meeting of the directors of said Mutual Gold Cor-

])oration, a corporation, was held at 610 Colman

Building, Seattle, King County, Washington, on

Friday, the 9th day of December, 1938, at the hour

of 10 o'clock a. m., there being present a majority

of the directors of the company.

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Stiegler,

the President, who pi'esided.

Mr. Grill stated the progress that had been made

in connection with the making of a new contract

with Mr. Garbutt; he stated tliat he had drawn u])

a pro])osed contract and sent it to Mr. Garbutt, who

apparently wanted some changes in it and was

studying it.

It was duly moved, seconded and carried that

the president and secretary of the company be

authorized and directed to execute a request ad-

dressed to Mr. Frank A. Garbutt, requesting liim to

advance such monies as may be necessary to com-

plete the ]:>i]ie line, repair the mill, pay taxes, etc.

in getting the property ready for operation, and

that such advances will be covered b}^ notes as ]^ro-

vided in contract with Mr. Garbutt dated Novem-

ber 1, 1938.
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No further business coming before the directors

at this time, the meeting was adjourned until De-

cember 17, 19138, at 10 o'clock a. m.

Secretary pro tern.

Approved

:

J. E. STIEGLER
A. P. BOWES

Directors.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 39

Minutes of Special Meeting of Directors of

Mutual Gold Corporation

Pursuant to notice and consent, a special meeting

of the directors of Mutual Gold Corporation, a cor-

poration, was held at 610 Colman Building in the

city of Seattle, King County, Washington, on Sat-

urday, the 17th day of December, 1938, at the hour

of 10:00 o'clock a. m., there being present at said

meeting Messrs. J. E. Stiegler, F. T. Hickcox, W.
L. Grill and A. P. Bowes.

The iueeting was called to (U'der by the President,

Mr. Stiegler, who asked Mr. Grill to act as secretary

of the meeting.

After discussing the affairs of the company, the

following resolution was introduced, seconded and,

upon a vote being had, unanimously adopted:

Whereas, this corporation has been negotiating

f<u' some few weeks with Mr. Frank A. Garbutt for
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a contract along the lines of the contract made with

him on or about September 2 and 22, 1938; and

Whereas, the terms of such contract have been

practically agreed upon ; and

Whereas, the form of such contract has been read

to and studied by the board ; and

Whereas, it will be for tlie best interests of this

company that said contract be entered into; now,

therefore,

Be It Resolved that this company enter into said

contract with said Fi-ank A. Garbutt, which con-

tract lias been fully read, discussed and studied by

the board; and

Be It Further Resolved, that the president and

secretar}' of this cori)oration be and they hereby

are authorized and directed to execute said contract

for and on behalf of this company, and to affix the

seal of this company thereto.

Be It Further Resolved, that the President of this

corjjoration be and he hereby is authorized and di-

rected to deliver said contract to said Frank A. Gar-

l)utt and to I^<\ii' Cabin Mines Company, a cor]^ora-

tion.

Mr. Tom L. Wyckoff was thereupoii duly nom-

inated to serve ns director of the company, to fill

out the unex])ired term of Mi*. J. A. Vance, resigned,

and to serve until the next regular annual meeting:

of the stockholders of the company and until his

successor shall be elected and shall qualify. Fjx^u

a vote, ?dr. Wyckoff was nnaniinously elected siu-h

director.



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 329

No further business coming before the directors,

the meetiui*' tliereupon adjourned.

W. L. GRILL
Secretary pro tern.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 40

is set forth in the Com})hiint, as Exhibit 11 thereto,

at page 69

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 41

Mimites of the Fourtli Meeting of the Board of

Directors of Tjog Cabin Mines Company

On January 4, 19.39, at 12:00 o'clock noon, the

fourth meeting of the board of directors of the Log

Cabi]i Mirics Compan.v^ was lield at 411 West

Seventh Street, Los A.ngeles, California, Room 712.

Directors S. C. Hall, Chas. F. Hathaway, G. LI. Fer-

bert, and Russell F. Collins were ]^resent. Director

William L. Grill was absent, bit the secretary had

received from him a telegram, which read as follows:

January 4, 1939

You Have My Permi.sKion Hold Meeting Log

Cabin ApproA-e Contract and Other Matters in

Connection With Contract.

W. L. GRILL.

The meeting was callen to .n-dei- by Mr. S. C. Hall,

president, who stated that the purpose of the meet-
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ing was to consider whether the corporation should

execute a certain contract that had been prepared

under date of December 17, 1938, in which Mutual

Gold Corporation was the first party, Frank A. Gar-

butt was the second party, and Log Cabin Mines

Company was the third party. Mr. Hall further

stated that as he understood it, the proposed con-

tract was intended to accomplish substantially the

results aimed at in a contract dated September 2,

19:]8, and a contract dated September 22, 1938, be-

tween Mutual Gold Corporation as the first party

and Frank A. Garbutt as the second party, which

contracts had been terminated by the mutual con-

sent of the parties thereto on or about November

1, 1938. After extended discussion, it was, on mo-

tion of Mr. Ferbert seconded by Mr. Collins and

carried by the affirmative vote of all directors

present.

Resolved that the i)resident and the secretary of

this cor])oration be, and they are hereby, authorized,

em])owered, and directed to execute and deliver on

behalf of this corporation that certain contract bear-

ing date December 17, 1938, in which Mutual Gold

Cor])oration is the first party, and Frank A. Gar-

butt is the spcoud ])arty, and this cor])oration is the

third i)ai'ty, which said contract has already been

executed by the Mutual Gold Corporation.

yiv. C(^llins then tendered the folloAving written

resignation

:
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Mr. S. C. Hall, President,

Log Cabin Mines Company,

Los Angeles, California.

Dear Mr. Hall:

1 hereby tender my resignation as a director

of Log Cabin Mines Company to take effect

iinmediately.

(s) RI^SSELL F. COLLINS

On motion made by Mr. Ferbert, seconded by Mr.

Hathaway, and a])|)roYed by the affirmative vote of

all directors present, the resignation was accepted.

Mr. Ferbert then nominated Mr. A. R. Carter,

foi-merly a director, to fill the vacancy on the board

made by Mr. Collins' resignation. Mr. Hathaway

seconded the nomination. No other nominations be-

ing made, the nominations were closed on motion of

Mr. Hathaway, seconded by Mr. Ferbert, and car-

ried by the mianimous vote of all the directors

present. The qnestion of Mr. Carter's election then

being put before the board, he was unanimously

chosen.

There being no other matters to come before the

meeting it was adjourned by affirmative vote of all

directors ])resent on motion inade by Mr. Ferbert

and seconded by Mr. Hathaway.

CHAR. F. HATHAWAY
Secretary.

We the undersigned, being all the board of di-

]*ectors of Log Cabin Mines Company at the time

the meeting referred to in the foregoing minutes was
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called to order, do hereby waive notice of the time

and place of the meeting of said board held at 12 :00

o'clock noon on Jannary 4, 1939 at 411 West Seventh

Street, Los Angeles, California, in Room 712; and

we hereby approve the foregoing minutes of the

I^roceedings had at said meeting.

Dated, January 4, 1939 S. C. HALL
Dated, January 4, 1939 CHAS. F. HATHAAVAY
Dated, January 4, 1939 G. H. FERBERT
Dated, January 4, 1939 RUSSELL F. COLLINS
Dated, January 5, 1939 WITJ.IAM L. GRILL

I, the undersigned, being tlie person who was

elected to the board of directors of Log Cabin Mines

Company at tlie meeting referred to in the foregoing

minutes, do liereby waive notice of the time and

place of said meeting held at 12:00 o'clock noon

on January 4, 1939 at 411 West Seventh Street,

Los Angeles, California, in Room 712; and I do

hereby approve the foregoing minutes of the pro-

ceedings had at said meeting.

Dated, January 4, 1939.

A. C. CARTER.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 42

FRANK A. GARBI^TT

Suite 712 - 411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, Cal.

To the Board of Directors, Mutual Gold

Corporation,

Mr. -T. E. Stiegler, President.

Progress Report

My last report was made to 3^ou November 22,

1938, Since then, however, your Board of Directors

has been_ kept in close touch with all operations by

means of daily air mail letters to your President at

Naches; your director, Mr. Grill, at Seattle; and

your Director, Mr. Ferbert, at Long ]^>each, together

with co])ies of uuich of the routine correspondence

involved.

Director Russell Collins has kept in close touch

by personal contact, so that 3^our Board has been

fully informed at all times an.d has been consulted

in advance of any work contem])lated and their ad-

vice sought and carefully considei*ed.

I feel, and I think you agree that your Board of

Directors are functioning one hundred per cent in

controlling and conducting your Company's affairs,

being enabled to do so intelligently by the complete-

ness and promptness with which all information

reaches them.

It pleases me to state that the Comj^any's business

as far as I can see, is gradually getting into a bet-
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ter and sounder condition and, although there are

innumerable things to do to protect your titles and

develop your property that they are being given

proper attention as expeditiously as opportunity

affords.

Among other things referred to are

:

Your Relationship With the Owners. Although

you made your last j)ayment promptly you are still

in default as to many material things, some of

which, as, for example, failure to impound your

tailings can not be corrected. While not waiving

these various defaults the owners have shown a

disposition to be lenient and, although I can not

guarantee it, am hopeful that we will have no

serious trouble with such matters, this particular

one being dei)endent u]>on what damage may occur

to parties owning ])ropei'ty below us.

Titles to Your Holdings. It is im])oi*tant that

some of your claims should be i)atented without fur

ther delays. This is being studied. It is to some ex-

tent dependent u]^on the weather as survey by tlie

U. S. Deputy Surveyors are amongst the necessary

steps. There are also some matters of policy to be

considered.

The title to your water is going to be questioned

and the legalities involved are being carefully ex-

amined into. We have obtained copies of tlie briefs

from the attorneys w^ho tried some of the City's

cases who were my attorneys for over twenty years

and the law and the facts are being briefed for our

])rotection.
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Road Development. For twenty-five years the

operators of this property, including ourselves, have

been wasting mone}^ in hauling over and attempting

to maintain impossible roads and prohibitive grades.

I am not discussing here the developing of the

Mine itself nor the planning of a proper process nor

the building of a suitable mill. These subjects are

too complicated to be determined finally with our

present knowledge.

As you know, they are being studied intensively

and work is being ex])edited as rapidly as business

prudence and good judgment will permit. You are

completeh^ familiar with all of the considerations

governing this but it is appropriate to say that I

am not displeased with the progress made with our

metallurgical and ])hysical ])roblems.

Before a study of tliese matters can be completed

it will be necessary to o])erate the property and

ascertain a great many things not now kno^\^l in

order to secure the ])est approximate results both

in operation and in initial expenditure. This work

is receiving my best attention as you are completely

aware. We have tied ourselves to no one engineer-

ing firm but are consulting the best technical and

operating skill in the United States and in the final

analysis will be governed by our own knowledge and

not by any individual ()])inion for, while our opera-

tions are small, they are vital to us and we can not

afford to tiike any chances.

Now as to details to date

:

1. Our ])ower line, as previously reported, is

complete, as is also another power line 1,500 feet
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long, with butt-treated poles to serve the four

I)unips for our tailing disposal line.

2. A transformer of our own for electric light-

ing and a lighting system have been installed to i-e-

place the inadequate and expensive contraption we

had.

3. AYe have completed the installation of a tail-

ings line about 2600 feet long to the Federal Site

and built a dam there; thus affording a safe place

for the disi^osal of our tailings and insuring a

future comi)liance with this ])rovision of our con-

t]*act. AYhile tliis o])eration will bo temporarily

troublesome and expensi^T it is the only possible

procedure that is entirely safe that is o])en to us

under i)resent conditions.

4. The 2,800-foot, 8-inch pipe line from the drain

tinniel to "the sink" for the disposal of our "red"

mine water has been completed and insofar as pos-

sible, j)rotected. Its upi)er end is 16-inch. Mr. Stur-

geon came well within his estimate on the cost of

this installation.

5. Considerable trenching has been completed on

the hill side to ])rotect the drainage tunnel from

continued damage by surface water and, in Mr.

C(^llins' opinion, to minimize the chance of liability

from tbe u]ii!n])()unded tailings. I have no worth-

while ()])ini(>n on this.

6. The installation of the electric hoist is com-

])leted and my advice is th.at it is o])erating satis-

factorily.

7. The cage is also operating satisfactorily in

thp shaft.
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8. New mine cars are on hand.

9. The compressor is complete.

10. We are placing the one-inch compressed air

line throughout the mine with 2-inch galvanized

pi])e.

11. The old stamp mill has been completely

overhau.led. It is ready to run. I expect trouble with

it, especially its ore elevating system which was so

i!n])ossible before.

If this mill stands up, I have a plan for utilizing

it for secondary crushing in the future which will

salvage a part of its cost, in which case it will be

further remodeled in the spring. Nothing but a trial

can determine this.

12. Compressor and Hoist house is complete.

13. Heaters, as before re])orted, are installed.

11. All ])ayrolls have, of course, been met

])rom])tly.

15. An intensive study of our metallurgical and

oj)erating problems has been and is being made and

I am ])leased to rej)ort substantial progress and the

accumulation of much reliable information.

^6. Preliminary surveys have been made by

com])etent engineers of new roads, and their feasi-

bility at a reasonable cost is assured. The construc-

tion. iK^wever, must await s])ring iuid the tliawing

of the gromid. Possibly $2,500 or $3,000 v;i11 r-over

this cost.

17. AVe have been favored so far by a xevy o])en

winter. We can not haid in the daytime but can

haul at uio'ht v:hen the 2Tound is frozen.
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18. Last week we put about 60,000 feet of mine

timbers on the hill.

19. New^ jack hammers have been bought and

received.

20. I have bought and delivered to the mine sup-

plies consisting of fuel oil, coal, carbide, steel, track,

provisions, drills, explosives, equipment, etc., and

barring accidents and after the usual adjustments

we are ready to run and I am very much in ]io])e

wc will be able to run throughout the winter. In

fact, I ex])ect it. This will enable us to gain much

needed information.

We have spent $50,253.87 to date and I do not

believe $500 of this has been wasted. On the other

hand I have saved the Company more than ten times

this amount that I know of by close ]^ersonal at-

tention to detail. Of this amount $10,000 was for

your payment to the owners; $11,000 for payment

for your major power line; $7,220.72 for consumable

su|)T)lies for winter operations, and $14,274.87 f(U'

equipment such as compressor, hoist, pipe lines,

auxiliary power line, mill motors, lighting ])lant,

mine cars, new jackhammers, electric wiring, etc.

In concluding allow me to thank you gentlemen

for your splendid cooT)eration and understanding.

Your suggestions and advice have been timel>' and

excellent and it is a ]:)leasure to work with ])eo])le

who are familiar with the situation and who do not

think that all you have to do is to buy something

called a mill and start i)aying dividends.
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The landscape is clotted with that kind of mills

that never earn a dividend.

I wish you could find some way of acquainting

your stockholders with the conditions, what you

have accomplished and what you have gone through

in the past for their sake. A few words on paper

cannot begin to tell this story.

The devotion of Russell Collins to the interests

of tlie Mutual is touching in the extreme. I know

that he has gone hungry and cold in his endeavors

to ]>ull them out of the \\o\^ they had, through n(^

fault of his, gotten into.

Your President and also Director Ferbert have

shown a willingness to sacrifice not only their time

but also their uioney to benefit the stockholders and

this, may I state, is in such marked contrast to the

iisiuil corporation director who is generally con-

cerned only in i)rotecting his own interests that it

has furnished the inspiration and the incentive to

me to carry on at a time when the association prom-

ised to become an unj^leasant one.

Nor can I close without paying tribute to the

faithful cooperation of our men at the mine and

es|)ecially our underground man, Mr. Sturgeon, and

our mill man, Mr. Haley. They have worked hard

and faithfully for the Company and it is due to

their devoted efforts that we are able to run this

winter.

For example, our eight-inch pi])e line vras finished,

well under Mr. Sturgeon's estimate of cost, on a day
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when six inches of snow was blown off of the moun-

tain by a howling blizzard.

They have given me at all times faithful coopera-

tion even when perhaps they did not agree with

what I was doing and I can depend on them to voice

their independent opinions and then do their best to

prove that thej^ were wrong if I over-rule them.

More than this, no manager can ask of any head

of a department.

We all know the irre])ara])le loss that the deatli

of Mr. Keily was to the enterprise and to all of us.

While he had not been with me for several years

on aceomit of my retirement from mining, he lias

been in my employ without missing a pay day for

17Vl> years during wliich time he never received less

than $300 per month and expenses.

Mr. Keily was a mining engineer of unusual a])il-

ity in addition to being a practical miner and it was

with a heavy heart that I consented to go on with

you when he passed away for I had no hallucina-

tions about the trouble and detail involved.

That with your cooperation this work bids fair to

become more of a ])leasure than a burden is the

highest com])liment I can pay you and I am en-

deavoring to so arrange your affairs that if anythi]ig

happens to me that you w^ould not be adversely

affected.

In conclusion, may I sum up by saying that with

economical and disinterested management and by

building u]) an efficient and loyal organization we



vs. Frank A, Garhutt, et al. 341

have a fair chance of success. You may depend

upon my best endeavors.

I have heard of efforts being made by unknown

parties to buy stock cheap. I wish you could find

some way to advise your stockholders to hold on to

their stock. My interests are not for sale.

Sincerely,

FRANK A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 43

Mutual Gold Corporation

401 Fernwell Building-

Spokane, Washington

January 14, 1939

To the Stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation

:

You will find enclosed herewith notice of Annual

Meeting of the stockholders of the company, to be

held on the date fixed by the by-laws.

You will also find enclosed herewith latest prog-

ress report of Mr. Frank A. Garbutt. You will note

from this that Mr. Garbutt has expended $50,253.87,

up to January 8, all of which expenditures w^ere

necessary before the property could be ])ut in opera-

tion.

The drain tunnel to the sink and the installation

of the tailings line were necessary to keep the water

and the tailings out of the creek which runs through

Mrs. Cunningham's property. An effort was made
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by Mr. Garbutt to make a satisfactory arrangement

with Mrs. Cmmingliam to use the creek for water

and tailings disposal, but without success. During

a period of prior management a disposal line from

the mouth of the drain tunnel to the sink was con-

structed at a considerable expense, but it was not

l;roper]y constructed, thus necessitating a new in-

stallation. The new installation is now constructed

at a proper grade and should cause no further

trouble to the company.

The mine was ready to conmience operations sev-

eral days ago, but at the last minute it was found

that the water pipe leading to the property was

frozen at some point and the getting of this line

in operation occasioned some delay. However, the

mill began operating on January 12, 1939.

Mr. Garbutt has kept the directors fully informed

of what is transpiring at the property, and has out-

lined to them from time to time for their approA^al

the work which he is undertaking. This is some-

thing which has never occurred before. Mr. Garbutt

is also making a study of the ore and the property,

so as to determine the proper equipment for obtain-

ing the best recoveries from the ore. He is doing

this in a very thorough manner and I have no doubt

that when he fuially recommends what equipment

should be placed upon the property for this pur-

pose, it will be successful.

It has been a real pleasure to the writer, and I

feel also to the board, to have a man in charge of
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the operation who not only knoNvs what he is doing,

but who does not hesitate to do it when he finds out

what should be done. Mr. Garbutt realizes better

than anyone else that the property will have to have

the most economical kind of operation to be success-

ful, and you may rest assured that it will have just

that kind of operation. He was severely handicapped

owing to the shortness of time which he had to

attempt to get the j^rofjerty in operation this year.

I may also frankly say in this connection that I

doubt very much if we could have found another

l)erson in the United States as well qualified in

every respect to handle this property.

As you are doubtless aware, a number of months

this year were lost, during which the board was

considering the offer of the Vance interests and

the one made by Mr. Garbutt. After long delay and

much opposition, the board finally concluded that

it would be for the best interests of all the stock-

holders to accei)t Mr. Garbutt 's offer, which was

reduced to a contract. This contract was more than

lived up to by Mr. Garbutt. For various reasons,

ho^^*ever, he desired to terminate the contract and

a new one has been prepared which has met the ap-

proval of the board but has not yet been executed

and delivered to the company by Mr. Garbutt. We
should have some word on it before the stockhold-

ers' meeting.

The comj^any has a serious controversy with Mr.

Vance. When the deal with Mr. Garbutt was closed,
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Mr. Vance insisted upon the immediate payment of

the production notes, as well as certain advances

which he claims to have made on the company's

behalf. Of course it was impossible to make any

immediate settlement. He later modified his de-

mands and insisted upon said advances being repaid

within one }'ear and the production notes at a later

date. No settlement could be made along this line

until the company knew when it might have suffi-

cient resources to take care of any settlement which

it might make. If such a settlement were made and

the company unable to meet the obligations when

they fell due, then the interests of the stockholders

would be completely wdped out, and this is what the

directors are desirous of avoiding. Whenever Mr.

Vance is willing to make an arrangement which will

not jeopardize the interests of the stockholders, the

present board of directors will meet him more than

half way.

You will find enclosed herewith a proxy, which is

self-exj^lanatory. If you desire to continue the pres-

ent management of the company's affairs and the

present board, which has and will work for the ])est

interests of all of the stockholders, kindly sign the

enclosed proxy and return to the office of the com-

pany. If, on the other hand, you feel that the 2)res-

ent board has not worked unselfishly and for your

best interests, do not hesitate to vote for anyone you

desire, Ijecause we are all working for one end, and

that is to make the projjerty and the company a

success. .
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You may be inforiried prior to the stockholders'

meeting that many things may occur detrimental to

your interests because of the arrangement made

with Mr. Garbutt. In this connection please bear in

mind that certain statements were made to some of

you at the time the contract was first entered into

as to what would happen if the contract was made.

Certainly none of these things has happened and

you are now in a position to judge performance

against any assertions of what may occur in the

future.

It is the writer's personal opinion, in conclusion,

that the stockholders will be highly satisfied with

Mr. Garbutt 's operation during the coming year

and that they may expect a fair and square deal

from him.

Yours sincerely,

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
By J. E. STIEGLER,

President.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 44

MINUTES OF THE FIFTH MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF LOG
CABIN MINES COMPANY

On March 6, 1939, at 11:00 o'clock a. m., the fifth

meeting of the board of directors of the Log Ca])in

Mines Company was held at 411 West Seventh

Street, Los Angeles, California, Room 712. Direc-
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tors S. C. Hall, Charles F. Hathaway, G. H. Fer-

bert, and A. R. Carter were present. Director Wil-

liam L, Grill was absent.

The meeting was called to order by S. C. Hall,

l^resident, who stated that the purpose of the meet-

ing was to determine whether to exercise the option

the corjjoration had to purchase the Clark-Ryan-

Collins contract of July 13, 1932, now held by the

Mutual Gold Mining Corporation, together with the

other property of said Mutual Gold Mining Cor-

poration, all of which, pursuant to the terms of the

contract of December 17, 1938, executed by the

Mutual Gold Corx)oration, Mr. Frank A. Garbutt,

and this corporation, had been transferred to Mr.

Garbutt as trustee. After discussion, the following

resolution was proposed by Mr. Carter, seconded

by Mr. Hathaway, and adopted mianimously:

"Resolved that the president and the secretary

of this corporation be, and they are hereby, author-

ized, empowered and directed to exercise the option

given in that contract dated December 17, 1938

executed by Mutual Gold Corporation, Frank A.

Garbutt, and this corporation, to purchase for the

sum of $10.00 the following properties:

a. All the personal property belonging to Mutual

Gold Corporation and located at the Log Cabin

Mines in Mono County, near Leevining, California,

which property is described in a bill of sale given

by Mutual Gold Corporation to Frank A. Garbutt

under date of September 22, 1938 and recorded on
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November 7, 1938 in Book 14, at page 322, Official

Records of said Mono County.

b. All the real property interest, if any, belong-

ing to said Mutual Gold Corporation in Mono
County, California, which interest is described in

that certain mining deed given by said Mutual Gold

Corporation to Frank A. Garbutt under date of

September 21, 1938 and recorded on November 7,

1938 in Book 14, at page 321, Official Records of

said Mono Comity.

c. That contract dated July 13, 1932 (and the

mudifications thereof) to sell the Log Cabin group

of mines near Leevining in said Mono Comity,

which contract was executed by M. N. Clark, Alice

Clark Ryan, and Chandis Securities Company as

vendors and by Russell F. Collins and Ben L. Col-

lins as vendees, and was heretofore sold and as-

signed by said Russell F. Collins and Ben L. Collins

to said Mutual Gold Corporation.

Mr. Hall then called attention to the fact that the

escrow ordered by the Commissioner of Corpora-

tions had not been terminated, and suggested that

it might be well while the board was in session to

adopt a resolution authorizing the officers to make

application to the commissioner for termination of

said escrow at the proper time. On motion of Mr.

Hathaway, seconded by Mr. Ferbert, the following

resolution was unanimously adopted:

Resolved that the president and the secretary of

this corporation be, and they are hereby authorized,



348 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

empowered, and directed to make application, at

such time as in their discretion may seem proper, to

the Commissioner of Corporations for the State of

California to terminate the escrow which, in the

permit granted by him to this corjDoration on Octo-

ber 21, 1938 to sell stock, he ordered to be opened.

There being no further matters to come before

the meeting, it was adjourned by the affirmative

vote of all directors present on motion made by Mr.

Carter and seconded by Mr. Hathaway.

CHAS. F. HATHAWAY
Secretary

We, the undersigned, being ail the board of direc-

tors of Log Cabin Mines Company at the time the

meeting referred to in the foregoing meeting was

held, do hereby waive notice of the time and place

of said meeting; and we hereby approve the fore-

going miimtes of the proceedings had at said meet-

ing.

Dated, March 6, 1939

S. C. HALL

Hated, March 6, 1939

CHAS. F. HATHAW^AY

Hated, March 6, 1939

G. H. FERBERT

Dated, March 6, 1939

A. R. CARTER

Dated, March 7, 1939

WILLIAM L. GRILL
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 45

is set forth in the Comi)laint, as Exhibit 12 thereto,

at page 84.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 46

is set forth in the CompUiiiit, as Exhil)it 13 thereto,

at page 88.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 47

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 14 thereto,

at page 92.

Mr. Anderson: That is Plaintiffs' Exhibit 51.

I offer in evidence mining deed dated August 9,

1939, from Mutual Gold Corporation to Log Cabin

Mines Company, [50] covering the so-called omitted

mining claims.

The Clerk: 52.

Mr. Anderson : It is

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 52. [51]

set forth in the comj)laint as Exhibit 15 thereto,

at page 94.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 60

SCHEDULE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
OF LOG CABIN MINES COxMPANY

N. B. Red ink underlining indicates directors or

officers who were at the same time directors or

officers of Mutual Gold Corporation.)

[Printer's Note: Red ink miderlining is indicated

by italics.]

Meeting of October 19, 1938:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter

George H. Blake

Frederick J. Ott

Officers (elected at this meeting) :

President—S. C. Hall

Vice president—Charles F. Hathaway

Secretary-Treasurer—A. R. Carter

Ass't Secretary—George H. Blake

Ass't Treasurer—Frederick J. Ott

Meethig of October 26, 1938:

Directors

:

Same as on October 19, 1938

Officers

:

Same as on October 19, 1938
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Meeting of November 2, 1938:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter (resigned at this meeting)

Eiissell F. Collins (elected in place of

Carter)

George H. Blake (resigned at this meeting)

Williaiii J. Grill (elected in place of

Blake)

Frederick J. Ott (resigned at this meeting)

G. H. Ferbert (elected in place of Ott)

Officers

:

President—S. C. Hall

Vice president—Charles F. Hathaway (re-

signed at this meeting)

Secretary-Treasurer—A. R. Carter (re-

signed at this meeting)

Charles F. Hathaway (elected in place

of Carter)

Ass't Secretary—Oeorge H. Blake (re-

signed at this meeting)

William L. Grill (elected in place of

Blake)

Ass't Treasurer—Frederick J. Ott (re-

signed at this meeting)
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Meeting of January 4, 1939:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

G. II. Ferbert

Eussell F. Collins (resigned at this meet-

ing)

A. R. Carter (elected in place of Collins)

William L. Grill

Officers

:

President—S. C. Hall

Vice i)resident—Vacant

Secretary-Treasurer—Charles F. Hatha-

way

Ass't Secretary

—

William L. Grill

Ass't Treasurer—Vacant

Meeting of March 6, 1939:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

G. H . Ferbert

A. R. Carter

William L. Grill

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939.
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Meeting of April 13, 1939

:

Directors

:

Charles F, Hathaway

S. C. Hall

G. H. Ferhert

A. R. Carter

William L. Grill (resigned at this meeting

—vacancy not filled)

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939.

Meeting of April 17, 1939

:

Directors

:

Same as on April 13, 1939.

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939.

Meeting of April 27, 1939:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter

G. H. Ferhert (resigned at this meeting

—

vacancy not filled)

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939

Meeting of May 26, 1939:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter
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Officers

:

Same as on January 4, ^[yV.K

Meeting of August 23, 1939

:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter

Frederick J. Ott (elected at this meeting)

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939.

Meeting of October 20, 1939

:

Directors :

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter

Frederick J. Ott

Frank A. Garbutt (elected at this meeting)

Officers

:

Same as on January 1, 1939.

Meeting of January 15, 1910:

Directors

:

Charles F. Hathaway

S. C. Hall

A. R. Carter (resigned at this meeting)

Frederick J. Ott (resigned at this meeting)

Frank A. Garbutt

WiJliam L. Grill (elected at this meet-

ing)

G. H. Ferhcrt (elected at this meeting)

Officers

:

Same as on January 4, 1939.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 62

Frank A. Garbutt

Suite 712—411 West Seventli Street

Los Angeles, California

Nov. 5, 1938.

Mr. M. F. Haley,

Log" Cabin Mine,

Leevining, Cal.

Hear Mr. Haley:

I have your letter of November 1, enclosing the

two orders, signed by you and Mr. Sturgeon, for

which I thank you.

It is not always possible or even desirable to

explain to you why I give a positive order. When
I do so you may be certain that I had a good and

sufficient reason therefor and that I want it obeyed.

In this case I do not blame you for not under-

standing the matter but there are certain legal sig-

nificances connected therewith that there is no

reason why I should exjjlain.

I will say this much, however, that at the time

I issued this order I was carrying on these opera-

tions in my own name and that to have done other-

wise would have made me liable for any damage

the Mutual might have caused in the past or may

cause in the future, an obligation which I would not

undertake.

In addition to the above, in my opinion and in

the opinion of the Mutual's attorney, such action

not only xjrotected me but did not weaken their

position.
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This is more, I believe, than I should say under

the circumstances but I want to lessen some of your

fears.

I have turned the property ])ack to the Mutual

and it is free to do what it sees fit.

Sincerely,

FRANK A. GAPtBUTT.

FAG-C.

Mr. Anderson: If your Honor please, I desire to

read the testimony of Robert J. Cole who signed

the report just introduced in evidence as Plaintiffs'

Exhibit 64, which testimony was given in the [69]

case heretofore referred to: Vance, et al. v. Mutual

Gold Corporation, and Vance vs. Mutual Gold Cor-

poration.

The Court: May I ask the purpose?

Mr. Anderson : The purpose of this is to supple-

ment and sustain this report, this report being an

exhibit in this case; and also to show evidence as

to the values of this property. We have alleged

that we

The Court: Do comisel stipulate? Is that part

of the stipulation that the witnesses' testimony in

the Washington case may be read here the same as

if they were present?

Mr. Hinckle: Yes, your Honor.

Mr. Anderson: That was covered in the stipula-

tion that I addressed to your Honor this morning.

The Court: I just wondered.

Mr. Anderson: (Reading)
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^'ROBERT J. COLE,

called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiffs, being

lirst duly sworn, testified as follows
: '

' [70]

Mr. Moore: Q. You explained certain ores were

developed, that is, certain reserves had been ex-

posed ? A, Yes.

Q. And you testified as to the amount of those

reserves, didn't you? A. I think I did.

Q. In your oijinion as a mining engineer and

experience you have related }'ou have had, state

whether or not, in your judgment, those reserves

could have been milled and the ore extracted at a

profit with the equipment then at the mine?

A. With the equipment then at the mine I doubt

whether they could have been treated at a profit.

[106-7]

Cross Examination

By Mr. Heil: [108]

Q. As I understand your testimony, you do not

recommend the continuation of the operation of that

property with the mill that was there ? A. No.

Q. And in order to operate it profitably would

you say that an expenditure of between $100,000

and $150,000 might be required ?

A. It could have been that nnicli, depending on

conditions, as to how you wanted to s^jend your

money.

Q. It would depend on whether you bought new

or used equipment? [112]
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RUSSELL F. COLLINS,

called as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs, being first

duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

The Clerk: Will you state your name?

A. Eussell F. Collins.

Direct Examination [137]

Q. You are familiar with the contract of Sep-

tember 2, 1938 involved in this lawsuit, are you not?

A. I think so; yes.

Q. Were you present when it was signed?

A. 1938. Well, my recollection is that I was

present when it was signed.

Q. Where was it signed?

A. My memory don't carr}^ me back to the exact

location or i)lace where it was signed, now, Mr. Abel.

Q. Were you present—you are familiar with

A. Let me get that date straight. Hold on. That

is in September, 1938?

Q. September 2, 1938.

The Court: That is the first contract involved.

Mr. Abel: The first contract involved in this

lawsuit.

A. I think it was in Mr. Garbutt's office, if I

am not mistaken.

Q. AVho was ju'esent at that time?

A. Now, I don't

Q. If that was the place ?

A. I couldn't be positive, but my recollection is

that Mr. Grill and Mr. Ferbert, I think, and I be-

lieve Mr. Stiegler. I am not sure but there were
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some others—and [138] I think Mr. Garbutt. I am
not sure whether Mr. Garbutt was there or not. I

would not be sure as to that.

Q. Are you familiar with the duplicate contract

of September 22, 1938, being a duplicate of the

contract of September 2, 1938 ?

A. A duplicate or a supplement or supplemen-

tary

Q. It was the same contract bearing a later date,

was it not? A. Well, it jnobably was.

Q. Were you present when that instrument was

signed ?

A. Now I wouldn't be sure as to that. I went to

the mine and I wouldn't be right sure as to that

second date referred to.

Q. You went to the mine from what place?

A. From Los Angeles.

Q. When did you enter the service of the de-

fendant Garbutt in connection with the matter under

consideration here? A. Well, [139]

Q. By Mr. Abel : I am speaking of your initial

service.

A. AVell, there was a transition period there in

which Mr. Garbutt was, I would say, a trustee or

acting in the capacity of a trusteeship, and I was

not out of the employ, as I understood it at least, of

the Mutual Gold interests at any time.

Q. You are shown a check for $50 bearing the

signature "Frank A. Garbutt", dated September
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(Testimony of Russell F. Collins.)

27, 1938. Do you identify that as a check that you

received from him about that date?

A. That bears my signature and I am sure that

is a check that I received from him. Yes.

Q. When did you receive if?

A. Well, my recollection is that I didn't have

money to go to Leevining and so Mr. (larbutt was

advised of that and gave me a check to bear my
expenses. I had already spent all the money that I

could raise from the other sources.

Q. Just be responsive. A. All right.

Q. I am just trying to find out when you re-

ceived it. A. All right.

Q. Do you recall the circumstances under which

you [140] received it?

A. Well, that is my recollection of it, that I was

needing some money to go to the mine. That is my
recollection, that I used that check in j^aying my
exj^enses from here to Leevining and after I got

there for a while.

Q. Then, the issuance of that check to you and

your collection of that amount, $50, preceded your

enii^loyment by Mr. Garbutt in connection with this

mining property ?

A. Well, if you mean to say that that \vas prior

to the tinal taking over by the Log Cabin; yes.

Q. No. It was before you had rendered any ser-

vice for Mr. Garbutt that this $50 was i)aid you?

That is the point that I inquire about.
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A. Well, I wasn't—I was not considering myself

in the position of his employee necessarily. I was

more looking after the Mutual Gold and I had no

money to go ahead on.

Q. Are you now able to state the date that you

were first emjjloyed by the defendant Garbutt to

render any service in connection with this mining

property ?

A. I couldn't tell you the exact date; no.

Q. You would not say that it was before or after

September 27th?

A. Xo; I wouldn't. No; I wouldn't.

Q. Could it have been as much as a month

earlier ?

A. Well, I think not, because I think I was on

a contract for myself, hauling sui)plies to the camp

at that thne. [141]

Q. At what time ? A. At prior to that time.

Q. What time were you hauling supplies before

that time?

A. Well, I hauled the pipe, the long 2200 feet

of pipe on a contract.

Q. When, when?

A. For the Mntual Gold, and that may be one

of the part i:)ayments on that, I wouldn't be sure

about that. I hauled them—it Avas in the fall of

1938.

Q. Do you then testify that this $50 payment

liad connection with the hauling of pipe?

A. I didn't say that.



362 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

(Testimony of Russell F. Collins.)

Q. Well, but what do you say?

A. I said I was not sure; that it may be. I re-

member Mr. Garbutt paid us for hauling this pipe

on the contract, and that $50 might be a part of

that. I woukbi't be sure.

Q. I show you now another paper—and let me
say that these were produced at our request by

Mr. darbutt's attorne}"—I show you a paper dated

November 21, 1938. Please state whether that re-

freshes your recollection about the hauling of pipe

as having occurred long after September 27th.

A. Who signed this? I don't see anything about

who signed it. '*! gave Mr. Collins $50"

Q. "55" this refers to.

A. That is Avhat it says '^$55 last night on ac-

comit of the hauling he is doing for us. I got $25

of it from Mr. Garbutt" [142]

Q. "From Miss Garbutt."

A. ''From Miss Garbutt and the balance was my
cash. I have to give her back her $25 and I ought

to have about $10 in cash to put in my pocket."

Q. "T. H. E." that would be Mr. Garbutt 's

A. As 1 remember that now

Q. No. Just a mimite, Mr. Collins. I don't wish

to be unfair to you and make you testify to the

correctness of some other i)erson's memorandum;

but by looking at this memorandum does it refresh

3'our recollection about when you hauled, about

when you did the hauling f
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A. Yes; I am sure that it does. That is in Sep-

tember, about

Q. This bears date November 21 and calls at-

tention to another check ^'16,812". I don't know

whether that is here or not.

A. That is possible, or that is a part—as I re-

member, there was no bank open on that day. It

was a Sunday and I was to leave town, and I am
not sure that that was the second trip to Leevining

or the third trip.

Q. I am only interested now in two things, dates

and the hauling. Do you still think that the hauling

that }^ou did was in September or earlier which may

account lor the $50 payment to you?

A. I I'jmember very well that I was afraid the

snow would come and maybe block the road before

we could get this pipe [143] in and up the moun-

tain. I remember that very definitely and I wouldn't

positively sa}' whether it was earlier. I remember

it was bitterly cold. We slept out one night on the

Ridge and it was pretty cold.

Q. Without going into too much detail, I am
only interested in who you did that hauling for,

whetlier it was for Mr. Garbutt or whether it was

for Alutual?

A. Well, I would sa}' that that was for ^lutual

Gold.

Q. As late as November, then, you were hauling

for Mutual Gold, were you"?
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A. Well, under that set-up; yes.

Q. Under that set-up?

A. That is ni}^ understanding; yes.

Q. Who did you have that understanding with?

A. Well, I was acting as a contractor and Mr.

Garbutt had ordered the pipe and I took a contract

to haul it.

Q. Well, when we tind the date Mr. Clarbutt

ordered the pipe, it was after that you took the

contract to haul it, was it, and were you paid for it ?

A. Well, I guess it was after he had ordered it

I took the contract on it.

Q. You are now shown a yellow sheet, being the

third sheet here. Did that ever come to your atten-

tion before?

A. Well, that is September 30, 1938.

Q. Did you cause that payroll sheet to be i)re-

pared ?

A. I don't remember ever havmg caused it to be

prepared; [144] no.

Q. Well, do you identify that as showing money

that you received from Mr. Garbutt for services in

September ?

A. Well, that could easily be. As I say

Q. Did you receive a check of $19.25 for ser-

vices in September for five days' work?

A. I don't remember. I might have. It might

have been the time

Q. Anyway, that $19.25 was not embraced in the

$50? A. No; I don't think so. No.
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Q. So, then, is it fair to state that you received

two checks from Mr. Garbutt for services, the re-

ceipt of which was in September, irrespective of

when the services were performed, one September

27th, $50, and one $19.25, paid October 6tli, for

wages in Sei^tember?

A. Well, that could easily be; yes.

Q. And are you now prepared to concede that

the hauling of the pipe was at a later date?

A. Well, it might have been. As I say, I remem-

ber tlie fear that the winter would close the road

on us, and I knew we couldn't operate unless we

got that pipe in and laid down. [145]

Q. By Mr. Abel: You are now show^l page five

of the bill of particulars in this case and your at-

tention is directed to several items, all except the

one "miscellaneous expenses $150." Please state

whether or not on or about the day or the days

shown in the memorandum you received from Mr.

Garbutt the amounts specified opposite each date.

Mr. Hinckle: We will stipulate that he did.

Mr. Abel: Yes, thank you. I won't bother you

any more.

The Witness : That is all right.

Q. How long were you in the employ of Mr.

Garbutt while you recognized him as trustee for

Mutual Gold Corporation ?

A. Well, I will say from the tune I finished

the haul and after going to Leevining up until the
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time the final transfers were made of the Mutual

Gold to Log Cabin, and the taking over by the

Log Cabin of their interests. That is the [146] time

I was

—

Q. Do you know what date that was?

A. I don't remember the exact date; no.

Q. At the time you received the check for $50

you were a director of Mutual Gold Corporation,

were you not? A. I think I was.

Q. You know it, don't, you?

A. Well, yes.

Q. You know you were? A. Yes,

Q. And upon the organization of Log Cabin

Mines Company, which was on or about October

18, 1938, you at some later date became director of

that company, too, did you not?

A. Yes; that is my recollection of it, sir.

Q. You were a director of the two companies

at the same time for a while?

A. I think that is correct.

Q. While you were a director of the two com-

panies and while you were upon Mr. Garbutt's

payroll, whether he was trustee or otherwise, the

contract of December 17, 1938 was made, was it not ?

A. Well, will you bring that out, a little more

clearly? As I imderstand it you are referring' to

this as Mr. Garbutt as trustee?

Q. I do not want to bind you that he was

trustee. A. Yes. [147]
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Q. You brought it up yourself.

A. All right; that is fair.

Q. I merely clarify that slightly.

A. All right ; that is correct.

Q. Anyway, you were a director in both com-

panies at the time the December 17, 1938 contract

was made.

Mr. Hinckle: I think the minute record shows

that Mr. Abel.

Mr. Abel: Yes; it does show that.

Q. Wlio negotiated that contract for Mutual

Gold Corporation?

A. Which one are you referring to ?

Q. The contract of December 17, 1938.

A. December 17, 1938.

Q. Who negotiated it for Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion %

A. Well, for Mutual Gold I was very much ac-

tive, I know, in trying to get the contract signed

and agreed upon.

Cross Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Collins, was any of

this money that was paid to you by Mr. Garbutt

paid to you in order to get you to induce the Mu-

tual Gold Corporation to enter into any of these

contracts? A. No, sir. [148]

Redirect Examination

Q. By Mr. Abel: Are you still working at this

mine? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. What are you, assistant manager?

A. Me?

Q. Yes.

A. I am clean-up man and a little bit of every-

thing. I do a little bit of everything that comes

along. [149]

WILLIAM L. GRILL,

called as a witness on behalf of the ])laintiffs, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows:

The Clerk : State your name, please.

A. W. L. Grill.

Direct Examination

Mr. Abel: Mr. Grill is called as an adverse wit-

ness also.

Q. Mr. Grill, would you please examine the

check of September 29, 1938—and I will hand it to

you—in the sum of $150?

A. Yes, sir. I have examined it.

Q. Did you receive that check on or aboiit the

day it bears date from Mr. Garbutt?

A. Possibly the same date, I believe.

Q. On or about the same date?

A. I believe so. I am not positive. That time

goes by and I would not swear about the date.

Mr. Abel: I offer the check in evidence. May I

detach it?
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Mr. Hinckle: Surely.

Mr. Abel: The check for $150 bearing date of

September 29, 1938, issued to Wm. L. Grill, signed

''Frank A. Garbutt", No. 16,669.

The Clerk: Exhibit 73.

Q. By Mr, Abel : Is that the same disbursement

that is entered up in the bill of particulars under

date of September 20, 1938, "miscellaneous expenses,

$150"? [150]

A. I don't know. I did not make up the bill of

particulars, so I can't tell you.

Mr. Abel: Will you get the exhibit to the Gar-

butt deposition?

Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Abel, we will stipulate it is

item No. 2 in your tabulation on page five of your

bill of particulars.

Mr. Abel: Yes. The date seems to be incorrect,

but we obtained that from you.

Mr. Hinckle : That is the only item.

Mr. Abel: And the only point I w^anted to em-

phasize about it is that it does not purport to have

been issued to Mr. Grill but to "miscellaneous ex-

pense." That is the only point. On the books it did

not show issued to Mr. Grill.

Mr. Hinckle: I assume that is true, Mr. Abel. I

don't know about that. If you say that is true, all

right. Did you examine the books?

Mr. Abel: When we get to the exhibits to the

Garbutt deposition we will check it. That will be

all, Mr. Grill.
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The Court: Do you want to cross examine your-

self?

The Witness: I would like to explain what the

check is. It seems to me that is rather important.

The Court : You may make any explanation you

want.

The Witness: This check was expenses of a trip

to Los Angeles, advanced by Mr. Garbutt for and

on behalf of the Mutual Gold Corporation. It is

my recollection that that was paid at the time or

about the time that I came down here, when [151]

Mr. Vance and Mr. Abel—there was a session here

at that time of about two or three days and I was

called dowTi in an effort or in a conference to set-

tle the various disputes between Mr. Vance and

the Mutual Gold and Mr. Garbutt. It might have

been later, but that is my recollection of the time.

And it was no payment by Mr. Garbutt for any

service of any kind or character whatsoever.

Mr. Abel: Are you through, Mr. Grill?

The Witness: Yes.

Q. By Mr. Abel: Isn't this the sequence of

events: That the meeting of the stockholders to

ratify the contract of September 2nd was called

for Spokane for September 24th; that on the 18th

or 19th, before that, it was called off by the Board

;

that on the 24th the objecting stockholders met in

Spokane and came right down here and were here

on the morning of the 26th and you arrived on tlie

morning of the 27th?
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A. You were here a day before, I think. I flew

down and got here.

Q. Yes. You flew down on the night of the 26th.

A. Yes. I don't remember the dates, except I

think that is the check and it calls it somewhat to

my recollection. [152]

RUSSELL F. COLLINS,

recalled as a witness m behalf of the plaintiffs,

having been previously duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

Further Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Abel: Did you have anything to do

with what I will call the ''termination contract" of

October 31st, or what we will call the "interim

contract" of November 1, 1938?

A. Do you mean the termination?

Q. Yes: the termination of the one contract and

the making of another one?

A. Nothing whatever, sir.

Q. You did not have anything to do with that?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have occasion during that time to

come to Los Angeles from Leevining?

A, I would not be sure as to the dates, but I

remember several trips that I have made from Los

Angeles, probably that one, too, I think along that

time.
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Q. I call your attention to an expense account-

totaling some $128.05, under date of October 25th.

Is that your signature? Did you prepare that ex-

pense account?

A. What year is this, Mr. Abel?

Q. That same year, October, 1938. Is that your

signature to that expense account? [153]

A. Oh, yes; that is my signature. Yes; that is

my signature.

Q. By Mr. Abel : Well, who other than you dur-

ing the months of September or October, 1938, was

representing Mutual Gold Corporation in Los An-

geles, authorized to incur expenses to be paid at

the request of Mr. Garbutt?

A. There is no evidence we were incurring any

expenses authorized to be paid by Mr. Garbutt.

Q. I am now referring to the $150 paid to Mr.

Grill. A. Yes.

Q. Who sent for him? You were present at

that meeting?

A. I think I wired for him. That is my recol-

lection, that I wired for him.

Q. You wired for him?

A. That is my recollection; yes.

Q. Did you do that after conference with Mr.

Garbutt?

A. No. I don't know that it was before or after.

[154]
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A. R. CARTER,

called as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs, being-

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as

follows

:

The Clerk: Will yon state your name?

A. A. R. Carter.

Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Abel : What relation do you bear to

Frank A. Garbutt, one of the defendants here?

A. I don't bear any relation to him.

Q. Business relation?

A. Business relation — I keep his accounts

and do various work around the office.

Q. You are employed in the office, are you?

A. I am; yes.

Q. And about the Log Cabin Mines Company,

have you always kept its books of entry and account

also ?

A. Well, since we took the books into our of-

fice.

Q. And when was that ?

A. About the first of April, 1939.

Q. Have you the account of disbursements made

to Russell F. Collins during the period from Sep-

tember 1st to February 28, 1939?

A. September 1, '38, September 1, '38. Why,
that was before the inception of Log Cabin Mines.

I don't have an account with Russell Collins. It is

just contained in the regular account of the checks

as written during that period. [157]
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Q. Whose checks?

A. These checks here were signed by Frank A.

Garbutt.

Q. Upon his personal account?

A. Upon his personal account; yes.

Q. Would you please let me see the ledger ac-

count ?

A. Well, that is a transcript of the ledger ac-

count up to the time that the Log Cabin Mines

started to take over. This is the Log Cabin Mines.

That is an exact copy from the ledger account.

Q. Where is the ledger account itself?

.V. I didn't bring that aloii^- 1)ecnuse tlie paper

that was given to me said to bring the papers of

the Log Cabin Mines Company, and I ])rought all

the books of the Log Cabin Mines and I also

brought this in case you wanted to ask some ques-

tions about it.

Q. But you can't i^roduce the ledger accounts?

A. Oh, I can produce the sheets. They will be

exactly the same as that, no difference whatsoever,

dates and everything given there. There are some

checks in there to Russell Collins.

Q. I think w^e shall Avant to see the origin of

the account and how it was carried from the start.

A. Well, that is just the way it was carried from

the start. That is the exact copy. You have seen

the sheets with those same things on down in onr

office about a year ago.
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Q. The item on the second sheet here '

'miscel-

laneous [158] expense"

—

A. It is written ''William L. Grill."

Q. I noticed the name "William L. Grill" has

])een written in? A. That is right.

Q. The entry upon the book did not show that,

did if?

A. It showed "William L. Grill" but didn't

show the "miscellaneous." These here were made

up at one time. I didn't go back and copy these

over tlie second time. They were made up for anoth-

er purpose at a different time, the complete tran-

script of tlie ledger account. But every item is item-

ized there and wherever it says "miscellaneous" the

"miscellaneous" is cut down and distributed.

Q. When Mr. Garbutt testified in the Spokane

case by deposition you produced the original ledger

accounts, did you not?

A. Was that the time that you was down there

in the office ?

Q. Yes. And then you made a transcript of it?

A. Yes. Yes; you looked at the ledger at that

time, if that is the time you were in the office.

Q. And at that time the name "William L. Grill"

did not appear?

A. Yes ; it appeared on the ledger and you took

note of it right there that it did.

Q. How do you explain that it shows it on

September 20th? [159]
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A. September 20th?

Q. Yes.

..V. That is tlie day the check was given.

Q. The check is in evidence and purports to be

September 27 or 29—September 29.

A. September 29 1

Q. Well, that is a clerical error?

A. It probably is a clerical error, because you

see here is one of the 27th right before it, you see

m the typewriting.

Q. Yes. A. That should be '^29."

Q. For what period of time did Frank A. Gar-

butt issue his personal checks on this property m-

volved in this case?

A. You mean in payment of the bills of the

mine, the Log Cabin Mines Company?

Q. Or any bills at all to directors of Mutual or

anybody ?

A. Well, they were from September 21st to about

March—or, no—April Stli or 6th of 1939. Then is

when the Log Cabm Mines bank account was opened.

Q. What date was that?

A. Well, let's see. The book here is better than

anything else. The first check was issued on April

17th; that w^as No. 1; and the deposit was made on

April 15th, the first deposit of $1,000.

Q. And the remaining $9,000 was wlien? [160]

A. The 17th, April 17th.

Q. That x)aid the cai)ital stock of Log Cabin

Mines Company, that $10,000, didn't it?
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A. I don't know, as far as that is concerned.

I think it did, but I wouldn't say for certain be-

cause I didn't handle that phase of it.

Q. Will you have the payroll showing when

Mr. Garbutt started to employ labor at that mine?

A. Well, I have the dates of it; yes. I don't

have the actual payrolls with me.

Q. Not the date of the check, but the date the

employment commenced. To refresh your recollec-

tion—withdrawing that question for the moment.

Do you personally know that Garbutt operated this

mine in some capacity from the time he originally

took hold up until April 15, 1939?

A. Well, no; I don't.

Q. By the Court: Were you in his emj^loy at

that time?

A. Yes; but part of the time it was operated

under the name of "Frank A. Garbutt", and a

short time later it was operated under the name of

"Mutual Gold Corporation." That is just the way

that we turned in the statements to the Federal

Government for the compensation insurance.

Q. By Mr. Abel: Then you can j^roduce a led-

ger account in the morning, the original ledger ac-

count, of both those accounts, can you ?

A. Well, the account was all carried in one ac-

count on [161] the books or ledger sheet in the

books imder "Frank A. Garbutt".

Q. Under the name "Frank A. Garbutt"?

A. Yes; the ledger sheet was, but the account
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was called the "Mutual Gold Corporation'' after a

certain time.

Q. Upon the books of Mr. Garbutt, then, you

say that there was one account a part of the time

that was in his name on the same sheet and as a

part of the same account '^

A. It was always in the name in the book as the

"Mutual Gold Corporation"; but, as I say, we

operated at one time under his name, and as far as

the tax statements were concerned, and then it

was taken over by the Mutual Gold operation. [162]

The Witness: Do you want these other books

here, too? These are the books, do you want those,

too?

Mr. Abel: Well, w^e might look at those now.

Let me see what is shown in this one.

Q. May we use this?

A. These books start after those were complete,

after tliose.

Q. Show me the book. Would you turn to the

account here involved?

A. Which account is that?

Q. This Log Cabin account.

A. It is all Log Cabin, the whole ledger is.

Q. The v/hole ledger is the Log Cabin account?

A. Yes.

Q. Commencing what date ?

A. Well, let's see. Of course, that is not prob-

ably the first starting dates, but that account prob-

ably was started afterwards. There wouldn't be

anything in it to start it with. It starts April 1st,
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Stock. Those back there are just blanks. There is

nothing in that.

Q. Were you familiar with the organization of

Log Cabin Mines Company?

A. Well, in regard to what? [163]

Q. In regard to its incorporation?

A. No; I was not.

Q. Were you an officer?

A. No—well, I might have been for a day or

two or something of that sort.

Q. For what purpose?

A. Well, at the time that they incorporated, I

believe I was a director for probably, oh, it might

have been a week or something of that. sort.

Q. At whose request?

A. Well, at the request of Mr. Hinckle, the at-

torney.

Q. And how did you come to sever that relation-

ship?

A. Well, somebody else was—I don't know who
was, but somebody else was put in as a director, a

permanent director. My understanding was that I

was only asked to act as director a few days, tem-

porarily.

Q. Who told you that?

A. ^^Hiy, nobody told me that. I just was under

the impression that that was the case.

Q. What is shown on Sheet 1, this sheet?

A. That is an account for Russell Collins, money

advanced to him and money paid back.
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Q. What is the first item?

A. It is a check for $100.

Q. Under date of February 5, 1940?

A. Februaiy 5, 1940; that is right. [164]

Q. And the total amomits of the checks issued

to him to February, 1940

—

A. Was $359, of which he paid back $98.

Q. Still indebted for the balance?

A. For $261 ; that is right.

Q. That is Log Cabin Mines?

A. That is right.

Q. Have you any other accounts with any of tlie

former directors of Mutual Gold?

A. No; that is all.

Q. He is the only one, is he? A. Yes.

Q. And he ceased to be a director, didn't lie, of

Mutual Gold, or you don't know?

A. I don't, know that. [165]

Cross Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Carter, in keeping

the books that you have before you do you take

instructions from anyone as to just how you shall

handle the account?

Q. By Mr. Hinckle : By that I mean, Mr. Car-

ter, does Mr. Garbutt or does anybody come to

you and say, "Charge this to the Mutual Gold" or

"Charge this to John Smith," or just how much

discretion do you use yourself in working out these

accounts.
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A. Well, as the usual thing, why, somebody tells

me to what accoimt it is to be charged or the ac-

counts are O. K.'ed and it is written on there "Log
Cabin Mines." [167]

R. P. WOODWORTH,
called as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows:

The Clerk: Will you state your name?

A. R. P. Woodworth, W-o-o-d-w-o-r-t-h.

Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Abel: Your residence?

A. Spokane.

Q. Your profession? A. Lawyer.

Q. By the Court: Your residence is where?

A. Spokane.

Q. By Mr. Abel: You are an attorney-at-law

?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you connected with Mutual Gold Cor-

poration during the year 1938 for a time?

A. Yes.

Q. And you had been a director for some time

previous, had you? A. Several years.

Q. Were you present at the directors' meeting

held at the Vance Hotel, Seattle, on August 13,
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1938, being the date that the Cecil B. De Mille

pro]30sal came before the board?

A. Yes, sir ; I was there at that meeting. [168]

Q. By Mr. Abel: I call attention, Mr. Wood-
worth, to the minutes of that date, and ask you

to tell what the [170] proposed offer was which is

referred to therein, quoting:

''Considerable discussion was had in regard

to this matter and Mr. Lloyd J. Vance stated

that he had a proposition which he would like

to submit to the Board if they would consider

it, and after some discussion the proposed of-

fer was read by the Board, Mr. Vance explain-

ing at the time of the reading thereof as to

tvhe changes he desired made."

State whether or not that was a renewal of the

previous offer.

Mr. Moore: What is the date of that, may I

inquire ?

Mr. Abel : August 13th, one week later.

A. Yes; that was a renewal of the offer, and,

as I recall that, he had agreed to make some changes,

some concessions which had been requested by

some members of the board. I think we went over

that contract very carefully at that meeting. That

is my recollection.

Q. Do you remember as to whether or not at

that meeting—I read again:

*'It appearing that the majority of the Board

was not willing to enter into a contract with



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 383

(Testimony of R. P. Woodworth.)

Mr. Lloyd J. Vance of any kind, and on re-

quest of Mr. Ferbert that the meeting be

adjourned until Tuesday, August 16, 1938, at

10:00 o'clock A. M., at the Vance Hotel, Seat-

tle, Washington, in order that a representative

from Mr. Cecil B. De Mille might be at the

meeting [171] to explain and clarify the prop-

osition which he was presenting to the meeting,

* * * the meeting was adjourned * * *"

A. I think that is a correct statement of what

happened.

Q. Were you present at the directors meeting

one week later, or three days later, August 16th?

A. I think I was. It is my recollection that that

is the time that Keily came up.

Q. Quoting from the minutes:

"Further discussion was had on the offers

of Mr. Vance and Mr. Cecil De Mille."

And the meeting adjourned.

A. Yes; I was present.

Q. State whether or not }^ou were present at the

meeting on August 27, 1938 *?

A. I think I was. I was present at most of those

meetings. The minutes show that.

Q. That you were present?

A. That I was present, though they got my
name spelled wrong.

Q. State whether or not at that meeting the no-

tice of forfeiture of contract,, rescission of the con-

tract

—

A. No; I see

—



384 Helen M. Sutherland, et at.

(Testimony of R. P, Woodworth.)

Q. —was up for consideration, that bearing date

August 25, 1938?

A. It bears August 27tli. [172]

Q. But the rescission bearing date—no; it is

two days later. Was it at that meeting with that

pending termination of the contract that the Gar-

butt deal was agreed to?

A. Yes. In fact, that was one of the induce-

ments.

Q. Do you know how the Garl^utt proposal first

came to the attention of the board of directors'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On what date and under what circumstances'?

A. It came August 6, '38 at the board meeting

prior to the stockholders meeting of that date.

Q. And who communicated the matter?

A. Mr. Ferbert, I believe, principally, and Mr.

Collins, Russell Collins.

Q. As to whether or not they had come up from

California to the Spokane meeting?

A. Yes; they had.

Q. And what did either of those gentlemen say

in connection with Mr. Garbutt and in connection

with the Lloyd J. Vance matter? [173]

A. They stated that Mr. Garbutt was willing

to make a much better deal than the one that was

being submitted to the board at that time.

Q. By Mr. Abel: By Lloyd J. Vance?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. By the Court: How did you vote on the

contract ?

A. I voted against it at all the board meetings.

Q. At all the board meetings A. Yes.

Q. By Mr. Abel : Up to that time had the board

unanimously favored the Lloyd J. Vance proposal?

A. Well, all members that were present had, but

it was not unanimous. Mr. Collins and Mr. Ferbert

learned at the meeting that the Vance proposal was

adopted.

Q. And during the interim between the 6th of

August and the 15th of August do you know where

Ferbert and Collins went from Spokane?

A. 1 understood they came to California to see

Mr. Garbutt.

Q. And came back with the De Mille proposal

on the 13th ? A. That is correct.

Mr. Abel: That is all.

Cross Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Woodworth, were you

a stockholder in the corporation on August 6, 1938,

Mutual Gold? [174] A. I was. Yes; I was.

Q. Did you vote in favor of the resolution which

was adopted at that meeting authorizing the board

of directors to deal with the property as they saw

fit, or to that effect?

A. I voted for that resolution that was adopted

at that meeting j^ecause of the representations that

were made at the meeting and prior to it.
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Q. I could not hear you.

A. I voted for the resolution which was adopted

at that meeting because of representations which

were made at the meeting and prior to the meeting.

Mr. Hinckle: I did not ask j^ou that. I move to

have that stricken, your Honor. It is not responsive

to the question.

The Court: Yes; it will be stricken. And answer

the question: Did you vote for the resolution?

A. I did.

Mr. Hinckle : That is all.

Redirect Examination

Q. By Mr. Abel : What, if any, representations

were made at that meeting?

A. Well, the representations that I have just

testified to, that there would be a much better deal

made than the one which had been presented by

Lloyd J. Vance; and the directors at the meeting

prior thereto and at the meeting [175] afterward all

agreed that that was what would be done, that they

would accept a better proposition.

Mr. Abel : This is a new matter.

Q. Were you present at a meeting of the board

of directors held at tlie Vance Hotel on or about

the 18th of August, when Mr. Grill phoned to Mr.

Garbutt about whether lie would accept a payment

of the contract in full ?

A. I don't—I remember something about that,

but I don't recall it was at that date. It was about

that time.
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Q. It was after a directors meeting, was it?

A. I understood it was.

Q. What was the comnmnication ?

A. I was not present when it happened, but I

understood that

Q. Well, never mind then. A transaction took

place after the notice of rescission, did it, whatever

it was? A. Yes.

Q. Which was the 25th of August. Did that

come before the board of directors in your pres-

ence ?

A. It came up at that meeting. It came upon

that day.

Q. What was the message communicated by Mr.

Grill as coming from Mr. Garbutt ?

A. Well, as I recall, that was with regard to

the payment that was due. I think there was some-

thing that was behind in the payment or some talk

about whether or not he would accept the full

amount of the balance due. [176]

Q. On the contract of purchase ?

A. On the contract, on the purchase contract.

Q. What was the information communicated by

Mr. Garbutt?

A. My recollection is that he would not even

acce]Dt the full amount. He was claiming a default,

and that even if the full amount of the balance of

the purchase price was paid he would not take it.

It Avas something like that. I don't remember

clearly, but that is my recollection. [177]
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M. F. HALEY,

called as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as

follows

:

The Clerk : Will you state your name ? Will you

state your name, please?

A. M. P. Haley.

Direct Examination

Q. Did you enter the service of Frank A. Gar-

butt during the fall of 1938 upon the mining prop-

erty involved in this case*?

A. Yes, sir; on the 10th.

Q. On what date did you enter his service at

that mining property?

A. The 10th day of September.

Q. The 10th day of September?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Of 1938? A. Yes, sir. [178]

Q. When w^as the service terminated ?

A. The 24th day of May, '39.

Q. 1939? A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that period from the 10th day of

September, '38 until the 24th of May, 1939 in what

form were jow paid your wages ?

A. By check.

Q. Whose check?

A. Well, I think all of them was practically

Mr. Garbutt's, and every one of them was Mr. Gar-

butt's, but they might have had some different kind
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of a form on them. But that is my remembrance,

as far as that goes, signed by Frank A. Garbutt.

[179]

J. R. STURGEON,

called as a witness on behalf of plaintiffs, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as

follows

:

The Clerk : Will you state your name ?

A. J. R. Sturgeon.

Direct Examination

Q. Did you ever work at this mine involved in

this case? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When, if at all, did you enter the service

of Frank A. Garbutt in connection wdth working

at tliat mine? A. September 26th, '38.

Q. September 26, 1938? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long did you work, until when?

A. Until i]iQ 11th of April, '39.

Q. And during that time state whether or not

you had charge of the underground operations?

A. I did.

Q. How were you paid your wages? [180]

A. B}^ checks.

Q. Whose check? A. Mr. Garbutt 's.

Q. Throughout the whole period?

A. Yes, sir.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 78

is set forth in the Complaint, as Exhibit 3 thereto,

at page 42. [181]

Mr. Anderson: That will be 78. I offer in evi-

dence a letter from Frank A. Garbutt to M. F.

Haley, Leevining, California, dated September 7,

1937 (1938), the subject matter of which is an

inquiry

Mr. Abel: 1938.

Mr. Anderson: I beg pardon. September 7, 1938

is the date of the letter. The subject matter is

The Court: Read it. It is only four lines.

Mr. Anderson (reading) : "I haA'e learned from

the North Star Mine at Grass Valley that The

American Manganese Steel Co., Oakland Pier, make

them exceptionally good shoes and dies. Will you

kindly give me exact dimensions so I can ask for

quotations. '

'

The Clerk: Exhibit 79.

Mr. Anderson: That will be Plaintiffs' Exhibit

79. I offer in evidence a letter from Frank A. Gar-

butt to M. F. Haley, Log Cabin Mine, Leevining,

California, dated September 17, 1938. The subject

matter is the status of the mine in general, but it

is introduced for the purpose j^articularly of the

''P. S." which is typed just below Mr. Garbutt 's
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signature with the initials '^F. A. G.'', and reads

as follows:

"P. S. This delay will not affect you and you

will kindly proceed with the work you now have

in hand as rapidly as possible.
'

'

The Clerk: 80. [185]

Mr. Anderson: That is Plaintiffs' Exhibit 80.

I now offer in evidence a letter from Frank A.

Garbutt to M. F. Haley, Leevining, California,

dated September 19, 1938, which reads as follows:

"I have not had time to analyze your list

of supplies and material necessary to operate

to May 1st. I hope to be able to get over this

during the day.

*'None of the engineering or supply houses

would guarantee successful operation from an

elevation of more than about 35 feet. Pumping

the sand is probably out as there does not ap-

pear to be any other way of doing it^ from a

35 foot elevation."

The Clerk: That is Exhibit 81.

Mr. Anderson: Which lettei- is Plaintiffs' Ex-

hibit 81. I offer in evidence a letter from Frank A.

Garbutt to M. F. Haley, Log Cabin Mine, Leevin-

ing, California, dated September 20, 1938, the sub-

ject matter of which is operations at the mine, and

I will read the last ])aragraph thereof:

''After going through your list of supplies

and proposed changes in the mill I decided we
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could save both time and money if you come

here for a conference, therefore wired you ac-

cordingly.
'

'

The Clerk : 82.

Mr. Anderson: Which letter is Plaintiffs' Ex-

hibit 82. I now offer in evidence a letter from

Frank A. Garbutt to M. F. Haley, Log Cabin Mine,

Leevining, California, dated [186] October 22, 1938,

which is as follows

:

"I am enclosing an order herewith which

please read, sign and return the original, keep-

ing the copy for your files."

The Court : What is the date of that ?

Mr. Anderson: The date of that is October 22,

1938. I introduce the enclosure as part of the ex-

hibit.

The Clerk: Exhibit 83.
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PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 83

FRANK A. GARBUTT
Suite 712-^11 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

Oct. 22, 1938.

Mr. M. F. Haley,

Log Cabin Mine,

Leevining, Cal.

Dear Mr. Haley:

I am enclosing an order herewith which please

read, sign and return the original, keeping the copy

for your files.

Sincerely,

FRANK A. GARBUTT
FAG-C.

TELEGRAM
Los Angeles, California,

October 31, 1938. 11 :36 AM
J. R. Sturgeon,

Leevining, Calif.

Kindly sign and have Mr. Haley sign acknowledg-

ment of order October twenty second and send to

me by return mail.

FRANK A. GARBUTT.
(Received by telephone from Bishoj) 6:00 PM

10-31-38.
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Oct. 22, 1938.

Mr. M. F. Haley,

Log Cabin Mine,

Leevining, Cal.

Dear Mr. Haley:

If Ave build a pipe line from the drain tunnel to

the lower end of the flume a serious situation may
arise, and this is especially true if this pipe line

is eighteen inches or such a matter in diameter.

If an}^ large volmne of water gets into this line

that is more than will be readily absorbed at the

lower end of the flume, it might break away and

damage Mrs. Cunningham.

To avoid any chance whatever of this happening,

I hereby issue the following order

:

ORDER
At no time shall any water or tailings be run

into this pipe line which extends from the

drain tunnel to the lower end of the flume un-

less and mitil a written order is obtained from

this office, signed by the undersigned, Frank A.

Garbutt.

This order applies to any and all tailings now

on the hillside or that may hereafter be de-

posited there by anyone whomsoever.

It also applies to any run off water from

rains or melting snow.

It also applies to any tailings made or pro-

duced at the mill hereafter.
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The only water that may be run into this

pipe line is mine water, from the drain tunnel

when run into this pipe line at the tunnel mouth

when introduced in such a w^ay that no tailings

or other water can enter the pipe line either at

this or any other point on the pipe line.

Kindly see to it that this order is promul-

gated to anyone who may have occasion to be

near this line even though they may have no

authority in the premises.

FRANK A. GARBUTT
I have read the above order this day

of , 1938, and I understand it and

will be governed thereby.

Mr. Anderson: That is Plaintiffs' Exhibit 83.

I now offer in evidence a letter from Frank A.

Garbutt to M. F. Haley, Log Cabin Mine, Leevin-

ing, California, dated November 19, 1938, which I

believe I should read as soon as the clerk marks it.

The Court : What is the import of it ?

Mr. Anderson: It has to do with not having

heard from Haley for some time, asking him to

write at least twice a week, and finally

The Court: May I ask if the ])ur])ose of these

letters is to show (rai-butt's activity in connection

with the mine?
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Mr. Anderson : Yes. I think he was giving orders

to Haley, asking hini to come for conferences and

the like during the period this correspondence

covers.

Mr. Abel: The continuity of the activities de-

spite these various contracts changing the status.

Mr. Anderson: It states that Mr. Collins has

requested that he be taken off the pay roll, etc.

[187]

Mr. Abel: The matter on the back of the sheet

is not offered.

Mr. Anderson: There is certain writing on the

back which is disclaimed as part of the exhibit.

The Court: Put a pencil through it so I will

not be concerned in trying to read it.

The Clerk: Exhibit 84. [188]

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 84

FRANK A. GARBUTT
Suite 712—411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

Nov. 19, 1938.

Mr. M. F. Haley,

Log Cabin Mine,

Leevining, Cal.

Dear Mr. Haley:

I haven't heard from you for some time. I would

like to have letters at least twice a week and oftener
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if you can find time, telling me what you are work-

ing at, and what you have done, and what remains

to be done, together with your opinions, conclusions,

etc. This will be very helpful and I will respond

in kind where possible.

For your information, Mr. Collins has requested

that he be taken off the payroll and, therefore,

he is no longer in the Mutual 's employ. The hauling

w^ork he is doing is on his own account and he is

being paid under contract.

He has authority from the Mutual, I believe, to

try to herd the hillside tailings into the flume or

into the pipe line when it is built provided they

start to move. Before this time arrives, I w^ould

like to have your comment upon the effect that will

or may have at the lower end of the flume.

Yours sincerely,

FRANK A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.

A. R. CARTER,

recalled as a w^itness on behalf of plaintiffs, having

been ])reviously diil\' sworn, was examined and testi-

fied as follow^s:

Direct Examination

Q. For the moment, did you prepare Exhibit 85 ?

[193]

A. Yes; but I don't remember Avhat at that time.

Yes; I prepared it originally.
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Q. Did you prepare it from the ledger?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you come to omit Mr. Grill's name

in the statement and give "Miscellaneous expense

$150" under date of September?

A. Well, I have done that with other items, too.

Q. No. But why did you do it in this instance?

Was it to hide from us the fact that it was paid

to Mr. Grill?

A. No. At the same time that you took the depo-

sition I showed you the ledger sheet here with Mr.

Grill's name on it.

Q. You did?

A. Oil, yes. You looked right over my shoulder

and I pointed it out to you in Mr. Garbutt's office.

[194]

Q. AYould you now turn to the journal entry of

October 20, 1938 with refereuce to the expense of

incorporation—"Incori)oration Expense Log Cabin

Mines Co."?

A. Let's see; you said "October 20th". It was a

$36.38 amount?

Q. Yes. A. Here it is right here.

Q. What is the entry there?

A. "Check to D. E. Hinckle, attorney, incor-

])ovation ox])euse 36.38."

Q. Aud uuder date of November 2, 1938: "Fil-

ing Periuit to sell stock, L<\g Cabin Mines Co. $10"?

A. "David E. Hinckle" right here, "Filing Per-

mit to sell stock $10." [195]
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Q. Can you by reference to the original ledger

account show any item of expense charged in the

original ledger under date of Se})tember 2, 1938 ?

[196]

A. N'o. That item that yon are pointing to there

has nothing to do witli the Mutual Gold. That was

charged to Mr. Garbutt's personal expense. This

account was put onto the same sheet as that ac-

count. That was his own personal expense account,

Q. But it shows that on September 2, 1938 Mr.

Garhutt made a trip to the mine ?

A. All right, and he paid his own expenses.

Q. Yes. But the i)oint is he made a trip to the

mine on September 2, 1938, according to his records.

A. That was the time the entry was made there

and the check given for it. I presume it was about

that time, that is, the time the check was giveu.

The time that he went to the mine I couldn't say

definitely, with the exception that was probably

near that time.

Q. This entire transaction, then, dating from

Se])tember 2nd or from August 29th

A. It dates from August 17, 1932.

Q. Has that any relation to this case?

A. AVell, I don't think so, as far as that is con-

cerned.

Q. No. the account is "Log Cabin Mines—Mu-

tual Gold Corporation," is it?

A. ^rhat is right.
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Q. That is how it is carried in the ledger. And

outside of the item in 1932, the next item is Au-

gust 29, 1938, ^'Telegrams to Seattle 24.98"? [197]

A. Tliat is what it says there; yes. That is the

item.

Q. And the next item is under date of August

15: '^M. J. Keily ticket to Seattle 69.35"?

A. 'lliat is the entry
;
yes.

Q. And next is September 2, ''F. A. G. ex^) trip

to Mine 80.00"?

A. None of those items were charged to Mutual

Gold, though; all personal expense of Mr. Garbutt's.

[198]

Q. B\' Mr. Abel : Mr. Carter, have you the mint

returns from this mine during the period in con-

troversy here?

A. (Witness producing ])ai)ers.)

Q. Are these all of them?

A. I presume so. They were what we took out

of tlio file. I just have them in my file.

Q. So far as you know, they are complete?

A. So far as I know, they are.

Q. That is the net amount received from the

mint for the ore? That is right, isn't it?

A. That is right; that is the number of ounces

of gold received and the fineness of the gold. [199]

Q. By Mr. Abel: Can you give the total?

A. Iliere is $6,132.02 in 1939 in two item.s. The

balance of 1939 is $75,357.81 ; and in 1940 there is

$189,256.-32; and in 1941 there is $6,220.77.
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Q. Coiiiinencing what period and ending what

period do these figures a])ply to?

A. Tlie first check for a shipment was received

on March 23, 1939. The last check was received on

March 12, 1941.

Q. But covering the mint returns for what

period ?

A. For the period between those dates.

Q. I am now referring not to the date of the

check of the mint returns, but, as it were, the date

of production from the mine itself ?

A. That I couldn't tell you. [200]

Q. B}^ Mr. Abel : Mr. Carter, can you furnish

lis with a breakdown of the item found on Exhibit

85, sheet 4, being the December, 1938, advances, the

last item, reading: ''Miscellaneous Expenses

$365.45"?

A. Three and one-half months' office service at

the Los Angeles office at $100 per month, $350;

two books on mining, 15.45.

Q. Where is that?

A. It is written right there.

Q. It is not on the exhibit itself?

A. Not on that paper ; no.

Q. I now direct your attention to sheet 3 of the

same exhibit. Exhibit 85, the item under date of

November 30: "Miscellaneous Expense $250"

Would you bi'eak that down for us I

A. "W. L. Grill traveling expense $150; D. E.

Hinckle, attorney's fees $100."
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Q. That is not the $150 that was previously paid

to Mr. Grill?

A. Naturally it is not. It is a different date en-

tirely.

Q. Let us see the journal entry of that item.

[202]

A. Here is one: ''D. E. Hinckle attorney's fees

$100." That is $100. See it?

Q. By Mr. Abel: I am interested in the AV. L.

Grill item.

A. I thought you asked for both of them. Here

it is right here ''William L. Grill, attorney, travel-

ing exjjense $150.''

Q. Under what date is the journal entry?

A. Under the date of November 2nd.

Q. Have you any other items reported in the

exhibit as ''Miscellaneous expense"?

A. I think i)robably there is.

Q. Which covers money paid to Mr. Grill?

A. No; but I have other items as "Miscellaneous

exjiense."

Q. Yes. Well, 1 am interested in the [203]

A. Franchise tax.

Q. Why was it not disclosed in the exhibit that

it was a ])ayment to Mr. Grill?

The Court : I think that has been asked and

answered.

Mr. Abel: This is a previous one, your Honor,

the $150. The]'e is another payment to Mr. Grill

of $100.
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A. Why, because that we put certain things un-

der ''Miscellaneous expense," taxes, attorneys' fees,

and so forth. We have otlier items besides attor-

neys' fees and payments to Mr. Grill under "Mis-

cellaneous expense. '

'

Q. Let me see the journal entrj^ for December

31st of $365.45.

A. What did you say the date was, December

31st?

Q. December 31st "Miscellaneous expenses

$365.45."

A. Tliat is a journal entry which I don't think

I have that, with the exception of on that sheet

there.

Q. Well, let us have the journal entry.

A. It is not on this one here.

Q. Let us have the journal for

A. This is the cash journal. This here is a cash

journal. There is one or two items there. That was

a charge from the journal.

Q. A charge but not an actual disbursement at

the time?

A. No, no; it is not a disbursement. It is just

simply a charge for those services at that time and

there was no check drawn for it, never spent. [204]

Q. The $365, then, is principalh^ a charge for

the use of Mr. Garbutt's office?

A. For the work that we do there in our office,

the stenograjiher, myself and other people, for the
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Mutual Gold Corporation. There was no check ever

issued for it. It has never been paid. [205]

Q. By Mr. Abel: The miscellaneous expense

that }'ou [206] have reference to under date of

]^ecember 31, 1938, was for services rendered in

connection with this mining property?

A. That is what it was.

Q. Whether it was operated for Mutual Gold,

or operated for Mr. Garbutt, or operated for Log

Cabin?

A. Yes. We did a lot of office work there for it.

Q. Biit there was no segregation of the account

or the charge?

A. What do you mean "segregation"?

Q. Any segregation l^etween the books of Mr.

Garbutt.

A. What do you mean "segregation"? I don't

understand that.

Q. Well, any separation of charges for the pai-

ticiilar service for one or the other?

A. If it had been charged up by our office for

all the time those people put in there, the charge

would have been about four times as much as this

Q. The ])oint is whether they were all run to

gether in tlie books.

A. Wliat d(^ you meaii run together?

Q. By the Court: Did you make separate

charges against Mr. Garbutt, Log Cabin or Mutual ?

Did yon segregate the [207] account?

A. Wo just cliarged u]) $100 a month was all.
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Q. Right straight through?

A. Right straight through; never charged more

or never charged less. [208]

RUSSELL F. COLLINS,

recalled as a witness on behalf of defendants, hav-

ing been previously duly sworn, was examined and

testfiecl as follows:

Direct Examination [221]

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Li 1938, Mr. Collins, was

the mine in operation?

A. The mine was closed down on April 22nd,

1938, under Mr. Yance and operated by Mr. Keily.

Q. After the bills and expenses were paid was

there [225] enough mone}^ left from the treasury

of the Mutual Gold or available to Mutual Gold to

pa,y the obligations which plaintiffs have set up as

then existing, some, I believe, $60,000—something'

like $60,000, I think? The exact amount is not ma-

terial. A. No, sir; I am sure there was not.

[226]

Mr. Abel: Your Honor, I could make an admis-

sion here that would shorten this up entirely. The

company had this property which it considered quite

valuable. The recovery from this old mill was not

sufficient to-
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The Court: Well, they had what they called a

pilot mill there which was not sufficient, it was not

operating efficiently.

Mr. Abel: They could not recover the values

and they could not pile up oi:)erating capital or a

cash reserve. The mine quit, or the mill quit, and

the mine, too, for that matter—were shut down in

April of ]938 and until the transaction complained

of the directors met from time to time to consider

how to raise the money. It did not have funds to

carry on. Its creditors were not pressing. Its credi-

tors were $30,000 of production notes, of which the

Yances owned a majority, whicli were payable out of

l^roduction. The balance of its accounts was prin-

cipally^ J. A. Vance, who had loaned some $18,000

and who was not pressing ; Mr. Stiegler and Mr. Fer-

bert, the one, I believe, with $3,000 and the other

with $2,000, who were not pressing. The mine was

not in ]n'essing need of money to pay its bills, but

it was in need of money if it was to build a new

mill or to operate its old mill; and it was [229]

imder those circumstances that the meeting of July

18, I believe the date was, was held.

The Court: Well, it did not have the money to

make the payment on its contract.

Mr. Abel : They did not have the money to make

the ])ayment. [230]

Q. By Mr. Hiiickle: Mr. Collins, did you have

anything [231] to do with obtaining the contract

of September the 2nd from Mr. Garbutt?
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A. Yes, sir. September 2nd?

Q. September 2nd, 1938. A. Yes.

Q. Wliat did 3^ou have to do with that ?

A. Well, I solicited his cooperation.

Mr. Abel : What ? I didn't get it.

The Court : He solicited his cooperation.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Where did you solicit his

cooperation ?

A. In Los Angeles, in his office.

Q. Did you come down here to see him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you come down especially to see him

about that?

A. Concerning our difficulties and how to get out

of them.

Q. Did he ask you. to come down ?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. Did he ask you to come down ?

A. So, sir.

Q. When 3^ou came down what did you say to

him—briefly, now ?

A. That we were not satisfied with the offer of

tlie Vances and we would like to have someone that

would finance our undertakings. [232]

Q. Did anybody come with you ?

A. Mr.— I am not sui-e wliether Mr. Keily was

here or whether he came with me. One trip I know

he came with me and went back, when we solicited.

Q. You made more than one trip, did you?

A. Yes.
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Q. Did Mr. Cxarbiitt agree right away when you

first b]'oached the matter to him to jump in and

lend the money or help you out ?

A. He did not.

Q. What did he say that would give you any

clue to his attitude?

A. That he did not want to be tangled up with

it; that, as I recall his statement, ''At my age I

don't want to undertake the beginning of a mining

])roposition."

Q. Did you drop it then? A. I did not.

Q. What did you do?

A. Well, Mr. Garbutt sort of jnit us off by say-

ing, ''I will give you entree to some friends of mine

and maybe they will finance you."

Q. Did he give you that entree?

A. He did.

Q. Wlio was the friend?

A. Well, one of them was Cecil De Mille, and Mr.

Keily, I think—in fact, I know—approached Hal

Roach concerning [233] the financing of our under-

taking.

Q. Did you make a deal with either one of those?

A. No, sir,

Q. 1]\' Mr. Hinckle : Why did you want to make
the deal with Mr. Garbutt?

A. Well, considering everything and from every

angle, and considering our difficulties, I considered

Mr. Garbutt was the most competent person and

capable, that is, financially able to carry it through.
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Q. Were you a director at that time of the Mu-

tual Gold ? A. Yes ; I was.

Q. Why did you prefer to deal with Mr. Gar-

butt rather than to deal with Mr. Vance in that

capacity? [234]

A. Well, we had tried Mr. Vance as general

manager of the property and I considered his suc-

cess a failure. [235]

Q. By Mr. ITinckle: You remember, do you,

M]'. Collins, when notice of forfeiture was given

to Mutual Gold Corjjoration on or about August

25, 1938? A. Yes, sir; I know of it.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Did that notice of for-

feiture influence you in any way to make a contract

with Mr. Garbutt [236] or to favor, rather, a con-

tract with Mr. Garbutt? A. No, sir.

Q. The forfeiture was withdrawn on or about

Octol)er the 2r)th, 1938. I am telling you that.

A. As I recall it.

Q. Did that forfeiture which had been with-

drawn, notice of forfeiture which had been with-

drawn, on or about October the 15th, 1938, influence

}'ou in any way toward favoring the contract later

made witli Mr. Garlnitt on December the 17th, 1938 ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did Mr. Garbutt ever at any time say any-

thing to you which you considered an attem})t to

coerce you into making or favoring the making of

the contract with him? A. No, sir. [237]
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Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Grill: Mr. Collins, you stated that

you were not satisfied with the success of Mr.

Vance's failure. Will you state just what you meant

by that?

A. Well, to begin with, Mr. Vance was a lumber

man and did not understand the operation of a mine

and insisted

Q. How was that evidenced?

A, Well, by the fact that he wanted to dismiss

Mr. Keily and said to let him go, and various,

various things that came up from time to time.

Q. During what period was that?

A. Well, along '37, '38.

Q. During the period of Mr. Vance's manage-

ment contract? [238]

A. Under the contract
;
yes.

Q. State any other matters in comiection with

his management that influenced you in this con-

nection ?

A. Well, one was, he wanted to syphon the water

out of a shaft as the means of getting the water out

of the shaft, that we could go on down with it. [239]

Cross Examination [241]

Q. Anyway, the amomit of stock that you had

in Mutual was a few thousand shares at the time

of this transaction, wasn't it?

A. You mean in the -Mutual Gold?

Q. Yes; in the Mutual Gold.
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A. Yes, sir. [242]

Q. Soon after August 6tli you came down to

visit Mr. Garbutt .^ A. Yes; I may have.

Q. You drove from Spokane to Los Angeles to

visit him? A. I think that is true.

Q. Had you talked to him before that as to his

making a deal?

A. Prior to that time Mr. Clarbutt repeatedly

insisted that he would not be dragged into the

financing of the property.

Q. Then it v>'as at an earlier date than August

(Jth that you discussed with him his coming into the

picture ?

A. Well, he was approached, I know.

Q. Who aj)proached him?

A. Well, I think Mr. Keily, and I also was at

the meeting; but he absolutely refused to have

anytliing to do with it. [245]

Q. Anyway, you were the one who negotiated

this contract with Mr. Garbutt, were you not?

A. You mean the original?

Q. The contract of September 2nd.

A. Well, I had to do with it, I know. I was

interested in it; yes, sir.

Q. Who else negotiated it?

A. Well, I think Mr. Ferbert was with me.

Q. Anybody else?

A. And I don't remember whether Mr. Grill was

here at the time or not. I don't believe that he was.

Q. The tirst contract of September 2nd was
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negotiated while the rescission of the contract was

insisted upon, was it nof? [247]

A. The original might have been at that time, I

am not sure.

Q. Well, don't 3^ou know that it was?

A. I don't remember the exact dates. I wouldn't

say for sure. Maybe it was.

Q. There had been nothing said up to that time,

had there, about organizing a corj^oration under

the laws of another state"?

A. Well, it had been hashed over.

Q. When?
A. In Seattle. Mr. Vance, Llo3^d Vance was to

organize a new company and take over the property

and was to operate it.

Q. To take over half of the assets, was it not,

not all of them? [248]

A. No ; half of the ore, as I remember their con-

tract, and that we were to have the other half and

the new company was to do all the mining and treat-

ing, and the old company had nothing to do with it.

Q. You say that was at the Seattle meeting?

A. Well, it was in the various meetings we had

at Seattle.

Q. The Seattle meetings, the first of them was

August 13th, was it not?

A. Well, there was preliminary discussions be-

fore the meeting, I know that.

Q. Then you came down August 6tli to see Mr.

Garbutt. When did you see him?
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A. Oh, I saw him from day to day. I don't know

just the exact dates but I saw him very nearly

ever\' day.

Q. You returned to Seattle so as to be back there

on the 13th, didn't you?

A. Well, of course, when I was in Seattle I

dicbi't see him.

Q. Then, when did }'ou next see him after tlie

loth I A. Well, I came down here after that.

Q. When did you first know that the notice of

foi'feiture of August 25th was to be put out, was

to be issued?

A. I didn't know that luitil it was issued.

Q. What?
A. I Iviiew nothing of it until it was issued.

[2-19]

Q. And you did not try to get it relieved, did

you ?

A. A¥ell, I was hopeful that something could

be done to relieve it.

Q. Did you go to see the owners about it?

A. I saw Mrs. Ryan from time to time.

Q. Did you complain to the owners that it was

not fair for their agent to be insisting on forfeiture,

and, at the same time that he was getting an assign-

ment of the contract?

A. Well, we were between a tlireat from Vance,

and, if you will permit it, the question was: We
had a payment coming due in a few months and

we had nothing with which to meet it.
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Q. And Vance threatened that he would not put

it up? A. Yes; he said he wouldn't put it up.

Q. That was his threat?

A. Yes ; that was his threat.

The Court: In other words, one was forfeiting

and the other was refusing to put vip any more

money; the}^ were both in the same fix, weren't they?

Mr. Abel: Well, hardl3\ hardly, your Honor.

The Court: Both were putting on the squeeze.

The Witness : That is it. [250]

Q. Anyway, why was the contract of Septem-

ber 22nd made?

A. Well, because we thought it x\as the best

thing we could do under the eircmnstances for the

Mutual Gold and their stockholders. [251]

Redirect Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Collins, }'ou gave one,

or two or three reasons—-I don't remember how

many—why you preferred to deal with Mr. Garbutt

rather than Mr. Vance. Is there any other reason

that you know of? A. Well, yes.

Q. Well, what was that reason?

A. Mr. A^ance's general attitude towards the

small stockholders of the corporation.

Q. I mean do 3"ou know of any specific thing

that indicated that? A. Yes; I do.

Q. What was it, anything he said, or something

he did or what?
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A. After we bad practically

Q. No. Was it sometliing lie said, or something

he did [253] or what?

A. Well, something he said.

Q. Where was it said?

A. It was said at just south and east of the

Ijresent site of the new mill, near the pipe line that

was l)eing- built from the upi)er tank, or the big

tank, down to the mill, the old mill.

Q. What was said at that time? No. Who was

there ?

Mr. Abel : We object unless we know the time.

Mr. Hinckle: Yes.

Q. AVho was there at the time?

A. Just Mr. Vance and myself.

Q. About when w^as that?

A. As I recall, it was in the fall, about October

l)robably, or November of 1937.

Q. What was said?

A. The question was raised—Mr. Vance said,

"To hell with the little stockholders. They have no

business being in here." [254]

J. E. STIEGLER,

called as a witness on behalf of defendants, being

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as fol-

lows :

The Clerk: Will you state your name?

A. J. E. Stiegler.
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Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle : Mr. Stiegler, what office, if

any, do you hold with the Mutual Gold Corporation ?

A. President.

Q. How long have you been the president?

A. Beginning in June—^iio. Wait a minute. I

was first a director in June, I think, '34, and that

fall, I believe, about October of '34.

Q, Are you a director also? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been a director?

A. Siijce June, '34.

Q. Are you a promoter of mines that go broke

or do you have some other occupation?

A. I am a farmer.

Q. Are you a stockholder also?

A. In Mutual (rold; yes.

Q. About how much stock do you hold?

A. Oh, I think the family has, that is, my wife

and daughters and myself, about 100,000 shares, I

believe, [266] somethmg like that.

Q. Does the Mutual (liold owe you any money

that you have advanced? A. Yes.

Q. About how much?

A. Oh, it is near $4,000, I think, that I have

advanced.

Q. What was that for?

A. $3,000 of that was advanced in '37, the fall

of "37. Mr. Vance wrote me a letter and wanted me
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to talk with the directors and try to raise $6,000,

I believe it ^^ as, and I put up $3,000 at that time.

Q. Did you favor dealing with Mr. Garbutt

rather than Mr. Vance in the making of this con-

tract of September 2, 1938? A. I did.

Q. Why?
A. Well, at the time, or while we were—the

ijluyd Vance proposition was u^), it seemed like

there was a lot depended on how much money I

could raise from my Yakima friends. On several

occasions Lloyd Vance asked me if I coukln't guar-

antee $30,000, and then a time or two he asked if

I couldn't—1 told him I coiddn't guarantee any-

thing but I would do the best I could; and a few

da\'s before coming down to try and make some deal

with Mr. Garbutt—that was in, I think, the latter

part of August, '38 or the 1st of September-—I re-

ceived a letter from Mr. [267] Woodworth stating

that

Mr. Abel: Objected to as n(^t the best evidence

and ask for the production of the letter.

Mr. Hinckle: Just pass that up. Go ahead and

tell in your own words why you preferred dealing

with Mr. Garbutt.

A. Well, Mr. Vance had had his chance. He had

spent $30,000—$50,000 besides what had been tak(^n

out down there, and wdiat I had heard al)out Mr.

Garbutt, he had had considerable mining experience,

had been successful, and he also had the finances
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to equip the mine properly and that was the big

consideration, I thought.

Q. Did you come do\Mi to Los Angeles to see

Mr. Garbutt? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he ask you to come down?

A. Xo; I don't think he did.

Q. Where did you talk with him?

A. At his office.

Q. Anybody else there?

A. Yes; Mr. Grill, Mr. Russell Collins and Mr.

Ferbert, I believe.

Q. Did he ever ask }'ou to make a deal with

Mutual—to helj) him make a deal with Mutual?

A. No.

Mr. Anderson: May I inquire of counsel if he

is now eliciting what transpired at this meeting in

Mr. Garbutt's office? If so, we would like to know

the date. You have [268] said that certain parties

were present and now \'ou ask him did he ever

do

The Court: He gave the date the latter part of

August, he thought, as near as he could figure.

A. We were down here three days and I believe

the contract was signed on the 2nd day of Sep-

tember.

Q. By the Court : You are speaking of the time

that the contract was executed as of September

the 2nd? A. Yes, sir.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Did you urge this upon

Mr. Garbutt or did he urge it upon you 1
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A. Well, he tried-
Mr. Anderson: If your Honor please, that is a

conclusion. I think he should detail what was said

hy each of the parties at this conference.

The Court: Yes; that is correct.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Well, what did you say to

Mr. Garbutt, if anything, about making a contract

with the Mutual?

A. I don't remeuiber so nuich what I said to

him, ]}ut I remember once he stated that he didn't

know whether he would go through with this con-

tract or not, but if he didn't he would arrange

so thrit we could pay the sellers on the 1st of No-

vember when the $10,000 becarue due, and we were

(juite anxious to

The Court: No what you were anxious. What
was said. [269] About your anxiety, that is a conclu-

sion. What was said?

A. Well, he told us that he would furnish us

the $10,000 and also a payment on installing the

high-power line up to the mine. It was to cost

$10,000. I think he said he would furnish part of

the money, or something of that kind.

Q. How did you happen to come down?

A. I came down because Mr. Ferbert and Mr.

Collins thought we could make some deal.

Q. They asked you to come down, did they?

A. It was talked in the board meeting and the

whole board was invited to come down.



420 Helen M. Sutherland, et al.

(Testimony of J. E. Stiegler.)

Q. Did you ever communicate, yourself, with Mr.

Garbutt? A. No, sir.

Q. Had he ever communicated to you?

A. Before that time?

Q. Yes.

A. No; I am sure he didn't. I am quite sure

that he didn't.

Q. When was the first time you ever met Mr.

Garbutt?

A. Was here on the last day of August or the

1st of September.

Q. The only information you had about the

deal was the information you got from Mr. Ferbert

and Mr. Collins?

A. And Mr. Keily. Or more

—

Q. Keily? [270]

A. Keily, I think the name is, that was super-

intendent at the mine.

Q. Was he up north with you?

A. I met him in Seattle.

Q. What was the purpose of coming down?

A. To try and make some—get Mr. Garbutt to

tcilic-' over the o] aeration of the mine.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Was anything ever said

to you or in your presence at any time by Mr.

Garbutt or by anyone in his behalf which you

construe to be an attempt to force you into making

or attempting to have made a contract?

A. With Mr. Garbutt?

Q. With Mr. Garbutt for the Mutual?
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A. No. [271]

Q. Did you ever have any interest in this mat-

ter excepting to protect your investment?

A. Aiid to protect the stockholders.

Q. Well, that was your investment? [272]

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are a stockholder? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any arrangement whereby you

were to receive any outside interests or profits of

any kind ?

A. No, sir. I might state that I have always

stood my own expenses to the mine and to I don't

know how many board meetings in Spokane and

Seattle, and this trip down here and the trip down

here on September 2nd, '38 I stood my own ex-

penses, never handed them in to the company even.

Q. Did you have anything to gain by favoring

either the Vance contract or the Garbutt contract,

except what you thought was the best interests of

the stockholders and yourself as a stockholder?

A. No, sir.

Q. Is this your first mining experience?

A. No. I started out when I was a kid in Alas-

ka. I was up there about 20 years, or 18 years, and it

has been in my blood ever since I guess. I have

tried to settle down to just farming but I do break

loose once in a while.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Did you know that Mr.

Garbutt paid Mr. Grill's expenses down here on one

occasion? A. Yes.
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Q. One or two occasions, whatever it Avas?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you influenced in any way to favor a

contract [273] witji Mr. Garbutt by the fact that

a notice of forfeiture had been given on August

25, 1938 and withdrawn then on October the 15th,

1938?

A. No; I don't think so. However, that note, I

was quite concerned over it at the time that we had

received it. I think Mr. Abel is the first that told

me about it.

Q. Have you ever received any money from Mr.

Garbutt for services you rendered him any any way ?

A. He bought me a malted milk yesterday, I

think. That is all.

Q. That is the first you have received?

A. I ))elieve so. No; he treated me to dinner

once before.

Cross Examination [274]

Q. By Mr. Abel : I am now reading from Plain-

tiffs' Exliibit 16, beiii,^- a letter dated September

12, 1938, signed by you as ])resident, a letter to the

stockholders of the company. That letter called for

anotlier meeting to ratify the Clarbutt contract of

Se])tmber 2nd ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in that letter, quoting from that letter:

"A board meeting was held on the 7th day

of September, at which the action of the presi-

dent of the com])any was ratified and the con-

tract a])]^roved by the board, subject to its rati-
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ficatioii by the stockholders of the company.

The board members voting in favor of the rati-

fication we]*e Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox, Mr.

Gvill and Mr. Stiegler. Those voting against

were Mr. Woodwoorth and Mr. Vance. The

writer was advised that the contract was aj)-

proved b}^ Mr. Collins, the one director absent.

It was the feeling of the writer, as well as the

other members of the board voting in favor of

the contract, that if it was not accepted the

com])an3" would become involved in long and

expensive [275] litigation with the owners of

the y)roperty over the attemjjted cancellation

of the contract."

Do yon, in the light of that statement, wish to

modify what 3^ou have testified on that subject when

it was within a few da3^s of the action taken?

A. Well, I said I was concerned over the notice

of forfeiture when we first got it.

Q. Do yon stand by the statements contained in

Exhibit 16, or do yon now modify them by your

testimony?

A. I think I would have to—I will tell you, these

letters, T had help in writing out these letters by

our attorneys, either Mr. Grill or Mr. Weller helped

me in writing out these letters. Now the question

you are asking is what?

Q. Is whether you stand by the statement con-

tained in the letter as to what motivated you in

the signing of the contract, 10 or 12 daj^s earlier,
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tliis letter being dated the 12tli and the contract

being* dated on the 2nd?

A. Well, I was concerned, of course, about tlie

notice; yes.

The Court : You have not answered the question

yet.

Q. By Mr. Abel : I am not asking you whether

you were concerned about the notice.

A. The question is what, then, please?

Q. The question is whether you stand by the

statements [276] contained in the letter of the 12th

instant.

A. AVhat paragraph is that that you are refer-

ring to?

Q. I will just mark the paragraph. Exhibit 16.

A. Well, I signed it. I guess I must have ap-

])roved it.

Q. The question is not whether you signed it.

You signed it knowingly, did you not?

A. I read it over first; yes.

Q. After legal advice?

A. Yes; I read it over.

Q. From ])ossibly tvro att(n'neys, Mr. Weller, the

com])any attorney (^f S])okaiie, and Mr. Grill?

A. I am not sure which one helped with this

letter, but I usually w^as helped by either one or

the other.

Q. But the letter was constructed advisedly, with

knowledge of its contents, was it not?

.\. I ])resu]ne so.
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Q. And the i)nri)ose of the letter was to intimate

to the stockholders that if the contract was not ap-

proved by them litigation would result with the

owners, isn't that true? A. Probably; yes.

Q. Did you know that on the very day that the

contract was signed with Mr. Garblitt in his office

he issued a letter to the Vance Lumber Company

—

to the Mutual Gold Cor])oration and -T. A. Vance,

general manager, being Exhibit 12, insisting upon

tlie forfeiture on the same day? [277]

The Court : Answer the question.

A. If I knew whether this was written? I just

don't recall. I believe that—I don't recall. Perhaps

I did know that at the time. I don't remember now.

The Court: May I see that exhibit when you

are through with it?

Mr. Abel : Yes, your Honor.

The Court: You may proceed.

Q. By Mr. Abel: Your attention is now di-

rected to Plaintiffs' Exhibit 28, being a letter signed

by "Chandis Securities Company" and ''Alice Clark

Ryan" of date October 3, 1938, particularly to the

last page of it which I will now read

:

"We are not satisfied with the way you have

evaded carrying out your contract with us nor

pleased with yonr Managing Director, Mr.

Vance's uncandid statement to us that 'you

have complied with your contract in every par-

ticular', when you well know this is not true

and, in ^'iew of the many concessions we have
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made you in the past we are not pleased by

your concealment from us of developments at

the mine; nor by the excuse of your manager's

attorney that you had no contractual obligation

to inform us; nor by his contention that our

failure to take action sooner, constituted a

waiver of the many breaches of your contract,

and we are not at all reassured by your inter-

nal dissensions, nor by the [278] threats of

litigation amongst yourselves which it appears

have been extended to covertly include us.

^'As long as this is possible or threatened, you

may expect no coiisideration from us.''

Then anothe]- quote:

"We consider your former contract term-

inated and at an end."

Were you aware of that letter?

A. Was that letter sent to me or to Mutual Gold

Corjioration ?

Q. To Mutual Gold Corporation, under date of

October 2nd (3rd).

A. I ])erhaps knew of it at the time but I don't

recal] it now.

Q. You don't recall it? A. No, I don't.

The C(^urt: May I see it, please?

Mr. Abel: It is on the last page, the particular

])art.

Q. You are now sliown the letter of August 25,

1988, 1)oi]ig the cancellati<w jiotiee of that date.
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A. What date?

Q. Exhibit 11.

A. I don't know whether I have seen this be-

fore or not. I don't believe those letters were sent

to me. I live over there in Naches. The home office

is in Spokane.

Q. At that 27th of August, that meeting of tlie

board of [279] directors at the Vance Hotel, was

not that letter, Exhibit 11

A. It might have been. I don't know.

Q. —exhibited, read and thoroughly discussed?

A. That or some other one. I remember of some

discussion over it; yes.

Q. The letter of forfeiture of August 25th?

A. What date would that be?

Q. Two days later. A. Two days later.

Q. On the 27th of August?

A. It is very likely I did.

Q. Your attention is directed again to Exhibit

11, particularly the second part of it, and you are

asked to state what, if anything, was done in the

way of negotiation to reinstate the contract be-

fore the assignment to Garbutt of the contract itself

on the 22nd or 21st day of September, 1938?

A. What had ])een done to

Q. What, if anything, did you or did the board

do to get the contract reinstated between those

days, other than to make the sell-out to Mr. Gar-

butt? A. I don't remember.
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Q. Isn't it true that there was nothing done?

A. These notices were directed to Mr. Vance as

general manager, and I think that you answered

those letters your- [280] self, Mr. Abel.

Q. And when they came to your attention, when

this notice of August 25, 1938, Exhibit 11, came

to your attention you, as president of the company,

did nothing?

A. You was taking the matter up yourself, I

think. You replied for Mr. Vance, as I remember.

Q. The question is whether you, as president of

Mutual Gold A. No; I didn't.

Q. —took action of any kind?

A. No; I didn't because you was taking care of

that. [281]

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 90***** * *

MINUTES OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCK-
HOLDERS OF MUTUAL GOLD CORPORA-
TION.

February 1, 1939

The stockliolders of the Mutual Gold Corporation

met in regular annual session at the office of the

Company, 401 Fernwell Building in the City of

Spokane, State of Washington, on Wednesday the

1st day of February A. D., 1939 at the hour of

11:00 o'clock A. M. pursuant to call and notice.

The meeting was called to order by President
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J. E. Stiegler who asked Vice President E. D.

Weller to preside, Secretary 111. Fuson acting as

recording officer.

The Chair appointed Mr. C. T. Orr, Mr. R. P.

Woodwortji and Mr. E. D. Weller as proxy com-

mittee to check and report on the proxies.

The office of the company being inadequate to

accomodate the stockholders, the meeting, on mo-

tion duly made, seconded and carried was ad-

journed to be reconvened at the office of the Com-

pany in the Assembly Room of the Old National

Bank Building, Spokane, Washington at the hour

of 2:00 o'clock P. M.

The meeting reconvened at 2:00 o'clock P. M.

in the Assembly Room of the Old National Bank

Building, Spokane, Washington pursuant to ad-

journment, the same officers being in the chair.

Roll Call showed the following results:

Present in Person 164,114 shares

Present b}^ proper proxy 2,149,342 shares

Total shares present and en-

titled to vote 2,313,456 shares

Total shares outstanding 2,641,182 shares

The proxy committee reported that the proxies

were in regular form in the amomits as above stated,

and upon motion duly made, seconded and carried,

the report of the proxy committee was accepted

and approved.
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The Secretary presented a copy of the Notice

of the Aimual Meeting pursuant to which the meet-

ing was held with affidavit of mailing notice to

each and all stockholders of record more than 10

days prior to the date fixed for the meeting as

provided by the by-laws of the company. The same

being in regular form and there being no objections

thereto, the Chair declared the meeting was regu-

larly and duly called and open for business.

The Minutes of the last meeting of the stock-

holders held August 6, 1938 were read and on

motion duly made, seconded and carried, were ap-

proved as read.

The Chair then announced the next order of

business was the reports of officers of the company.

Mrs. E. Fuson, Treasurer made a report of Mr.

Garbutt's expenditures in behalf of the Mutual

Gold Corporation for a period from September 31,

1938 to January 16, 1939 inclusive, showing a total

expenditure of $50,130.97.

Mr. Abel requested a balance sheet and was in-

formed that a financial statement later than the

Trial Balance prepared as of September 30, 1938

was not available at this time.

Mr. Grill read telegrams from Mr. Garbutt and

Russell Collins indicating that every effort Avas

being made to advance the interests of the stock-

holders of Mutual Gold stock.
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There was some discussion from the floor, prin-

cipally by Mr. Abel addressed to Mr. Grill, hi

regard to the status of the Mutual Grold Corpora-

tion. After the discussion was becoming rather

lengthy the chair stated the meeting was now open

for nomination of seven directors to serve until

the next annual meeting of the stockholders and

until the election and qualification of their suc-

cessors.

Mr. Grill nominated J. E. Stiegler, G. H. Ferbert,

Tom L. Wyckoff, F. T. Hickcox and W. L. Grill,

said nominations being seconded by C. T. Orr. Mr.

Abel nominated Mr. Lloyd J. Vance and R. P.

Woodworth, said nominations being seconded by

A. P. Bateham.

Mr. Woodworth nominated Clarence Colby and

Mr. Hurd nominated Mr. Joe Vance, however, both

nominations were withdrawn.

There being no further nominations. Dr. I. S.

Collins moved that the nominations be closed. Said

motion was duly seconded and unanimousl}^ carried.

On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the

Secretary was instructed to cast the unanimous

ballot of all shares present and entitled to vote for

the directors so nominated, and the Secretary there-

upon cast 2,313,456 votes for the said directors. The

Chair thereupon declared that J. E. Stiegler, G. H.

Ferbert, Tom L. Wyckoff, F. T. Hickcox, W. L.

Grill, Lloyd J. Vance and R. P. Woodworth were
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duly elected as directors to serve until the next

aimual meeting of the stockholders and the election

and qualification of their successors.

A motion was then made by Dr. R. A. Munro that

a complete rei^ort of the conditions of the Mutual

Gold Corporation be furnished individually to each

stockholder and that same be made as soon as

possible after this meeting and mailed to each

one.

Mr. Grill then stated that the company was short

of fmids to cover the cost of having such a re-

port compiled, printed and mailed out, whereu]3on

Dr. Munro added to his motion '*as soon as funds

are available". Said motion was duly seconded.

Mr. Abel then moved an amendment to the motion

that there be also supplied a balance sheet which

shall show the assets and liabilities of the company

and the income and expenditures for the past year.

Said motion as amended was duly seconded, voted

upon and carried.

Mr. Orr then made a motion that a vote of thanks

be given to the directors for what they had done

during the past year and that the stockholders let

them know they are behind them and ratify their

actions in the past year. The motion was duly

seconded after which there was considerable dis-

cussion. A standing vote was then taken and a

majority of those present in person voted against

said motion.
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Mr. Grill tjien made the following resolution and

moved its adoption:

''Whereas, on Saturday, the 17th day of De-

cember, 1938, the board of directors of this

company, at a special meetmg called and held

at said time, authorized and directed the Presi-

dent and Secretary of this corporation to exe-

cute a contract for and on behalf of this com-

pany Avith Frank A. Garbutt and to deliver said

contract to said Frank A. Garbutt, which said

contract relates to the equipment, operation and

handling of the company's property near Mono
Lake, California, all as more fully set forth

in said contract; and

"Whereas, the said contract has now been

fully executed by all of the parties thereto and

delivery thereof made by tlie respective parties

;

and

"Whereas, the stockholders of this company

at a meeting held on or about the 6th day of

August, 1938, duly authorized and directed the

board of directors to deal with said property as

provided by a resolution i:)assed at said meet-

ing; and

"Whereas, the board of directors has re-

ported the execution of said contract to this

meeting; and

"Whereas, it is for the best interests of
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said company that said contract be ratified, ap-

proved and confirmed; now, therefore,

^'Be It Resolved, that the action of the board

of directors in authorizing the execution of said

contract with the said Frank A. Garbutt and

the execution and delivery thereof by the Presi-

dent and Secretary of this company and the

said contract be and the same is hereby ratified,

approved and confirmed; and

''Be It Further Resolved that, the board of

directors of this company be and it is hereby

authorized and directed to cancel, rene^v and

alter said contract with the said Frank A.

Garbutt as from time to time in its discretion

it shall deem necessary or advisable for the

best interests of the corporation.
??

Said motion was seconded by Mr. C. T. Orr after

which there followed considerable discussion. A vote

was then taken by calling the roll with the follow-

ing results:

Shares voting Shares voting

Name FOR AGAINST

J. E. Stie-ler 1,447,0091^

J. A. Vance 11,134

C. H. Colby 13,067

F. Z. Hurd (gone)

Tom Wyckoff 5,700

George Earner 2,3991/^

W. H. Abel 5,000

R. P. Woodworth _ 83,116Mj

Llovd Vance - 447,781
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E. D. Weller 6,260

A. P. Bateham 184,756

Fielding MeClaine 25,233

Dr. Abrams (gone)

J. W. Maxwell 60,000

0. C. Moore (voted under protest)... 8,667

Total shares voting 1,458,969M. 841,153%

There being no further business, Mr. Grill made
a motion to adjourn, said motion being duly sec-

onded, voted u})on and carried.

E. D. WELLER,
Vice President and Chairman.

E. FUSON,
Secretary & Recording Officer.

February 1, 1939

The Committee finds that there are present in

person and qualified to vote at this meeting;

In Person 164,114

By Proper Proxy 2,149,342

Making a total number of shares present and

qualified to vote of 2,313,456, out of an outstanding

number of 2,641,182 shares.

Respectfully submitted.

Proxy Committee

R. P. WOODWORTH
C. T. ORR
E. D. WELLER
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AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF NOTICE OF
ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING of

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION.

State of Washington,

Coimty of Spokane—ss.

E. Fuson, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes

and says that at all times herein stated and in-

cluded, she was and now is above the age of 21

years and Secretaiy of the Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion, and as such officer, on the 20th day of Janu-

ary, 1939, a copy of the attached notice of meeting,

copy of attached letter of J. E. Stiegler, President,

dated January 14, 1939, copy of attached 'Progress

Report' of Frank A. Garbutt dated January 8,

1939 and a copy of the attached proxy, properly

enclosed and directed, with postage prepaid, was

by her mailed to each stockholder of record of such

corporation at his address as shown by the books of

the company.

E. FUSON,
Secretary.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25 day of

January, 1939.

E. D. AYELLER,
Notary Public in and for

the State of Washington,

residing at Spokane.
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PROXY
Know All Men by these Presents: That I, the

undersigned, do hereby constitute and appoint J. E.

Stiegler or in the event of liis inability to act,

F. T. Hickcox or W. L. Grill, my true and lawful

attorney to represent me at the annual meeting of

the stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation to ])e

held on the first day of February, 1939, at eleven

o'clock A. M. at the office of the company at 401

Fernwell Building, Spokane, Washington, and do

hereby authorize and empower him to vote at said

meeting and at any adjournment thereof for me
and in my name and stead upon the stock then

standing in my name on the books of said com-

pany, and I hereby grant my said attorney all the

powers that I should possess if personally present

at said meeting hereby revoking all former proxies

by me made.

Witness my signature this day of

January, 1939.

Witnessed By:
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCK-
HOLDERS of MUTUAL GOLD CORPORA-
TION.

Notice Is Hereby Given that the annual meeting

of the stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation

will be held at the office of the company at 401

Fernwell Building, Spokane, Washington, on Feb-

ruary 1st, 1939, at eleven o'clock A. M. in accord-

ance with the by laws of said corporation for the

purpose of electing a board of directors for said

corporation for the ensuing year, for hearing the

reports of officers of said corporation and for the

transacting of any other business that may proi^erly

come before said meeting.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION,
By E. FUSON,

Secretary.

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORATION
401 Fernwell Building

Spokane, Washington

January 14, 1939

To the Stockholders of Mutual Gold Corporation

:

You will find enclosed herewith notice of Annual

Meeting of the stockholders of the company, to be

held on the date fixed by the by-laws.

You will also find enclosed herewith latest prog-

ress report of Mr. Frank A. Garbutt. You will
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note from this that Mr. Garbutt has expended

$50,253.87, up to Jaiuiary 8, all of which ex])endi-

tures were necessary before the property could be

put in operation.

The drain tunnel to the sink and the installation

of the tailings line were necessary to keep the

water and the tailings out of the creek which runs

through Mrs. Cmmingham's property. An effort was

made by Mr. Grarbutt to make a satisfactory ar-

rangement with Mrs. Cunningham to use the creek

for water and tailings disposal, but without success.

During a period of prior management a disposal

line from the mouth of the drain tunnel to the

sink was constructed at a considerable expense,

but it was not properly constructed, thus necessi-

tating a new installation. The new installation is

now constructed at a proper grade and should

cause no further trouble to the company.

The mine was ready to commence operations

several days ago, but at the last minute it was

found that the water pipe leading to the property

was frozen at some point and the getting of this

line in operation occasioned some delay. However,

the mill began operating on January 12, 1939.

Mr. Garbutt has kept the directors fully informed

of what is transpiring at the property, and has

outlined to them from time to time for their ap-

proval the work which he is imdertaking. This
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is something which has never occurred before. Mr.

Garbutt is also making a study of the ore and the

property, so as to determine the proper equipment

for obtaining the best recoveries from the ore. He
is doing this in a very thorough manner and I

have no doubt that when he finally recommends

what equipment should be placed upon the property

for this purpose, it will be successful.

It has been a real pleasure to the writer, and I

feel also to the board, to have a man in charge

of the operation who not only knows what he is

doing, but who does not hesitate to do it when he

finds out what should be done. Mr. Garbutt realizes

better than anyone else that the property will have

to have the most economical kind of operation to

be successful, and you may rest assured that it will

have just that kind of operation. He was severely

handicapped owning to the shortness of time which

he had to attempt to get the property in operation

this year. I may also frankly say in this connection

that I doubt very much if we could have found

another person in the United States as well qualified

in every respect to handle this property.

As you are doubtless aware, a number of months

this year were lost, during which the board was

considering the offer of the Vance interests and the

one made by Mr. Garbutt. After long delay and

much opposition, the board finally concluded that
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it would be for the best interests of all the stock-

holders to accept Mr. Garbutt's offer, which was

reduced to a contract. This contract was more than

lived up to by Mr. Garbutt. For various reasons,

however, he desired to terminate the contract and

a new one has been prepared which has met the

approval of the board but has not yet been executed

and delivered to the company by Mr. Garlnitt. We
should have some word on it before the stockholders'

meeting.

'Vhv i-oxnirdwy lias a serious controversy with Mr.

Vance. Wlien the deal with Mr. Garbutt was closed,

Mr. Vance insisted upon the immediate payment

of the production notes, as well as certain advances

which he claims to have made on the company's

behalf. Of course it was impossible to make any

immediate settlement. He later modified his demands

and insisted upon said advances being" re])aid within

one year and the production notes at a later date.

No settlement could be made along this line until

the company knew when it might have sufficient

resources to take care of any settlement which it

might make. If such a settlement were made and

the company unable to meet the obligations when

tliey fell due, then the interests of the stockholders

would be completely wiped out, and this is what the

directors are desirous of avoiding. Whenever Mr.

Vance is willing to make an arrangement which
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will not jeopardize the interests of the stockholders,

the present board of directors will meet him more

than half way.

You will find enclosed herewith a proxy, which

is self-explanatory. If you desire to continue the

present management of the company's affairs and

the present board, which has and will work for

the best interests of all of the stockholders, kindly

sign the enclosed proxy and return to the office of

the company. If, on the other hand, you feel that

the present board has not worked unselfishly and

for your best interests, do not hesitate to vote for

anyone you desire, because we are all working for

one end, and that is to make the property and the

company a success.

You may be informed prior to the stockholder's

meeting that many things may occur detrimental to

your interests because of the arrangement made

with Mr. Garbutt. In this connection please bear

in mind that certain statements were made to some

of you at the time the contract was first entered

into as to what would happen if the contract was

made. Certainly none of these things has hapi:>ened

and you are now in a position to judge performance

against any assertions of what may occur in the

future.

It is the writer's personal opinion, in conclusion,

that the stockholders will be highly satisfied mth
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Mr. Garbutt's operation during the coming year

and that they may expect a fair and square deal

from him.

Yours sincerely,

MUTUAL GOLD CORPORA-
TION,

By J. E. STIEGLER,
President.

FRANK A. GARBUTT
Suite 712 - 411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, Cal.

January 8, 1939.

To the Board of Directors,

Mutual Gold Corporation,

Mr. J. E. Stiegler, President.

PROGRESS REPORT
My last report was made to you November 22,

1938. Since then, however, your Board of Directors

has been kept in close touch with all oi)erations by

means of daily air mail letters to your President at

Xaclies; your director, Mr. Grill, at Seattle; and

your Director, Mr. Ferbert, at Long Beach, to-

gether with copies of much of the routine cor-

respondence involved.

Director Russell Collins has kept in close touch

by personal contact, so that your Board has been
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fully informed at all times and has been consulted

in advance of any work contemplated and their

advice sought and carefully considered.

I feel, and I think you agree, that your Board

of Directors are functioning one hundred per cent

in controlling and conducting your Company's

affairs, being enabled to do so intelligently by the

completeness and promptness with which all in-

formation reaches them.

It pleases me to state that the Company's business

as far as I can see, is gradually getting into a

better and sounder condition and, although there

are innumerable things to do to protect your titles

and develop your property that they are being given

proper attention as expeditiously as opportunity

affords.

Among other things referred to are:

Your Relationship With The Owners. Although

you made your last payment promptly you are still

in default as to many material things, some of

which, as, for example, failure to impound your

tailings can not be corrected. While not waiving

these various defaults the owners have shown a

disposition to be lenient and, although I can not

guarantee it, am hopeful that we will have no

serious trouble with such matters, this particular

one being dependent upon what damage may occur

to parties OA\Tiing property below us.
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Titles To Your Holdings. It is important that

some of your claims should be patented without

further delays. This is being studied. It is to some

extent dependent upon the weather as survey b}^

the U. S. Deputy Surveyors are amongst the neces-

sary steps. There are also some matters of policy

to be considered.

The title to your water is going to be questioned

and the legalities involved are being carefully

examined into. We have obtained copies of the

briefs from the attorneys who tried some of the

City's cases who were my attorneys for over twenty

years and the law and the facts are being briefed

for our protection.

Road Development. For twenty-five years the

operators of this property, including ourselves, have

been wasting money in hauling over and attempting

to maintain impossible roads and prohibitive grades.

I am not discussing here the developing of the

Mine itself nor the planning of a proper process

nor the building of a suitable mill. These subjects

are too complicated to be determined finally with

our present knowledge.

As you know, they are being studied intensively

and work is being expedited as rapidly as business

prudence and good judgment will permit. You are

completely familiar with all of the considerations

governing this but it is appropriate to say that I
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am not displeased with the progress made with our

metallurgical and physical problems.

Before a study of these matters can be completed

it will be necessary to operate the property and

ascertain a great many things not now known in

order t,o secure the best approximate results both

in operation and in initial expenditure. This work

is receiving my best attention as you are com-

pletely aware. We have tied ourselves to no one

engineering firm but are consulting the best tech-

nical and operating skill in the United States and

in the final analysis will be governed by our own

knowledge and not by any individual opinion for,

while our operations are small, they are vital to

us and we can not afford to take any chances.

Now as to details to date:

1. Our power line, as previously reported, is

complete, as is also another power line 1,500 feet

long, with butt-treated poles to serve the four pumps

for our tailing disposal line.

2. A transformer of our own for electric light-

ing and a lighting system have been installed to

replace the inadequate and expensive contraption

we had.

3. We have completed the installation of a tail-

ings line about 2,600 feet long to the Federal Site

and built a dam there; thus affording a safe place

for the disposal of our tailings and insuring a

future compliance with this provision of our con-
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tract. While this operation will be temporarily

troublesome and expensive it is the only possible

procedure that is entirely safe that is open to us

under present conditions.

4. The 2,800-foot, 8-inch pipe line from the drain

tunnel to "the sink" for the disposal of our "red"

mine water has been completed and insofar as

possible, protected. Its upper end is 16-inch. Mr.

Sturgeon came well within his estimate on the cost

of this installation.

5. Considerable trenching has been completed on

the hill side to protect the drainage tunnel from

continued damage by surface water and, in Mr.

Collins' opinion, to minimize the chance of liability

from the unimpounded tailings. I have no worth-

while opmion on this.

6. The installation of the electric hoist is com-

pleted and my advice is that it is operating satis-

factorily.

7. The cage is also operating satisfactorily in

the shaft.

8. The new mine cars are on hand.

9. The compressor is complete.

10. We are placing the one-inch compressed air

line throughout the mine with 2-inch galvanized

pipe.

11. The old stamp mill has been completely over-

hauled. It is ready to run. I expect trouble with it,
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especially its ore elevating system which was so im-

possible before.

If this mill stands up, I have a plan for utilizing

it for secondary crushing in the future which will

salvage a ])art of its cost, in which case it will be

further remodeled in the spring. Nothing but a

trial can determine this.

12. Compressor and Hoist house is complete.

13. Heaters, as before reported, are installed.

14. All i)ayrolls have, of course, been met

])rom])tly.

15. An intensive study of our metallurgical and

operating pro'olems has been and is being made and

I am pleased to report substantial progress and the

accumulation of much reliable informati<m.

16. Preliminary surveys have been made l)y

competent engineers of new roads, and their feasi-

bility at a i-easonable cost is assured. The construc-

tion, however, must await spring and the thawing

(^f the ground. Possibly $2,500 or $:],000 will cover

this cost.

17. AVe have been favored so far by a very open

winter. VVe can not liaid in the daytime but can

h.-nil at ui.ivht when the ground is frozen.

1(S. Last week w(^ ])ut about 60,000 feet of mine

timbers on the hill.

19. New jack hammers have been bought and

received.
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20. I have bought and delivered to the mine

supj^lies consisting of fuel oil, coal, carbide, steel,

track, i)i'ovisions, drills, explosives, equii)ment, etc.,

and barring accidents and after the usual adjust-

ments we are ready to run and I am very much in

ho])e we will be able to run throughout the winter.

In fact, I expect it. It will enable us to gain nnicli

needed information.

We have spent $50,253.87 to date and I do not

believe $500 of this has been wasted. On the other

hand I have saved the Company more than ten

times this amount that I know of by close j^ersonal

attention to detail. Of this amount $10,000 was for

your payment to the o\^aiers; $11,000 for pajanent

for your major power line; $7,220.72 for consumable

supplies for winter operations, and $14,274.37 f(ri'

equipment such as compressor, hoist, pipe lines,

auxiliary ])ower line, mill motors, lighting plant,

mine cars, new jackhainmers, electric wiring, etc.

In concluding allow me to thank you gentlemen

for your splendid coo])eration and understanding.

Your suggestions and advice have been timely and

excellent and it is a pleasure to work with peo])le

who are familiar with the situation and who do not

think that all >'ou have to do is to buy something

called a mill and start ])aying dividends.

The landscape is dotted with that kind of mills

that never earn a dividend.
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I wish you could find some way of acquainting

your stockholders with the conditions, what you have

accomplished and what you have gone through in

the past for their sake. A few words on paper can-

not begin to tell this story.

The devotion of Russell Collins to the interests

of the Mutual is touching in the extreme. I know-

that he has gone hungrv and cold in his endeavors

to pull them out of the hole they had, through no

fault of his gotten into.

Your President and also Director Ferbert have

shown a willingness to sacrifice not only their time

but also their money to benefit the stockholders and

this, may I state, is in such marked contrast to the

usual cor|)oration director who is generally con-

cerned only in ])rotecting his own interests that it

has furnished the inspiration and the incentive to

me to carry on at a time when the association prom-

ised to become an unpleasant one.

><'or can I close without paying tribute to the

faithful cooperation of our men at the mine and

especially our imderground man, Mr. Sturgeon, and

our mill man, Mr. Haley. They have worked hard

and faithfully for the Company and it is due to

their devoted efforts that we are able to run this

winter.

For example, our eight-inch pipe line was finished,

well under Mr. Sturgeon's estimate of cost, on a
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day when six inches of snow was blown off of the

mountain by a howling blizzard.

They have given me at all times faithful coopera-

tion even when perhaps they did not agree with

what I was doing and I can depend on them to

voice their independent opinions and then do their

best to ])rove that they were wrong if I over-rule

them. More than this, no manager can ask of any

head of a department.

We all know the irre])arable loss that the death

of Air. Keily was to the enterprise and to all of us.

AVhile he had not been with me for several years

on account of my retirement from mining, he has

been in my e]n])loy without missing a pay day for

17^/2 years during which time he never received less

than $300 per month and expenses.

Mr. Keily was a mining engineer of umisual

ability in addition to being a practical miner and

it was with a heavy heart that I consented to go on

with you when he passed away for I had no halluci-

nations about the trouble and detail involved.

That with your coojjeration this work bids fair to

become more of a pleasure than a burden is the

highest compliment I can pay you and I am en-

deavoring to so arrange }^our affairs that if any-

thing ha})|)ens to me that you Avould not ])e ad-

versel.y affected.

In conclusion, may I sum up by saying that with

economical and disinterested management and by
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building up an efficient and loyal organization we

have a fair chance of success. You may depend

upon my best endeavors.

I have heard of efforts being made by unknown

parties to buy stock cheap. I wish you could find

some way to advise your stockholders to hold on

to their stock. My interests are not for sale.

Sincerely,

FRANK A. GARBUTT.
FACt-C.

Q. By Mr. Abel: Mr. Stiegler, the contract of

September 2nd was signed subject to approval by

the stockholders at a meeting called for the pur-

pose ?

A. I think that was the understanding; yes. I

believe so.

Q. And the meeting was called for September

24t]i ? A. Yes.

Q. Why wasn't it held?

A. Well, I took that up probably with our attor-

neys aud tliey told us, or told me, that there was

no use to go out for more authority; the stock-

holders had given us all the authority that they

could give us, or words to that effect. That is my
uuderstauding, anyway.

Q. Did you have that opinion in writing?

A. Mr. Weller was present at a meeting, I think

in Seattle. I don't know. I don't recall whether
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he wrote me a letter to that effect or not. He prob-

ably did, too. Ml*. Weller was our attorney.

Q. And Mr. Grill, an attorne}^, was on the board?

A. Yes ; was with us. Yes, sir. [284]

Q. When did you commence to tell people that

the assets of Mutual Gold had been transferred to

a corporation organized by Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion?

A. I don't remember. I didn't hold anything

back from any of my friends around my section

there. They were all informed. [285]

Redirect Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle : Mr. Stiegler, did you favor

making- the contract of December the 17th, 1938,

which is the only one now in existence?

A. Yes; I think I did.

Q. With Mr. Garbutt?

A. I think I did; yes. I might—may I explain

something there?

Q. All I'ight.

A. I think—I don't remember just what the

question was, what I VN-rote, but Mr. Grill or Mr. Fer-

bert and some of them, we were thinking of coming

back down to Los Angeles again and instead, why,

we decided that the thing to do was to send Mr.

Grill down : and that was the time, I think, Mr.

Grill made that trii) bv In'mself.
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Q, Did this notice of forfeiture which had been

given in x\ugust and which was withdrawn in Octo-

ber influence you to approve the contract in De-

cember? A. I don't think so.

Mr. II inckle : That is all.

Recross Examination

Q. By Mv. x\bel: Do you know why Garbutt,

by tlie contract of October 31, 1938, terminated two

contracts of September 2nd and September 22nd?

A. I have a faint recollection of something'

there. T [286] think it was sometliing in regard to

the tailino's tliat were contaminating the stream

where Mrs. Cunningham gets her water. I don't

recall just what it was, but something to that effect,

J think.

Q. Is it your understanding that the termination

contract of October 31st, 1938 Avas made in order

that, for the future at least, Mr. Garbutt won.ld not

be responsible for any injury or damage caused by

tailings getting into the Cunningham water?

A. AV<'11, tlmt was the old tailing dump.

Q. Well, the point is, is that your understand-

ing- for fhr^ lernnnati(~)n of the contract?

A. AVell. T remember that there was something"

about those tailings. Just when it ha])]:>ened T don't

know. [287]

Q. Dy Mr. Abel : You are now shown your

letter, as ]:>resident of Mutual Gold Corporation,

of January 14, 1939, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 43; and
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your attention is directed to a particular paragraph

there.

A. It is hard for nie to read that fine print.

Q. I will read that particular paragraph to you,

Mr. Stiegler. A. All right.

Q. ''As you are doubtless aware, a number of

months this year were lost, during which the board

was considering the offer of the Vance interests

and the one made by Mr. Garbutt. After long delay

and much opposition, the board finall}^ concluded

that it would be for the best interests of the stock-

holders to accept Mr. Garbutt 's offer, which was

reduced to a contract. This contract was more than

lived up to hy Mr. Garbutt. For various reasons,

however, he desired to terminate the contract and a

new one has been prepared which has met the a])-

proval of the board but lias not 3'^et been executed

and delivered to the comjoany by Mr. Garbutt.

We should have some word on it before the stock-

holders' meeting." Was that a correct statement?

A. I think he more than lived up to his prom-

ises
;
yes. [288]

Q. No. The point is, tliis is the particular thing

:

''For various reasons, however, he desired to ter-

minate the contract and a new one has been pre-

pared which has met the approval of the board but

has not yet been executed and delivered to the com-

]im\y b}- Mr. Garbutt."

A. 'J'hat is jjrobably right.
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Q. So, then, on January 14, 1939, the date of

Exhibit 43, the contract of December 17th had not

been executed? A. I don't know.

Q. There was no other pending contract, was

there ?

A. Well, Mr. Grill was taking care of these con-

tracts and one thing and another for us.

Q. Did lie prepare this letter?

A. He helped me; yes. I think that he probabl}^

did.

Q. Then, if he was taking care of it, have you

any reason to question that part of the statement

that a new contract has been prepared and has met

with the approval of the board, but has not been

executed and delivered by Mr. Garbutt?

A. I have no reason to not believe it.

Q. Was there any contract other and later than

that of December 17, 1938?

A. It strikes me that there were. I think there

was.

Q. A later contract? A. December when?

Q. After December 17th and prior to January

14th. [289]

A. I dou't recall. I don't remember those things.

I have uo records at home of any of this.

Q. But the ])oiut that T am getting out: This

letter was sent out, issued by you to the stock-

holders? A. Yes.

Q. I^^nder date of January 14th in preparation

for the February aunual meeting?
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A. Annual meeting is right.

Q. Annual meeting, and the stockholders at-

tended that annual meeting, were informed by the

president that Garbutt had terminated his contract

and a new one liad been approved by the board but

had not 3^et been executed or delivered ?

A. Probably that is right.

Q. As late as January 14th? A. Yes.

[290]

WILLIAM L. CIRILL,

called as a witness on ]:)ehalf of the above named

defendants, being j)reviously duly sworn, was ex-

ann'ned and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Mr. Grill, what office, if

a]iy, do you hold with the Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion?

A. I am a director and, I believe, a vice presi-

dent, although I am not sure. We have two or

three of them.

Q. About how long have you been a director?

A. I don't recall. The minute book will show.

I think, in 'o4. some time along there, or '35.

Q. Do you own any stock in the Mutual ?

A. 0]i, I <nvn, directly and indirectly, some

slock': yes.

O. Do von kn(wv about how much?
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A. Oh, sixty, seventy or eighty thousand shares.

I don't know exactly how many.

Q. By the Court: You say, ''directly or in-

directly." What do you mean?

A. Well, through a company.

Q. Do you own any stock yourself?

A. Oh, yes; tliis stock practicality all belongs to

me, but it is held in the name of the company. [297]

Q. By Mr. Hinckle : Does the Mutual Gold Coi-

poration owe you any money, not for any services

rendered, but that you have advanced?

A. I think for some traveling expenses; yes,

directors meetings and something of that kind, for

traveling expenses.

Q. Bid you favor making the contracts of Sep-

tember 2nd and 22nd with Mr. Garbutt ?

A. I did.

Q. Bid you also favor making the one that is

now in effect? A. I did.

Q. And that is dated December 17, 1938 ?

A. I did.

Q. Wliy did you favor making the first one?

A. Well, that gets back j^robably to somewhat of

a story. The Mutual Gold Corporation was en-

deavoring to develop this property and it spent a

good deal of money. Along in June some time there

was a meeting—I think June 25th there was a

meeting—called of the directors at the Vance Hotel;

and T think at that time, or ])robnbly shortly ]irior
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to that, we had learned that Mr. Yance had em-

ployed a Mr. Cole to go down and make an examina-

tion of the property. This re])ort was made avail-

al)le at that [298] meeting and it was rei)orted by

Mr. Vance that it would be necessary to organize

a new company to take this thing over, to raise the

money to fully develop it and equij) it with a larger

])lant ; and the ^proposition tirst submitted, I thought,

was unfair to the small stockholders, and if my
recollection is correct, it was a matter of a deal

where the Mutual would retain a 40 per cent and

the new company would get 60 per cent, and in

addition to that, the advances made by Mr. Yance

and the other stockholders, Mr. Ferbert and Mr.

Stiegler, would get production notes plus stock as

a bonus, the same deal tliat tlie $30,000 was raised,

in which in effect nothing was paid for the stock,

and the prior stockholders had paid from 6 to 7%
cents a share for their stock. Well, the discussions

in that meeting—there were modifications made at

that meeting or subsequent meetings.

Mr. Abel: Pardon me. What meeting is this

now ?

A. I think tliat is in June, 1938, June 2r)th, if

my recollection is correct. T would not be ])ositive

because I do not atteui))t to remember these dates.

And at that meeting or the next meeting we dis-

cussed the matter of getting other offers, not merely

accepting one, to see what w^e could do; and there

was discussion of a vStone offer by Mr. Stiegler. Mr.
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Stone had made a prior offer which had not met

with the approval of the board and Mr. Vance. I

think I suggested that they attempt to get the Sun-

shine [299] Mining Company to become interested

and this thing delayed mitil it could be presented.

And I believe that Mr. Vance and Mr. Lloyd Vance

and several—I was not ])resent—^went over and con-

tacted the Sunshine Mining Company and they were

not interested, naturally, because of the way the

matter was presented, I think, and probably for

other reasons; and all of this time the directors

were attempting to get some deal. Mr. Vance's deal

was there pending and the minutes show that it was

recommended to the stockholders because there was

no other ])roposition then pending. Mr. Collins told

me and, I think, the other members of the board,

that he was going to California to see if he could

not get some deal down here. He did not state

who he was going to see. I believe he met Mr. Fer-

bert here or went down with him; and I think the

first intimation of some deal came to that stock-

holders' meeting in Spokane. Mr. Ferbert and Mr.

Collins said that they had interviewed, I believe

Mr. Garbutt, and that there was a possibility of his

making some deal.

Q. By Mr. Abel: When was this? Pardon me.

A. That was in that meeting of August 8th in

Spokane, 1938, about that time. That is my recol-

lection, altliough I am not i)ositive about it. And
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I believe that a wire was sent about that time to

Mr. Garbutt so we would have something in

writing; and I think some answer came back which

was given to the various members of the board and

that was [300] the reason for the resolution being

put in the form in which it was, to accept any other

deal which might present itself.

The direct question, to answer that question asked,

I had been somewhat familiar w^ith the operation. I

think I had made one trip up to the mine by that

time, and possibly two trips, and my opinion was

or conclusion that I had, and the statements that

I made to the board and Mr. Vance, I believe, too,

and to his son, that Mr. Vance w^as not a mining-

man, and that even if he em2)loyed one he would

not follow his advice and w^ould run it to suit him-

self. And chiefly for those reasons I was interested

in attempting to get a mining company ])robably

in there with plenty of means to develop this prop-

erty, someone who was capable and knew the busi-

ness and had means to carry it through. If we had

to go outside of the Mutual Gold, why, I wanted to

^e\ into good strong hands and capable hands, that

is, 80 far as I am concerned.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: AVere you influenced to

favor the contracts of Septeml)er, 1938 by notice

of forfeiture?

A. Not so far as I was personally concerned ; no.

I was not influenced bv it because I don't i^-pt
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alarmed, like possibly some business men do, by

notices of that kind; and I was not alarmed by the

threats made in these meetings of litigation by Mr.

Vance if his deal was not made, either. That is not

particularly in response to his question, but [301]

I was not influenced by either.

Q. You were not influenced, I take it, then, by

the notice to favor the contract made, or at least

dated, in December, 1938, the one that is now in

existence ?

A. No; that would not haA^e completely influ-

enced me Tmtil

Q. By the Court: Well, would it influence you

at alH

A.' I would say it did not influence me.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Have you been paid am-
thing, other than some expenses, by Mr. Garbutt

in connection with this?

A. I didn't consider Mr. Garbutt paid me any

expenses. He advanced the money for Mutual. If

it had been from him I would feel I should not liave

acce])ted it.

Q. Have you been j^aid anything for legal serv-

ices rendered to Mutual ?

A. Not by any source; and I have paid ])art of"

my own expenses. If I felt I could get someone

everyone knew about and told Mr. Stiegler in those

cases, as an advance for Mutual, to partly pay my
expenses I got it.
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Q. Whose idea was it, if you know, that the

Mutual Gold Corporation should be represented on

the board of directors of the Log Cabin Mines Com-

pany ?

A, Well, I think that in discussion in the board

meeting- it was at least my idea, and I think the

contract might contain it, that we should have full

minority [302] representation on the board.

Q. You still feel that way, do you?

A. I have no question about it. Under the cumu-

lative A'oting system we are entitled to it legally.

Q. Did Mr. Garbutt agree to that when it was

suggested to him?

A. He had no objection and I think the laws of

tlie state provided for it, anyway.

Q. When did you first meet Mr. Garbutt?

A. Well, there was a resolution of the minutes

that shows there. The time these contracts were

being considered the board i)assed a resolution

authorizing the members of the board to go down

and meet him to consider this thing. The minutes

show tliat I was going there as the attorney, also

as the director, and I met him when I arrived here

some time the latter i)art of August or first of

September.

Q. And is that the tiine that you finally ended

uj) in the contract of Se])tember 2nd? Is that the

first time you ever met him? [303]

A. That is the first time I ever met him person-

ally, ever met him.



464 Helen M. Sutherland, et at.

(Testimony of William L. Grill.)

Q. Is it the tirst time 3-011 ever had any business

dealings with him?

A. Xo. I talked to him over the phone about this

contract—or not about the contract, but about the

situation.

Q. By jNIr. Hinckle: Did you laiow, Mr. Grill,

about the suit that was tiled in the City of Los

Angeles in the Su])erior Court by the Log Cabin

Mines Conii)any against the Mutual Gold Corpora-

tion to quiet the Log Cabin Mines Company title to

this contract dated July the 13th, 1938?

A. Yes. I have [304]

Q. By Mr. Llinckle : Was a meeting of the board

of directors called and held at which the question of

whether or not to defend the suit was considered?

A. Yes; there was a meeting called at which the

matter was presented to the board, and the minutes

so show the action taken by the board of the Mutual.

Q. By Mr. Hinckle: Did this suit follow^ or

precede the filing of a simikir suit by A. P. Bateham

and others to quiet title in the State of Washington ?

A. Well, I don't know the time the Bateham suit

was filed; but it is iny recollection that it followed

it, and I don't think there is any question about it.

[306]

Cross Examination

Q. AMien did you first become aware of the

August 25, 1938 notice of rescission?

A. 1 can't answer that, but 1 believe it \Nas
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brought [307] up in one of the directors' meet-

ings. It might have been given to ine outside of tliat.

I don't recall now.

Q. And you were present upon the 2nd of Sep-

tember when the contract of that date was signed?

A. Wei], I was^that is my recollection.

Q. Did you negotiate the contract?

A. Wei], I v,as j^resent when Mr. Stiegler was

there, Mr. Ferbert, and I believe Mr. Collins and

myself. [308]

Q. Was the contract drafted by the time you

arrived ?

A. I thinlc there had been a contract form su))-

mitted to us. It is my recollection there had been

a form submitted. Whether that had been sent up

or not, I don't remem]:>er; but it is my recollection

that tilere was one when we came down.

Q. Was it modified in any particular?

A. Yes; in some few particulars it was modified.

[309]

Q. How long did it take to negotiate and draft

the contract?

A. Well, we spent at least a morning going over

these, or a half day at least, going over all the items

that we had in mind.

Q. AVhat were they?

A. I have told you I don't recall them at this

time. Maybe during ihe course of tliis examination

they Vsill come to me. There were two or three things
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there. One comes to me now, the matter of something

in the contract so that it could not be sold out from

under us; and I think there was some modification

of that which would give us certain rights to take

this situation over. Then there was something taken

ULp \vith reference to voting, the matter of full

minority representation. I don't remember whether

I was fully aware of the California law at that

time, but I think I either looked it up there before

I came or after I arrived, and whether that was in

the contract I don't knov»-, but that was one of the

things I wanted to be ceitain about. [310]

Q. What, if any, consideration was given to the

subject of the creditors of the Mutual Gold at that

time ?

A. Well, there was considerable given that first

meeting. The chief creditor that we were disturbed

about was Mr. Vance with his open accounts, and

we arranged with Mr. Garbutt to borrow, or lie

would borrow the sum of $25,000.

Q. Was that embodied in the contract?

A. Xo ; that was not embodied in the contract Init

I think there is something in the minutes, a report

made in the minutes of Mutual, wliich, if you will

look through, you will find.

Q. But that was a resolution trying to get

$25,000 A. AVell, we stated

Q. —which was refused, wasn't it?

A. If you will let me finish, I will tell you. You

asked first, and I will tell you. He called up the
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bank there in our presence and asked for a loan of

some $20,000 or $25,000.

Q. What date was that?

A. What is that?

Q. What date was that?

A. I can't tell yon the date. Dnring the course

of these negotiations on this contract.

Q. On this contract of September 2nd?

A. That is my recollection. [311]

Q. Yes.

A. And someone he knew in the 1)ank, and the

banker said there was some meeting and he would

have to call him back; and then he got some call

back and said the loan was all right and we were

to put up our stock, our half interest in the stock

as security so we could

Q. Half interest in what stock?

A. In the company to be organized.

Q. That was never organized, was it?

A. It was organized—Log Cabin Mines was or-

ganized in the first instance by Mr. Garbutt.

Q. Now you are show^n Exhibit 13. Please show

that part of the contract which has to do with taking

care of the creditors of Mutual Gold.

A. Well, I have said—if it does not appear in

here, and I haven't read it for some time—just as

1 have testified to you, the only creditor that we

had any concern about was the open account of

Vance 's.
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Q. Xo. The point that I am trying to make is

this: That there was at or about the time of the

execution of this contract of September 2ncl a

discussion about Mutual Gold creditors, and when

the contract \vas executed it was silent on the

subject? A. I believe that is correct,

Q. And no pi-ovision made for creditors.

A. I believe that is correct, in the contract, to

the [312] best of my recollection, without reading it.

Q. Turn to the minute about tr}'ing to borrow

$25,000.

A. These are the minutes of the date of "Sep-

tember, 1938'* in red at the top. [313]

A. (Reading) "It was regularl}- moved b\' Mr.

Grill and seconded by Mr. Ferbert that the presi-

dent of this corporation, Mr. J. E. Stiegler, be and

hereby is authorized and directed, for and on behalf

of this corporation, to Ijorrow the sum of $25,000

froDi ail}' person, firm or corporation, upon the best

terms possible, giving the note of this corporation

or other written obligation, and for and on behalf

of this corporation to execute a i)ledge or assign-

ment of any or all of the assets of the corporation

as security therefor. Said motion carried by the

votes of Mr. Stiegler, Mr. Ferbert, Mr. Hickcox,

Mr. Collins and Mr. Grill. Mr. Woodworth and

Mr. Vance voted 'Xo' thereon."

Q. And was that done .^ Was the $25,000 bor-

rowed from anybody?
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A. No. Mr. Vance refused to take the money, to

take these open account advances. [314-]

Q. A¥as it offered him?

A. Oh, you ought to know. You were down here

at one time.

Q. It was, it was offered!

A. I say it was offered to him, the money was

offered to him and it was refused.

Q. When!
A. I don't remember now, but it was refused.

He refused to accept it and said, ''Well, no;" un-

less lie got his production notes secured by a mort-

gage on the assets or in some other fashion. That is

what \Ne discussed down here at one of these sessions

I came down. [315]

Q. By Mr. Abel: How much have you received

in traveling expenses through Mr. Grarbutt ?

A. The two occasions are the only occasions that

I ever received anything from him, and those were

loans to Mutual, as I have stated.

Q. Well, who on behalf of Mutual arranged the

loans %

A. Well, I discussed on each occasion with the

jjresident of the company, Mr. Stiegler, told him

what the circumstances were.

Q. On each occasion?

A. Of these two j)articular occasions: and in ad-

dition to that—well, I guess I had better not say

anything more. [316]
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Q. What else? A. What is that?

Q. What have you in mind?

A. Well, I said that on one other occasion they

paid it out of their own pockets as a part of my
expense, Mr. Ferbert and Mr. Stiegler.

Q. With reference to the Los Angeles quiet title

suit how and when did the existence of that suit

come to your attention?

A. To the best of my recollection, through Mr.

Garbutt.

Q. When !

A. I can't tell you the dates. There was some

correspondence in connection with it. [317]

Q. By Mr. Abel : The first letter is a letter froui

Garbutt to yourself giving information of the quiet

title suit in Spokane? A. Yes.

PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 91

April 15, 1939

Mr. Wm. L. Grill,

Colman Building,

Seattle, Wash.

Dear Mr. Grill

:

The office this day received from O. C. Moore,

Attorney at Law, Spokane, who, it is presumed, is

a partner of Abel, a summons and complaint by

mail, in suit No. 103,233, which is apparently the
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same as the copy you sent Mr. Hinckle. This was

addressed on the envelope to

Log Cabin Mines Com})any

411 W. Seventh St., Room 712,

Los Angeles, California.

Mr. Hinckle thinks it is doubtful whether such

a suit to quiet title could be successfully maintained

on service by publication in the State of Washing-

ton as the contract in which title is sought to be

quieted is no longer within that jurisdiction.

The j)roperty itself is in California, the contract

is not in A^^ashington, and neither is it in the pos-

session of nor does it belong to the Mutual Crold

Corjjoration.

Yours sincerely,

FRANK A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.

April 21, 1939

Mr. Wm. L. Grill,

Colman Building,

Seattle, Wash.

Air Mail

Dear Mr. Grill:

hi discussing with Mr. Hinckle today the advisa-

bility and possibility of a quiet title suit by the Log

Cabin Mines Coin})any against the Mutual, et al,

Mr. Hinckle suggested that the Mutual itself has
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no defense and conld probably file a disclaimer as

an answer.

He also suggested the advisability of bringing this

suit against every stockholder the Mutual has.

In order to do this, we would have to have your

list of stockholders to date, and their addresses,

because it will be necessar}^ to send a copy of the

complaint to all of them by registered mail. At the

same time we ought to include any creditors you

have v\'ho are not stockholders. I do not know

whether the Vance Lumber Company is a stock-

holder or not but it should be included in any

event, I think.

Mr. Hinckle has also suggested that filing this

suit against the stockholders who are loyal to you

might cause some comment, in which case we might

segregate the sheep from the goats and file the quiet

title suit against those who differ with you. It would

also save some money in registered mail, etc.

With kind regards.

Yours sincerely,

FRAXK A. GARBUTT.
FAG-C.

cc to Mr. Weller.



vs. Frank A. Garhutt, et al. 473

(Testimony of William L. Grill.)

Law Offices of

JONES & 13R0NS0N
Colman Building

Seattle

April 24, 1939

Mr. Frank A. Garbutt

712-411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

Dear Mr. Garbutt

:

Re No. 112, you may rest assured that I do not

now have, nor have ever had the impression that

you will get weak-kneed with reference to the liti-

gation.

Replying to yours of the 21st, 113, will say that

I quite agree that the Mutual could hie a disclaimer

of no defense as an answer to an action to quiet

title.

It would seem to me to be a rather extended pro-

ceeding to make all of the stockholders of the

Mutual a party to such action. However, it might

be advisable to inchide those \vho may be in a ])osi-

tion by reason of having hnances as ])arties thereto,

as well as creditors. If you desire to make all of the

stockholders parties, we will be glad to forward a

list, together with their addresses. If you desire a

list of those who have opposed the situation, which

would include the Vances and the Vance Lumber

Company, we will have this prepared.
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As I have written you, we are going to hold our

directors' meeting early in May and if you desire

to present anything to tlie board with reference to

the api^roval of the loan which you have suggested,

as well as the ratification of all acts of the officers

between meetings, please have Mr. Hinckle prepare

what you want and it will be presented.

With kindest regards, I am
Yours sincerely,

W. L. GRILL.

WLG:pb

May 18, 1939.

Mr. Wm. L. Grill,

Colman Building,

Seattle, Wash.

Air Mail

Dear Mr. Grill:

T]ie Log Cabin Mines C'oin])any lias brought suit

to quiet title to the contract and property and Mr.

Hinckle served Mr. Collins, as representative of the

Mutual.

As the Mutual was served out of tlie county, it

has thirty days in wliich to answer, after which time

a default can be taken.

In order to be assured that the Mutual has actual

knowledge of tlie matter, I am sending you hei-ewith

copy of the C'Omplaint and Summons although I

presimie that Russell has advised the Company prior

to this.
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In any event, you can acquaint either the Com-

pany or Mr. Weller with it, as you think best.

Mr. Hinckle thinks that a quiet title suit by the

Log Cabin against tlie Mutual will be sufficient and

that any jjerson else who holds through or inider

the Mutual will be bound thereb\'.

However this may be, we can get a quick judg-

ment against the Mutual and go to trial or secure

a default quicker, and in event it should be deemed

necessary, we can sue the others later.

If the Mutual appears we can agree on an early

trial and if it does not appear we can take a de-

fault on or about Jmie 7th.

Sincerely,

FRANK A. GAEBUTT.
FAG-C.

Enc.

Law Offices of

JONES & 13R0NS0N
Colman Building

Seattle

May 22, 1939

Mr. Frank A. Garbutt

712-411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles

Dear Mr. Garbutt:

I wish to again thank you for the picture of the

tailings dam, as I had not heretofore received one.
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This is likewise a good picture and would indicate

that these tailings should bother no one. Whenever

you can deposit your tailings for stope filling as

}'uu suggest, it will mean an additional saving.

I wish to acknowledge receipt of your favor of

the 18th enclosing copy of your suit to quiet title.

I think we should call a meeting of the board of

directors about the time you can take your default

so that the entire l)oard v/ill have knowledge of

your action and it cannot later be said that any ad-

A^antage was taken oL' the situation. I will try to

arrange for a meeting at about that time. The

Mutual has no defense and would have none, even

if it appeared.

AVith kindest regards, I am
Yours sincerely

W. L. GRILL.

WLG:pb

Law Offices of

JONES & BRONSON
Colman Building

Seattle

May 25, 1939

Mr. Frank A. Garbutt

712-411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

Dear Mr. Garbutt:

Replying to }'ours of May 18 more specifically,

I have asked Mr. Stiegler to call a meeting at my
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office to determine whether or not to defend your

suit. I think the board should act upon this.

Of course there is no defense, but I don't want

it asserted later that the board should have taken

action and did not do so.

Yours very truly

W. L. GRILL.
WLG:pb

Law^ Offices of

JONES (fe liRONSON
Colman Building

Seattle

June 8, 1939

Mr. Frank A. Garbutt

712-411 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles, California

Dear Mr. Garbutt:

Yours, #163, 164 received.

I forgot to inform you that at the directors'

meeting held here, a resolution was passed to the

effect that the company would not defend the suit

to quiet title which you have instituted. We tliought

it advisable to bring the matter before the board

so that lull knowledge would be had of such action

by it.

You will hnd enclosed herewith minutes of the

meeting for your tiles.
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With kindest regards, I am
Yours sincerely,

W. L. GRILL.

WLGrpb

Q. By Mr. Abel: The first letter informed you

that a suit was pending, had been l^rought in Spo-

kane County? A. Yes.

Q. To quiet title to the contract, the purchase

[319] contract? A. Yes.

Mr. Moore : What is the date of that ?

Mr. Abel: April 15, 1939. May I read these to

your Honor ? It will save a lot of examination.

Q. By Mr. Abel: On the 21st you received an-

other letter?

A. No; I probably received it later than that

date. That is the date of the letter. I apparently

received the original of that letter.

Q. In which he suggested the advisability of a

quiet title suit by Log Cabin Mines ?

A. That is my recollection of the letter.

Q. Against Mutual; and Mutual had no defense

and would ])robably file a disclaimer?

A. Correct.

Q. And Mr. Hinckle also suggested the advisa-

bility of bringing this suit against every stockholder

Mutual hadf

A. That is what the letter states.
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Q. And then you replied on tlie 24th?

A. Yes. [320]

Q. This is your letter?

A. That is my letter; yes.

Q. In which you agreed that the Mutual could

file a disclaimer to make no defense to the action to

quiet title?

A. AVhatever the letter states there.

Q. That was your advice, was it not, to Mr.

Garbutt ?

A. I don't believe that is the language I used.

I don't remember it. I think I said they had no

defense to the action. 1 don't remember what the

exact language was, but I think I said that.

Q. Quoting from the letter:

"Replying to yours of the 21st, 113, will say that

I quite agree that the Mutual could file a disclaimer

of no defense as an answer to an action to quiet

title." A. Well, I said it.

Q. And you offered to furnish him a list of the

stockholders? A. Yes; I believe so.

Q. The stock-holding defendants, so that they

coidd be brought in, including the Vances and the

Vance Lumber Company? A. Yes.

Q. And then you were informed on May IStli

that suit had been brought and Mr. Hinckle had

served Mr. Collins?

A. If that is what it so states. I can't remember

all of it. [321]
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Q. When did yon receive a copy of that com-

plaint ?

A. I will have to refer to the correspondence to

see.

Q. Did that letter of May 18th enclose a copy?

A. It so states. I presmne that I received it.

Q. A copy of that complaint?

A. It says, the letter of May 18, 1939: ''In order

to be assured that the Mutual has actual knowledge

of the matter, I am sending you herewith copy of

the Complaint and Summons although I presume

that Russell has advised the Company prior to this.
'

'

Rus.sell Collins that means.

Q. That was on May 18? A. '39.

Q. And the next meeting of the board of direc-

tors of Mutual was on June tJ, was it not?

A. 1 can't tell you without the book, without the

minute book.

Q. You are shown the minute book of that date.

The meeting vras held at your office ?

A. Apparently so. June 6th.

Q. Was the meeting heUl in your office?

A. Yes; it was held in my office. [322]

Q. But you were tliere?

A. Yes; I was present at the meeting. The

Jiiinutes su sliow.

Q. Now I read and quote:

"It was moved and seconded that inasmuch

as the Mutual Gold Corporation has no interest
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in the mining claims \n California at this time

that the Com]jany make no defense to the ac-

tion of"

then Mr. Garbntt's name a])pears in ty])e and a line

throngh it and above it

''Log Cabin Mines Co. bronght to qniet title

to said claims in the T^og Cabin Mines Company.

Motion was carried by the votes of J. E.

Stiegler, G. H. Ferbert and W. L. Grill. O])-

posed Lloyd J. Vance."

A. Yes; it was brought up at that meeting and

discussed.

Q. Yes.

A. And the result was and the action of the

board that no defense be put in to this quiet title

suit.

Q. Then, would }ou say that it was not until

June 6th that the matter came to the attention of

the members of the [323] board, except yourself.

A. I would not say that because I am certain

that it had been brought to tlie attention—I know-

that it had—of Mr. Stiegler and Mr. Weller in

Spokane.

Q. How^ do you know that ?

A. Well, my recollection is that I have some cor-

resjjondence in my office between Mr. Weller and

myself, although I haven't it with me and that is

just my recollection, and possibly some with Mr.

Stiegler, too. [324]
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Q. Weren't you in daily commmiication with

Mr. Garbutt during this whole period?

A. I was not.

Q. By phone and by letter?

A. I was not. What period now are you referring

to?

Q. During the period of tlie two quiet title

suits?

A. Well, I was m correspondence with him, but

not in daily correspondence with him.

Q. Dichi't you advise him that the quiet title

suit could not be maintained in the State of Wash-

ington because the property was in California?

A. No; I wouldn't say that. If the parties were

before the court in AVashington I think the Wash-

ington court could pass upon it. But I think they

couldn't get

Q. How could jurisdiction be acquired of Log

Cabin?

A. Well, I say that that was the point; you

couldn't serve the Log Cabin in Washington.

Q. Now, then, wasn't it with that in mind that

you resigned oft* the board of Log Cabin?

A. Yes. At first 1)1 ush, when I heard of it, I

thought: Well, we better get off; and on the second

consideration, I came to the conclusion it was not

nacessary and went back on later.

Q. I know.

A. But you are quite correct, however, that I

did resign as soon as I learned about it. [325]
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Q. You resigned from tlie Log Cabin Mines so

that service could not be made upon you in the

State of Washington on Log CaBin Mines?

A. Yes; and I think I so advised Russell Col-

lins.

Q. All three directors of Log Cabin Mines went

off the board at about the same time in the State

of Washington ?

A. I think two or three went off. If they were

all on, they all went off. [326]




